
City Council Agenda 
February 19, 2019 at 6:30 PM 

1001 11th Avenue, City Center South, Greeley, CO 80631 

  

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Recognitions and Proclamations 

5. Citizen Input 

6. Approval of the Agenda 

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

8. Petitions from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow 

the City Council to handle several routine items with one action. 

Council or staff may request an item be “pulled” off the Consent 

Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item 

in the order they were listed. 

9. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of February 5, 

2019 

10. Acceptance of the Report of the February 12, 2019, City 

Council Worksession 

11. Consideration of a Resolution accepting dedication of 90 

feet of previously reserved right-of-way plus an additional 5 feet 

to accommodate an off-street trail for a total of 1.453 acres, 

located north of Highway 34 Business, east of 83rd Avenue and 

west of the Boomerang Golf Course 

12. Consideration of a change order to the contract with JUB 

Engineers for design services for the 20th Street road widening 

project in the amount of $149,781 

13. Introduction and first reading of an ordinance vacating a 

right-of-way located south of the intersection of 30th Street and 

43rd Avenue and approving of a subdivision replat for Gateway 

Estates 2nd Filing, 1st Replat 

 
 

Mayor 

John Gates 

Councilmembers 

Jonathan Smail 

Ward I 

Brett Payton 

Ward II 

Michael Fitzsimmons 

Ward III 

Dale Hall 

Ward IV 

Stacy Suniga 

At-Large 

Robb Casseday 

At-Large 

 

A City Achieving 

Community Excellence 
Greeley promotes a 

healthy, diverse economy 

and high quality of life 

responsive to all its 

residents and 

neighborhoods, 

thoughtfully managing its 

human and natural 

resources in a manner 

that creates and sustains 

a safe, unique, vibrant 

and rewarding 

community in which to 

live, work, and play. 

 

1



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

14. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance to facilitate installation of City-owned fiber 

optic conduit during excavation projects within the City's rights of way 

15. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the acquisition of interests in real 

property located in the City of Greeley for road improvements by purchase or exercise of 

power of eminent domain pursuant to Section 7 of Article XVI, Section 15 of article II, and 

Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and Colorado Revised Statute § 

38-1-101, et seq. (65th Avenue and Highway 34 Frontage Road Project) 

End of Consent Agenda 

16. Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

17. Public hearing to consider a change of zone from PUD (Planned Unit Development – Oil 

and Gas, and Neighborhood Center) to PUD (Planned Unit Development – Residential) 

zone district for approximately 7.11 acres located north of 25th Street (a.k.a., Centerplace 

Drive) and west of 35th Avenue Court, and a public hearing and final reading of an 

Ordinance changing the official zoning map to reflect the same  

18. Public hearing to consider approval of the Gateway Park II Preliminary PUD (Planned Unit 

Development) for approximately 7.11 acres located north of 25th Street (a.k.a., 

Centerplace Drive) and west of 35th Avenue Court  

19. Public hearing and final reading approving an ordinance to adopt the City of Greeley 

Strategic Housing Plan, an Element of the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan 

20. Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance for the 2nd Amendment to the 

Centerplace North Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) 

21. Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance amending Section 6.16 of Greeley’s 

Municipal Code regarding Alcohol Beverages 

22. Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance amending Chapter 13.40 of the Greeley 

Municipal Code to update certain park regulations 

23. Appointment of applicants to the Golf Board, Island Grove Advisory Board, Parks and 

Recreation Advisory Board, and the Stormwater Board. 

24. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

25. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required resolutions, 

agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this meeting and 

at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all such 

resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

26. Adjournment 

  

2



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 1 

 

Title 

Call to Order 

                                 

3



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 2 

 

Title 

Pledge of Allegiance 

                                 

4



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 3 

 

Title 

Roll Call 

Summary 

Mayor Gates 

Councilmember Smail 

Councilmember Payton 

Councilmember Casseday 

Councilmember Fitzsimmons 

Councilmember Suniga 

Councilmember Hall 
                                 

5



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 4 

 

Title 

Recognitions and Proclamations 

Summary 

Councilmember Suniga will present the What’s Great about Greeley Report. 

 

Mayor Gates will present a proclamation recognizing March as Youth Art Month to 

urge all citizens to support quality school art programs for our children and our youth. 

 

Attachments 

February 19, 2019 What’s Great about Greeley Report 

Youth Art Month Proclamation 

 
                                 

6



Slide 1 

Greeley City Council
February 19, 2019
Councilmember Stacy Suniga

GreeleyGov.com

 

 

Slide 2 
“If you belittle what you 

have…it becomes less.

If you appreciate what

you have …

it becomes more.”
~Gelene McDonald

 

At each Council Meeting, we 
recognize the people, 
organizations and businesses 
that make Greeley Great. 
Tonight it’s my turn to announce 
the recognitions.  I’ll start with a 
quote, “If you belittle what you 
have, it becomes less.  If you 
appreciate what you have, it 
becomes more.”  With these 
announcements we are 
appreciating the good work of 
our residents, showing support 
for their efforts, and encouraging 
everyone to share the word that 
Greeley is Great. 
 
 

 

7



Slide 3 Greeley Central

Basketball Conference Champs

 

Congratulations to the Greeley 
Central Women’s Basketball for 
being named the 4A Conference 
Champions.  Their championship 
game was even listed as the #1 
game to watch by Colorado 
Preps.  Good luck to the lady 
Wildcats in the playoffs! 
 
 
 
 

Slide 4 University of Northern Colorado

Tree Campus USA

 

The University of Northern 
Colorado has been honored with 
2018 Tree Campus USA 
recognition by the Arbor Day 
Foundation for its commitment 
to effective urban forest 
management. Tree Campus USA 
program honors colleges and 
universities for effective campus 
forest management and for 
engaging staff and students in 
conservation goals. UNC’s 
campus and its 3,468 trees are 
one of seven Colorado colleges 
and universities with the 
designation, and are also a 
certified arboretum recognized 
by the National ArbNet 
Arboretum Accreditation 
Program. 
 
 

 

8



Slide 5 Greeley West Swimming
Two School Records Broken at State Meet

 

And, here’s an update since our 
last What’s Great presentation.  
You may recall Greeley West 
High School swimmer Josie 
Carpenter who qualified for the 
State swim competition in 8 
events.  Josie didn’t take first 
but, instead, broke not one but 
TWO (2) school records at the 
CHSAA State Swim meet.  Great 
job Josie! 
 
 

Slide 6 

Greeley City Council - 2019   

GreeleyGov.com

 

 

 

9



 
 
 

YOUTH ART MONTH 2019 
 

WHEREAS, art education gives powerful educational benefits to all students; and  
 
WHEREAS, art education develops creative problem solving and critical thinking; and 
  
WHEREAS, art education teaches sensitivity to beauty and order; and 
 
WHEREAS, art education brings to life what students learn in other subjects; and 
 
WHEREAS, art education gives understanding of world cultures; and 
 
WHEREAS, March is observed throughout the nation as Youth Art Month; and  
 
WHEREAS, in recognition of Youth Art Month, Greeley/Evans Art Educators from 

Kindergarten to College have partnered with the Greeley Creative District, Greeley ACE Program, 
the Downtown Development Authority, and area businesses to display student artwork at various 
businesses located from the UNC campus to Downtown during the month of March; and 

 
WHEREAS, parents, family, community members and other artists are encouraged to 

participate in First Friday receptions on March 1st throughout this art corridor to view this 
impressive body of artwork and support these young artists as guided by their art educators; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Greeley Art Commission also commemorates this month with the 

publication of a coloring book with illustrations representing the City’s Public Art Collection.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, John D. Gates, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 

of the City of Greeley, Colorado, do hereby proclaim March as Youth Art Month in the City of 
Greeley and urge all citizens to support quality school art programs for our children and our 
youth. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the 

official seal of the City of Greeley, this 19th day of February, 2019. 
 

    ____________________________ 
     John D. Gates 
     Mayor 

10



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 5 

 

Title 

Citizen Input 

Summary 

During this 15-minute portion of the meeting, anyone may address the Council on any 

item of City business appropriate for Council’s consideration that is not already listed 

on this evening’s agenda. 

 

Individual speakers will be limited to 3 minutes each.  Council and staff will respond 

tonight, if possible, to questions or requests.  If further time or discussion is needed, a 

staff member will contact you within the next couple of days.  Some items may need 

to be scheduled for a future meeting. 
                                 

11



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 6 

 

Title 

Approval of the Agenda 

                                 

12



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 7 

Title 

Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 
During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may offer announcements or 

reports on recent events and happenings.  These reports should be a summary of the 

Councilmember’s attendance at assigned board/commission meetings and should 

include key highlights and points that may require additional decision and discussion by 

the full Council at a future time.   

Board/Commission Meeting Day/Time Assignment  
--Team of 2--  Board/Commission Interviews Monthly as Needed Council Rotation 

Water & Sewer Board 3rd Wed, 2:00 pm Gates 

Youth Commission Liaison 4th Mon, 6:00 pm Smail 

Historic Preservation Loan As Needed Suniga 

Police Pension Board Quarterly Suniga 

Employee Health Board As Needed Suniga 

Human Relations Commission Liaison 2nd Monday, 12:30 P.M. Suniga 

Airport Authority 3rd Thur, 3:30 pm Casseday/Payton 

Visit Greeley 3rd Wed, 7:30 am Fitzsimmons 

Upstate Colorado Economic Development Last Wed, 7:00 am Gates/Hall 

Greeley Chamber of Commerce 4th Mon, 11:30 am Gates 

Island Grove Advisory Board 1st Thur, 3:30 pm Smail 

Weld Project Connect Committee (United Way) As Needed Fitzsimmons 

Downtown Development Authority 3rd Thur, 7:30 am Casseday/Smail 

Transportation/Air Quality MPO 1st Thur, 6:00 pm Casseday/Gates 

Poudre River Trail 1st Thur, 7:00 am Hall 

Interstate 25 Coalition As Needed Gates 

Highway 85 Coalition As Needed Payton 

Highway 34 Coalition As Needed Payton 

CML Policy Committee (Council or Staff) As Needed Payton and City Manager Roy 
Otto/Fitzsimmons alternate 

CML Executive Board opportunity As Needed  

CML - Other opportunities As Available/Desired  
 

 13



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 8 

 

Title 

Petitions from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may bring before the Council 

any business that the member feels should be deliberated upon by the Council.  

These matters need not be specifically listed on the Agenda, but formal action on 

such matters shall be deferred until a subsequent Council meeting. 

 

Petitions will generally fall into three categories: 

 

1) A policy item for Council deliberation and direction for a future 

Worksession, Committee meeting, or regular/special Council meeting; 

 

2) A request to the City Manager for information or research; 

 

3) A request involving administrative processes or procedures. 

 

At the close of this portion of the meeting, the Mayor will confirm Council’s consensus 

that the individual requests be pursued. 

 

Attachments 

Status Report of Council Petitions and Related Information 

Water & Sewer Memo regarding Non-potable water petition 
                                 

14



Greeley City Council 

 

Status Report of Council Petitions 

 

 

 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee 

Meeting Date 

Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one time 

as completed and then removed.) Assigned to: 

02-2019 Councilmember Hall requested 

that staff begin researching the 

City’s non-potable water system 

and better uses for the City’s non-

potable water supply. 

February 5, 

2019 Council 

Meeting 

At the direction of Roy Otto, Water 

& Sewer Director Sean Chambers 

has prepared a memo on this 

subject which is attached to this 

agenda item. 

Sean 

Chambers 

02-2019 Councilmember Suniga requested 

that staff provide more information 

regarding potential projects to 

build sidewalks leading to the new 

City park on C Street between 23
rd

 

and 35
th

 Avenues. 

February 5, 

2019 Council 

Meeting 

At the direction of Roy Otto, Public 

Works Director Joel Hemesath will 

be preparing a memo on this 

subject within the next two weeks. 

Joel 

Hemesath 

02-2019 Councilmembers encouraged staff 

to continue looking for other 

creative options for addressing the 

trash in alleyways, etc., issue in 

particular parts of the community. 

February 12, 

2019 

Worksession 

At the direction of Roy Otto, 

Community Development Director 

Brad Mueller will continue 

researching creative solutions to 

this issue. 

Brad Mueller 

 

15



c,„,/ 	Water & Sewer Department 
Colorado Greeley 	MEMORANUM 

TO: 	Greeley City Council 

CC: 	Mr. Roy Otto, City Manager 

FROM: 	Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director 

DATE: 	February 12, 2019 

System History and Planning Overview: 

City of Greeley owns and operates extensive non-potable water supply, storage, pumping and 
delivery systems that serve two separate but important purposes. First, non-potable supplies, 
including fully consumable treated wastewater effluent, are used for the repayment of return flows 
owed back to the river through water rights administration obligations from the dry up of 
agricultural lands; we call these return flow obligations. Second, we use non-potable resources for 
the purpose of delivering cost effective irrigation water to areas of large turf grass that have been 
connected via one of the canal systems running through the City. The backbone of the City's non-
potable systems are the historic ditch and canal systems running through the City that serve as 
gravity driven water conveyance mechanisms reaching into most areas of the City. 

Robust planning for non-potable supply and infrastructure evolved during the Water & Sewer 
Department's 2003 Water Master Plan. In the master plan's public engagement and feedback 
process, Greeley citizens voiced strong support for non-potable irrigation as a way to maximize 
water supplies and reduce treatment and transmission costs. Further, the City's '03 Water Master 
Plan directs the Water Department to maximize use of treatable water supplies. Treatable supplies 
are generally located higher in the Basin, and can be diverted to one of Greeley's water treatment 
plants; whereas untreatable supplies generally originate lower in the basin where delivery to our two 
water current water treatment plants is difficult, and where treatment of lower Poudre water quality 
would be more expensive. To maximize the use of treatable water supplies, the City must continue 
to develop non-potable sources, storage, conveyance and systems to facilitate the use of as much 
untreatable (lower Poudre) water as possible to supply non-potable demands. 

The Water & Sewer Department is dedicated to providing the lowest cost water service while at the 
same time maintaining a high level of service to each of its customers. The Department has 
developed a significant number of non-potable systems and pump stations that are served by either 
the Greeley- Loveland Irrigation Company (GLIC) ditch system or the Greeley Irrigation Company 
(GIC) No. 3 Ditch. The legacy of these canal systems provide the City a unique gravity driven 
opportunity to serve non-potable water within the City. These ditch systems are one of the many 
water infrastructure blessings of Greeley's forefathers, and they form the foundational network for 
growing our raw water conveyance infrastructure without a massive replumbing of the City. Water 
& Sewer non-potable staff currently operate more than 40 pump stations to serve more than 100 
large customers throughout the City, including many City park areas, golf courses, and cemetary 
demands. See Figure 1 here below. 

Water and Sewer Depa me.n • 1001 I jth  Avenue,IrK1  Floor, Greeley, CO 80631 • (970) 350-9811 Fax (970) 350-9805 

A City !tiering Community Excellence 16



"Greeley 
Non-Potable Pumpstations 

• Non-Potable Pumpstation 

Miles 

0 	05 	1 

Date 113,3,2015 
By Oity of Greeley GIS 

NonPot Numpatanoo alaintainaollvaa•2016 

roinon y 

Prumontory 	_ 
Trknstar 
Pond 

Lawny tloarga_ 

act 

0., c. 

US Hwy Siiins 

, 	hrician 
N6rth 	r 

Flak School 
• 

—dth
,

S1' 

Nr,' 
tinders I a 
• Youth t 

:rtrtrr 	 4." 
lam 	t 

 nahlond  1"7  oom 

2005 0 

014104113. 

 Hila Calf 
COW. 

t 
U nr 
Monfort 
Park 

is. 

! 
Paik B .  entk C Park 

Nous.'  
—401181—Gardortelkladison School 

• 

Park 

ISM 
Cottornyond 
Pal
I k  

- 	 Coonly Road 62 - 

E 	
St 

Linn 
Grolo N3 Linn r 	• Gtove 

1.1nt Grove SS 
Itth St - „nn  

'EL1
5.0301171 	- 

2 1-1 	1;"'' 	i 
-7  

• 

IN 

37thSt 

0003.143704  

Codnty Read f,a vr! 

, 

Figure 1. — Greeley's existing non-potable sytem pump stations off No. 3 ditch & GLIC 

Current Non-Potable System Status, Limitations, and Infrastructure Planning: 

At present, the Department's ability to provide non-potable water for irrigation is limited to when 
the ditch systems are running water for all users. In the spring and fall there is not enough 
agricultural demands, nor non-potable irrigation demand within the City to merit running the GLIC 
supplies down from Boyd Lake where 25% of the water diverted from the reservior are lost due to 
seepage in transit through ditch. Therefore, additional non-potable storage, non-potable supply and 
conveyance pipelines to connect the water storage locations on the lower Poudre River with the 
high points on the GLIC ditch network are important future actions. A pump back pipeline 
conveyance system will be required to move water from the lower Poudre back west and up into the 
GLIC Canal for full season irrigation with non-potable water resources, especially when the GLIC 
Company is not running water down ditch. Figure 2 below illustrates current and potential future 
non-potable storage facilities, future routing for pressurized conveyance and visually identifies the 
current large-scale non-potable irrigation water demands. Water & Sewer is collaborating with 
Public Works to maximize the opportunties to install non-potable backbone infrastrucute with 
future road and bridge projects are undertaken. 

2IPage 17



1•11•0•1  

Li 

Ceemly Wad 

I  

, s?  Proposed Non-potable 
Greeley 	Facilities 

tlen.•••• 	am.) 	Alm hopould 000-1.0S44 ••••00. 

So Curron.110,......s. • 00..•00‘,.0 

SW 	0...* maw. 	 a•te, 0 

0 

-17'4 tdt,:-11 

Master Plans 

Gravel Pit Needs Assessment 
(Dec 2018 Feb 2019) 

Poudre Ponds Site Master Plan 
(Jan 2019 - Dec Z019) 

Non-Potable Master Plan Update 
ironed Into CollectIon Et tostnbution Master Plan) 

(2019 - 2020) 

Figure 2. — Conceptual Draft Proposed Non-Potable Facilities Overview Map 

The map's illustration of routing for future pressurized non-potable water infrastructure is 
conceptual. Routing may be more cost effective in future roadway improvement allighnments 
further east. The future conveyance routes and sizing of facilities are under consideration, and the 
infrastructure will be designed to deliver raw water from the Poudre Ponds area up to the GLIC 
system on the City's southwest side. The process of fully analyzing infrastructure and potential raw 
water line alignments will be developed in late 2019 as part of the Department's work on an 
updated Water Transmission, Distribution and Wastewater Collections Master Plan with a 
supplemental scope of work for non-potable storage and transmission. 

Figure 3. — Updates to Needs Assessment, Site Plans and Master Plans for Non-Potable Elements 

18



Non-Potable system demand analysis and infrastructure planning are part of Greeley's long-term 
water supply and storage planning. Greeley's planning for additional or expanded reservoir storage 
that creates capacity to develop the City's conditional water rights, and firm future water supplies 
for drought resiliency. Evaluation of reservoir sizing led to the evaluation of the role, benefits, 
likely demands and the limitations of an expanded non-potable water system. Under consideration 
are the economics of shifting future irrigation demands from potable to non-potable supplies, and an 
assessment of the attributes of an expanded non-potable system. The W&S Department has 
confirmed that within limitations, the non-potable systems are more economical in comparison to 
constructing large amounts of storage and treatment capacity. 

Staff have initiated a focused effort to model Greeley's future return flow obligations out through 
2065 to incorporate the non-potable RFO demands into the systems planning. Water & Sewer is 
coordinating with CPRD on detailed site plans for Poudre Ponds. Further, staff is working to 
develop and refine policy proposals for non-potable raw water dedication, cash in lieu, and 
infrastructure investment fees for non-potable systems that account for costs and also incentivize 
development to pursue the interconnection and use of non-potable resources. Staff is researching 
and considering how we create programs and incentives for the conversation of larger potable 
systems that have been constructed for institutions, schools, HOAs/P0As or other irrigation 
demands that have the scale to merit a conversion project. When more is defined in terms of policy, 
there will need to be additional public outreach and education to general citizens and the business 
community; and we will seek out opportunities to connect existing potable irrigation demands with 
a pathway for conversion to non-potable water supply. 

The Water & Sewer Department has developed the following priorities related to enhancement of 
the non-potable systems, availability of supply, governance policies, and financing: 

1. Master plan facilities and develop cost estimates for critical infrastructure; 

2. Incentivize adoption of new projects and sensible conversions; 

3. Coordinate effective public outreach and education; 

4. Implement key projects to develop the system, implement policies and potential changes 
to the municipal code to guide and incentivize non-potable systems in new development 
and create economically sensible conversions of large irrigated areas (institutional users 
such as business campuses, HOAs/P0As, churches or educational institutions may be 
economical to convert from onto non-potable supplies); and 

5. Analyze demand and financial data from pilot and non-potable irrigation projects. 

At this time, there are grant and loan programs through the Colorado Water Conservation Board 
(CWCB), and water efficiency grants through Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District 
(NCWCD) that may provide financial and technical assistance for large existing potable irrigated 
properties to make water efficiency improvements and concurrently convert to non-potable water. 
Governmental entity may access to Colorado Water Resource and Power Development Authority 
low interest financing and design grant programs, and the Department will invest in further 
identifying resources that create the pathway for conversion of existing development. 

Much work and investment in the non-potable system lies ahead; the planning and projects are 
incorporated in Water & Sewer's work plan and budget, and there will be coordination with the City 
Manager, City Attorney's Office and Water & Sewer Board as the program is developed. 

4 I P a 19



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 9 

Key Staff Contact: Betsy Holder, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Approval of the City Council Proceedings of February 5, 2019 

Summary:  

A meeting of the City Council was held on February 5, 2019, in Council’s Chambers at 

the City Center South Campus, 1001 11th Avenue, Greeley, Colorado. 

Decision Options:  

1) 1.  To approve the proceedings as presented; or 

2) 2.  Amend the proceedings if amendments or corrections are needed, and approve 

3)  as amended. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to approve the City Council proceedings as presented. 

Attachments: 
February 5, 2019 Proceedings 

 

 

 

20



1. Call to Order 

City of Greeley, Colorado 
CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 

February 5, 2019 

6 

Mayor John Gates called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., in the Council's Chambers at the City Center 
South Campus, 1001 11th A venue. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 

3. Roll Call 

Jerry Harvey, Assistant City Clerk, called the roll. Those present were Mayor John Gates and 
Councilmembers Robb Casseday, Michael Fitzsimmons, Dale Hall, Brett Payton, Jon Smail and Stacy 
Suniga. 

4. Recognitions and Proclamations 

Councilmember Hall presented the What's Great About Greeley Report. 

5. Citizen Input 

Todd Loschen, Greeley Resident, again discussed the issues concerning the 4-way stop near his house. 
Roy Otto, City Manager, explained that the City has already done considerable investigation and work at 
this intersection, adding that there is nothing more for the City to do at this point. 

6. Approval of Agenda 

Mr. Otto noted the addition of Item 22 which is a routine item authorizing the City Attorney to prepare 
any required resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this 
meeting and at any previous meetings. It also authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all such 
resolutions, agreements, and ordinances. The addition of this item moved Adjournment to Item 23. 

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Councilmember Casseday reported that he worked with the Sister City Student Exchange program to 
choose 10 students to participate in the program. Mayor Gates thanked Councilmember Casseday for 
agreeing to represent Greeley in Moriya, Japan, this summer. 

Councilmember Smail reported on a West Greeley Conservation District project at Houston Gardens 
where they are replacing the current flood mitigation system with a drip system to conserve water. He 
also reported on his attendance at the Northern Colorado Urban Land Institute meeting noting that 
there were a large number of enthusiastic developers looking to invest in Greeley. Councilmember Smail 
concluded by noting his attendance at the 6th Annual Poudre River Forum where students from Salida 
del Sol presented a video they made concerning water conservation. 

21



7 

Councilmember Hall reported that the Colorado Municipal League (CML) Executive Board chose a new 
Director, Kevin Bommer. Councilmember Hall also reported the Bright Futures Committee chose a new 
Executive Director, Sarah Rice. 

Mayor Gates thanked the Weld County Farm Show for inviting him and Councilmembers to attend their 
scholarship dinner. He congratulated the scholarship winners on their achievements. 

8. Petitions from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Councilmember Hall expressed his desire for staff to research Greeley's non-potable water system and 
determine ways to better utilize the City's non-potable water supply. Consensus was reached by Council 
for staff to move forward on this issue. 

Councilmember Suniga explained that the City built a park along C Street but did not build sidewalks 
leading to it. She added that she has received a number of complaints from residents in the area that 
children are walking in the street to get to the park. Councilmember Suniga inquired whether there are 
any plans to build sidewalks in this area in the near future. Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, 
explained that there is currently no funding to fix this issue. He added that this issue is among a list of 
future Public Works projects that staff is trying to find funding for. No further information or staff 
research was requested by Councilmember Suniga. 

* * * * Consent Agenda * * * * 

9. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of January 15, 2019 

The Council action recommended was to approve the Proceedings. 

10. Acceptance of the Report of the January 22, 2019 City Council Worksession 

The Council action recommended was to accept the Report. 

11. Consideration of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the City of Greeley Police Department and the Weld County 
Sherriff's Office concerning the use of the Wilber B. Ross Memorial Police Training 
Center (Firing Range) 

The Council action recommended was to adopt the Resolution. (Resolution No. 06, 2019) 

12. Consideration of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Memorandum of 
Agreement between the City of Greeley Police Department and the US Marshall Service 
to Participate in a violent offender task force 

The Council action recommended was to adopt the Resolution. (Resolution No. 07, 2019) 

13. Consideration of a resolution of the City of Greeley authorizing the Mayor to execute an 
intergovernmental agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation for 
contributions to the improvement of 1-25 

City Council Proceedings 2 February 5, 2019 22



8 

This item was pulled from the Consent Agenda. 

14. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance changing the official zoning map of the 
City of Greeley, Colorado from the PUD (Planned Unit Development - Oil and Gas, and 
Neighborhood Center) to the PUD (Planned Unit D evelopment - Residential) zone 
district for approximately 7.11 acres located north of 25th Street (a.k.a. , Centerplace 
Drive) and west of 35th Avenue Court 

The Council action recommended was to introduce the Ordinance and schedule the Public Hearing and 
final reading for February 19, 2019. 

15. Introduction and first reading of an ordinance adopting the City of Greeley Strategic 
Housing Plan, an Element of the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan 

The Council action recommended was to introduce the Ordinance and schedule the Public Hearing and 
final reading for February 19, 2019. 

16. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance for a 2nd Amendment to the Centerplace 
North Development Concept Master Plan 

The Council action recommended was to introduce the Ordinance and schedule the Public Hearing and 
final reading for February 19, 2019. 

17. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance amending Section 6.16 of Greeley's 
Municipal Code regarding Alcohol Beverages 

The Council action recommended was to introduce the Ordinance and schedule the Public Hearing and 
final reading for February 19, 2019. 

18. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance amending Chapter 13.40 of the Greeley 
Municipal Code to update certain park regulations 

The Council action recommended was to introduce the Ordinance and schedule the Public Hearing and 
final reading for February 19, 2019. 

* * * * End of Consent Agenda * * * * 

Councilmember Suniga pulled Item 13 from the Consent Agenda. 

Councilmember Payton moved, seconded by Councilmember Hall to approve items 9-12 and items 14-
18 on the Consent Agenda and their recommended actions. The motion carried: 7-0 

19. Pulled consent agenda items 

13. Consideration of a resolution of the City of Greeley authorizing the Mayor to 
execute an intergovernmental agreement with the Colorado Department of 
Transportation for contributions to the improvement of 1-25 

City Council Proceedings 3 February 5, 2019 23



9 

Councilmember Suniga explained that she does not approve of the spending of money on a project that 
is not in Greeley or even in Weld County. She added that she will not support this item. 

Councilmember Casseday moved, seconded by Councilmember Payton to adopt the resolution. The 
motion carried: 6-1 (Councilmember Suniga dissented) (Resolution No. 08, 2019) 

20. Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance appropriating additional sums to defray 
the expenses and liabilities of the City of Greeley for the balance of the fiscal year of 2019 
and for funds held in reserve for encumbrances at December 31, 2018 

Robert Miller, Budget Manager, highlighted the first appropriation of the 2019 Budget for $10,748,000. 
He continued by describing the Fund Budget balance, the General Fund, and the 2016 City Center Fund. 
Mr. Miller concluded by summarizing projects that will be funded by this action. 

Mayor Gates opened the public hearing at 7:00 p.m., and no comments were offered. 

Councilmember Casseday moved, seconded by Councilmember Fitzsimmons to adopt the ordinance and 
publish with reference to title only. The motion carried: 7-0 (Ordinance No. 3, 2019) 

21. Scheduling of meetings, other events 

No other meetings or events were scheduled. 

22. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 
resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this 
meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
all such resolutions, agreements, and ordinances 

Councilmember Suniga moved, seconded by Councilmember Fitzsimmons to approve the above 
authorizations. The motion carried: 7-0 

23. Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gates adjourned the meeting at 7:02 
p.m. 

John Gates, Mayor 

Jerry Harvey, Assistant City Clerk 

City Council Proceedings 4 February 5, 2019 24



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 10 

Key Staff Contact: Betsy Holder, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Acceptance of the Report of the February 12, 2019, City Council Worksession 

Summary:  

A City Council Worksession was held on February 12, 2019, in Council’s Chambers at 

the City Center South Campus, 1001 11th Avenue, Greeley, Colorado. 

Decision Options:  

1) 1.  To accept the Report as presented; or 

2) 2.  Amend the Report if amendments or corrections are needed, and accept as 

amended. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to accept the Report as presented. 

Attachments: 
February 12, 2019 Report 

 

 

25



City of Greeley, Colorado 
COUNCIL WORKSESSION REPORT 

February 12, 2019 

6 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Mayor Gates, in the Council's Chambers at the City Center 
South Campus, 1001 11 th Avenue. 

Those present were Mayor John Gates and Councilmembers Robb Casseday, Michael Fitzsimmons, Dale 
Hall, Brett Payton, Jon Smail, and Stacy Suniga. 

1. NORTHERN COLORADO REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
INITIATIVE (NOCO REDI) 

Ben Snow, Director of Economic Health and Housing, reported that NOCO REDI is a collaboration 
of economic developers representing 35 communities, including Greeley to support and strengthen 

orthern Colorado, defined as Larimer and Weld Counties, as one economic region. 

He stated that orthern Colorado will be stronger economically when it's communities' economic 
development efforts are linked closer together and the region is marketed as one powerful, united economy 
supported by a strong network of civic and business leaders, supported by a corresponding network of 
economic development professionals. Together, he added, we can better showcase our region's many 
strengths and assets, including networked economic development that uses data to drive a strategic plan 
that focuses on economic opportunities and growth industries; an economy driven by smart talent and 
innovative business minds; our robust talent development pipeline that produces the workers we need 
today and tomorrow; fast-growing population, jobs and industries; and demonstrated regional cooperation 
and mobile talent. 

Rich Werner, President and Chief Executive Officer, Upstate Colorado Economic Development, was 
present and reviewed some baseline levels of some of the data that Upstate is working on with regard to 
regional economic development. He stated that they are working very diligently on talent development 
efforts such as Bright Futures and Achieving Community Excellence (ACE); an economic development 
assessment to see who's doing what and how collaboration could be accomplished in various areas; and 
actions and needs moving fof\vard. 

Mr. Werner went on to review take-aways of tlus effort including better leveraging the existing system 
through a more collective effort; continued private sector engagement; using data to develop targets and a 
work plan; understanding current weaknesses; continued messaging; and ultimately a strategic plan for 
networked regional economic development in Northern Colorado. 

Mr. Snow encouraged the Mayor and Councilmembers to nurture relationships with their counterparts in 
other communities within the region in an effort to take advantage of collaboration. 

Councilmember Suniga expressed a desire to absorb tlus information provided since there is a lot of it. 
She stated that while she is supportive of collaborative efforts, her priority is Greeley and will seek out 
additional education for herself in tlus regard. 

Mr. Snow offered that tlus is a great point, and stressed that he does believe in abundance. He added tl1at 
if good is happening in one community, it will ultimately come to other neighboring communities. 

26



7 

Roy Otto, City Manager, expressed appreciation for the work Mr. Werner has done to bring everyone 
together and pointed out that there is good momentum now that has not always been there. He added 
that in order to be successful regionally, we must deal with roads, water, broadband and the workforce. 
He emphasized that no one can be successful if each community works on those things alone and suggested 
that it might be time again to discuss the idea of a regional transportation authority. 

2. ALLEY CLEAN-UP STRATEGY & TRASH PICK-UP OPTIONS CITYWIDE 

Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, reported that staff was requested, through a petition 
from Council.member Hall, to explore options regarding refuse in alleys, particularly in the neighborhoods 
around the University of orthern Colorado. 

He reported that staff examined the following options and current conditions: 1) review of the chronic 
nature of trash conditions in alleys and the history of code compliance, including various yearly clean-up 
efforts; 2) a survey of trash collection practices in other jurisdictions, and their effect on the cleanliness of 
alleys; 3) review of the 2016 scientific community survey results concerning trash hauling. 

Mr. Mueller advised that trash collection in alleys is a chronic problem that likely has no single definitive 
solution, particularly in high-use areas. He stated that landowners are encouraged to keep large collection 
bins in separated, designated areas so that only the tenants or owners are likely to use them, but this is 
difficult in practice. These can be locked for more security though managing keys can be difficult in rental 
situations and people trespass by dumping their own trash in others' trash containers which is illegal, but 
very difficult to investigate and prosecute. In addition, he stated that people will simply abandon trash in 
the alleys, such as mattresses, bags, etc., a frustrating situation for property owners, who are nonetheless 
responsible for all refuse on their property, or the adjacent rights-of-way and alleyways. 

After a full staff examination of options and current conditions, Mr. Mueller advised that results include 
the following: 1) paving of alleys - the "broken window" theory suggests that improving physical 
conditions in an area leads to better maintenance and citizen "ownership" of conditions in a neighborhood. 
The Greeley rban Renewal Authority has approved a pilot project to pave some alleys in the 
Redevelopment District; 2) increased code enforcement - recognizing that trash often accumulates at the 
end of the month, Code Compliance inspectors have increased targeted enforcement; 3) recommendation 
to pursue a single residential hauler - staff is recommending this option after re-visiting the citizen survey 
and having conversations with other jurisdictions that have either municipal trash service or a single 
provider for neighborhood collection. A varia tion would be to have quadrants of the city that could be 
separately bid. If supported by Council, this option would require additional follow-up to implement a 
specific proposal. 

Mr. foeller went on to state that staff contacted several area jurisdictions that have either municipal trash 
service or a single-provider system and they were asked whether they feel alley trash conditions are 
problematic, and whether conditions improved after starting the single-provider residential service. Each 
of the five jurisdictions contacted who control their waste collection - Evans, Loveland, Longmont, 
Golden and Denver - indicate that illegal dumping in the alleys is not a significant problem. 

Councilmember Hall stated that what is currently being done is not working, which is why he brought this 
petition forward to get more information and contemplate some new options. 

Council Worksession Report 2 February 12, 2019 

27



8 

Councilmember Smail stated that the survey was very helpful and informative and that he could support a 
single hauler if that ends up being how we go. He expressed though that his concern is that if trash service 
is not performing that there be an ability to change to a competitor. 

Councilmember Casseday stated that he is a bit concerned that there is only one hauler capable o f handling 
our community, but emphasized that he would not be in favor of a municipally-run operation. 

Councilmember Suniga expressed her personal experience with a ingle-hauler system and stated that it 
brought a lot of challenges for her that she ,vould not want to bring to Greeley residents. She wondered 
about looking at different options or maybe single-hauler options for particular areas in the community. 

Councilmember Payton expressed that he concurs with all that has been said thus far, and suggested that 
a single-hauler system citywide is too broad for now. 

Councilmember Smail added that he is interested in the pilo t program for paved alleyways and noted that 
it would tie in well with the housing master plan. 

Mr. Mueller advised that Code Compliance enforcement of the alleys will continue, with attention to times 
of the month where the greatest benefits from active enforcement can take place. Staff will continue to 
work with landlords who have chronic instances of abandoned trash to find solutions to their specific 
situation also. 

Councilmember Hall suggested that there might be a segmented part of the city to get started with, but 
stressed that we have to go at this with some creativity and with something different than what we are 
doing now. 

Councilmember Fitzsinunons stated that this is more of a c1t:t.zen responsibility and he is trying to 
understand how to fix that. He expressed that a single hauler or hauler by choice really won't change 
habits and wondered about additional enforcement of what we have on the books now. 

Mr. Mueller stated that staff could continue to lean into the enforcement side of things, as we have been, 
and can look at this geographically if desired. 

In response to a question from Councilmember Suniga, Mr. Mueller stated that the idea with one provider 
is that we would know who to call and it would take away someone's motivation to walk down the street 
to dump their trash in that everyone would have service and the same service at that. 

It was the general consensus of the Council to continue to look for additional creative solutions other than 
the single-hauler option that has been recommended including additional staffing and resources for 
enforcement, etc. 

3. 4rn QUARTER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS (CIP) REPORT 

Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, reported that Adam Pryor, Chief Water & Sewer Engineer, had 
something come up and could not be at this Worksession to review the Water & Sewer piece of this update. 
Mr. Otto advised that any questions from Council about that part of the presentation could be routed to 
Mr. Pryor for response. 

Council Worksession Report 3 February 12, 2019 
28



9 

Mr. Hemesath reported that staff of the Public Works, Water & Sewer, and Culture, Parks & Recreation 
Departments work together each month on an internal committee called the Capital Projects Committee, 
CPC, that consists of department heads and division managers that meet and coordinate capital projects. 
He stated that this coordination includes five-year planning, budget status updates, and coordination of 
projects to minimize disruption to areas, debriefing on projects, and training. Each quarter, staff assembles 
a report that details the status of projects. 

Mr. Hemesath went on to advise that this years' CIP has 136 projects for a total of $200,172,893 and 
proceeded to review the completed and on-going projects from Public Works and Culture, Parks & 
Recreation, as well as provided an update on the Keep Greeley Moving Tax. 

4. SCHEDULING OF MEETINGS, OTHER EVENTS 

o additional meetings, or other events were scheduled. 

Councilmember Fitzsimmons moved, seconded by Councilmember Suniga to move into Executive 
Session for purposes discussing personnel who report to the City Council, to conduct the City Attorney's 
Annual Performance Review, as provided for under C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(£) and Greeley Municipal Code 
Section 2.04.020(6)a. The motion carried: 7-0 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gates adjourned the meeting at 6:38 
p .m. and moved into Executive Session. The Executive Session adjourned at 7:48 p .m. 

Cheryl Aragon, Deputy City Clerk 

Council Worksession Report 4 February 12, 2019 29



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 11 

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

Title:  

Consideration of a Resolution accepting dedication of 90 feet of previously reserved 

right-of-way plus an additional 5 feet to accommodate an off-street trail for a total of 

1.453 acres, located north of Highway 34 Business, east of 83rd Avenue and west of 

the Boomerang Golf Course 

Summary: 
 

The applicant is proposing to dedicate 90 feet of previously reserved right-of-way plus 

an additional 5 feet to accommodate off street trail, for a total of 1.453 acres of 

property, at the request of the City and in accordance with Article VIII of the City of 

Greeley’s Development Code, for future 77th Avenue right-of-way.  Dedication of this 

was determined with the 2012 subdivision of the property, and it is being done in 

conjunction with a land use application for oil/gas drilling operations. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

None. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

Construction of the section of right-of-way roadway (or other approved phased 

alternatives) is the responsibility of the land use applicant (SRC Energy). 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Development Code standards. 

 

 

30



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

Draft Planning Commission Minutes (January 22, 2019) 

Planning Commission Summary (Staff Report) (January 22, 2019) 

PowerPoint 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______, 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF 90 FEET OF PREVIOUSLY RESERVED 

RIGHT-OF-WAY PLUS AN ADDITIONAL 5 FEET TO ACCOMMODATE AN OFF-

STREET TRAIL FOR A TOTAL OF 1.453 ACRES, LOCATED NORTH OF HIGHWAY 34 

BUSINESS, EAST OF 83
RD

 AVENUE AND WEST OF THE BOOMERANG GOLF COURSE 

 

 WHEREAS, the property described on the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit A 

is proposed for dedication to the City of Greeley; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the right-of-way needs to be dedicated to accommodate the existing built 

roads in the area and potential future improvements to those roads; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the right-of-way dedication is not detrimental to the public health, safety or 

welfare; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the right-of-way dedication does not deprive any parcel of adequate access 

to a public road or street. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GREELEY CITY COUNCIL OF 

GREELEY, COLORADO. 

 

1. The subject property is hereby accepted. 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this ______ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 

By: ___________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

       City Clerk             Mayor 

 

  

32



EXHIBIT A 

 

A parcel of land being the easterly ninety-five (95.00) feet of Tract A, Boomerang 

West Minor Subdivision as Recorded August 6, 2012 at Reception No. 3864003, in the 

Weld County Clerk and Recorder's Office, being in the Southwest One-Quarter of 

Section 5, Township 5 North, Range 66 West of the 6th Principal Meridian, County of 

Weld, State of Colorado, being more particularly described as follows: 

COMMENCING at the South One-Quarter comer of said Section 5 whence the 

Southwest comer of said Section 5 bears S89°38'47"W a distance of 2651.66 feet; 

THENCE along the east line of said Boomerang West Minor Subdivision N05°37'41"E a 

distance of 761.13 feet to the Southeast comer of said Tract A, being the POINT OF 

BEGINNING; 

THENCE along the South line of said Tract A S89°50'19"W, a distance of 95.49 feet; 

THENCE parallel to and 95.00 feet west of the east line of said Tract A N05°37'41"E, a distance 

of 

665.66 feet to a point on the North line of said Tract A; 

THENCE along said North line N89°1 l'35"E, a distance of 95.60 feet to the Northeast 

corner of said Tract A; 

THENCE along the East line of said Tract A S05°37'41 "W, a distance of 666.74 feet to the 
POINT 

OF BEGINNING; 

 

Containing 1.453 acres, more or less. 

 

33



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            1                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Proceedings 

 

January 22, 2019 

 

City Center South 

Council Chambers Room 

1001 11th Avenue 

1:15 p.m. 
 
 
I. Call to Order 

 
Chair Rarick called the meeting to order at 1:19 p.m. Commissioners, Andersen, Hice-Idler 
and Modlin were present. (Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 
 

II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on December 11, 2018 
 

Commissioner Modlin moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on December 11, 
2018. Commissioner Andersen seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 
(Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 

III. Approval of minutes for meeting held on January 8, 2019 
 

Commissioner Andersen asked about specific code changes that where addressed for this 
matter. Chair Rarick stated that the minutes were only an overview and that the details will 
be addressed and carried to the work session held on January 29, 2019. 
 
Commissioner Andersen moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on 
January 8, 2019. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 
(Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
IV. Election of Chair  

 
Chair Rarick stated this item would be postponed until next hearing. 
 

V. Election of Vice Chair 
 
Chair Rarick stated this item would be postponed until next hearing. 
 

 

 34



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            6                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

6. Revisions to the proposed phasing of the landscaping installation are made and accepted 
by City staff prior to being issued a Notice to Proceed. 
  
Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners 
Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 

IX.  A public hearing to consider dedication of 90 feet of a previously reserved 

right-of-way plus an additional five feet to accommodate an off street trail for a total 

of 1.453 acres of property at the request of the City for a future 77th Avenue 

right-of-way 

 
Project Name:  77th Avenue Right-of-Way Dedication 
Case No:   ROW2018-0004 
Applicant:   Corey Sheahen on behalf of SRC Energy Inc. 
Location: North of Highway 34 Business, east of 83rd Avenue and west of 

Boomerang Golf Course 
Presenter:  Rachel Prelog, Planner II 
 
Ms. Prelog addressed the Commission and entered the staff report into the record. She 
noted that this proposal is associated with the previous item. Ms. Prelog presented a map 
showing the location of the property and described the right-of-way dedication proposal. 
She briefly described the request of five feet of right-of-way to accommodate an off-street 
trail. She discussed the Comprehensive Plan supporting the request and presented a zoning 
suitability map showing that the site can be developed according to the Development Code. 
Ms. Prelog summarized and stated that no notices were required for a right-of-way 
dedication. Staff found that all criteria were met and recommended approval. 
 
Commissioner Modlin questioned about the trail access through the Xcel property and 
coming out through 83rd Avenue. Ms. Prelog stated the property to the south is owned by a 
church, and that the right-of-away would be carry through Highway 34. 
 
Corey Sheahen addressed the commission on behalf of SRC Energy Inc. He stated that no 
issues are found with this request and had no further comments on this matter.  

 
Chair Rarick opened the public hearing at 2:19 p.m. There being no public input, the 
hearing was closed at 2:19 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Modlin moved that, based on the application received and preceding 
analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed right-of-way dedication request 
meets the Development Code Criterion found in Section 18.04.810 and therefore 
recommends approval to the City Council. Commissioner Hice-Idler seconded the motion.  
The motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 
 

  

35



 PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
 
 
ITEM:  Right-of-Way Dedication 
 
FILE NUMBER: ROW2018-0004 
 
PROJECT: 77th Avenue ROW Dedication 
 
LOCATION: Generally, north of Highway 34 Business, in between 71st Avenue 

and 83rd Avenue 
 
APPLICANT: SRC Energy, Inc.  
 
CASE PLANNER: Rachel Prelog, Planner II 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE: January 8, 2019 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, and review the request for compliance 
with Section 18.04.810 of the Greeley Subdivision Regulations, and approve, approve with 
conditions, or deny the request. 
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW AND BACKGROUND: 
 
A. REQUEST 

The applicant is proposing to dedicate 90 feet of previously reserved right-of-way plus an 
additional 5 feet to accommodate off street trail, for a total of 1.453 acres of property, at the 
request of the City and in accordance with Article VIII of the City of Greeley’s Development 
Code, for future 77th Avenue right-of-way (see attachment A – Vicinity Map and Attachment 
B – Right-of-Way Dedication Exhibit).  

 
B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Approval 
 

C. LOCATION 
The subject site is located north of Highway 34 Business, in between 71st Avenue and 83rd 

Avenue (see Attachment A – Vicinity Map and Attachment B – Right-of-Way Dedication Exhibit).  
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



    Current Zoning:    
    R-L (Residential Low Density) 
 

 Surrounding Zoning:   
 North:  County (A - Agriculture)  
 South:  C-H (Commercial High Intensity) 

East: R-L (Residential Low Density) 
 West:  County (A - Agriculture) 
 

 Surrounding Land Uses:   
 North: Electric substation (Public Service Company of Colorado) 

South: Undeveloped 
East:   Golf course (Boomerang Golf Course) 
West:  Single family residential and agriculture 

 
Site Conditions: The area to be dedicated is located on parcel 095905301001, generally 
north of Highway 34 Business, in between 71st Avenue and 83rd Avenue (see Attachment A – 
Vicinity Map). The site is currently vacant agricultural land proposed to be developed for oil 
and gas drilling and exploration (USR2018-0012).  

    
Area to be dedicated:  63292.68 square feet, 1.453 acres  

 
 

D. BACKGROUND 
The subject site was annexed into the City in October 1984 and as part of the Golden 
Triangle First Annexation (Rec No. 0001987262). Tract A was later created by the 
Boomerang West Minor Subdivision in 2012 (Rec No. 0003864003). Through the 
Boomerang West Minor Subdivision, 90 feet of future right-of-way was reserved to be 
dedicated upon the request of the City (see Attachment C – Boomerang West Minor 
Subdivision).  

 
The applicant, SRC Energy Inc., submitted an application in July 2018 to develop the subject 
site for oil and gas exploration (Case No. USR2018-0012). During the review process, Public 
Works indicated that it would be appropriate that the previously reserved right-of-way be 
dedicated at this time.  In addition, the master trail plan for the city, found in the Parks, 
Trails, and Open Lands Master Plan, identifies an off-street trail corridor along the subject 
sites east property line.  Therefore, an additional five feet of right-of-way to provide for a ten-
foot, detached, multi-use path on the side of the future roadway is also required.  

 
E. APPROVAL CRITERIA 
 DEVELOPMENT CODE COMPLIANCE 
 
 

37



Right-of-Way Dedication and Vacation – Section 18.04.800(a) of the Development Code 
states that):  The provisions in this Article shall apply to the dedication or vacation of right-
of-way which is not part of a final subdivision plat, meeting the provisions of Article V, Final 
Plat, or part of a minor subdivision which does not create a new street, meeting the 
provisions of Article VI, Minor Plat of this Chapter.  

 
The review criteria found in Section 18.04.810(d) of the Greeley Development Code shall be 
used by the Planning Commission when considering all right-of-way dedication requests.   

 
A) Development Code Section 18.04.810(d) 

 
The Planning Commission shall consider requests for dedication or vacation of public right-
of-way and shall consider all comments received as well as staff recommendation in 
determining whether to approve, approve with conditions, deny or table the request for 
future consideration. If the Planning Commission determines that the right-of-way dedication 
or vacation request is not detrimental to public health, safety or welfare and that any request 
for vacation does not deprive any parcel of adequate access to public rad or street right-of-
way, the Commission shall recommend to the City Council that the request be approved. 
 
Criteria to Consider: 

 
1. Any dedication or vacation request is not detrimental to public health, safety or 

welfare. 
 
Staff Comment:   
The request to dedicate additional public right-of-way should have no negative effects 
on public health, safety or welfare.  

 
The request complies with this criterion. 
 

2. Any dedication or vacation request does not deprive adequate any parcel of 
adequate access to a public road or street right-of-way.  
 

 Staff Comment:   
 The request should not deprive the property owners nor any adjacent parcel of access 

to their properties.  
 

The request complies with this criterion. 
 

 
F. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 

1. SUBDIVISION HISTORY 
The subject site, Tract A was plated by the Boomerang West Minor Subdivision in 2012 
(Rec No. 0003864003) (see Attachment C – Boomerang West Minor Subdivision).  

38



2. HAZARDS 
There are no known hazards on the land to be dedicated.  

 
3. WILDLIFE 

A portion of the property to be dedicated is located within an area identified for moderate 
impact according to the City’s Areas of Ecological Significance Map. Impacts to wildlife 
and habitats will be evaluated by the City at the time of roadway design.   

 
4. FLOODPLAIN  

The land to be dedicated is not located within the 100-year floodplain, according to the 
adopted Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) flood data. 
 

5. DRAINAGE AND EROSION 
The subject right-of-way crosses the North Boomerang Ditch. The ditch currently is 
undergrounded at the property line to run underneath the Boomerang Golf course and 
then day lights on the adjoining property to the east. The undergrounding of the ditch 
would need to occur further west to accommodate the construction of 77th Avenue. 
Drainage and erosion associated with improvements would be evaluated at the time of 
roadway design. The subject dedication should not affect current conditions.  

 
6. TRANSPORTATION 

  77th Avenue is identified as a collector with on street parking, requiring 90-feet of right-
of-way. The Parks, Trails, and Open Space Master Plan (PTOL) identifies an off-street 
trail along this alignment, as well. As such, the City is requesting an additional five feet 
of right-of-way to provide for a ten-foot multi-use path on one side of the right-of-way, 
satisfying easement requirements.   

 
  Currently the 77th Avenue right-of-way being dedicated is land locked and requires the 
dedication of reserved right-of-way in Tract B to connect to 10th Street. There are no 
immediate plans for its improvement.  

 
 
G. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM COMMENTS: 

The Administrative Review Team reviewed this proposal, and there are no outstanding 
comments pertaining to the right-of-way dedication request. 

 
 
H. NEIGHBORHOOD NOTIFICATION 

Neighborhood notices are not required for dedication of right-of-way. 
 

 
 

39



I. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Based on the application received and preceding analysis, the Planning Commission find that 
the proposed right-of-way dedication request meets the Development Code Criterion found in 
Section 18.04.810 and therefore recommends approval to the City Council. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Attachment A – Vicinity Map 
Attachment B – Right-of-Way Dedication Exhibit 
Attachment C – Boomerang West Minor Subdivision 
 

40



8015

7309

76007611

667

385

975

1015

1100
1106

1114
1118 1199

1113

1111
1101

12027610

1188
1112

1108

1102

7413

1105

1107

1119
1125

7418 7412

1104

1120
1126

1010 75157521761511th St

77t
h A

ve

78th Ave

11th
Street Dr

N 8
3rd Ave

12thSt

80t
h A

ve 11th
Street Rd

79th
Ave

78th
Avenue Ct 12th St

11th St

75t
h A

ve

76t
h A

ve
US Hwy 34 Bus 10th St

83r
d

Ave
4th St

Attachment A – Vicinity Map

Legend
Volt 19-5 Site

Building

Arterial Streets

Local Streets
0 0.40.2

Miles [

Boomerang Golf Course

Public Services of Colorado

ROW2018-0004
77th Avenue Right-of-Way Dedication

41



Attachment B

42



43



A
tt

a
c
h

m
e

n
t 

 C

44



2/11/2019

1

77TH AVENUE ROW DEDICATION

February 19, 2019

Background: Subdivision Obligation

77th Avenue ROW Dedication January 22, 2019

45



2/11/2019

2

Background: Trail Master Plan

77th Avenue ROW Dedication January 22, 2019

Public Notice:Public Notice:Public Notice:Public Notice:

oNot required for ROW Dedications

77th Avenue ROW Dedication

RecommendationRecommendationRecommendationRecommendation::::

o Planning Recommendation of 

Approval to City Council (unanimous)

46



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 12 

Key Staff Contact: Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, 970-350-9795 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a change order to the contract with JUB Engineers for design 

services for the 20th Street road widening project in the amount of $149,781 

Summary: 
 

Change Order #1 with JUB Engineers involves additional design work to revise the 

intersection of 20th Street and 83rd Avenue to a roundabout as part of the widening of 

the road between 83rd and 90th Avenues in 2019.  JUB Engineers has a contract with 

the City of Greeley for engineering design from 83rd Avenue to 90th Avenue for 

$332,187.  This change order for $149,781 will increase the contract total to $481,968. 

 

The widening of 20th Street from 71st to 86th Avenues was previously included in the 

Capital Improvement Plan as a multi-year project for construction from 2017 to 2021 

or later depending on available funding.  With the passage of Keep Greeley Moving 

funding for 20th Street was advanced to 2019 construction and expanded to include 

construction to 90th Avenue.   

 

Since this has been an ongoing project, progress and scope meetings have been 

held throughout the year. JUB Engineers began preliminary design work with the 

current project funding in November 2018 after intersection options had been fully 

evaluated and the roundabout option was chosen as the best case scenario for this 

project. 

 

JUB Engineers has performed design work under the current contract and has 

performed preliminary design for this new intersection.  At this time the request for 

additional funds is being submitted ahead of final design.  Preliminary design was 

commissioned under the current contract scope of work to review the roundabout 

option.  The City received the additional fee breakdown in June, with subsequent 

meetings happening in the Fall 2018 and a final decision on the roundabout option 

was made in late November 2018.   

 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? $149,821 

What is the annual impact? $0 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  312 – Road Development 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Transfer from Street 

Infrastructure Improvement 

47



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Development Fees 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments: There are sufficient funds in the project for this change order. 

Legal Issues:   

Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of 

security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors. 

 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1. Approve change order as recommended, or 

2. Amend change order and approve as amended, or 

3. Deny change order, or 

4. Continue item to a date specific 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to approve change order. 

Attachments: 

 Change Order #1 – JUB Engineers 

 JUB Engineers Scope of Services June 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48



Change Order #: Date: February 7, 2019

Project Name:

Bid Number: Dept/Division: Public Works/Engineering

Budget Unit #: PO #: 18001009

Project Manager: Title: Civil Engineer

Contractor/Consultant: Phone /Extension: 970-377-3602

7

$332,187.00 

$0.00 

$332,187.00 

$149,781.00 

$481,968.00 

4 months

May 31, 2019

Approval Level is City Manager based on cumulative change orders totalling $149,781 for a total of 45.1%.

Purchasing Official Project Manager

Additional Approval: 

__________    __________    __________    __________    __________   

Budget              Supervisor       CPC                     Finance

Certification of Content by Contractor/Consultant

 

Representative of Contractor/Consultant Title

Council approval is required for change orders>25%. Council minutes need to be attached.

 

This CHANGE ORDER is intended to, and the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT agrees that it does, provide the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT a reasonable and adequate period of time in which

to complete the WORK in accordance with the CONTRACT for establishment of policies, as amended by this CHANGE ORDER, and the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT releases the OWNER

from any claims for additional time to perform the WORK associated with this CHANGE ORDER.

Signatures for Council (Council minutes need to be attached) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed in two (2) original counterparts as of the day and year first above written.

Approved as to Substance Reviewed as to Legal Form

  

Certification of Contract Funds Availability Departmental Certification

 

Director of Finance Department Director

The contract sum prior to this change order was:

The contract sum will be: (See List)

City Manager City Attorney

The new contract sum, including this change order is:

The contract time will be: (See List)

The new date for project completion is:

This CHANGE ORDER is intended to, and the OWNER agrees that it shall, fairly and adequately compensate the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT for the extra direct costs (time and materials,

etc.) as well as all expenses and damages which may result from any delays, suspensions, stretch-outs, scheduling, inefficiencies and accelerations in the WORK associated with this

CHANGE ORDER, and the CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT releases the OWNER from any claims for such expenses and damages.

Increased

Increased

The Contract Documents may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

The Contract Documents, including all component parts set forth above, may be executed and delivered by electronic signature by any of the parties and all parties consent to the use of 

electronic signatures.

The original contract sum was:

Contractor/Consultant Information

JUB Engineers Inc.

The CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT is hereby directed to perform the WORK described in the CONTRACT for design/construction as amended by this 

CHANGE ORDER.

The net change by previous change order was:

3120006006287052

See attached      sheets with full explanation for the change order.

Eva Rojas

Compensation to Contractor/Consultant

20TH ST PHS IV: 83-86 AVE

N/A

CHANGE ORDER FORM
Project Information

1

Design Services for 20th Street, from 83rd Avenue to 90th Avenue

49



5/5/2018

50



Change Order #: 1

Project Name: Design Services for 20th Street, from 83rd Avenue to 90th Avenue

Date: 2/7/2019

Project Manager: Eva Rojas

Location 20th Street, between 83rd Avenue and 86th Avenue; more specifically the intersection of 20th Street and 

83rd Avenue.

Summary of 

Change Order

As part of the original contract in 2016, JUB Engineers started a study to determine if a signalized or a 

roundabout intersection would be better suited for the corridor. This study wasn't completed due to 

competing priorities and availability of funds until 2018. With the evaluation study, it was determined that the 

roundabout presented the more cost effective option in the long run for the City as well as a safer interface 

for traffic with a better level of service for the intersection throughout the day. This change of design for the 

intersection involves additional design staff hours and use of specialized sub consultants to come up with the 

best possible and cost effective roundabout alignment and design. The amount requested includes all sub 

consultant work, additional pot holes and surveying, engineering, and preparation of bid ready documents. 

The breakdown of this work is attached as part of JUB's existing contract and exhibit for their scope services.

Why was this not 

in original 

contract?

The original contract included the option to evaluate alternatives and just used a base assumption amount for 

a typical signalized roadway intersection project not one where specialized design work needed to be done. 

The evaluation of intersections option has been a clause since the original contract in 2016; but was not 

executed due to limits of construction and availability of funds. With the additional funds that the corridor 

received for construction up to 90th Avenue, it made more sense to look at the intersection more closely and 

design an option that would be more suited for the long range plan of the corridor.

Budget 

Impact/Funding

The 2018 Budget amount of $482,187 includes this change order.

Impact to project 

schedule

With the last change order, the project was to be finished in Winter 2019. The current change will push final 

design and bid documents to May 2019, just enough time to be able to bid and start construction of this 

project in Summer 2019.

Detailed 

Explanation

The roundabout option presents the City with a higher level of service for both peak hours and traffic flow.  It 

will also allow a cleaner transition for the widening of 83rd Avenue. The additional design work for this project 

to be constructed in 2019,  will help advance our infrastructure in western Greeley and allow for better 

connection paths within City limits.

Project Information

Change Order Justification

CHANGE ORDER FORM

51



 Council has increased the limits for signature authority.  Below are the new limits based on CUMMULATIVE change orders:

https://library.municode.com/co/greeley/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT2AD_CH2.07CO_2.07.020APSI

<$50,000

$50,000.01-

$100,000 >$100,000 <$50,000

$50,000.01-

$100,000 >$100,000

Council X X X

City Manager X X

City Attorney X X

Director of Finance X X

Purchasing Official X X X X

Department Director X X X X X X

Project Manager X X X X X X

<=25% >25%

C:\Users\Public\Documents\AgendaPal\21a38764-3e0d-4816-994a-dc4a3ea66472\797d6d9a-13e2-4132-b377-0a55b2d53389.xlsx

52



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69275868-EB7F-47DB-96E7-773FB9AAB34F 

Task 76 through task 92 represents design, plan production, OPCC, special provisions, and QA/QC for a roundabout 

design at 20th  St and 83rd  Ave for the preliminary set of plans. The preliminary plans will be approximately 50% 

complete. These roundabout plan sheets would replace the signalized intersection sheets from phase 4 if the City 

chooses to go with the roundabout design. 

If the roundabout design is not selected for the intersection of 20th  St and 83rd  Ave, then the work will not be 

performed for tasksX)irough 114. 

76. GeotechXical Investigation & Report (Terracon) 

a. 	Scope of Services: 

i. 4 bores within the project limits extended to depths of 6-10 feet each. Borings are 

strategically placed within the roundabout envelope and outside the existing roadway 

section to verify soil conditions for a new roadway section. 

ii. No traffic control will be needed for these bore hole locations because they are outside of 

the traffic and pavement area. 

iii. Lab work, engineering analysis, and reporting for pavement structure design. 

iv. Preparation of the geotechnical engineering report by Terracon. 

v. Refer to the attached pdfs for bore hole locations. 

vi. J-U-B will review the report for content and information needed for plan production. 

b. 	Deliverables: 

i. Geotechnical report 

77. Lighting Photometrics (Clanton) 

a. 	Scope of Services: 

i. Clanton will provide a street light layout for the roundabout configuration. 

ii. This task will include a photometric plan, lighting plan, and luminaire schedule. 

iii. The deliverable will be a CAD file with lighting locations. No plan sheets will be provided. 

iv. J-U-B will display the street light locations within the J-U-B plan set. 

b. 	Deliverables: 

i. CAD file with lighting layout 

78. Landscape Design (BHA) 

a. 	Scope of Services: 

i. BHA will provide a moderate level landscape design for the roundabout. 

ii. This will include general placement of plant materials, general plan callouts, as well as a 

representative plant list, plant notes and details. 

iii. Coordination with the irrigation designer to determine water source, tap size, and other 

pertinent information. 

iv. Coordination/phone conversations with design team and project administration. 

v. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

b. 	Deliverables: 

i. Landscape plans and OPCC 

79. Irrigation Design (Hines) 

a. 	Scope of Services: 

i. Mainline and wire routing will be coordinated with the City, J-U-B, and BHA as necessary. 

13IPage 

53



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69275868-EB7F-47DB-96E7-773FB9AAB34F 

ii. Detailed irrigation design will include; sprinkler layout, mainline and lateral pipe routing and 

sizing, drip irrigation valves and diagrammatic routing of drip laterals and remote control 

valve locations. 

iii. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

b. 	Deliverables: 

i. Irrigation Plans and OPCC 

80. Functional Roundabout Design (FTH) 

a. 	Scope of Services: 

i. FTH will provide design support for a multi-lane roundabout at 20th Street & 83rd Avenue. 

ii. Functional roundabout design (plan view-horizontal layout) using the TORUS AutoCAD 

application; flowline, channelizing islands, and apron linework will be provided to the project 

team to incorporate into the civil design 

iii. Fastest path calculations and figures to document compliance with FHWA roundabout 

design guidelines 

iv. AutoTurn figures to demonstrate design vehicle/truck turning paths 

v. Roundabout signing and marking recommendations to the project team 

vi. Roundabout site-distance calculations and linework, to aid in landscaping and civil plans 

vii. Roundabout lighting recommendations to the project team 

viii. Meetings (2 meetings in Greeley assumed) 

ix. J-U-B will review the roundabout conceptual layout and assist with coordination with the 

City. 

x. J-U-B will attend one meeting in Greeley. J-U-B will provide meeting minutes. 

b. 	Deliverables: 

i. 	Final Plans 

81. Drainage Report 

a. Scope of Services: 

i. The roadway drainage report would be updated with the roundabout at the intersection, so 

new sub-basin would be delineated along with the associated rational method calcs, street 

capacities, inlets, and pipe network calculations. The drainage report exhibits will be 

updated along with the report text. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. Drainage Report 

Tasks 82 through 90 represent design and the production of drawings for the preliminary set of plans. The 

preliminary plans will be approximately 50% complete. 

82. Survey and Horizontal Control 

a. Scope of Services: 

i. Three additional sheets will be added to the plan sheets to display the alignments for each 

corner of the roundabout and the medians. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. Preliminary Plans 

83. Roundabout Plan View 

14IPage 

54



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69275868-EB7F-47DB-96E7-773FB9AAB34F 

a. Scope of Services: 

I. The plan sheet will call out design items such as curb and gutter, utility adjustments, 

pedestrian ramps, etc. All design items that have standard details will be referenced to the 

detail sheets. Any other items or issues that are shown in more detail on other sheets will 

be referenced. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. Preliminary Plans 

84. Roundabout Grading 

a. 	Scope of Services: 

i. The vertical design will be based off of the vertical profiles of the roadways and will tie into 

existing ground contours. The grading sheet will provide spot elevations, proposed 

contours, and cut & fill limits. 

ii. These sheets will also include the sidewalk geometrics and vertical information. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. Preliminary Plans 

85. Storm Drainage Plan and Profiles 

a. Scope of Services: 

i. The sheets will include plan views and profiles for any proposed storm drainage system 

required for the roundabout. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. Preliminary Plans 

86. Erosion and Sediment Control Plans 

a. Scope of Services: 

i. J-U-B will prepare an erosion and sediment control plan based on the City of Greeley 

standards. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. Preliminary Plans 

87. Construction Phasing Plan 

a. Scope of Services 

i. Traffic control and construction phasing will be designed and clearly displayed within these 

sheets. 

b. Deliverables 

i. Preliminary Plans 

88. Traffic Signing and Striping 

a. Scope of Services 

i. Signing and striping sheet will be prepared with dimensions for striping and signage call outs. 

b. Deliverables 

I. Preliminary Plans 

89. Details 

a. 	Scope of Services 

i. The additional detail sheet will include any special curb & gutter details or ramp detailing. 

15IPage 

55



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69275868-EB7F-47DB-96E7-773FB9AAB34F 

b. Deliverables 

i. Preliminary Plans 

90. Cross Sections 

a. Scope of Services 

i. 	Cross sections along the approaching legs of the intersection will be developed every 50 feet 

and at strategic locations. 

b. Deliverables 

i. Preliminary Plans 

91. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) 

a. Scope of Services: 

i. The OPCC will include expected bid items developed to the Preliminary level. Quantities will 

be documented in a computation book. Cost will be developed from various sources 

including past bid tabs. The OPCC will have a 20% contingency added at this stage of the 

design. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. OPCC 

92. QA/QC 

a. Scope of Services: 

i. Prior to each submittal J-U-B will perform a QA/QC process which includes sending drawings 

to otherJ-U-B staff members for review and comment. These will be available for review by 

the City. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. None 

Task 93 through task 109 includes the advancement of the design, individual plan sheets, OPCC, and QA/QC from 

50% design to 90% design. Items that were not previously described above are described below. 

96. General Drawings —Tabulations 

a. Scope of Services: 

i. J-U-B will update the tabulation sheets to include roundabout quantities. These sheets will 

be a breakdown of the quantities. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. 	Final plans 

99. Roundabout Profiles 

a. Scope of Services: 

i. 	Each intersecting leg, medians, and inner circle will be profiled based off of the alignments. 

These profiles will provide PVI's, vertical curve information (if needed), slopes, begin and end 

stations, and any other useful callouts that may clarify vertical design. 

b. Deliverables: 

i. 	Final Plans 

107.Special Provisions 

a. 	Scope of Services: 

16IPage 

56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69275868-EB7F-47DB-96E7-773FB9AAB34F 

i. Prepare final design Special Provisions based on the City of Greeley standard layout. 

ii. The special provisions will reference the City of Greeley and CDOT specifications along with 

additional explanations of work for specialty items. 

b. 	Deliverables: 

i. Final Special Provisions 

Task 110 through task 114 includes the advancement of the design, individual plan sheets, special provisions, 

OPCC, and QA/QC from 90% design to bid ready roundabout documents. 

PART 2 — SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

A. 	Refer to Exhibit C of contract. 

PART 3 — BASIS OF FEE 

A. The hours and fees for each task are presented in Exhibit B of contract. 

B. Period of Service: If the period of service for the task identified above is extended beyond 12 months, the 

compensation amount for J-U-B's services shall be appropriately adjusted to account for inflation and 

salary adjustments. 

17IPage 

57



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69275868-EB7F-4708-96E7-773FB9AAB34F 

Task 
Number 

Task Description 
Principal & 

QA/QC 
Project 

Manager 
Project 

Engineer 
Engineer 

(El 2) 
Designer Clerical 

Total 
.1-U-B Labor 

Terracon 
Pinyon 

King 

Reconn 
ACE 

BHA 
Hines 

Clanton 
FTH 

Task Total Total 
 

$175.00 $140.00 $125.00 $98.00 $92.00 $68.00 

76 Geotechnical Investigation & Report (Terracon) 4 2 1 $878 $4,500 $5,378 

77 Lighting Photometric (Clanton) 4 2 1 $812 $2,200 $3,012 

78 Landscape Design (BHA) 4 2 1 $812 $3,881 $4,693 

79 Irrigation Design (Hines) 4 2 1 $812 $375 $1,187 

80 Functional Roundabout Design (FTH) 14 14 8 1 $4,514 $15,910 $20,424 

81 Drainage Report 4 32 8 2 $4,568 $4,568 

Plan Sheets 

82 Survey and Horizontal Control (3 sheets) 2 4 12 $1,884 $1,884 

83 Roundabout Plan Views (5 sheets) 2 12 16 16 $5,502 $5,502 

84 Roundabout Grading (5 sheets) 2 12 32 15 $7,410 $7,410 

85 Storm Drain Plan & Profile (2 sheets) 12 16 16 $4,720 $4,720 

86 Erosion and Sediment Control Plans (1 sheet) 4 8 8 $2,080 $2,080 

87 Construction Phasing Plan (6 sheets) 2 8 16 16 $4,942 $4,942 

88 Traffic Signing and Striping (5 sheet) 8 16 16 $4,592 $4,592 

89 Details (1 sheet) 2 4 8 $1,516 $1,516 

90 Cross Sections (8 sheets) 8 16 4 $3,488 $3,488 

91 Opinion of Probable Const. Cost (OPCC) 2 12 8 16 $4,598 $4,598 

92 QA/QC 8 $1,400 $1,400 

58



DecoSign Envelope ID: 69275868-EB7F-47013-96E7-773FB9A5B34F 

Task 
Number 

Task Description 
Principal & 

QA/QC 
Project 

Manager 
Project 

Engineer 
Engineer 

(El 2) 
Designer Clerical 

Total 
.1-U-B Labor 

Terracon 
Pinyon 

Km  .„ 
Reconn 

ACE 

BHA 
Hines 

Clanton 
FTH 

Task Total 	Total 

$175.00 $140.00 $125.00 $98.00 $92.00 $68.00 

93 

Hour Subtotal 

Landscape Design (BHA) 

16 114 

4 

128 72 133 

4 

7 $54,528 

$928 $3,573 

Subtotal: 	$81,394 

$4,501 

94 Irrigation Design (Hines) 4 4 $928 $375 $1,303 

95 Drainage Report 4 16 8 2 $3,000 $3,000 

Plan Sheets 

96 General Drawings - Tabulations (2 sheets) 8 s 16 $3,688 $3,688 

97 Survey and Horizontal Control (3 sheets) 2 2 8 $1,266 $1,266 

98 Roundabout Plan Views (5 sheets) 12 8 15 $4,060 $4,060 

99 Roundabout Profiles (4 sheets) 2 12 16 8 $4,766 $4,766 

100 Roundabout Grading (5 sheets) 2 12 32 5 $6,490 $6,490 

101 Storm Drain Plan & Profile (2 sheets) 8 8 16 $3,376 $3,376 

102 Erosion and Sediment Control Plans (1 sheet) 4 4 s $1,688 $1,688 

103 Construction Phasing Plan (6 sheets) 2 8 16 16 $4,942 $4,942 

104 Traffic Signing and Striping (5 sheet) 4 16 16 $4,032 $4,032 

105 Details (1 sheet) 2 4 4 $1,148 $1,148 

106 Cross Sections (8 sheets) 8 16 $3,120 $3,120 

107 Special Provisions 4 16 8 $3,940 $3,940 

108 Opinion of Probable Const. Cost (OPCC) 2 12 8 16 $4,598 $4,598 

109 QA/QC 8 $1,400 $1,400 

110 

Hour Subtotal 

Landscape Design (BHA) 

20 120 

2 

134 60 112 2 $53,370 

$280 $1,877 

Subtotal: 	$57,318 

$2,157 

111 Irrigation Design (Hines) 2 $280 $200 $480 

112 Finalize Construction Plans 4 s 16 s 16 $6,076 $6,076 

113 Finalize Special Provisions and OPCC 2 4 4 $1,410 $1,410 

114 Submit Bid Ready Documents 4 2 2 $946 $946 

Hour Subtotal 6 20 22 8 16 2 $8,992 Subtotal: 	$11,069 

Total Hours: 42 254 284 140 261 11 $116,890 Roundabout Design Total: 	$149,781 

Clanton 	BHA 	FTH 	Terracon 	Hines 

$2,200 	$9,331 	$15,910 	$4,500 	$950 

TOTAL SUB COST 	$32,8911 

59



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 13 

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

  

Title:  

Introduction and first reading of an ordinance vacating a right-of-way located south 

of the intersection of 30th Street and 43rd Avenue and approving of a subdivision 

replat for Gateway Estates 2nd Filing, 1st Replat 

Summary: 
 

The City of Greeley’s Stormwater Division received multiple complaints and 

photographic evidence of stormwater runoff and flooding occurring in Gateway 

Estates 2nd and 3rd Filing. The predominant flow path was a section of stubbed out 

roadway, 43rd Avenue. Stormwater was flowing south down 43rd Avenue from 30th 

Street to a high retaining wall between the 2nd and 3rd filings. Runoff then fell into the 

backyard of 4301 30th Street Rd. flooding the property during heavy rain events. 

 

 As a result, the Stormwater Division designed and constructed curb and gutter along 

30th Street across the 43rd Avenue stub out to fill and raise elevations such that flow 

was diverted down 30th Street to the west and east, preventing runoff from 

continuing to the south. Curb, gutter, sidewalk, roadway, and major earthwork 

activities began in 2014, with substantial completion of construction activities in 2016, 

with the intent of vacating the unused portion of 43rd Avenue. 

 

The requested right-of-way vacation is a stub out of 43rd Avenue in Gateway Estates 

2nd filing, which was platted in 1998, with the intent to connect to a future 3rd filing. 

The third filing, which was later platted in 2002, was built with elevations more than ten 

feet lower than the 2nd filing, resulting in the reserved 43rd Avenue right-of-way being 

unusable and infeasible to connect a roadway to in the 3rd filing. The 43rd Avenue 

stub out remained and was maintained by the City until 2016. 

 

The parcel south of the stubbed out 43rd Avenue in the 3rd filing (4301 30th Street Rd.) 

was initially platted as Outlot C. However, given that the roadway stub out was 

unusable as a roadway connection, it was replated in 2005 into a residential lot. A 

single family residence now exists on the above mentioned lot at 4301 30th Street Rd. 

 

Utilities in the stubbed out roadway were removed when the 3rd filing was 

constructed in 2002/2003; however, the 15 foot utility and drainage easements 

remained on either side of the right-of-way through 4300 30th Street (Fuller property) 

and 4210 30th Street (Griffis property). As the easements are no longer needed, 

Atmos Energy, Comcast Cable, CenturyLink, Xcel Energy, and the City of Greeley’s 

Stormwater Division have all agreed to vacate the easements. 

 

The resident at 4300 30th Street, Dick Fuller, previously had access to a side loaded 

60



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

garage via the stubbed out portion of 43rd Avenue. As such, the Stormwater Division 

project included the construction of a new curb cut and driveway to maintain 

access to the Fuller garage. Due to topography, Mr. Fuller required a retaining wall at 

the curve of his driveway, which is currently in the right-of-way. Mr. Fuller has paid for 

a consultant to design his retaining wall and would pay a contractor to complete his 

driveway. A building permit has been granted for this work within the right-of-way, 

however, the perpetual use of this land requires the vacation of the right-of-way to be 

vacated and the responsibility of maintenance thereof to be transferred to the 

adjacent property owners.  

 

The vacated right-of-way was intended to be landscaped at the conclusion of the 

project. The City’s previous Project Manager on this project verbally negotiated a 

landscaping scheme with both adjacent property owners to provide restoration that 

ensured the property owners were willing to accept the additional property. 

However, without a ROW vacation or replat, the new property line was not defined, 

and a landscape plan could not be finalized. With the approval of the right-of-way 

vacation the agreed upon landscaping would be installed this spring (2019). 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a quasi-judicial process which includes the following 

public hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Applicant presentation 

4) Council questions of applicant 

5) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

6) Rebuttal, if requested 

7) Council discussion 

8) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None noted. 

  

61



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Development Code standards.  

Decision Options:  

1) Introduce the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and introduce as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and final 

reading for March 5, 2019. 

Attachments: 

Draft Ordinance 

Vicinity Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

62



 

 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____, 2019 
 

CASE NO. SUB2018-0025 
 
AN ORDINANCE VACATING THE _____________________ RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LOCATED 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 
 
 Section 1.  The following described street rights-of-way, as described as follows, and 
located in the City of Greeley is hereby vacated: 
 

See Exhibit A, attached 
 
 Section 3.  This ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after its final publication 
as provided by the Greeley City Charter. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, THIS _____ day of 
________________, 2019. 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
 
 
 
____________________________ _______________________________ 
City Clerk   Mayor 
 

  

63



 

 

Exhibit A 

A vacation of 43rd Avenue south of 30th Street located in Gateway Estates 2nd Filing in 
Section 23, Township 5 North, Range 66 West of the 6th P.M., City of Greeley, 
County of Weld, State of Colorado more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 1 Block 2 of said Gateway Estates 2nd Filing said 
point furthermore being the POINT OF BEGINNING, thence N 84°53'48” W (said bearing 
being the Basis of Bearing for this description and all other bearings contained herein being 
relative thereto), a distance of 60.08' along the Southerly line of said Gateway Estates 2nd 
Filing to the Southeast corner of lot 14 of Block 1of said Gateway Estates 2nd Filing; thence 
along the easterly line of said lot 14 and a curve having a radius of 280.00', a delta of 05°58'25”, 
a chord bearing of N 05°38'50” E, a chord distance of 29.18', an arc distance of 29.19' to a point 
on said east line of said Lot 14; thence continue on said east line N 08°38'01” E, a distance of 
81.64' to a point of curve having a radius of 10.00', a delta of 89°58'58', a chord bearing of N 
36°21'59” W, a chord distance of 14.14', an arc distance of 15.70' to a point on the Northerly 
line of said lot 14 and a point on the Southerly line of 30th Street; thence S 81°21'59” E along 
the said Southerly line of 30th Street, a distance of 80.00' to a point on the Northerly line of 
said lot 1, Block2, thence along a curve with a radius of 10.00',a delta angle of 89°58'58”, a 
chord bearing of S53°38'01” W, and a chord distance of 14.14, an arc distance of 15.70' to a 
point on the West line of said lot 1 and the East R.O.W. line of said 43rd Avenue; thence along 
said East line of 43rd Avenue and West line of lot 1 S 08°38'01” W, a distance of 81.64'; thence 
along a curve with a radius of 220.00', a delta angle of 06°38'23”, a chord bearing of S 05°18'50” 
W, a chord distance of 25.48', an arc distance of 25.49' to the POINT OF BEGINNING, said 
parcel of vacated street right-of way containing 7182 Sq. Ft. or 0.165 acres more or less. 
 

 

64



411342034207
4211

2930

2926

2922 2915

2919

2920

2925
4309

4314
4310 4306 2929

2933
4307

4311

4315

4308
4304

4302 4300
4210 4208 4202 4200

4221422542294233423742414305
43134317

4321
43254329

4240 4236 4232 4226 4222

4301

43
rd

 A
ve

30th St

29th Street Rd

30th Street Rd

Attachment A – Vicinity Map

Legend
Building
Arterial Streets
Local Streets 0 0.070.035

Miles [

SUB2018-0025
Gateway Estates 2nd Filing, 1st Replat

65



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 14 

Key Staff Contact: Mark Hoekstra, Information Technology Director, 970-350-9305 

  

Title:  

Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance to facilitate installation of City-owned 

fiber optic conduit during excavation projects within the City's rights of way 

Summary: 
 

As a follow-up to the Council Worksession recommendations presented on January 

22, 2019, we propose this Fiber Conduit Colocation Ordinance.  The ordinance adds 

Chapter 14.80 to the Greeley Municipal Code regarding excavation in the public 

right of way. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? None 

What is the annual impact? N/A 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  N/A 

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments: This ordinance makes it less expensive for the City to install fiber 

optic conduit should it choose to do so.  It does not obligate 

the City to spend money. 

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process which includes the following public 

hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation (if requested) 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

4) Council discussion 

5) Council decision 

 

 

 

 

66



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

To compete in today‟s economy, communities across the State have become 

increasingly dependent on internet access – and especially high-capacity 

(broadband) access.    Businesses – whether a „brick and mortar‟ business or an at 

home business – require large amounts of data communications.  Further, residences 

have multiple devices that need the significant capacity for video and other users.    

 

The availability of broadband has also become a necessity for quality of life and 

desirability of a community, providing residents access to things like online education 

and distance learning opportunities, telemedicine, and entertainment.  In the 21st-

century economy, it is critical everyone have broadband access.  In fact, it is 

beginning to be a dialogue that broadband access is as important as our roads and 

utilities to be economically competitive (Colorado Municipal League).     

 

The history of broadband for the City of Greeley is as follows:     

 

2016: The City began the initiative to examine Broadband generally. 

 

2017: The City initiated (1) a feasibly study with NEO Connect to look broadly at the 

issues and options related to Broadband, (2) a ballot initiative in which the voters 

opted out of the prohibitions of SB152 which prohibited most uses of municipal funds 

for infrastructure to improve local broadband service or from providing those services 

should the City desire to do so at some point. 

 

2018: Completed the feasibility study and identified next steps.  

In May 2018 City staff and a consultant provided the Council with a strategic 

direction concerning broadband.  As the consultant stated:  

Municipalities are taking a more active role in ensuring their communities have 

reliable, abundant and affordable broadband services for their citizens.  Additionally, 

smart city applications are requiring local governments to plan for robust infrastructure 

to support these emerging technologies. 

 

The study had many components, including a survey of providers and “download” 

speeds, discussion of the future options (4G and 5G cellular wireless, as examples), 

price comparisons, existing infrastructure assets, a survey of providers, best practices 

analysis, and recommendations.   

 

From this report, the Council appropriated an additional $250,000 to continue to 

study and analyze the next steps for the City of Greeley to ensure Greeley remains a 

technologically competitive City in northern Colorado.   

 

This ordinance is designed to satisfy a key recommendation from the 2018 study: 

 

Municipal Facilitation through Broadband Friendly Policies: 

 

Fiber Conduit Colocate Ordinance:   

 

We have written for your consideration an ordinance to address some issues.   
67



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

This ordinance states:   

 When a company is trenching or boring in the City right-of-ways, the 

company must provide a shadow conduit at the City‟s request and 

incremental cost, and  

 Those constructing public streets, public improvements and alleys, including 

the City and Developers must provide and install such conduit and 

appurtenances as necessary to accommodate future broadband needs 

within public right of way.  

 

This ordinance achieves several outcomes:  

 Avoids unnecessary excavation in the City‟s rights of way 

 Creates broadband infrastructure to ensure that the City remains 

competitive   

 Enables technology to improve traffic safety and congestion 

 Helps ensure all areas of the City will have the ability to deploy broadband 

fiber. 

 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Image: Reinforce Greeley‟s vision as an attractive and vibrant community in which to 

live, learn, work and play. 

 

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of 

security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors. 

 

Economic Health & Development: Foster and maintain public and private investment 

in business development. 

 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Introduce the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and introduce as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and final 

reading for March 5, 2019. 

 

Attachments: 

  Fiber Conduit Colocation Ordinance 

68



 

 

 
CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. ______, 2019 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 14.80 OF THE GREELEY MUNICIPAL 
CODE REGARDING EXCAVATION IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley (“City”) is a Colorado home rule municipality, with all 
powers and authority vested under Colorado law; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City owns and maintains a system of streets and Rights of Way for the 
promotion of public health, safety, welfare and convenience; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City is aware that the demand for technological infrastructure in the 
future will likely require the installation of additional facilities in, under and upon City-owned 
streets and Rights of Way; and 
 

WHEREAS, contractors excavating or otherwise working within the City Rights of Way 
pursuant to a lawfully issued permit are required to perform construction or maintenance 
operations within the parameters of the Greeley’s Municipal Code; and  
 

WHEREAS, demand for access to broadband services is growing, and in order to fill 
such demand, more broadband network infrastructure is needed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the above, finds adoption of this Ordinance 
is necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of the City. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF GREELEY, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
Section 1.  Chapter 14.80 of the Greeley Municipal Code shall be adopted as set forth on 

Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Section 2.   This Ordinance shall become effective five days following its final 

publication, as provided by the Greeley Municipal Charter. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF 

_____________, 2019. 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________________ 
City Clerk     Mayor  

  

69



 

 

CHAPTER 14.80 
EXCAVATION IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY 

 
 14.80.010            LEGISLATIVE DECLARATION.  

A. Purpose: to provide principles and procedures for the coordination of construction 
excavation within any public Rights of Way, and to protect the integrity of the Rights of Way 
and road system.  
 

B. Objectives.  Public and private uses of Rights of Way for location of Facilities 
employed in the provision of public services should, in the interests of the general welfare, be 
accommodated; however, the City must ensure that the primary purpose of the Rights of Way, 
namely the safe and efficient passage of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, is maintained to the 
greatest extent possible. In addition, the value of other public and private installations, Facilities 
and properties should be protected, competing uses must be reconciled, and the public safety 
preserved. The use of the Rights of Way corridors for location of Facilities is secondary to these 
public objectives. This ordinance is intended to assist in striking a balance between the public 
need for efficient, safe transportation routes and the use of Rights of Way for location of 
facilities by public and private entities. It thus has several objectives: 
 

1. To insure that the public health, safety and welfare is maintained and that 
public inconvenience is minimized. 

 
2. To facilitate work within the Rights of Way through the standardization of 

regulations and permitting. 
 
3. To conserve and fairly apportion the limited physical capacity of the 

public Rights of Way held in public trust by the City. 
 
4. To promote cooperation among the Applicants and Permittees (as defined 

herein) and the City in the occupation of the public Rights of Way, and work therein, in 
order to (i) eliminate duplication that is wasteful, unnecessary or unsightly, (ii) lower the 
Permittee’s and the City’s costs of providing services to the public, and (iii) minimize 
Rights of Way excavations.  

 
14.80.020.    DEFINITIONS 
  

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words shall have the following meanings: 
 

A. “Applicant” means an owner or duly authorized agent of such owner, who has 
submitted an application for a Permit to Excavate in the Rights of Way. 

 
B. “City” means the City of Greeley, Colorado.  
 
C. “Conduit” means a single enclosed raceway for cables, fiber optics or other wires, 

or a pipe or canal used to convey fluids or gases.  
 

70



 

 

D. “Department” means the Department of Public Works. 
 
E. “Developer” means the person, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity who 

is improving property within the City and who is legally responsible to the City for the 
construction of improvements within a subdivision or as a condition of a building permit or other 
land use or development authorization. 

 
F. “Director” means the Director of Public Works of the City or his/her authorized 

representative. 
 
G. “Facility” or “Facilities” means, including, without limitation, any pipes, 

conduits, wires, cables, amplifiers, transformers, fiber optic lines, antennae, poles, ducts, fixtures 
and appurtenances and other like equipment used in connection with transmitting, receiving, 
distributing, offering, and providing broadband, utility and other services.  

 
H. "Landscaping" means materials, including without limitation, grass, ground 

cover, shrubs, vines, hedges, or trees and non-living natural materials commonly used in 
landscape development, as well as attendant irrigation systems.  

 
I. “Major Work” means any reasonably foreseeable Excavation that will affect the 

Rights of Way for more than five (5) consecutive calendar days. 
  
J. “Owner” means any Person, including the City, who owns any Facilities that are 

or are proposed to be installed or maintained in the Rights of Way. 
 
K. “Permit” means any authorization for use of the Rights of Way granted in 

accordance with the terms of this ordinance, and other applicable laws and policies of the City. 
 
L. “Permittee” means the holder of a valid Permit issued pursuant to this Chapter 

and other applicable provisions of applicable law for Excavation in the Rights of Way, including 
but not limited to the City of Greeley for its own capital projects. 

 
M. “Person” means any person, firm, partnership, special, metropolitan, or general 

district, association, corporation, company, or organization of any kind. 
 
N. “Rights of Way” means any public street, road, way, place, alley, sidewalk or 

easement, that is owned, held or otherwise dedicated to the City for public use.  
 
 
14.80.030. POLICE POWERS 
 
 A Permittee's rights hereunder are subject to the police powers of the City, which include 
the power to adopt and enforce ordinances, including amendments to this ordinance, and 
regulations necessary to the safety, health, and welfare of the public.  A Permittee shall comply 
with all applicable ordinances and regulations enacted, or hereafter enacted, by the City or any 
other legally constituted governmental unit having lawful jurisdiction over the subject matter 

71



 

 

hereof. The City reserves the right to exercise its police powers, notwithstanding anything in this 
ordinance or any Permit to the contrary.  Any conflict between the provisions of the ordinance or 
a Permit and any other present or future lawful exercise of the City's police powers shall be 
resolved in favor of the latter.  
 
14.80.040. COLOCATION OF THE CITY’S FIBER CONDUIT 
 

A. Intent. To permit the City to colocate conduit for fiber whenever an entity is 
proposing construction activities that involve directional boring or open trenching within public 
Rights of Way. 

 
B. Requirements. To colocate and install City owned fiber conduit simultaneously 

with a Permit holder's construction activity at the City’s request: 
 

1. Right of Way Permits. All permittees proposing construction activities that 
involve directional boring or open trenching within public Rights of Way that extend 
more than five-hundred (500) feet in length are required to co-locate and install City 
owned conduit simultaneously with the Permit holder's construction activity at the City’s 
request, unless such co-location requirement is not allowed by any other state or federal 
law, rule, or regulation. The City may, upon initial review of the permit application, 
determine that the permittee's proposed construction activity does not demonstrate a need 
for colocation of City infrastructure. 
 

2. Colocation of Conduit. For any construction activity that requires a 
colocation of City conduit, the City shall, as a condition of the issuance of the permit or 
the continued validity of a permit, direct the permittee to install City owned conduit with 
tracer wire and associated infrastructure, as identified by the City, concurrent with the 
installation of the permittee's infrastructure following the City's review and approval of 
all estimated costs associated with the colocation of the City conduit.  The permittee shall 
install the City conduit with tracer wire adjacent to the permittee's infrastructure and 
within the same bore or trench alignment. The City will bear all construction installation 
cost associated with the colocation, including the City conduit, pull boxes, and all other 
materials and infrastructure to be installed, including the incremental labor and 
equipment cost incurred by the permittee (or its contractor or subcontractor) that are 
reasonably and directly attributable to the required colocation of City conduit, material 
and infrastructure. The City shall not pay for design or potholing cost. 
 

3. Documentation. When a colocation of City conduit is required, the 
permittee may be required to submit signed as-built documentation of the City's conduit 
to the City if physical verification of the City conduit is not possible.  
 

4. Fees. The City designated representative may incrementally waive Rights 
of Way permit fees set forth for any construction activities associated with the colocation 
project.  

 
 

72



 

 

14.80.060. CONSTRUCTION OF NEW STREETS 
 

A. Intent. This is intended to require those constructing public streets, public 
improvements, and alleys, including the City and Developers, to provide and install such conduit 
and appurtenances to accommodate future broadband needs within the Rights of Way without 
further excavation. 

 
B. Requirements. Whenever any new public street or alley is constructed, whether by the 

City as a public works project or by a Developer or other private party in conjunction with 
development, the following shall be required: 
 

1.    In all new local streets and alleys serving or abutting residential development, 
a minimum of two 2” conduit with pull box every 600 (six hundred) feet or less (and at 
every 90 degree turn) shall be installed by the party constructing the street or alley. 

 
2.    In all new collector or arterial streets serving or abutting residential 

development, and in all new streets and alleys serving or abutting nonresidential 
development, a minimum of four 2” conduit with pull box every 600 (six hundred) feet or 
less (and at every 90 degree turn) shall be installed by the party constructing the street or 
alley; provided however that at the discretion of the Director, the number and size of the 
conduit and spacing of pull box may be modified to address the reasonably known plans 
and/or demand for broadband capacity in these locations. 

 
3.    In addition to installing conduit, the party constructing the street or alley will 

be required to install such vaults and other appurtenances as may be necessary to 
accommodate installation and connection of broadband Facilities within the conduit. 

 
4.    All construction and installation shall be accomplished according to 

construction standards adopted by the City. The construction standards shall be adopted 
with due consideration given to existing and anticipated technologies and consistent with 
industry standards.  

 
5.    All Facilities installed by Developers or other private parties pursuant to this 

section shall be conveyed and dedicated to the City with the dedication and conveyance 
of the public street and/or Rights of Way. 

 
6.    All installation costs shall be the responsibility of the party constructing the 

public street. 
 

C. Use by Broadband Service Providers and Network Owners. Whenever conduit 
installed or to be installed under this section is available or will become available within a newly 
constructed public streets or Rights of Way upon dedication, all broadband service providers or 
network owners thereafter locating Facilities within such street, alley or Rights of Way shall be 
required to locate their communications lines within such conduit unless it can be demonstrated 
to the reasonable satisfaction of the City that such location is not technologically feasible or 
reasonably practicable. Conduit capacity shall be allocated to broadband service providers or 

73



 

 

network owners on a first-come, first-served basis; provided, that the City may reserve capacity 
within such conduits for its own use; and provided further, that the Director may adopt additional 
rules for conduit allocation in order to ensure that all broadband service providers and network 
owners have reasonable access to the Rights of Way and that no barriers to entry or competition 
result from the allocation of conduit space. 

 
D. Fees. The City reserves the right to charge reasonable fees for the use of conduit 

installed pursuant to this section, to the extent consistent with and as limited by federal and state 
laws.  Any such fees shall be established by resolution or ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

74



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 15 

Key Staff Contact: Joel Hemesath, Public Works Director, 970-350-9795 

  

Title:  

Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the acquisition of interests 

in real property located in the City of Greeley for road improvements by purchase or 

exercise of power of eminent domain pursuant to Section 7 of Article XVI, Section 15 

of article II, and Sections 1 and 6 of Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and 

Colorado Revised Statute § 38-1-101, et seq. (65th Avenue and Highway 34 Frontage 

Road Project) 

Summary: 
 

This ordinance authorizes the acquisition of property interests by purchase or by 

exercise of power of eminent domain, if deemed necessary, required to construct the 

65th Avenue and Highway 34 Frontage Road Project. 

 

The 2018-2022 City of Greeley Capital Improvement Plan identifies the necessity for 

improvements of 65th Avenue and the Highway 34 Frontage Road to relieve 

congestion and address safety concerns due to the close location of the frontage 

road to the signal at the 65th Avenue and Highway 34 Bypass. Key elements of the 

project include widening 65th Avenue, installation of southbound turn lanes, and the 

closure of the frontage road east of the intersection.  This project will also construct a 

detention pond at the southeast corner of the project to address drainage issues that 

occur during storm events. 

The 2035 City of Greeley Comprehensive Transportation Plan identifies the 65th 

Avenue and Highway 34 intersection as a future highway interchange location.  The 

timeline for the interchange improvements is not known at this time.  The current 

project will construct interim improvements to address immediate and anticipated 

traffic congestion and safety needs until such time as the ultimate interchange 

improvements are constructed. 

 

The Project will require the acquisition of tracts of fee simple right of way and 

temporary construction easements along 65th Avenue.  City staff have begun 

discussions with owners within the project area.  As the Project progresses, staff will 

continue to work with owners to meet the goals of the project, address site 

considerations, and acquire the property interests necessary for the project.  Staff fully 

intends to negotiate in good faith and follow a uniform acquisition process for all 

affected owners; however, if an agreement cannot be reached, and in order to 

meet the schedule and budget requirements of the project, the City may consider 

the use of eminent domain.   

 

 
 

75



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Fiscal Impact: 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? Unknown, to be negotiated. 

What is the annual impact? None 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  312 - Transportation 

Development 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Development Fees 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

The Colorado Constitution and the Greeley Municipal Code authorize the City to 

acquire interests in real property for public purposes, including by eminent domain 

when deemed necessary.  

 

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process which includes the following public 

hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation (if requested) 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

4) Council discussion 

5) Council decision 

 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of 

security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors. 

 

Safety – Traffic Safety 

Decision Options:  

1) Introduce the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and introduce as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

 

 

 

76



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to introduce the ordinance and schedule the public hearing and final 

reading for March 5, 2019. 

Attachments: 

 Conceptual Plan Drawing – 65th Avenue and Highway 34 Frontage Road Project 

 Ordinance 

 Exhibit A to Ordinance – Property Ownership Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



DESIGN BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

B
Y

A
P

R
.

D
A

T
E

DRAWING NUMBER:

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

R
E

U
S

E
 
O

F
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

T
H

I
S

 
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
,
 
A

N
D

 
T

H
E

 
I
D

E
A

S
 
A

N
D

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
S

 
I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
D

H
E

R
E

I
N

,
 
A

S
 
A

N
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
O

F
 
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

I
O

N
A

L
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
I
S

 
T

H
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
O

F
 
J
-
U

-
B

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

,
 
I
n

c
.
A

N
D

 
I
S

 
N

O
T

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
,
 
I
N

W
H

O
L
E

 
O

R
 
P

A
R

T
,
 
F

O
R

 
A

N
Y

 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

W
R

I
T

T
E

N
 
A

U
T

H
O

R
I
Z

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
J
-
U

-
B

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

,
 
I
n

c
.

N
O

.
B

Y

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

A
P

R
.

D
A

T
E

B
Y

A
P

R
.

D
A

T
E

JUB PROJ. # :

LAST UPDATED: 1/17/2019

2019-01-14_ROW-EXHIBIT

INCH, SCALE ACCORDINGLY
AT FULL SIZE, IF NOT ONE

ONE INCH

FILE :

\\F
C

F
IL

E
S

\P
U

B
LI

C
\P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

\J
U

B
\G

R
E

E
LE

Y
\8

7-
17

-0
06

_6
5T

H
A

V
E

_U
S

34
\C

A
D

\E
X

H
IB

IT
\R

O
W

-E
X

H
IB

IT
\2

01
9-

01
-1

4_
R

O
W

-E
X

H
IB

IT
.D

W
G

P
lo

t D
at

e:
1/

17
/2

01
9 

8:
52

 A
M

  P
lo

tte
d 

B
y:

 A
m

be
r 

M
or

se

D
at

e 
C

re
at

ed
:1

/1
7/

20
19

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
N

S
 -

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

J-U-B ENGINEERS, INC.

J-
U

-B
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
, I

N
C

.

w
w

w
.ju

b.
co

m

F
or

t C
ol

lin
s,

 C
O

  8
05

25

47
45

 B
oa

rd
w

al
k 

D
riv

e

F
ax

: 9
70

.3
77

.3
93

5

P
ho

ne
: 9

70
.3

77
.3

60
2

SHEET

OF

P
ho

ne
: 9

70
.3

77
.3

60
2

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 G

R
E

E
LE

Y
P

U
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
D

iv
is

io
n

10
01

 9
th

 A
ve

nu
e

G
re

el
ey

, C
O

  8
06

31

B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

, S
ui

te
 2

00

65
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E 
IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
G

R
E

E
LE

Y

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 R
IG

H
T

 O
F

 W
A

Y
 E

X
H

IB
IT

BK

BK

AM

ROW 1

1

2

N

0 20 40

SCALE IN FEET

Conceptual Plan Drawing - 65th Avenue & Highway 34 Frontage Road Project

78



DESIGN BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

B
Y

A
P

R
.

D
A

T
E

DRAWING NUMBER:

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

E
U

S
E

 
O

F
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

T
H

I
S

 
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
,
 
A

N
D

 
T

H
E

 
I
D

E
A

S
 
A

N
D

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
S

 
I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
D

H
E

R
E

I
N

,
 
A

S
 
A

N
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
O

F
 
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

I
O

N
A

L
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
I
S

 
T

H
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
O

F
 
J
-
U

-
B

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

,
 
I
n

c
.
A

N
D

 
I
S

 
N

O
T

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
,
 
I
N

W
H

O
L
E

 
O

R
 
P

A
R

T
,
 
F

O
R

 
A

N
Y

 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

W
R

I
T

T
E

N
 
A

U
T

H
O

R
I
Z

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
J
-
U

-
B

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

,
 
I
n

c
.

N
O

.
B

Y

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

A
P

R
.

D
A

T
E

B
Y

A
P

R
.

D
A

T
E

JUB PROJ. # :

LAST UPDATED: 1/17/2019

2019-01-14_ROW-EXHIBIT

INCH, SCALE ACCORDINGLY
AT FULL SIZE, IF NOT ONE

ONE INCH

FILE :

\\F
C

F
IL

E
S

\P
U

B
LI

C
\P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

\J
U

B
\G

R
E

E
LE

Y
\8

7-
17

-0
06

_6
5T

H
A

V
E

_U
S

34
\C

A
D

\E
X

H
IB

IT
\R

O
W

-E
X

H
IB

IT
\2

01
9-

01
-1

4_
R

O
W

-E
X

H
IB

IT
.D

W
G

P
lo

t D
at

e:
1/

17
/2

01
9 

8:
52

 A
M

  P
lo

tte
d 

B
y:

 A
m

be
r 

M
or

se

D
at

e 
C

re
at

ed
:1

/1
7/

20
19

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
N

S
 -

 N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

J-U-B ENGINEERS, INC.

J-
U

-B
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
, I

N
C

.

w
w

w
.ju

b.
co

m

F
or

t C
ol

lin
s,

 C
O

  8
05

25

47
45

 B
oa

rd
w

al
k 

D
riv

e 

F
ax

: 9
70

.3
77

.3
93

5

P
ho

ne
: 9

70
.3

77
.3

60
2

SHEET

OF

P
ho

ne
: 9

70
.3

77
.3

60
2

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 G

R
E

E
LE

Y
P

U
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
D

iv
is

io
n

10
01

 9
th

 A
ve

nu
e

G
re

el
ey

, C
O

  8
06

31

B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

, S
ui

te
 2

00
 

65
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E 
IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
G

R
E

E
LE

Y

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 R
IG

H
T

 O
F

 W
A

Y
 E

X
H

IB
IT

BK

BK

AM

ROW 2

2

2

N

0 20 40

SCALE IN FEET

79



1 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
 

                  ORDINANCE NO. ____, 2019 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GREELEY TO ACQUIRE 

INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN GREELEY, COLORADO FOR 

ROAD IMPROVEMENTS AND ASSOCIATED FACILITIES BY PURCHASE OR 

EXERCISE OF THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN, PURSUANT TO SECTION 7 OF 

ARTICLE XVI, SECTION 15 OF ARTICLE II, AND SECTIONS 1 AND 6 OF ARTICLE 

XX OF THE COLORADO CONSTITUTION AND COLORADO REVISED STATUTES § 

38-1-101, ET SEQ. (65
TH

 AVENUE AND HIGHWAY 34 FRONTAGE ROAD PROJECT) 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Greeley (“City”) is a Colorado home-rule municipality 

authorized by Article II, Section 15, and Article XX, Sections 1 and 6 of the Colorado 

Constitution, as affirmed by the City’s Charter, Sections 1-3, to exercise the power of eminent 

domain to acquire real property to construct, operate and maintain transportation systems and 

other public works and everything required to do so, with the payment of just compensation; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, Article 15 of Title 31, and Article I of Title 38, Colorado Revised Statutes, 

provide statutory authority and procedures for the exercise of the power of eminent domain by the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the public infrastructure improvements to 65
th
 

Avenue and the Highway 34 Frontage Road by the City are needed for improved traffic flow and 

safety of the intersection; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in order to complete the project the City must acquire additional real 

property; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

Section 1. The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is in the interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the public, serves a public purpose, and is necessary, to acquire, through the exercise of the 

power of eminent domain, the property generally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 

by reference herein, for improvements to 65
th
 Avenue and Highway 34 (“Property”), for improved traffic 

flow and safety of the intersection. 

 

Section 2. Should City staff be unsuccessful in negotiating a mutual agreement for the purchase of 

the Property, the City Council hereby directs City staff to begin acquisition by eminent domain, 

including, but not limited to, obtaining immediate possession of the Property, pursuant to the above-

named statutes. 

 

Section 3. The City Council hereby ratifies any previous actions by City staff in providing 

notice of the City's intent to acquire the Property and extending an offer to purchase the Property. 

80



1 

Nothing contained in this ordinance shall be construed as precluding or preventing continued 

good faith negotiations by City staff in an effort to purchase the Property.  

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its final publication as 

provided by the City’s Charter, Section 3-16.  

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this _______ day of _____, 2019. 

 

 ATTEST:     THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 ___________________________________ _____________________________________ 

 City Clerk     Mayor 

 

 

Attachment: Exhibit A – Property Ownership Map 

81



Duane & Susan Pope
6501 28th St

095916300018

Vincent M & Shawna 
Longcor

2727 65th Ave
095916300012

Bernie L Kendall &
Andrea Aiello
2675 65th Ave

095916301005

Jim L Ellis
6425 W 28th St
095916400018

Jim L Ellis
2718 65th Ave

095916410006

Roger M & Wendy 
Ramirez

2686 65th Ave
095916410005

Kyle B Waugh
2662 65th Ave

095916410004

Angela & Jukka
Koponen

Vacant Land
095916300011

Exhibit "A"

82



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 16 

 

Title 

Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

                                 

83



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 17 

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

  

Title:  

Public hearing to consider a change of zone from PUD (Planned Unit Development – 

Oil and Gas, and Neighborhood Center) to PUD (Planned Unit Development – 

Residential) zone district for approximately 7.11 acres located north of 25th Street 

(a.k.a., Centerplace Drive) and west of 35th Avenue Court, and a public hearing and 

final reading of an Ordinance changing the official zoning map to reflect the same  

Summary: 
 

The City of Greeley is considering a request by Gate Way Place Phase II LTD., to 

rezone an area approximately 7.11 acres in size from a PUD (Planned Unit 

Development) with one set of allowed uses to a PUD allowing a different set of uses 

(i.e., residential).  The site is located north of Centerplace Drive and west of 35th 

Avenue Court.  

 

Until recently, the property was utilized for an oil and gas facility (the only allowed 

use).  The oil and gas facility has been fully capped and abandoned, as such, the 

applicants are requesting a rezoning, which would allow for their vision of 144 multi-

family dwelling units.     

 

The Planning Commission considered the request on January 22, 2019 and 

unanimously recommended approval to City Council. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? Some incremental increases 

at the time of any proposed 

development  

What is the annual impact? Dependent on 

development type 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  Development impact fees 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Development impact fees 

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

84



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Consideration of this matter is a quasi-judicial process which includes the following 

public hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Applicant presentation 

4) Council questions of applicant 

5) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

6) Rebuttal, if requested 

7) Council discussion 

8) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None noted. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Development Code standards. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A) A motion that, based on the application received and subsequent staff analysis, 

the proposed rezoning from PUD (Planned Unit Development – Oil and Gas and 

Neighborhood Center) to PUD (Planned Unit Development – Residential) meets 

Development Code Section 18.30.050(c)(3) and 18.32.040(b); and, therefore, 

approves the rezone. 

 

B) A motion to adopt the map change and publish with reference to title only.  

 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Planning Commission Minutes-Draft (January 22, 2019) 

Planning Commission Summary (Staff Report) (January 22, 2019) 

PowerPoint 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85



 

 

 CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
 

 ORDINANCE NO. ____, 2019 
 

 CASE NO. ZON2019-0004 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GREELEY, COLORADO, FROM PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT – OIL AND 
GAS, AND NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT – 
RESIDENTIAL) FOR APPROXIMATELY 7.11 ACRES LOCATED NORTH OF 25TH 
STREET (A.K.A. CENERPLACE DRIVE) AND WEST OF 35TH AVENUE COURT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 
 
Section 1.  The following described property located in the City of Greeley is hereby changed 
from the zoning district referred to as PUD (Planned Unit Development – Oil and Gas and 
Neighborhood Center) to PUD (Planned Unit Development – Residential) in the City of 
Greeley, County of Weld, State of Colorado: 
 

See attached legal description 
 

Section 2.  The boundaries of the pertinent zoning districts as shown on the official zoning map 
are hereby changed so as to accomplish the above-described zoning changes, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to sign and attest an entry which shall be 
made on the official zoning map to reflect this change. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after its final publication as 
provided by the Greeley City Charter. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF 
_______________________, 2019. 
 
ATTEST:   THE CITY OF GREELEY 
 
 
 
________________________________ ___________________________________ 
City Clerk   Mayor 
 
 
  

86



 

 

Legal Description 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: THAT THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING THE 
SOLE OWNER(S) IN FEE OF A PORTION OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 66 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, CITY OF GREELEY, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THE SURFACE ONLY OF A CIRCULAR TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 
OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 66 WEST OF THE 
6TH P.M., CITY OF GREELEY, WELD, COUNTY, COLORADO, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 300 FEET, THE CENTER OF SAID TRACT BEING LOCATED AT A POINT 
WHICH BEARS SOUTH 46 DEGREES, 15 MINUTES, 32 SECONDS WEST, 1370.65 
FEET FROM THE E 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 14. 
 
COUNTY OF WELD 
STATE OF COLORADO 
 
TOGETHER WITH; 
 
A PORTION OF BLOCK 5, GATEWAY VILLAGE FILING NO. 1 - FIRST REPLAT, 
SITUATE IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, 
RANGE 66 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M., CITY OF GREELEY, COUNTY OF WELD, 
STATE OF COLORADO, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
 
CONSIDERING THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 14 AS ASSUMED TO BEAR NORTH 87°34'31" WEST AND WITH ALL 
BEARINGS CONTAINED HEREIN RELATIVE THERETO; 
 
BEGINNING AT THE EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 14; THENCE 
ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER NORTH 87°34'31" 
WEST 627.48 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE AND ALONG THE 
NORTHERLY PROLONGATION OF THE WEST LINE OF BLOCK 1, GATEWAY 
VILLAGE FILING NO. 1 - FIRST REPLAT AND ALONG SAID WEST LINE SOUTH 
02°25'29" WEST 505.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 47°25'29" WEST 56.88 FEET TO THE 
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 47°25'29" WEST 
235.04 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE WEST, HAVING A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 64°57'58" AND A RADIUS OF 300.00 FEET, THE LONG CHORD 
OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 32°28'26" EAST 322.23 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID 
CURVE 340.16 FEET; THENCE NON-TANGENT FROM SAID CURVE NORTH 
00°00'34" EAST 430.86 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 7.11 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED MAP, 
AS EMBRACED WITHIN 

87



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            1                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Proceedings 

 

January 22, 2019 

 

City Center South 

Council Chambers Room 

1001 11th Avenue 

1:15 p.m. 
 
 
I. Call to Order 

 
Chair Rarick called the meeting to order at 1:19 p.m. Commissioners, Andersen, Hice-Idler 
and Modlin were present. (Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 
 

II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on December 11, 2018 
 

Commissioner Modlin moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on December 11, 
2018. Commissioner Andersen seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 
(Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 

III. Approval of minutes for meeting held on January 8, 2019 
 

Commissioner Andersen asked about specific code changes that where addressed for this 
matter. Chair Rarick stated that the minutes were only an overview and that the details will 
be addressed and carried to the work session held on January 29, 2019. 
 
Commissioner Andersen moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on 
January 8, 2019. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 
(Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
IV. Election of Chair  

 
Chair Rarick stated this item would be postponed until next hearing. 
 

V. Election of Vice Chair 
 
Chair Rarick stated this item would be postponed until next hearing. 
 

 

 88



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            2                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

 

 

VI.  A public hearing to consider a Preliminary Planned Unit Development for 144 

multifamily units on a 7.11 acre parcel located north of 25th Street and Centerplace 

Drive and west of 35th Avenue Court, an amenitized residential apartment complex 

adjacent to the existing West Park Village, Creekstone Apartments and the Gateway 

Place Apartment complex 

 
Name:    Gateway Park II Preliminary PUD 
Case No:   PUD2018-0006 
Applicant:   Gateway Place Phase II, Ltd. 
Location:  North of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and West of 35th 

Avenue Court 
Presenter:   Marian Duran, Planner II 
 

VII.  A public hearing to consider a Final Planned Unit Development for 144 multi-family 

units on a 7.11 acre parcel located north of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and 

West of 35th Avenue Court, an amenitized residential apartment complex adjacent to 

the existing West Park Village, Creekstone Apartments and the Gateway Place 

Apartment complex 

 
Project Name:  Gateway Park II Final PUD 
Case No.:   PUD2018-0008 
Applicant:   Gateway Place Phase II, Ltd. 
Location:  North of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and West of 35th 

Avenue Court 
Presenter:   Marian Duran, Planner II 

 
Marian Duran addressed the Commission  and requested permission to enter both cases 
into the record and combine the presentations. She added that separate motions would be 
required. Ms. Duran provided an updated aerial map, vicinity map and the existing zoning 
map. She added that the site is within an area of ecological significance. 
 
Ms. Duran stated that the City of Greeley is considering a request by Gate Way Place 
Phase II LTD., to rezone approximately 7.11-acres in size from Planned Unit Development 
- Oil & Gas and Planned Unit Development - Neighborhood Center to Planned Unit 
Development – Residential Zoning District with accessory uses as defined in the 
Development Code and as the Code is amended, along with a Preliminary PUD Plan for the 
proposed Gateway Park II PUD. She described the complex and standards of each unit in 
the proposal.  
 
Ms. Duran described the overall landscape plan and stated that all landscaping would 
require approval, in addition to all required amenities. Ms. Duran included photographs of 
the area and its surroundings. She suggested that the lot has been vacant for quite some 
time and accumulating trash and refuse and that development would be appropriate for the 
area. Ms. Duran summarized that the proposals comply with the criterion and guidelines 
and recommended approval. 

 

89



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            3                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

Commissioner Modlin asked about access for bike trails. Ms. Duran clarified that the 
access would be with all the internal sidewalks and walkways that are provided in the site 
plan.  

 
Applicant, Ryan McGreen, addressed the Commission on behalf of Norris Design. 
Mr. McGreen addressed Commissioner Modlin with his questions about bike trails and 
stated that there is a plan for connectivity and accessibility with the multi-family 
neighborhoods to access walking trails and paths. Mr. McGreen provided a brief 
description of the facility and its amenities and agreed that this project blends in with the 
surrounding areas. He stated that the environmental report was reviewed and no issues 
were found.  
 
Chair Rarick asked about the north side tying into the other complex and asked about a 
private drive through the complex. Mr. McGreen stated that it is a private drive and the 
owner is part of this proposal.  

 
Chair Rarick opened the public hearing for Gateway Park II PUD2018-0006 at 1:43 p.m. 
There being no public input, the hearing was closed at 1:43 p.m. 

  
Commissioner Andersen moved that, based on the application received and the preceding 
analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed rezoning from PUD (Oil and 
Gas) zone district to PUD (Residential) zone district meets criteria outlined in 
Development Code Sections 18.30.050(c)(3) and 18.32.040(b) and therefore, recommends 
approval of the rezone to the City Council. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion.  
The motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
Commissioner Andersen moved that, based on based on the application received and the 
preceding analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed Gateway Park II PUD 
Plan is consistent with Section 18.32.040, 18.32.050 and 18.32.060 of the Development 
Code and, therefore, recommends approval of the PUD plan as submitted to the City 
Council, with the following condition: 
 
1. Prior to Final PUD recordation, any remaining engineering construction and design 
issues must be addressed, to the satisfaction of the City, including those related to 
traffic impacts, roadway maintenance, and drainage.  
 
Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners 
Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
Noting that a public hearing had not been opened, Chair Rarick opened the public hearing 
for the Final PUD2018-0008 at 1:47 p.m. There being no public input, the public hearing 
was closed at 1:47 p.m. 

   
  

90



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            4                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

Commissioner Andersen moved that, based on the project summary and preceding 
analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed Gateway Park II Final PUD 
Plan meets Development Code, Chapter 18.32, and is consistent with the approved 
Preliminary PUD plan, with the following conditions and therefore approves the Final PUD 
plan as submitted: 

 
1) Prior to Final PUD recordation, any remaining engineering construction and design 
issues must be addressed, to the satisfaction of the City, including those related to 
traffic impacts, roadway maintenance, and drainage; 
 
2) Prior to the Planning Commission approval of the Final PUD, the Preliminary PUD shall 
be approved by City Council; 
 
3) Prior to Final Plat recordation the applicant must pay $131,019.53 cash-in-lieu of 
park land dedication.  
 
Commissioner Hice-Idler seconded motion. The motion carried 4-0 (Commissioners 
Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
VIII.  A public hearing to consider a request for a Use by Special Review for 30 horizontal 

oil and gas wells, with associated equipment on two centralized pad sites, and one 

production facility on a 35.25 acre parcel zoned R-L (Residential Low Density), with 

23.6 acres proposed for drilling and extraction operations 

 
Project Name:  Volt 19-S Use by Special Review 
Case No.:   USR2018-0012 
Applicant:   Corey Sheahen on behalf of SRC Energy Inc. 
Location:   North of Highway 34 Business, east of 83rd Avenue and West of 

Boomerang Golf Course 
Presenter:   Rachel Prelog, Planner II 
 
Ms. Prelog addressed the Commission and noted the following corrections to the 
permanent acreage referenced in the request and recommended motion. The applicant has 
clarified that the actual permanent acreage once wells are in production is 7.27-acres. The 
24 acres previously stated in the staff report is the area of land that will be occupied during 
operations. She provided a memo with the corrected information. Ms. Prelog presented a 
map showing the location of the property and provided a brief history of the site. She stated 
the applicant is requesting approval of a Use by Special Review to allow for oil tanks, two 
water tanks, six vapor recovery units and associated equipment on 7.27-acres of the 35.25-
acre site. 
 
Ms. Prelog concluded with a brief summary of the Comprehensive Plan encouraging the 
colocation of oil and gas facilities. She stated that the site is physically suitable for an oil 
and gas operation and that the proposed development meets or exceeds the setback 
requirements required by the City and the COGCC. Ms. Prelog informed the Commission 
of a neighborhood meeting that took place on October 27, 2018, held at Northridge High 
School, where there were three neighbors in attendance. Staff recommended approval with 
several conditions outlined in the recommended motion. 
  

91



Greeleado 

Planning Commission 
Memo 

TO: 	 Planning Commission 

ITEM: 	 Gateway Park II Preliminary PUD 

CASE NUMBER: PUD2018-0006 

LOCATION: 	North of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and West of 35th Avenue 

Court 

APPLICANT: 	Gate Way Place Phase II LTD 

PLANNER: 	Marian Duran, Planner II 

Replacement of the following maps to represent the proper location and property boundaries 
proposed for development: 

1) Attachment A — Aerial/Vicinity Map 

2) Attachment B — Existing Zoning Map 
3) Attachment F — Ecological Significance Map 

Community Development-Planning Division • 1100 10th Street, Ste. 202, Greeley, CO 80631 • (970) 350-9780 FaX (970) 350-9800 

A City Achieving Community Excellence 92



A
tta

ch
m

en
t F

 

E
C

O
L

O
G

IC
A

L
L

Y
 S

E
N

S
IT

IV
E

 A
R

E
A

S
 

 
 

A
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
no

t 
be

en
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 

by
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

r 
M

in
in

g 

A
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

M
in

in
g 

th
at

 r
et

ai
n 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

at
ur

al
 v

al
ue

s 

A
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

M
in

in
g 

 

 

A
re

as
 th

at
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

at
ur

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e 

19
98

 m
ap

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
ve

re
ly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 M

in
in

g 

 

P
ro

po
se

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

re
as

 o
f 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 n

ot
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
19

98
 m

ap
pi

ng
 

 

 
 

 

 

A
re

as
 th

at
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

at
ur

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e1

99
8 

m
ap

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
od

er
al

ly
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t &

 M
iri

ng
 

 
 

o
 0

2
5
0
5
 	

1.
5 	

2 
	

M
as

s 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

0.0
01

.0
01

0 
IN

 J
o

h
n

 1
1•

••
•W

ill
ri

ll 

G
R

E
E

L
E

Y
 

93



24th'Street. Rd 

tor 	- 
Gateway Park, 2nd Filing 

Stin 

Notes: 
All planimetric data was digitized nom 
aerial photogiaphs dated 198. 1 9y. 
1995. 2000. 2005, and 2014. 
ate contintial and data representation, 
will change over time. This product is 
not necessuily 3C(11l2tt to etaneetinF 
or surveying standards but does tr,,, 
Nauonal 	Mapping 
StwIdavids 	NLAS). 	71he 
inforrratient contained %Salm this 
document is not intended to be Itsed 
lot the papetstion of eocattactinc 
docomencs. 

Intbansuon contained 	011 	till • 

dornmeiu tenuins the ptopear of the 
Car of Gceeley Copying any pony, 
of this snap without the ssurreo 
pecoussion of the City of Gteelcy r 
suit* pcolubited 

Gateway Place II PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 

10 Subject Site 

f] Property Lines 

0 125 250 	500 

Feet 

Greeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By: duranm, CD 
Gateway Park U PUD.notd 

Aerial & Vicinity Map 	 Gateway Park ll PUD 

94



Gateway Park II PUD Existing Zoning Map 

2481-St 

PUD 

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing 

Kaiser 

_24,th Sirept.Elq 

C-H 
John Elway 

R-M 

ce 

34 

Notes: 
All planunenic data was cliginged nom 
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992, 
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates 
are continual and data reptesentations 
will change over time. This product is 
not necessarily accurate to engineering 
or surveying standards bnt does meet 
National 	:Mapping 	Accuracy 
Srandardds 	(Nin,LkS). 	The 
information 	contained 	within 	this 
document is not intended to be used 
for the pre-perm:ion of consnuction 
documents. 

Information 	contained 	on 	tins 
document remains the property of the 

Gateway Place ll PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 
City of Greeley. Copying 21.13-  porhon 
of 	this 	map 	without 	the 	written: 
permission of the City of Greeley is 
strictly prohibited. 

n Subject Site 
ED Property Lines 

H-A 
I-H 

R-E 
R-H 

C-D I-L R-L 
C-H I-M R-M 
C-L PUD 

0 125 250 	560 
OMNI 

Feet 

Cir tn„ of 

Greeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By: duranm, CD 
Gateway Park II PUD.rrixd 

John Elway 

28th S 

95



City of 	..-"%%6•4 

Greele Colorado 

Planning Commission 
Memo 

TO: 	 Planning Commission 

ITEM: 	 Gateway Park II Final PUD 

CASE NUMBER: PUD2018-0008 

LOCATION: 	North of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and West of 35th Avenue 

Court 

APPLICANT: 	Gate Way Place Phase II LTD 

PLANNER: 	Marian Duran, Planner II 

Replacement of the following maps to represent the proper boundaries proposed for 

development: 

1) Attachment A — Aerial/Vicinity Map 

2) Attachment B — Existing Zoning Map 

Community Development-Planning Division • 1100 10th Street, Ste. 202, Greeley, CO 80631 • (970) 350-9780 Fax (970) 350-9800 

A City Achieving Community Excellence 96



Aerial & Vicinity Map 	 Gateway Park II PUD 

Notes: 
All plammetric data was digitized from 
aerial photographs dated 198', 1992. 
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014 UpciArc: 
am continual and data cermet:in:, ..• 
will chanae over time. This prodlui 
not necessarily accurate to engineeung 
or surveying stainluds but does inert 
National 	Mapping 	Accutat - 
Standsudds 	iNNLAS). 
information contained uithin this 
document is not intended to be tool 
fox the pepention of construcnou 
dm-anions. 

Infoottauon onnauttd on di, 
document tentains the popeate of tl:c 
Cite of Greeks. Copying any pont., 
of this map althorn the WEInr 

permission of the City of Greek:: I,  
suictIF psobibited 

Gateway Place ll PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 

CO Subject Site 

ifj Property Lines 

0 125 250 	 500 

Feel 

(it si 

Greeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By duraom, CD 
Gateway Park 11 PUDAnsd 

97



/  	I 	I 

WI 
R-L 

• Itit Siti
o 

 PUD 

Kaiser 

,2491 Sireet.IN 

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing 

.c 

glA 

EIS 

-H 

C-H 

John Elway it 251h s 

Existing Zoning Map 

24th—St 

Gateway Park ll PUD 

R-M 

ce 

34 

Notes: 
All planimeuic data was digitized from 
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992, 
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates 
are continual and data represeunnions 
will change over time. This product is 
not necessarily accurate to erigin,ering 
or surveying standards but does meet 
National 	Mapping 	Accuracy 
5tandardds (XMAS). The 
information contained within this 
document is not intended to be used 
for the preperation of construction 
documents 

Infosmation contained ms this 
document Lumina the property of the 
City of Greeley Copying any portion 
of this map withoin the sviirim: 
permission of the City of Greeley is 
strictly prohibited. 

Gateway Place ll PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 

ILI Subject Site 	H-A 	R-E 

n Property Lines 	I-H 	R-H 

C-D 	 I-L 	R-L 

C-H 	 I-M 	R-M 

C-L 	 PUD 

0 125 250 	Soo 
IIONOMEN 

Feet 

" Greeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By: duranm, CD 
Gateway Park II PUID.mxd 

98



Existing Zoning Map 

24th-St 

Gateway Park ll PUD 

C-L 

Kaiser 

_24.11) S.lreet.8g 

R-L Do 

PUD 

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing 

C-H 

John Elway 
28th S 

R-M 

   

Notes: 
.5.11planim8tric data 8ws digitized from 
aerial photographs dated 198, 1992, 
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates 
are continual and data representations 
will change over time. This prodnct is 
not necessarily accurate to engineering 
or surveying standards but does meet 
National 	Mapping 	Accuracy 
Standatckls 	(N1rLAS). 	The 
information contained within this 
doctunent is not intended to be used 
for the prepelabon of construction 
docnments. 

hiforntation contained on tins 
document remains the property of the 
City of Greeley. Copying any portion 
of this map without the Wlintll 

permission of the City of Greeley o 
strictly prohibited. 

Gateway Place ll PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 

En Subject Site 	H-A 	R-E 
fj Property Lines 	I-H 	R-H 

C-D 	 I-L 	R-L 

C-H 	 I-M 	R-M 

C-L 	 PUD 

0 125 250 	500 

Feet 

(areeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By: duranm, CD 
Gateway Park U PUDinxd 

99



 

 
Page 1 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
 
ITEMS: 1) Rezone PUD (Planned Unit Development - Oil & Gas) and a 

PUD (Planned Unit Development - Neighborhood Center) to PUD 
(Planned Unit Development – Residential of varying densities and 
associated accessory structures) Zone District 
 
2) Approval of a Preliminary PUD Plan 

 
CASE NO: PUD2018-0006 
 
PROJECT: Gateway Park II Preliminary PUD 
 
 
LOCATION: North of Centerplace Drive and West of 35th Avenue Court - 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 
   
APPLICANT: Gate Way Place Phase II LTD 
 
CASE PLANNER: Marian Duran | Planner II 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:   January 22, 2019 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments 
made by the applicant and the public, and shall then make a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding applications in the form of a finding based on the review criteria found in Sections 
18.30.050(c)(3)(a-h) and 18.32.040(b)(1-3) of the Development Code. The Planning Commission 
shall then make a motion as to the recommendation. 
 
  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Greeley is considering a request by Gate Way Place Phase II LTD., to rezone 
approximately 7.11-acres in size from PUD (Planned Unit Development - Oil & Gas) and PUD 
(Planned Unit Development - Neighborhood Center) to PUD (Planned Unit Development –
Residential) Zoning District with accessory uses as defined in the Development Code and as the 
Code is amended, along with a Preliminary PUD Plan for the proposed Gateway Park II PUD 
(see Attachment A – Aerial/Vicinity Map, Attachment B – Existing Zoning Map, Attachment J – 
Rezoning Documents, Attachment C – Applicant Narrative).  
 
A. REQUEST 
Approval of rezoning application from PUD (Planned Unit Development Oil & Gas) and PUD 
(Planned Unit Development - Neighborhood Center) to PUD (Planned Unit Development for 
Residential uses of varying densities) (see Attachment B – Existing Zoning Map). Including single-

100



 

 
Page 2 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

family, multi-family, townhomes, duplexes, and associated accessory structures) Zoning District 
on approximately 7.11-acres, with an associated Preliminary PUD Plan (see Attachment J – 
Rezoning Document).  
 
B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Approval, with conditions  
 

C. SITE DATA:  

 Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

 Proposed Land Uses: Residential (single-family, multi-family, townhomes, 
duplexes, development) 

 Abutting Zoning:             North: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  South: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  East: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 West: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 

Site Conditions: The site is largely vacant on the surface, but contains a 
plugged and abandoned oil and gas well site [SRC Gilbert –
Wattenberg].  

 
Parcel Size:                              7.11-acres    

 
Abutting Land Uses:             North: Multi-Family 

South:  ROW/ Multi-Family 
East: Vacant     
West:  Multi-Family 

 
D. BACKGROUND 

The site was annexed into the City of Greeley under the Southwest Greeley Annexation No. 1 
in 1978 [Recordation No. 0001761540; Case No. Z 2:78]. The original concept PUD, which 
covered 285 plus-acres of property was approved in 1981. This concept PUD allowed 
commercial, office, and a tech center [Case No. Z 9:81]. In 1982, a Final PUD Plan was 
approved for only oil and gas development on the subject property [Case No. PUD 8:82].  The 
concept PUD was required and amended in addition to the final PUD to allow not only oil and 
gas (reducing the drilling sites), but office, commercial, high-tech industrial, and residential 
uses as well as originally planned in 1981. This concept and final plan was approved in 1984 
[Ordinance No. 72, 1984; Z 22:84] . The subject site became known as the Gilbert No. 1 oil 
and gas, which contained only one well. The Final PUD for the Gateway Park Filing No. 1, 
which included the Gilbert oil and gas was approved in August 1984. 
 
The subject site proposal encompasses a portion of one lot from Gateway Park PUD and the 
Gilbert Oil & Gas PUD, also subdivided with this proposal. The Gilbert Oil & Gas PUD site 
is comprised of 6.491-acres in size and contains a plugged and abandoned oil and gas well site 

101



 

 
Page 3 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

[Gilbert-Wattenberg], it is located just north of the intersection of 36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive. The northeast portion of the adjacent property proposes to include 
additional parking for the development. Both areas proposed with this development comprise 
of approximately 7.11-acres in size (see Attachment D – Preliminary PUD Plan). 

 
E. LAND USE PLAN 

The Gateway Park II PUD is planned to be constructed in one phase, covering over 7-acres of 
land designed out of two parcels. It is proposed to consist of varying residential uses (see 
Attachment E – Preliminary PUD Document).  

 
Preliminary PUD Plan 
The proposed Gateway Park II Planned Unit Development (PUD) articulates throughout the 
applicant’s narrative and the preliminary PUD plan document, that the proposal would uphold 
higher design standards, including more amenity features than the typical development offers. 
In fact, due to the interesting atypical lot design or circular lot that was drafted for the oil and 
gas setbacks, it now provides an interesting challenge to developers, as it is difficult to place 
rectangular buildings within a circle. The proposal, however, would be difficult to accomplish 
with a straight zoning district. A PUD allows for greater flexibility such that applicant has 
proposed a 10-foot setback on the south end adjacent to Centerplace Drive, and up to 60-foot 
tall building structures (see Attachment C – Applicant Narrative, Attachment D – Preliminary 
PUD Plan, Attachment E – Preliminary PUD Document, and Attachment K – Setback Exhibit).  
 
Oil and Gas 
There are no active oil and gas facilities on site, but there is however, a plugged and abandoned 
oil and gas well (SRC Gilbert-Wattenberg). As a result, it has now opened surface development 
opportunities for the site. Per the City of Greeley, Development Code standards and the 
Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC), there are no setback requirements 
for plugged and abandoned oil and gas well sites. In most cases, the vacant site would need to 
be rezoned to allow other uses to be developed, such as what this subject site applicant is 
requesting to do.  The Gateway Park II PUD applicant propose to rezone the property from 
PUD oil and gas to PUD residential.  
 
The standard cap depth for plugged and abandoned gas wells in Colorado are typically 8-feet 
deep. The Gateway Park II PUD applicant anticipates grading the site by removing 3 feet from 
the above surface of the plugged gas well cap, leaving roughly 5 feet of cover over the existing 
cap. The bottom of the proposed 4-foot deep swimming pool located in the epicenter of the 
development, is proposed to sit 5 feet above the plugged and abandoned well cap. The 
surrounding pool deck and amenity area including the clubhouse, and surrounding residential 
buildings are proposed to be built up in grade to ensure the 5-foot cover remains intact.  
 
Urban Growth and Adequate Public Facility Area (APFA) 
The site is located largely within a suburban developed and can be adequately served by water, 
sewer, streets, fire, parks and trails if approved, yet a parkland dedication fee is required of the 
applicant. The site is vacant on the surface, but water and sewer mains would be required to be 
extended to the proposed site from adjacent services.  

102



 

 
Page 4 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 
The park is within walking distance. Both fire, and police response systems are less then a mile 
away (see Section H.3 for additional details). A review of the Traffic Impact Study indicated 
that access onto Centerplace Drive is required, and that full movement access is requested onto 
the fourth leg of Centerplace Drive and 36th Avenue and a second access proposed through the 
existing apartment complex on the northwest side of the development. These additional access 
points would allow public safety services, such as fire and police, to access the site and the 
northern Gateway Park PUD more quickly from Centerplace Drive through the Gateway Park 
II PUD development. All subsequent site improvements shall comply with the City’s 
Development Code, as amended.  

 
F. APPROVAL CRITERIA 

 
1. Development Code Section 18.30.050 - Rezoning Procedures 

The review criteria found in Section 18.30.050(c)(3) of the Development Code shall be 
used to evaluate the zoning amendment (rezoning) application, as follows: 

 
a. Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that it is in the public interest 

to rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the 
area?           
 
Staff Comment:  This subject property includes a plugged and abandoned well site, 

which allows for redevelopment opportunities and over 6-acres of 
surface land are now made available (6.49-acres). As an alternative 
to Greenfield development, this infill development focuses on 
establishing a character at a scale that is consistent with that of the 
established neighborhood and would make the existing northern 
parking lot legal, as it is being incorporated with the Gateway Park 
II PUD. Infill development on large lots such as this one, has been 
largely recognized as being more financially feasible for 
development than Greenfields, because it is closer to existing and 
adequate public facilities. Developing vacant land reduces the 
negative influences associated with blight, potential criminal 
activity, and reduced real estate values. In staff’s opinion, it is in the 
public best interest to allow infill development to occur on a site that 
is now available for development, it is a key ingredient to 
accommodating growth and redesigning our communities to be 
environmentally and socially sustainable. 

 
 The proposal complies with this criterion. 

 
b. Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 

development resulting and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given 
development trends?  
 

103



 

 
Page 5 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

Staff Comment: As stated above, the property had been zoned for PUD (oil and gas 
uses only) for approximately 37 years. Since the oil and gas 
wellhead was plugged and abandoned, it rendered the existing 
zoning designation obsolete. Although, the property is now 
available for redevelopment opportunities, the existing PUD zoning 
prohibits any other land uses on the property. Hence, the request to 
rezone the property from PUD oil and gas to PUD residential. The 
Gateway Park II PUD is in line with development trends in the 
surrounding area, which is also market-driven, and considers the 
larger potential needs of the surrounding community by supplying 
high-density residential in the City of Greeley. 

 
 The proposal complies with this criterion.  

c.  Are there clerical or technical errors to correct?  
 

Staff Comment: There are no clerical or technical errors to correct.  
 
 This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

d.  Are there detrimental environmental conditions, such as flood plains, presence of 
irrigation ditches, inadequate drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect 
future development of this site and which may not have been considered during the 
original zoning of the property?  
 
Staff Comment: The presence of detrimental conditions on site are currently 

unknown. An existing plugged and abandoned well at the site poses 
no current concerns, as there has not been substantial evidence or 
reports within the City of Greeley that indicate that plugged and 
abandoned sites pose a hazard. When an oil and gas well has reached 
its end of life, it is then plugged and abandoned, capped typically at 
8-feet in depth. In some cases, these singular, older wells are 
plugged and abandoned due to new technological advances in oil 
production, redirecting them through horizontal drilling to help the 
well produce oil within larger facilities elsewhere. 

 
Currently there are no City of Greeley and/or Colorado Oil and Gas 
Conservation Commission (COGCC) setback requirements from 
plugged and abandoned wellheads, but it may be considered in the 
future due to potentially unknown risks. Nonetheless, across the 
City of Greeley, many plugged and abandoned well sites have been 
redeveloped, having structures built over them. There have been no 
known detrimental environmental concerns reported, as stated 
above, that would set precedence or would prohibit future 
development on plugged and abandoned sites, including this subject 
property.  

104



 

 
Page 6 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 
With the proposed Gateway Park II PUD, drainage patterns would 
be mitigated with the proposed detention pond.  Slopes are relatively 
flat and soils appear to be stable. 

 
 The proposal complies with this criterion 

  
e.  Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community-related 

use which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City's Comprehensive 
Plan; or have the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is 
warranted?  
 
Staff Comment: The proposal is not for community-related uses.  
 
 This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

f.  What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate 
neighborhood and the City as a whole (including potential noise and environmental 
impacts, visual impacts, the provision of City services such as police, fire, water, 
sewer, street and pedestrian systems and parks and recreation facilities)?  
 
Staff Comment: There should not be any significant environmental, noise or visual 

impacts resulting from the proposed rezoning of the property, 
although at the time of construction, the typical noise and visual 
impacts would be present until the proposed project is complete. 
Service impacts to the police, fire, water, sewer, pedestrian systems, 
parks and recreation facilities would not substantially increase with 
the proposed rezone request. Any potential noise created by this 
development will be regulated by the Municipal Code. 
 
Adequate safeguards are in place within the Development Code and 
PUD documents that should mitigate any negative impacts of future 
residential development. 
 
The request complies with this criterion 

 
g.  Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be consistent 

with the policies and goals of the City's Comprehensive Plan and comply with 
applicable zoning overlay requirements?  
 
Staff Comment: There are no applicable zoning overlay requirements or any 

proposed. The proposed request is consistent with many goals and 
policies in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. Key policies 
are listed in Section F(3) below. 

 

105



 

 
Page 7 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 The request complies with this criterion. 
 

h.  What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved zoning 
suitability plan for the property? 

  Staff Comment: The City did not require zoning suitability plans in 1984, as it was 
developed prior to when Development Code required it in 1998.  

    This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

2. Development Code Section 18.32.040(b) - Standards for PUD Establishment 
In reaching recommendations and decisions as to rezoning land to the PUD district, the 
Planning Commission and the City Council shall apply the following standards in 
addition to the standards and procedures of Section 18.30.050 (as outlined above): 
  
(1) Area requirements. The area of a proposed PUD shall be of substantial size to 

permit its design and development as a cohesive unit fulfilling the stated purpose 
of these regulations and to establish the PUD as a meaningful part of the larger 
community. Each proposed PUD shall therefore be evaluated as to its adequacy in 
size with respect to both the nature and character of its internal design and to its 
specific location within the City. The minimum size of a PUD to be considered for 
establishment shall be two (2) acres, except as provided for in Subsection (c) 
below. 

 
Staff Comment: At approximately 7.11-acres, this proposal satisfies the 

minimum area requirements, and as presented is a cohesive 
proposal that would provide diversity within the community. 
The proposal is consistent with all applicable goals and 
policies outlined in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive 
Plan goals and policies as listed below under section 2.  

 The request complies with this criterion. 
 

(2) Consistency with the Land Use Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan. A PUD 
proposal shall be found to be consistent with all applicable elements of the Land 
Use Chapter of the City's adopted Comprehensive Plan with respect to its proposed 
internal design and use and its relationship to adjacent areas and the City as a 
whole before it may be zoned as a PUD. 
 
Staff Comment: According to the applicant, and staff’s analysis of the 

Gateway Park II PUD proposal, the rezone request is 
consistent with the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan 
(Adopted 2/6/2018) which states within the overall vision for 
community, “Greeley values and respects the diversity of its 
people, cultures, neighborhoods, and resources in a manner 
that creates and sustains a safe, unique, united, vibrant, and 

106



 

 
Page 8 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

rewarding place in which to live, work, learn, grow, and 
play. The community promotes a healthy and diverse 
economy, and a high quality of life that is responsive to all 
its residents, businesses and neighborhoods.” Key 
objectives that the proposal supports the Imagine Greeley 
Comprehensive Plan are listed below. 

  
The request complies with this criterion. 

 
Objective GC-1.1  Growth Management Manage growth to maintain or 

improve quality of life for Greeley’s residents, minimize 
impacts on the natural environment, and protect or enhance 
natural features and other resources.   

 
Objective GC-1.2  Form of Growth Encourage a compact urban form over 

sprawl or leap-frog development.  
 
Objective GC-2.2  Jobs/Housing Balance Support zoning and development 

patterns that expand opportunities for people who live in 
Greeley to also work in Greeley (or vice versa).  

 
Objective GC-2.3  Pedestrian and Bicycle-Oriented Development Encourage a 

development pattern that encourages walking and bicycling 
whenever possible—by locating employment, shopping, 
recreation, entertainment, transit, and other services within a 
quarter mile of residential areas.  

 
Objective GC-4.1  Priority Infill/Redevelopment Areas Following the guidance 

of adopted neighborhood plans and studies, use incentives 
and infrastructure investments to support infill development 
and redevelopment in priority locations (as identified on the 
Land Use Guidance Map): - Multi-modal corridors - 
Existing activity centers   

  
Objective GC-4.3  Infill Compatibility Promote the use of site design and 

building architecture that is sympathetic to the surrounding 
area and enhances the desirable character and form of the 
neighborhood or area.  

  
Objective GC-6.9  Suburban Subdivisions Promote the careful integration of 

“complete neighborhood” characteristics (see Objective GC-
6.1) into suburban neighborhoods (as identified on the Land 
Use Guidance Map), typically those established between 
1950 and 2000.  

  

107



 

 
Page 9 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

Objective HO-1.6  Universal Design and Visitability Encourage the 
development of new housing units that incorporate design 
elements to accommodate the specific needs of the elderly 
and others who might have limited mobility.  

    
Objective HO-2.2  Rental Housing Foster the development of attractive, safe, 

and well-maintained rental properties for those who do not 
qualify for or desire to own property. 

 
(3) Upon the specific request of the landowner or upon the recommendation of the 

Planning Commission or City Council, the two-acre requirement in Subsection (1) 
above may be waived if, after considering the proposed development requested, 
the City Council finds that such waiver would be beneficial to the City and foster 
the objectives of this Code and the Land Use Chapter of the City's Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 
Staff Comment:  This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

3. Development Code Section 18.32.040(c) – Standards for PUD Establishment  
The City Council may authorize, by its approval of a Preliminary Planned Unit 
Development Plan, a mix of land uses, as well as variations in density, setback, height, 
lot size, lot coverage, open space, street width, parking and landscaping. Any such 
variations granted by the City Council shall be based upon the findings by the Council 
that the PUD plan: 

 
(1) Provides an innovative design which would be equal to or better than 

development which would occur under base standard zoning district 
requirements;  
 

(2) Accomplishes specific goals and objectives of the Land Use Chapter of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan;  

(3) Includes land uses which are required to be in a PUD; 

(4) Meets the overall intent of this Code; or 

(5) Provides equivalent site design trade-offs for the exceptions granted (i.e., 
more open space for higher density, etc.). 

 
Staff Comment: The applicants request to rezone a now vacant parcel, from the 

Gateway Park PUD zoning category “gas well” to residential with 
varying uses in the new Gateway Park II PUD.  The proposed PUD 
would support the core values and guiding principles of the Imagine 
Greeley Comprehensive Plan as well (see Attachment G  - 2035 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan). 

 

108



 

 
Page 10 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 Due the fact that PUDs can be designed and suited for the proposed 
development is comprehensive in design and exceeds the base 
standards of the current R-H (Residential High Density) zoning 
district. Therefore, the PUD has listed equivalent site design trade-
offs of higher density and reduced front setbacks for more amenities 
and open space. These are called out in the PUD document and 
narrative as “deviations” from Development Code Standards. These 
site design trade-offs were also mentioned earlier in Section E, 
where additional amenities and open space for the higher density 
and reduced setbacks have been provided for the proposal (see 
Attachment K – Setback Exhibit).   

 
 Staff has reviewed the proposed deviations and concludes that the 

variations would provide a comprehensive design than the minimum 
standards set by the Development Code. Additionally, the proposed 
variations meet the overall intent of the Code.  

 
 Staff finds that the proposal complies with Section 18.32.040(c) (1-

5). 
 

G. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 
 
1. Hazards 

Staff is unaware of any current hazards on the property. There is an existing plugged and 
abandoned oil and gas facility on site.  
 

2. Wildlife 
Since the property was previously developed with an oil and gas facility, along with all 
associated production equipment, and it is surrounded by residential and commercial 
development, wildlife impacts should be minimal. The presence of prairie dogs was not 
found or present on the site. The area is not located within Areas of Ecological Significance 
Map (see Attachment F – Ecological Significance Map).  
 

3. Floodplain 
The property is not located within the 100-year floodplain, according to the adopted 
Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) flood data.  

 
4. Drainage and Erosion 

The property is subject to City of Greeley development standards, of which the applicant 
must comply with. Preliminary drainage plans have been reviewed by Engineering 
Development Review staff, questions and concerns have been adequately addressed at this 
point in the process. This project requires a Final PUD prior to lot development. Erosion 
controls devices must be designed by the developer and reviewed by the City to ensure that 
best management practices are utilized as the project progresses.  
 

109



 

 
Page 11 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

Because most of this property was previously used for oil and gas production, drainage was 
not addressed at the time, nor was it a major concern.  Furthermore, the northern part of 
the site is developed, as a parking lot, releases storm water into a swale at the northeast 
corner of the site.  The City of Greeley has been determined that the proposed development 
would need to provide water quality and detention to treat the developed flows before 
releasing at or below historic rates. Historically the site is split up into two basins:  
 
1. Basin H1 is located on the west half of the subject property and is composed of 

native grass and turf being tributary to the existing apartment complex northwest 
of the subject property. The flows are conveyed overland by way of sheet flow 
onto 46th Avenue and being transported by gutter and storm sewer to the 
northwest, which eventually discharges into the Greeley West Detention Basin.  

 
2.  Basin H2 is located on the east half of the site composed of native grass and an 

existing parking lot being tributary to the existing apartment complex to the 
northeast. The flows are conveyed overland by way of sheet flow and gutter into 
a drainage swale carrying flows to the northeast, which eventually discharges 
into the Greeley West Detention Basin.  

 
The proposed development is designed to have one water quality and detention pond to 
treat the proposed development. It is proposed to be located at the northeast corner of the 
subject property and would release at or below the rate of Basin H2, nearly eliminating the 
runoff from Basin H1. 
 

5. Transportation 
The traffic impact study reported that the estimated traffic impacts associated with the 
proposed development of the Gateway Park II PUD, were estimated using trip generation 
rates contained in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation manual.  

The City’s standards do not have minimum volume thresholds to identify the need for left 
and right turn lanes.  The need was identified by the City Engineer and the traffic study.  
For the proposed Gateway Park II PUD development, a left turn lane would be required for 
the eastbound left turn movement at 36th Avenue.  The corridor was constructed to provide 
room for left turn lanes and therefore, a left turn lane is recommended.  The need for a 
westbound right turn lane was determined based on the operational benefits that would be 
gained by adding the lane.  Analysis of the Year 2040 total traffic volume scenarios shows 
that the level of service would be unchanged by adding the lane and the side street delay 
would only be improved by a second or two per vehicle with the addition of the lane. 

Current pedestrian and bicycle destinations within 1,320-foot radius of the development 
are Greeley West High School and Greeley West Park.  There are several sidewalk 
connections between the site access on Centerplace Drive and the two destinations.  The 
current Greeley Bicycle Master Plan lists bike paths on 35th Avenue and on 24th Street 
from 35th Avenue to 42nd Avenue, a bike paths to be proposed on Centerplace Drive 
between 35th Avenue and 38th Avenue, and a bike lane proposed on 38th Avenue (see 
Attachment H – Greeley Bicycle Plan). 

110



 

 
Page 12 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

The operational analysis based on the proposed development, concluded that Centerplace 
Drive and 36th Avenue intersection would be expected to operate acceptably based on City 
standards in the Year 2040 total traffic volume scenarios. A traffic signal is not expected 
to be warranted at the intersection based on the Year 2021 total traffic volume scenarios. 
Finally, an eastbound left turn lane should be constructed at the intersection.  However, the 
addition of a westbound right turn lane is not expected to significantly improve the 
operation of the intersection. 

6. SERVICES 

1. Water 
The City of Greeley would provide water services to the site. The applicant would be 
responsible for the cost of extending services to this location.   

 
2. Sanitation 

The City of Greeley would provide sewer services to the site. The applicant would be 
responsible for the cost of extending services to this location.   

 
3. Emergency Services 

The property is served by the City of Greeley’s Police and Fire Departments.  Access to 
the proposed development would be accomplished from Centerplace Drive.  

 
4. Parks and Open Spaces 

Dedication of parks for this proposal would be required, but due to the configuration of 
the site cash-in-lieu is due prior to Final Plat recordation. It is anticipated that no plans 
for future parks are anticipated west of 38th Avenue and/or west of the subject parcel 
(see Attachment I –  PTOL Master Plan). 
 
The Gateway Park II PUD proposes a 7,843 open space area, and a 6,600 square foot 
dog park, which qualifies as the usable open space for the proposed development. 
  

 
5. Schools 

The nearest schools within 1.5 miles of the proposed development include Meeker 
Elementary School, Brentwood Middle School, and Greeley West High School is 
walking distance from the site. 

 
H. VISUAL IMPACTS 

Visual impacts would be mitigated by the use of perimeter landscape treatments on the 
south and around the circular parcel, and buffer yards on the east.  
 

I. PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 
Letters regarding the public hearing for the proposed Preliminary PUD were mailed to all 
property owners within 500 feet of the site, a notice regarding the project was sent to the 
Greeley Tribune on December 13, 2018.   

111



 

 
Page 13 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 
Two signs were posted on-site on December 3, 2018. One along Centerplace Drive and the 
other  on the northern proposed access point to the proposed development. No comments 
have been received to date [see Attachment M – Notice Boundary Map] . 
 

J. MINERIAL ESTATE OWNER NOTIFICATION 
Mineral notice was required with this development. The applicant has submitted their 
notice to all mineral rights owners’ 30-days prior to hearing date. 
 

K. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTIONS (Two) 
 

1. Rezone from PUD (Oil and Gas) to PUD (Residential)  
 
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission 
find that the proposed rezoning from PUD (Oil and Gas) zone district to PUD 
(Residential) zone district meets criteria outlined in Development Code Sections 
18.30.050(c)(3) and 18.32.040(b) and therefore, recommends approval of the rezone to 
the City Council.    

 
2. Gateway Park II PUD - Preliminary PUD Plan  

 
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission 
finds that the proposed Gateway Park II PUD Plan is consistent with Section 18.32.040, 
18.32.050 and 18.32.060 of the Development Code and, therefore, recommends 
approval of the PUD plan as submitted to the City Council, with the following condition: 
 
 

1. Prior to Final PUD recordation, any remaining engineering construction and design 
issues must be addressed, to the satisfaction of the City, including those related to 
traffic impacts, roadway maintenance, and drainage. 

 
 

L. ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A  –  Aerial/Vicinity Map 
Attachment B  –  Existing Zoning Map 
Attachment C  –  Applicant Narrative  
Attachment D  –  Preliminary PUD Plan 
Attachment E  –  Preliminary PUD Document 
Attachment F  –  Ecological Significance Map 
Attachment G  –  2035 Comprehensive Transportation Plan 
Attachment H  –  Greeley Bicycle Plan 
Attachment I  –   PTOL Master Plan 
Attachment J  –  Rezoning Documents 
Attachment K – Setback Exhibit 
Attachment M –  Notice Boundary Map 

112



23rd Street Rd

M
ead

ow
brook

Ln

29th St

3
3
rd

 A
v
e

27th Street Ln

25th St

28th Street Rd

28th St

27th St

24th St

26th St

3
5
th

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

4
2
n

d
 A

v
e

4
0
th

 A
v
e

4
0
th

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

3
9
th

 A
v
e

3
8
th

 A
v
e

Centerplace Dr

4
1
s
t 
A

v
e

M
o
u
n
ta

ir L
n

3
4
th

 A
v
e

3
6
th

 A
v
e

Parke Ln

3
5

th
 A

v
e

£¤34

O
Notes:
All planimetric data was digitized from
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992,
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates
are continual and data representations
will change over time.  This product is
not necessarily accurate to engineering
or surveying standards but does meet
National Mapping Accuracy
Standardds (NMAS). The
information contained within this
document is not intended to be used
for the preperation of  construction
documents.

Information contained on this
document remains the property of  the
City of  Greeley. Copying any portion
of  this map without the written
permission of  the City of  Greeley is
strictly prohibited.

Aerial/Vicinity Map

Created: November 26, 2018
By: duranm, CD

PUD2018-0006/0008_Gateway Park II_PUD.mxd

0 500 1,000250

Feet

Kaiser

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing

S I T ES I T E

Infill project proposal offering
144 unit residential amenitized 

multi-family complex.

Legend

Subject Site

Noticing Area 500ft

Property Lines

Gateway Place II PUD

Centerplace

Gateway Place II PUD
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive

Parcel ID: 095914400005

John Elway

Attachment A

113



23rd Street Rd

M
ead

ow
brook

Ln

29th St

3
3
rd

 A
v
e

27th Street Ln

25th St

28th Street Rd

28th St

27th St

24th Street Rd

24th St

26th St

3
5
th

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

4
2
n
d

A
ve

4
0
th

 A
v
e

4
0
th

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

3
9
th

 A
v
e

3
8
th

 A
v
e

Centerplace Dr

4
1
s
t 
A

v
e

M
o
u
n
ta

ir L
n

3
4
th

 A
v
e

3
6
th

 A
v
e

Parke Ln

3
5
th

A
v
e

3
5

th
 A

v
e

£¤34

I-L

R-E
R-H

C-L

R-L

PUD

C-H

R-M

O
Notes:

All planimetric data was digitized from
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992,
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates
are continual and data representations
will change over time.  This product is
not necessarily accurate to engineering
or surveying standards but does meet
National Mapping Accuracy
Standardds (NMAS).  The
information contained within this
document is not intended to be used
for the preperation of  construction
documents.

Information contained on this
document remains the property of  the
City of  Greeley. Copying any portion
of  this map without the written
permission of  the City of  Greeley is
strictly prohibited.

Existing Zoning Map

Created: November 26, 2018
By: duranm, CD

PUD2018-0006 PUD Gateway Park II_Prelim.mxd

0 500 1,000250

Feet

Kaiser

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing

S I T ES I T E

Legend

Subject Site

Noticing Area 500ft

Property Lines

C-D

C-H

C-L

H-A

I-H

I-L

I-M

PUD

R-E

R-H

R-L

R-M

Gateway Place II PUD

John Elway

Centerplace

Gateway Place II PUD
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive

Parcel ID: 095914400005

John Elway

Attachment B

114



 
 
 
 

1 of 4 
 

1101 Bannock Street  |  Denver, CO 80204 
 

www.norris-design.com 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 
Rezoning criteria/justification. 
 
Introduction 
The Gateway Park II residential development is an envisioned opportunistic infill project offering a new 144 unit 
residential amenitized community that will complement the existing West Park Village, Creekstone Apartment, and 
Gateway Place Apartment communities along the Highway 34 corridor of southwest Greeley, CO.  
 
The selected site for this development includes a 6.491 acre abandoned gas well - Parcel ID: 095914400005 located 
just north of the intersection of 36th Avenue and W 25th Street - and a .0.62 acre portion of Parcel ID: 095914404002 
- the adjacent east parcel. Together, the 7.111-acre site sits within both the Gateway Park Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) and the Gilbert PUD where the gas well is identified as Gilbert Site #1. Both PUD’s were approved 
sequentially in 1984. The predominate parcel is zoned gas well because at the time of the 1984 PUD approval there 
was an active well on site.  Since the time of that zoning the well has been plugged and abandoned, per required 
regulations, rendering the zoning designation obsolete, and the parcel now developable. 
 
This application is for a new Planned Unit Development (PUD) seeking the rezoning of Gilbert Site #1 from the 
Gateway Park PUD zoning category “gas well” to “residential” in the new Gateway Park II PUD to allow for the 
development of a high-quality residential housing  project that strives to offer compact community design, is close in 
proximity to a mix of supporting uses, and leverages the forward-thinking transporation goals of the multimodal 
Highway 34 corridor. In doing so, this new PUD supports core values and guiding principles of the Imagine Greeley 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Benefits of the new Gateway Park II PUD  
Part of this entitlement process and application is to update the current platted and unplatted land within the Gateway 
Park PUD. Gilbert Site #1 (Parcel ID: 095914400005) currently has an existing parking bay of 43 cars located within 
the northern-most portion of the parcel that serves the adjacent Gateway Place Apartments. That parking bay, 
however, is currently not recognized in City records and will be incorporated into the replatting of the Gilbert Site #1 
parcel, which will occur simulatenously with this Gateway Park II PUD application. 
 
Also of importance, the existing Gateway Place Apartments would like to expand their parking beyond the additional 
parking bay within the Gilbert Site #1 to provide more convenient parking opportunies for existing residences.  The 
parcel to the east of Gilbert Site #1, Parcel ID: 095914404002 – mentioned above – is platted land within the 
Gateway Village Filing #1 and is under the same ownership as the parcel for Gateway Place Apartments. To achieve 
additonal parking and to address the needs for on-site drainge for the proposed residential development in the 
Gateway Park II PUD, the ~27,000 square-foot portion (.62 acres) of the Gateway Village Filing #1 parcel adjacent to 
the Gilbert Site #1 would be subdivided and combined with the Gilbert Site #1 parcel to create a new plat for the new 
residential development.  
 
The Gateway Park II PUD intends to replat the Gilbert Site #1 parcel, and subdivide the adjacent portion of the 
Gateway Village Filling #1 parcel to create a 7.111 acre plat that through the Final Plat process for the new PUD will 
correct City records for the unrecorded parking lot, create more parking to support  the Gateway Place Apartments, 
and incorporate vacant land to address site drainage needs for the new residential development to be built on site.     
    
  

Attachment C

115



 
 
 
 

2 of 4 
 

1101 Bannock Street  |  Denver, CO 80204 
 

www.norris-design.com 

Potential Impacts 
There are no detrimental environmental conditions, such as floodplains, existing irrigation ditches, inadequate 
drainage, slopes, or unstable soils on site that would affect future development of the site for a residential use. The 
original zoning of the site “gas well” is obselete with the abandonment and plugging (per required standards) of the 
gas well and therefore in the best interest of the community, rezoning the site to a residential use will offer 
additional housing choice and provide a better more valuable use for the community.  
 
Rezoning the proposed 7.111 acres from “gas well” to “residential” will not create significant noise, environmental, 
or visual impacts for the surrounding residential community. On the contrary, the proposed rezoning to residential 
only complements and expands the surrounding residential uses in the area. Any change in noise due to a larger 
residential population will be marginal, and the visual impacts will actually help to further improve the surrounding 
area.  
 
The City of Greeley employs a 200-plus professional staff within the Greeley Police Department who serve over 
100,000 citizens throughout the Greeley community. The residential development associated with the Gateway 
Park II PUD will potentially add as many as 300 additional residents to the City of Greeley – a possible 0.3% 
increase to the service area by population - that will require service from the Greeley Police Department. In an over-
the-phone conversation with the captain of the operations division, they did not express any concern regarding 
impact to service with a population growth of an estimated 300 people and 144 housing units that the residential 
development proposed could potentially add to the Police Departments service area.  
 
The City of Greeley also employs its own fire department comprised of 7 stations that serve the 64 square-mile area 
of the greater Greeley metropolitan area. The residential development proposed with the Gateway Park II PUD is 
located within the service area for Station 5, located at 4701 24th Street in Monfort Park. Station 5 includes both a 
truck company and an engine company that include a 6- to 8-person crew combined. Station 2, located at 2301 
Reservoir Road also serves the area and provides 24-hour, 7-days-a-week paramedic services through the 
ambulance company Banner Paramedic Services. In an over-the-phone conversation with the Division Chief Roger 
Waters, he did not express any concern regarding impact to service with a population growth of an estimated 300 
people and 144 housing units that the residential development could potentially add to both Station 5 and Station 
2’s service area.   
 
Water and Sewer services surround the project site and the City has confirmed that they can provide water and 
sewer for the project, if approved.  
 
Centerplace Drive (W. 25th Street) is a four-lane devided roadway running along the south edge of the project site 
which sits just north of the full-turn “T”-intersection at 36th Avenue (a local roadway) and W. 25th Street. Rezoning 
the property to residential will require access to W. 25th St, when development occurs on site. A review of this 
impact on Traffic is included within the Traffic Impact Study attached to this submittal.  
 
West Greeley Park, Leavy Park, the Greeley Lake West Reservoir, and the Gateway Lakes Natural Area are all 
within a mile walk from the Gateway Park II PUD development. Adverse impacts to these parks and recreation 
facilities are not anticipated to be substantial with an anticipated population increase of 300 people that could occur 
with the addition of the residential development proposed for the Gateway Park II PUD. Any potential impact will 
also be minimized with the addition of on-site outdoor amenities such as a resort-style pool, clubhouse, sheltered 
bbq areas, and a dog park, all of which, will be operated and maintained by on-site management.   
 

116



 
 
 
 

3 of 4 
 

1101 Bannock Street  |  Denver, CO 80204 
 

www.norris-design.com 

The project site is surrounded by multifamily and townhome development (see the Zoning Suitability Plan included 
in this application submittal). The proposed development that would be built with the approval of a rezoning from a 
gas well to residential is directly compatible and will bring positive impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and 
businesses.   
 
Consistency with the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan.  
This proposed rezoning is consistent with the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2/6/2018) which states 
within the overall vision for community, 
 

“Greeley values and respects the diversity of its people, cultures, neighborhoods, and resources in a 
manner that creates and sustains a safe, unique, united, vibrant, and rewarding place in which to live, 
work, learn, grow, and play. The community promotes a healthy and diverse economy, and a high quality 
of life that is responsive to all its residents, businesses and neighborhoods”.  

 
The Gatway Park II PUD which includes rezoning the Gilbert Site #1 from “gas well” to “residential” use supports the 
following core values, goals, objectives and actions expressed within the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. 
 
CORE VALUES 

- Safe, healthy, and inclusive community 
- Sustainable patterns of growth and development 
- Distinctive character and outstanding recreatoinal and cultural amenities 
- Thriving, connected, and inclusive neighborhoods in all the city 

 
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
Growth and City Form (GC) 
Goal GC-1: Manage growth effectively. 

Objective GC-1.1 Growth Management Manage growth to maintain or improve quality of life for Greeley’s 
residents, minimize impacts on the natural environment, and protect or enhance natural features and other 
resources.  
Objective GC-1.2 Form of Growth Encourage a compact urban form over sprawl or leap-frog development. 
 

Goal GC-2: Promote a balanced mix and distribution of land uses. 
Objective GC-2.2 Jobs/Housing Balance Support zoning and development patterns that expand 
opportunities for people who live in Greeley to also work in Greeley (or vice versa). 
Objective GC-2.3 Pedestrian and Bicycle-Oriented Development Encourage a development pattern that 
encourages walking and bicycling whenever possible—by locating employment, shopping, recreation, 
entertainment, transit, and other services within a quartermile of residential areas. 

 
  

117



 
 
 
 

4 of 4 
 

1101 Bannock Street  |  Denver, CO 80204 
 

www.norris-design.com 

Goal GC-4: Prioritize infill and redevelopment.  
Objective GC-4.1 Priority Infill/Redevelopment Areas Following the guidance of adopted neighborhood 
plans and studies, use incentives and infrastructure investments to support infill development and 
redevelopment in priority locations (as identified on the Land Use Guidance Map): 

- Multi-modal corridors  
- Existing activity centers  

 
Objective GC-4.3 Infill Compatibility Promote the use of site design and building architecture that is 
sympathetic to the surrounding area and enhances the desirable character and form of the neighborhood 
or area. 

 
Goal GC-6: Maintain and enhance the character and interconnectivity of Greeley’s neighborhoods. 

Objective GC-6.9 Suburban Subdivisions Promote the careful integration of “complete neighborhood” 
characteristics (see Objective GC-6.1) into suburban neighborhoods (as identified on the Land Use 
Guidance Map), typically those established between 1950 and 2000. 

 
Housing (HO) 
Goal HO-1: Improve access to housing for all income-levels, ages, and physical abilities. 

Objective HO-1.6 Universal Design and Visitability Encourage the development of new housing units that 
incorporate design elements to accommodate the specific needs of the elderly and others who might have 
limited mobility. 

 
Goal HO-2: Encourage a broad diversity of housing options. 

Objective HO-2.2 Rental Housing Foster the development of attractive, safe, and well-maintained rental 
properties for those who do not qualify for or desire to own property. 

 
  

118



COVER SHEET

C1

���������������� �		
��� ������ ������
�� ������ �����	�	 ��� �!
"�!���� ###!�$%�����&!��'
( ) * + ,-

. / 0 + -
12 + + 0 0 3 0 4 + -

( ) * + ,-
. / 0 + -

12 + + 0 0 3 0 4 + -
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

56789:9;<6=
58<;;7> ?;9@>7A78 B5:7;@

C DEEFEG HIJ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

K L M L M N O P .N LQ L M N O P .M M L M L M N O P .
R S T U S VW S R X T V Y W T Z S R

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

COVER SHEET

C1

[ \ ]̂ _̀ _ a b \ c [ d e f _ g ] [̂ b a f h i \
jk l l m n o p q

r _ s _ a _ g c̀ b [t u v w xy z {| z } } } ~

� � � � ��� v � x � v � � w v u x v � v � � � x � � t � �� w w uu � � u � � � x � � x � u x � � x �� } t� t � x x w x t �� � t � � � x � � }� x � � x �� u � � } � } �u � � � v u �y w v � � x � � � � u � � v �� } �� � � �� z � � �� � �   ¡ ¢ � � ¢�t � � � � � � � vz � � � � � w � � � t � � x x �� x � � x �� u � � } � z �u � � � v u �y £ � ¤ � � v � � x� } �� � � �� � � } �¥ ¦ � ¡ � ¡ § �̈ ¡ ¢ ©�u � � � � ª � � x x w x �z z } } z } � ¤ t � � x x �� � x x w x �� u � � } « � z� ¡ ¬ ¡̈ � �  ¡ � � � ��u v � x u � � � w x � � � � x x � � � �z � � � z � � ¤ t � � x x �� t � � � x � z �� x � � x �� u � � } � } �u � � � v u �y x � � u � x v � t � �� � x� � }� � } «� « « � ��̈ � ®̄ � � § � � � �   ¡ ¢ � � ¢�� � � � � t � x t � � � � � � � �z z } z � v � � � u � t �� x � � x �� u � � } � } �u � � � v u �y � � x � � v � � t� } �� � � �� z z « «
¦ ¢ ¡̈ ¡ ¢ ¡ �̄ �° ± ² ³́ µ ² ¶ · ¶ ²̧u � � � � ª � � x x w x �z z } } z } � ¤ t � � x x �� � x x w x �� u � � } « � z¹ ± º ¶ ² ±̧́ µ ² ¶ · ¶ ²̧u � � � � ª � � x x w x �z z } } z } � ¤ t � � x x �� � x x w x �� u � � } « � z¹ ² »́ ¼ ° ± ² ³́ µ ² ¶ · ¶ ²̧u � � � � ª � � x x w x �z z } } z } � ¤ t � � x x �� � x x w x �� u � � } « � z½ » ¼ ½ ± ¹ ²u � � � v u �y � � w w � w v � �� � }� � � }� � � � z± ² ¼ » ¹u � � � v u �y u ¤ � � t � � � x �¾ � x � � � � �� � }� � } �� � } � }½ ³ º ² µ̧́ · ¶ º ¿u � � � v u �y u v � t � � � � � x � v� � � � � � �� � � � �À ½ ³ ·u � � � v u �y � v � � � v x � x �� � }� � � �� z � � }

z � � � � £ x u � � x � � � u v w � v � � � y u � � � � ª � � x x w x � u � � � � � w � x � � � � �BENCHMARK AND CONTROL POINT DESCRIPTIONS:�� � v t � t � ª � x v � � � � t ª � � � ¤ � t � � � £ x u � � t � v t x � � � � � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ w � � x � ª � ¤ x t � � � ¤ x v t �Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ä Ç È É Ã Ê Ë É Æ Ì Å Ê Ç Í Î Ï Ã É Ã É É Â Ð Æ Ë Å Ç Ñ Æ Ã Ä Í Ç Ä Å Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö Ï × Ö Î Ø Ù Æ É Å Ã É Ð Ç Í Â Ð Æ Í Å Æ Ë¤ x � x � � �� � t � x ª x � x � u x � �� y � � z� ¤ x � � � � ¤ � x t � u � � � x � � ª � ¤ x t � � � ¤ x v t � Ú � v � � x � � ª t x u � � � � z �� � � � � t ¤ � � � � � � � ¤�� v � � x « « � x t � � ª � ¤ x « � ¤ �� � � � u � � � � ª � � x x w x �� u � � � � � � ª � x w �� t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � �� � � �� ª �Û z � { � � v � x � x � v w � � � � � � u v � Û x w x � v � � � �y � � � �� � z Ü � v � � � � Ý

� ¤ x t � � ª v u x � � w � � ª v u � � u � w v � � � v u � � ª w v � � w � u v � x � � � � ¤ x � x z � � � ª � ¤ x t x z � � � ªt x u � � � � z �� � � � � t ¤ � � � � � � � ¤� � v � � x « « � x t � � ª � ¤ x « � ¤ �� � � � u � � � � ª � � x x w x �� � x w ��u � � � � �� u � w � � v � �� ¤ v � � � � v � v � � � t � ª � } } ª x x �� � ¤ x u x � � x � � ª t v � � � � v u � � x � � � w � u v � x �v � v � � � � � � ¤ � u ¤ � x v � t t � � � ¤ � « � x � � x x t� z � � � � � � x t� � � t x u � � � t � x t �� z � � }� « � ª x x � ª � � �� ¤ x x z � � u � � � x � � ª t v � � t x u � � � � z ��u � � � � � � ª � x w �t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � �� � � x � ¤ x � � � � ¤Þv � � � � � � � � ª � w � u � �� � v � x � v � � � w w v � x ª � w � � � � �� z Û ª � � t � � x � w v �� t � � � v � x � � � ¤ xt � � � ¤ x v t � Ú � v � � x � � ª t x u � � � � z �� � � � � t ¤ � � � � � � � ¤� � v � � x « « � x t � � ª � ¤ x « � ¤ �� � � � u � � �� ª � � x x w x �� u � � � � � � ª � x w �� t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � �� � x � � � � � � x � v � � � u � w v � w � � x t u � � � x � v tª � w w � � tÞu � � t � � x � � � � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ w � � x � ª � ¤ x t � � � ¤ x v t � Ú � v � � x � � ª t v � � t x u � � � � z � v t v t t � � x � � �Ñ Æ Ã Ä Í Ç Ä Å Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö Ï × Ö Î Ø Ù Æ É Å Ã Í Ë Ù Ê Å Ò Ã ß ß Ñ Æ Ã Ä Ê Í à É Ì Ç Í Å Ã Ê Í Æ Ë Ò Æ Ä Æ Ê Í Ä Æ ß Ã Å Ê á Æ Å Ò Æ Ä Æ Å Çâ� x � � � � � � � v � � ¤ x x v t � Ú � v � � x � u � � � x � � ª t v � � t x u � � � � z �Þ � ¤ x � u x v w � � � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ w � � xÇ È É Ã Ê Ë É Ç Â Å Ò Æ Ã É Å Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ä Í Ç Ä Å Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö Ï × Ö Î Ø Ù Æ É Å ã ä Ôå Ï Ó È Æ Æ Åâ Å Ò Æ Í Ì Æ Ë Æ æ Ã Ä Å Ê Í à É Ã Ê Ë Í Ç Ä Å Òw � � x v � � v w � � � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ x � w � � � � w � � � v � � � � � ª � ¤ x � x t � w � � x � ª � w � u � z � � v � x � v �á Ê ß ß Ã à Æ È Ê ß Ê Í à Í Ç å Îç È Ê Ä É Å Ä Æ æ ß Ã Å Ã Í Ë Ã ß Ç Í à É Ã Ê Ë Ù Æ É Å ß Ê Í Æ É Ç Â Å Ò è ä Õ ä é × ä ê Ø Ù Æ É Å é è é å Ö ãÈ Æ Æ Åâ Å Ò Æ Í Ì Æ É Ç Â Å Ò Ï Ô Õ ä é × ä ê Ø Ù Æ É Å é ã å Ó Ó È Æ Æ Å Å Ç Å Ò Æ Å Ä Â Æ æ Ç Ê Í Å Ç È Ñ Æ à Ê Í Í Ê Í à â Å Ò Æ Í Ì ÆÌ Ç Í Å Ê Í Â Ê Í à É Ç Â Å Ò Ï Ô Õ ä é × ä ê Ø Ù Æ É Å ä Ö éå è Ï È Æ Æ Å Å Ç Ã æ Ç Ê Í Å Ç Í Ã Ì Â Ä á Æ Ì Ç Í Ì Ã á Æ Å Ç Å Ò Æ Ù Æ É ÅëÒ Ã á Ê Í à Ã Ì Æ Í Å Ä Ã ß Ã Í à ß Æ Ç È ã Ï Õ é Ô × é Ó Ø Ã Í Ë Ã Ä Ã Ë Ê Â É Ç È Ö è è å è è È Æ Æ Åë Å Ò Æ ß Ç Í à Ì Ò Ç Ä Ë Ç È Ù Ò Ê Ì ÒÑ Æ Ã Ä É É Ç Â Å Ò Ö ä Õ ä Ó × ä ã Ø Æ Ã É Å Ö ä ä å ä Ö È Æ Æ Åâ Å Ò Æ Í Ì Æ É Ç Â Å Ò Æ Ã É Å Æ Ä ß ì Ã ß Ç Í à Å Ò Æ Ã Ä Ì Ç È É Ã Ê ËÌ Â Ä á Æ Ö Ï è å Î ã È Æ Æ Åâ Å Ò Æ Í Ì Æ Í Ç Íç Å Ã Í à Æ Í Å È Ä Ç Ð É Ã Ê Ë Ì Â Ä á Æ Í Ç Ä Å Ò è è Õ è è × Ö Ï Ø Æ Ã É Å Ï Ö èå Ó ã È Æ Æ Å Å Ç� ¤ x � � � x � � � � � � ª � x � � � � � � � �u � � � v � � � � � �� z z v u � x t� � � � x � � w x t t� v t t ¤ � � � � � � ¤ x v � � v u ¤ x � � v �� v t x � � � v u x � � � � ¤ � �� ¤ x ¤ x v � � x í � x � � � � w � � x t � ¤ x � x � �� ¤ v � x t � � � � � � � x � � ¤ x t v � x � � � � w � � t v � � � � � w � � � �x � � x w � � x t v t t ¤ � � � � � � ¤ x v � � v u ¤ x � � v � v � � � � ¤ x � x � � t x � v t � � x t v � � � � � � � � � � �� � v u � � ª w v � � v � � � x t � � � v � x � ¤ x t v � x � v � x � v � � v � � � � � ª � w � � � � x � � � � � � ¤ � � � ¤ x u � � � � ª� � x x w x �� u � � � � � � ª � x w �� t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � �� v � � � � � x � � u v � x � � � ¤ x � � � w � u� v w wx v t x � x � � t � � x � v � � v u � � t t t v � � w � � t v � w � u v � � � � t t ¤ � � � � � t v � � � v � v � � � � ª � � � ¤ x �u x � � � ª � � ¤ v � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ v � � � ¤ x � � � x � t � � � t � ª � ¤ x w � � t v � � � � � w � � � � x � � x w � � x t� v � � � ¤ x� v � x t v � � � � � � x � t � ¤ x � x � ª v � x u � � � x u � w � � x t � � � v � x � � � � � t v � � � v ��

� � � � v w w � x � � � � ¤ x t x � � x t x � � ty � ¤ v � � ¤ x � � � x � t � � � x �� � x � � � � ¤ x t � w x � � � x � Ü t Ý � � ª x x� ª v � � � � � � � � ª � ¤ x t � � � ¤ x v t � Ú � v � � x � � ª t x u � � � � z �� � � � � t ¤ � � � � � � � ¤� � v � � x « « � x t �� ª � ¤ x « � ¤ � � � � u � � v w � x � � � � v �� u � � � � ª � � x x w x �� u � � � � � � ª � x w �� t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � � � x � � �� � � x � v � � � u � w v � w � � x t u � � � x � v t ª � w w � � tyLEGAL DESCRIPTIONî ï ð ð ñ ò ó ô ð õt ö÷ ÷ ø �ù ú û÷ ü t ö÷ ÷ ø � ý ø þ÷
C1 COVER SHEET

C2 NOTES

C3 SITE PLAN

C4 GRADING PLAN

C5 GRADING PLAN

C6 OVERALL UTILITY PLAN

C7 STORM PLAN AND PROFILE - A

C8 STORM PLAN AND PROFILE - B

C9 STORM PLAN AND PROFILE - C

C10 STORM PLAN AND PROFILE - D

C11 WATER PLAN

C12 SANITARY PLAN AND PROFILE - A

C13 SANITARY PLAN AND PROFILE - B

C14 EROSION CONTROL PLAN - INITIAL

C15 EROSION CONTROL PLAN - INTERIM

C16 EROSION CONTROL PLAN - FINAL

C17 SIGNAGE & STRIPING PLAN

C18 SIGNAGE & STRIPING DETAILS

C19 WATER & SEWER DETAILS

C20 STORM SEWER DETAILS

C21 GRADING DETAILS

ÿ � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � �  � � � � �� � � � �  � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � �� � � � � � � � �! � � �  � � � " � �   � � � � �  � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � �  � � � � � ! � � �  � � � " � �   � � � � �  � � � � � �� � � � � � � � # � � � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � " �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �$ � � � � � � � � � $ � �� � � �  � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � �!% & & ' ( ) ' * + ,-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .& / ) , ' 0 1 / 0 ' ' 2 * % ) '% & & ' ( ) ' * + ,-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3 % ) ' 2 4 5 ' 3 ' 2 & 6 / ' 7 ' 0 1 / 0 ' ' 2 * % ) '% & & ' ( ) ' * + ,-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1 2 ' ' 8 ' , 7 / 2 ' 9 % 2 5 6 % 8 * % ) '% & & ' ( ) ' * + ,-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .& : 9 9; * ' < ' 8 : ( 9 ' 0 ) * / 2 ' & ) : 2 * % ) '
= � � � � � � � � � ÿ � > ? � 
 �	 � � 
 � � � � � 	& : 9 & % 5 )% & & ' ( ) ' * + , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .+ / 8 8 + 8 % / 2 * % ) '% ) 9 : 5% & & ' ( ) ' * + , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .& 6 2 / 5 ) / 0 ' 9 & * ' 2 9 : ) ) * % ) '& ' 0 ) @ 2 , 8 / 0 A% & & ' ( ) ' * + , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .& % 2 5 : 0 : 2 ) ' 1 % * % ) 'B & ' 8% & & ' ( ) ' * + , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .( % ) A 2 ' % 1 ' 2 * % ) ' 119



���������������� �		
��� ������ ������
�� ������ �����	�	 ��� �!
"�!���� ###!�$%�����&!��'
( ) * + ,-

. / 0 + -
12 + + 0 0 3 0 4 + -

( ) * + ,-
. / 0 + -

12 + + 0 0 3 0 4 + -
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

56789:9;<6=
58<;;7> ?;9@>7A78 B5:7;@

C DEEFEG HIJ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

K L M L M N O P .N LQ L M N O P .M M L M L M N O P .
R S T U S VW S R X T V Y W T Z S R

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

NOTES

C2

ÿ C DE F G �H I I J I E 	 DH I I D = I K CL M � I M IH N J 
 F D I KO ! � P PQ R S TQ U V W UX V WY Z [ \ P U] S U^ W V_ R `_Q a b$ R S Y a cY dY X V c W a P P ] RX ` R S d V R V WY  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b RX c V S [ ] V U RX � ZY ] Ù U ] a V U RX c aX e �Y c U X̂ � V aX e a S e c!f! � WY  RX V S a] V R S U c SY c Z RX c U \ PY ` R S R \ V a UX UX̂ a P P SY g [ U SY e ZY S d U V c Z S U R S V R ] R d dY X ] Y dY X V R ` aX bQ R S T RX V WY Z S R hY ] V! � ZY S d U V̀ S R d � [ \ P U ] � R S T c �Y Z a S V dY X V i j k l _ m n l _ j o o O p U c SY g [ U SY è R S a P P] RX c V S [ ] V U RX UX Z [ \ P U ] S U^ W V_ R `_Q a b R S Y a cY dY X V c! � Z SY _ ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX ] RX `Y SY X ] Y c W a P P \Y WY P eQ U V W U V b SY Z SY cY X V a V Uq Y c \Y ` R SY a ZY S d U VQ U P P \Y U c c [Y e !  a P P � V U P U V b � R V Ù U] a V U RX Y X VY S R ̀ R P R S a e R a V O _o l l _ j f f _ O j o k̀ R S [ V U P U V b P R] a VY c a V PY a c V r o W R [ S c Z S U R S V R aX b Y s] aq a V U RX Q R S T!m! � WY  RX V S a ] V R S c W a P P X R V Ù b  RX c V S [ ] V U RX �Y Sq U ] Y c i j k l _ m n l _ j m n o p a V PY a c V f r W R [ S Z S U R S V R SY g [ U SY eUX c ZY ] V U RX !r! � V U c V WY  RX V S a] V R S " c SY c Z RX c U \ U P U V b V R X R V Ù b V WY �Q X Y S t �Y q Y P R ZY S$ aX e V WY  U V b$ R ` aX b Z S R \ PY d c UX] RX ` R S d UX̂ V R V WY a] ] Y Z VY e Z P aX c ` R S aX b Y PY dY X V R V̀ WY Z S R Z R cY e U d Z S Rq Y dY X V c Z S U R S V R U V c] RX c V S [ ] V U RX !n! � V U c V WY SY c Z RX c U \ U P U V b R V̀ WY �Y q Y P R ZY S e [ S UX̂ ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX a] V Uq U V UY c V R SY c R Pq Y ] RX c V S [ ] V U RXZ S R \ PY d c e [Y V R ] W aX̂ Y e ] RX e U V U RX c$ R S eY c U X̂ Y S S R S c Y X ] R [X VY SY e \ b V WY  RX V S a] V R S e [ S UX̂ V W YZ S R̂ SY c c R ` aX b Z R S V U RX R V̀ WY Z S R hY ] V! �̀ $ UX V WY R Z UX U RX R V̀ WY  U V b$ V WY d R e Ù U] a V U RX c Z S R Z R cY e \ b V WY�Y q Y P R ZY S$ V R V WY a] ] Y Z VY e Z P aX c$ UX q R Pq Y c U X̂ Ù U] aX V ] W aX̂ Y c V R V WY ] W a S a] VY S R V̀ WY Q R S T$ R S V R V WY` [ V [ SY ] RX V U [̂ R [ c Z [ \ P U ] R S Z S Uq a VY U d Z S Rq Y dY X V c$ V WY �Y q Y P R ZY S c W a P P \Y SY c Z RX c U \ PY ` R S SY _ c [ \ d U V V UX̂V WY SY q U cY e Z P aX c V R V WY  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b ` R S a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y Z S U R S V R aX b ` [ S V WY S ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX SY P a VY e V R V W a VZ R S V U RX R V̀ WY Z S R hY ] V! �X b U d Z S Rq Y dY X V c X R V ] RX c V S [ ] VY e UX a] ] R S e aX ] Y Q U V W V WY a] ] Y Z VY e Z P aX c$ R SV WY a] ] Y Z VY e SY q U cY e Z P aX c$ c W a P P \Y SY d Rq Y e aX e SY ] RX c V S [ ] VY e a] ] R S e UX̂ V R V WY a Z Z S Rq Y e Z P aX !u! � WY  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P \Y c R PY P b aX e ] R d Z PY VY P b SY c Z RX c U \ PY ` R S V WY ] RX e U V U RX c a V aX e a e h a] Y X V V R V WYh R \ c U VY $ UX ] P [ e UX̂ c a `Y V b R ` a P P ZY S c RX c aX e Z S R ZY S V b$ e [ S UX̂ V WY ZY S ` R S d aX ] Y R V̀ WY Q R S T! � W U cSY g [ U SY dY X V c W a P P a Z Z P b ] RX V UX [ R [ c P b aX e c W a P P X R V \Y P U d U VY e V R X R S d a PQ R S T UX̂ W R [ S c! � WY e [ V b R `V WY  U V b V R ] RX e [ ] V ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX SY q UY Q R V̀ WY  RX V S a] V R S " c ZY S ` R S d aX ] Y U c X R V UX VY X eY e V R UX ] P [ eYSY q UY Q R V̀ WY a eY g [ a] b R V̀ W Y  RX V S a ] V R S " c c a `Y V b dY a c [ SY c UX $ RX $ R S X Y a S V WY ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX c U VY !k! � WY  RX V S a ] V R S c W a P P Z S Rq U eY a P P P U^ W V c$ c U X̂ c$ \ a S S U ] a eY c$ P̀ â ZY S c RX c$ R S R V WY S eY q U ] Y c X Y ] Y c c a S bV R Z S Rq U eY ` R S Z [ \ P U ] c a `Y V b UX a] ] R S e aX ] Y Q U V W V WY ] [ S SY X V � aX [ a P RX �X Ù R S d � S a `̀ U ] ] RX V S R P �Y q U ] Y c$aX e V WY  SY Y PY b � [ Z Z PY dY X V V R V WY � aX [ a P RX � X Ù R S d � S a `̀ U]  RX V S R P �Y q U ] Y c!o! � WY  RX V S a] V R S U c SY c Z RX c U \ PY ` R S V WY Z S R VY ] V U RX R ` a P P c [ Sq Y b d RX [ dY X V c! �X b d RX [ dY X V V W a Vd [ c V \Y eY c V S R bY è R S ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX c W a P P \Y SY Z P a] Y e ! � WY  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P Y X̂ â Y V WY cY Sq U ] Y c R ` a� S R `Y c c U RX a P � U ] Y X cY e � [ Sq Y b R S i � � � p Z S U R S V R e U c V [ S \ UX̂ aX b d RX [ dY X V c!j! � S U R S V R ÙX a P Z P a] Y dY X V R ` c [ S ` a] Y Z aq Y dY X V$ a P P [X eY Ŝ S R [X e [ V U P U V b d a UX c c W a P P \Y UX c V a P PY e aX ecY Sq U ] Y ] RX X Y ] V U RX c c V [ \ \Y e R [ V \Y b RX e ] [ S \ P UX Y $ Q WY X a P P RQ Y e \ b V WY [ V U P U V b! �Y Sq U ] Y ` S R d Z [ \ P U ][ V U P U V UY c aX è S R d c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S c c W a P P \Y d a eY aq a U P a \ PY ` R S Y a] W P R V UX c [ ] W a d aX X Y S V W a VQ U P P X R V\Y X Y ] Y c c a S b V R e U c V [ S \ V WY c V SY Y V Z aq Y dY X V$ ] [ S \$ [̂ V VY S$ aX e c U eY Q a P TQ WY X ] RX X Y ] V U RX c a SY d a eY !O l! �  Y R VY ] WX U ] a P �Y Z R S V W a c \Y Y X Z SY Z a SY e \ bv v v v v v i UX ] P [ eY SY Z R S V e a VY aX e Z S R hY ] V w p̀ R SS U^ W V R `_Q a bŜ a e UX̂ aX e Z aq UX̂ ! �Y `Y S V R  Y R VY ] WX U ] a P �Y Z R S V̀ R S aX b SY g [ U SY dY X V c Y s] Y Y e UX̂  U V b� V aX e a S e c! � � UX a P � aq Y dY X V �Y c U X̂ �Y Z R S V U c a P c R SY g [ U SY e ! � WY c R U P UX q Y c V U â V U RX ` R S V W U c SY Z R S Vc W a P P R] ] [ S a V̀Y S [ V U P U V b ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX aX e Ŝ a e UX̂ ` R S c V SY Y V c U c ] R d Z PY VY e V RQ U V W UX u x R ` aX V U ] U Z a VY ec [ \ Ŝ a eY ! � WY ÙX a P � aq Y dY X V �Y c U X̂ �Y Z R S V c W a P P \Y a] ] Y Z VY e \ b V WY  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b Z S U R S V R aX bX RX _ c V S [ ] V [ S a P ] RX ] SY VY $ Z aq Y dY X V R S c [ \ Ŝ a eY UX c V a P P a V U RX

ÿ C DE F G �H I I J I E y N D IH z 	 I { IH � I M IH N J 
 F D I KO ! � P P ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX Q R S T V R \Y a] ] Y Z VY e \ b V WY  U V b c W a P P ] RX ` R S d V R V WY  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b  RX c V S [ ] V U RX� ZY ] Ù U ] a V U RX c aX e �Y c U X̂ � V aX e a S e c!f! � P P Rq Y S P R V Ŝ a e UX̂ UX V WY S U^ W V_ R `_Q a b R S Y a cY dY X V c W a P P \Y ] R d Z PY VY e Z S U R S V R UX c V a P P UX̂ Z R V a \ PYQ a VY S$ c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S$ R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX P UX Y c!m!  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P q Y S Ù b a P P [ V U P U V b P R] a V U RX c Z S U R S V R ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX !  a P P � V U P U V b � R V Ù U ] a V U RX Y X VY S R ` R P R S a e R a V O _ o l l _ j f f _ O j o k R S e U a P o O Ò R S [ V U P U V b P R] a VY c r o W R [ S c Z S U R S V R aX b Y s] aq a V U RX Q R S T!r! � a UX V a UX a d UX U d [ d R V̀Y X i O l p̀ Y Y V W R S U| RX V a P ] PY a S e U c V aX ] Y cY Z a S a V U RX \Y VQ Y Y X Z R V a \ PY Q a VY Sd a UX c t cY Sq U ] Y c aX e c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX d a UX c t cY Sq U ] Y c! � R V a \ PY Q a VY Sd a UX c t cY Sq U ] Y c a SY V R \Y P R] a VY e O o _ UX ] WY c d UX U d [ d a \ Rq Y V WY c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PYU S S U â V U RX d a UX c t cY Sq U ] Y c! �̀̀ UY P e ] RX e U V U RX c q a S b ` S R d V W R cY c W RQ X RX V WY cY Z P aX c aX e V WYc aX U V a S b cY Q Y S R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY d a UX c t cY Sq U] Y c ] aX X R V \Y P R] a VY e \Y P RQ V WY Q a VY S d a UX R S cY Sq U ] Y $a ] PY a S q Y S V U ] a P e U c V aX ] Y R ` Y U^ W VY Y X i O o p UX ] WY c \Y P RQ ] aX X R V \Y d a UX V a UX Y e $ R S a d UX U d [ d VY Xi O l p̀ R R V W R S U| RX V a P cY Z a S a V U RX ] aX X R V \Y a] W UY q Y e $ V WY  U V b c W a P P \Y ] RX V a] VY e U d dY e U a VY P b V RSY q UY Q V WY c U V [ a V U RX !n! � X a P P UX c V aX ] Y cQ WY SY aQ a VY S P UX Y P RQ Y S UX̂ $ Z R V a \ PY R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY $ U c SY g [ U SY e e [Y V R [X ` R S cY Y XÙY P e ] RX e U V U RX c$ a eY V a U PY e e S aQ UX̂ c W a P P \Y Z S Rq U eY e V R V WY  U V b ` R S a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y Z S U R S V RZY S ` R S d UX̂ V WY Q R S T!u! � WY SY Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S$ c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S$ aX e X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX P UX Y c a SY P R] a VY e UX ] R d d RX[ V U P U V b Y a cY dY X V a SY a c$ V WY SY c W a P P \Y X R R V WY S [ V U P U V UY c P R] a VY e W R S U| RX V a P P bQ U V W UX VY X i O l p̀ Y Y V R `Y U V WY S P UX Y Y s] Y Z V a V a Z Z S Rq Y e ] S R c c UX̂ c!k!  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P X R V Ù b V WY  U V b RX Y i O pQ Y Y T Z S U R S V R ] R d dY X ] UX̂ Q R S T a V̀Y S  U V b a] ] Y Z VY e RX c V S [ ] V U RX � S aQ UX̂ c W aq Y \Y Y X e U c V S U \ [ VY e aX e a Z SY ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX dY Y V UX̂ W a c \Y Y X WY P eQ U V WV WY  U V b!o!  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P Z R V W R PY a P P Y s U c V UX̂ [ V U P U V UY c V R \Y ] S R c cY e \ b Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S$ c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S$ R S} ~ }� � ~ �� � �� �� � �� � � � ~ } � � }� � � � �� � � � � � � ~ � � � �� � ~� � ~ �� ~ � � � }� � ~ � } � � � � � � �� � } �� �� � �� � � � } ��� ~� ~ �� } � � � �� ~ � � � }� � � } � � � � � � } �� �� � �� � � � } �� � ~� � ~� � � �� ~ � � � }� �� � ~� �� ~ } � � � � } �� � � � � � � �P R] a V U RX R ` ] S R c cY e Y s U c V UX̂ [ V U P U V UY c c W a P P \Y SY ] R S eY e RX V WY � c _  RX c V S [ ] VY e �Y ] R S e � S aQ UX̂ c!j! � W R [ P e aX b q a S U a V U RX c \Y ` R SY R S e [ S UX̂ ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX V R V WY Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S e U c V S U \ [ V U RX $ c aX U V a S bcY Q Y S ] R P PY ] V U RX $ R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX c b c VY d eY c U X̂ c \Y ] RX c U eY SY e $ X R V U] Y d [ c V̀ U S c V \Y^ Uq Y X V R V WY  U V b V R eY VY S d UX Y Ù U V X Y Y e c a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y \ b V WY  U V b! �̀ c R$ a X Y Q Z P aX c W a P P \Y e S aQ XaX e c [ \ d U V VY e V R V WY  U V b ` R S a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y \ b V WY �Y c U X̂ �X̂ UX Y Y S k f W R [ S c Z S U R S V R ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX !O l! � UX a P ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX Z P aX c a SY q a P U è R S ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX RX Y i O p bY a S ` S R d V WY e a VY R ̀ U V b c U X̂ a V [ SY�] ] Y Z V aX ] Y !O O ! � P P Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S d a UX c$ cY Sq U ] Y c$ aX e W b e S aX V P UX Y c c W a P P W aq Y a d UX U d [ d ] Rq Y S R `̀ Uq Y i n p̀ Y Y VaX e a d a s U d [ d ] Rq Y S R ` c U s i u p̀ Y Y V [X PY c c R V WY SQ U cY UX e U ] a VY e RX V WY a] ] Y Z VY e  RX c V S [ ] V U RX� S aQ UX̂ c!O f! � P P X RX _ Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S d a UX c aX e cY Sq U ] Y c c W a P P W aq Y a d UX U d [ d ] Rq Y S R V̀ W SY Y aX e a W a P̀ i m! n p`Y Y V aX e a d a s U d [ d ] Rq Y S R ` c U s i u p̀ Y Y V [X PY c c R V WY SQ U cY UX e U ] a VY e RX V WY a] ] Y Z VY e RX c V S [ ] V U RX � S aQ UX̂ c!O m! � P P X Y Q Q a VY S d a UX c c W a P P \Y \ [ P T WY a eY e aX e VY c VY e aX e a Z Z S Rq Y e Z S U R S V R ] RX X Y ] V U RX V R V WYY s U c V UX̂ Q a VY S # a Pq Y cQ W U ] W Z a c c VY c V UX̂ ` R S Z SY c c [ SY aX e PY a T â Y a V V W Y V U dY R ÙX c V a P P a V U RX aX eV WY VY c V UX̂ Q a c ZY S ` R S dY e UX V WY Z SY cY X ] Y R V̀ WY  U V b d a b \Y ] RX c U eY SY e a c a \ [ P T WY a e !O r! #Y S Ù U ] a V U RX � [ Sq Y b _ � R Z R ` Z U ZY Y PY q a V U RX c a V a P P Z R V a \ PY aX e X RX _ Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S P UX Y q a Pq Y c$ aX ec aX U V a S b cY Q Y S d aX W R PY UX q Y S V c c W a P P \Y c [ Sq Y bY e aX e Z S Rq U eY e V R V WY  U V b \ b V WY �Y c U X̂�X̂ UX Y Y S ` R S a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y Z S U R S V R Z aq UX̂ ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX ! � WY q Y S Ù U ] a V U RX c [ Sq Y b c W a P P a P c R Z S Rq U eYcY Q Y S Z U ZY c P R ZY c aX e PY X̂ V W aX e Z S R Z R cY è UX U c WY e Ŝ R [X e Y PY q a V U RX c a V a P P q a Pq Y \ R sY c aX ed aX W R PY S U d Y PY q a V U RX c!O n! � P P [ V U P U V b ] RX e [ U V ] S R c c UX̂ c R ` Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S$ c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S aX e X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX P UX Y c c W a P P\Y Y X ] a cY e UX � U^ W �Y X c U V b � R P bY V W b PY X Y i � � � � p Z U ZY $ Q U V W a d UX U d [ d � V aX e a S e � U dY X c U RX� a V U R i � � � p O O a] S R c c V WY Y X V U SY Y a cY dY X V R S S U^ W V_ R `_Q a bQ U e V W ! � WY Y X ] a cY dY X V h R UX V c W a P P \Y\ [ V V̀ [ cY e ! � PY s U \ PY h R UX V c a SY X R V a P P RQ Y e !O u! �Y V V a Z c c W a P P \Y e S U P PY e \ b V WY  U V b ` R S a `Y Y !  a P P j k l _ m n l _ j o O l a V PY a c V r o W R [ S c UX a eq aX ] Y V RZ a b `Y Y c aX e c] WY e [ PY V a Z!

y FH � C ML � F �H K 
 F D I �� WY ] RX V S a] V R S c W a P P SY c V S U] VQ R S T UX̂W R [ S c V R \Y VQ Y Y X k� l l a d aX e u� l l Z dRX X R S d a P  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b \ [ c UX Y c c e a b c[X PY c c Z S U R S a Z Z S Rq a P W a c \Y Y X R \ V a UX Y e` S R d V WY  U V b!
  ¡ ¢ £ ¡     ¤ ¥ ¦ ¡ §̈   ¦©ª« �̈ � � ¢ ¡ � � � ¬ �̈̈ �  ¡̄ ¢ ¡ �  ¦ ¢ ¡̈ ¡ ¢ ¡ �̄ ® § � ¡ ¬ � ¢ � � � § ¦̈̄ ¡ � °̄   �̄̈̈ �¡ ® � � ¢ ¡ ¬ ¡ � ® � � ¬ � � ¡ ¬ ¡ � ®̄ © � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � � § � ¡ � � ¢ � ¥ �̄ ¡̈ ¡ ± � ¢ ¡ � �²� � �̄ ¢ � ¦ � ¢ ¡ � �² � � � � ® � � ¡ �  � ¬ ¥ � ¢ � � ¡ �̄̈ « ¬ � � ¡ � ¬ � � ¥ � ¢ ¡ � �� � � ¢ � � ¢� ® � � ¬ � � ¡ � ¢ � �³ ¦ ¢ ¡̈ ¡ ¢ ©  � � ¦ §² ª ³ µ́ µ ³ ¶ · · ³ ª ¶̧́ � �̈ � � �̈�  � � � ©² § � ¡ ¬ � ¢ � � � ¢ ¡ ¢ ©² � � � ¢   � � �̄̄ � � ¡ � ¢ � ® � � ¢ ¡ ¢ ¡ �̄ � ¡ ¢   ¡ � ¢   �¡̈ ¥ ¡ ¢̄ � ¬ � � �̄ ¢ � ¦ � ¢ ¡ � �« ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̄̈̈ � � � ¢   � ¬ ¦̈̈� �̄ ¢ � ¬ � � ¥ � ¬ �̈ ² � � §̈ � � � ¥ � � ¢² � � ® ® �̈ � © � �̈ � ¢ � ® ¢ � ¦ � ¬ � � ¡ ¬ ¡ � ®�  ¡̄ ¢ ¡ �  � � � ® ¡ ¢ ¡ � �̄ « �   � � � ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � � ¬ ¡ � ®̄ � � � ¬̈ ¡ � ¢̄ � �® ¡̄ � � � § � � � ¡ �̄ ¢   � ©̄   �̄̈̈ � � � § � � ¢ � ® ¡ ¥ ¥ � ® ¡ � ¢ �̈ © ¢ � ¢   �� �  ¡ � � � �«·« ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈ § � � ¬ � � ¥ �̈̈ � � � ¹ � � � �̄̄ � � © ¢ � � � ¥ §̈ � ¢ �¢   � � � � ¹̄   � � � � � ¢   � §̈ � �̄ � � ® �̄ � � ¡̄ � ® ¡ � ¢   �̄ § � � ¡ ¬ ¡ � � ¢ ¡ � �̄¡ � �̄ � ¢ ¡̄ ¬ � � ¢ � � © ¥ � � � � �« ¦ �̈ �̄̄ � ¢   � � � ¡̄ � § � � ¬ ¡ ® � ®² ¢   �� � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈ ¬ ¦ � � ¡̄   �̈̈ ¥ � ¢ � � ¡ �̄̈ ² � º ¦ ¡ § ¥ � � ¢² ¢ � �̄̈ ²�̄̈ � �² � � ® ¡ � � ¡ ® � � ¢ �̄̈ ¢ � � � ¥ §̈ � ¢ � ¢   � � � � ¹«»« ¡ �̄ � ¥ � � �̄ �̄ ¢   � � � � � � � � � �̄ � ¬ ¢   �̄ ¡ ¢ � ® � § ¡ � ¢ � ® � � ¥ � � � ¢   � �� � � § �  � � ¬ ¢   � §̈ � �̄ ²   � � � ¬ � �² �̈̈ ¡ ¥ § � � ¬ � ¥ � � ¢̄ � � � � � ¢® � § ¡ � ¢ � ® ® � § ¡ � ¢ � ® � � � ¬ � � © § �  �« ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈ � � ¬ ¡ � �� � �   § �  � � ¬ ¢   � §̈ � �̄ � � ® ® � ¢ � ¡̈̄ � � ®̄   �̈̈ � � �̄ ¢ � ¦ � ¢ �̈̈¡ ¥ § � � ¬ � ¥ � � ¢̄ � �  � � ®̈ �̄̄ � ¬ �   � ¢   � � ¢   � © � � �̄   � � � � � � ¬ � � ©§ �  �« �   � � � ® ¡̄ � � � § � � � ¡ �̄ � � � ¬ � ¦ � ® � � §̈ � �̄ � � ® � ¢ � ¡̈̄̄   � � �� � ¢   � §̈ � �̄ ² ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈ � � ¢ ¡ ¬ © ¢   � � �  ¡ � � � � § � ¡ � �¢ �̄ �  ¡ � � ¡ �  � � �̄ ¢ � ¦ � ¢ ¡ � �̄ « ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̄̈̈ � � � ¢   �¬ ¦̈̈ � �̄ ¢ � ¬ � � ¥ � ¬ �̈ ² � � §̈ � � � ¥ � � ¢² ® �̈ � ©² � � ® ¥ �̄ ¡̈ ¡ ± � ¢ ¡ � �� �̈ � ¢ � ® ¢ � ¬ � ¡̈ ¦ � � ¢ � � � ¬ ¡ � � �̈̈ §̈ � �̄ «¼« ¢   � ¥ � � ¦ ¬ � � ¢ ¦ � � � ½̄ ¦ § §̈ ¡ � �̄   �̈̈ ® � ¢ � � ¥ ¡ � � § ¡ § � �̈ �̄̄̄ �̄ � ® � �¢   � ¥ �  ¡ ¥ ¦ ¥ � � ¬ � � � � ®̄ � ® ® ¡ � ̄   � � � � � ¢   � §̈ � �̄ � � ®̄ � ¡̈¢ © § �̄   � � � ¡ � ¢   �  � � ¢ � �   � ¡ � �̈ � � § � � ¢« ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈§ � � ¬ ¡ ® � § ¡ § � ® ³ �̈ � ® � �̈ � ¦̈ � ¢ ¡ � �̄̄ ¢ � ¥ § � ®̄ © � � �  ¡̄ ¢ � � � ®� �  ¡ � � � �« ¡ � � � � �̄ �̄   �̈̈ � � § § ¡ § � �̈ �̄̄̄ �̈ �̄̄ ¢   � � �̈ �̄̄ ¡ ¡ ¡«

> � 	 � � � � � � � 
 =

120



¾¿À Á Â Ã

Ä Å Æ Ç È É Ç Ê Æ Ç Ë Å Å ÇÌ Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö × Ø Ù

Ú Û Ü Ý Þ ß àáâ ã ä å æ ç Ú è é è ê é ë Û ê Ý Û ê Úì íâ ã î ï æ ç

Ý Û Û ð Þ ê ÚÞ ñ è ê ë é ò Þ ß è Þ
ó ð ô õ ö Û ô æ èäâ ï í ì Ü æ çõ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü ç÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç

õ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü è ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç

õ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü Ú ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç
õ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü Þ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ çõ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü õ ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç

õ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Üó ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç æ ö è ð é è ß ìå ï ï Ü æ çæ ö è ð é è ß åå ï ï Ü æ ç
æ ö è ð é è ß îå ï ï Ü æ çÝ Þ ß à ë ê ÜÜ Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç

Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç

Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç
Þ Ú Þ Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â ä ú å Ü æ çÝ Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü è ü ë é öÚ Û Ü Ý Þ ß à æ ö è ð é è ßù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â ú á ø Ü æ ç

Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç

Ý Þ ß à ë ê ÜÜ Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç

ð Û é ð ë ê è
ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê é

ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê é
ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê é

ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê é
ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê éäú ú

ú ú
ú í ì ïä í î ì úú ãã

á í ì ï
ì îì ìãîúíì äúä ì ì ø

ì ìì ì

úã ø
î

í ú

Ý ß Û Ý è ß é òð ë ê è

Ý ß Û Ý è ß é òð ë ê è

Ý ß Û Ý è ß é òð ë ê è
ì î ä Ú ß Þ ë ê Þ Ü èè Þ æ è ñ è ê é

ç è êó è ç è êó è
Þó ó è æ æè Þ æ è ñ è ê é ë ê é è ß æ èó é ë Û êé ß ë Þ ê Ü ð è

ë ê é è ß æ èó é ë Û êé ß ë Þ ê Ü ð è

ì íý ì þ
ì îý ï þì úý á þ ì úý ï þ

ÿ ÿ� ��
� �� � �� �	 � 
ì ïý î þ

ì ïý ã þ ���� � � � ��
á åý å þ

�� �� ��

ì ä íý ï þ

� � � � �� �  !"#
$% & ' (% ) *% + , - -. / & 0ð Û éð ë ê è

$% & ' (% ) *% + , - -. / & 1 2 . / 3 , 4 / * 5 $% & ' (% ) 6 - . .% $ '5 - . - 7 $ 789 0: 5 - 7% . + ' * .% &

$% & ' (% ) *% + ,5 - . - 7 $ 7 /9 1

Ý ß Û Ý è ß é òð ë ê è
úý í þ

é ß Þ æ öè êó ð Û æ ô ß è
øý ï þ ;<=>

;<=> ì øý ï þ î äý ï þ ì øý ï þ
?@A BC DEA BC FGH IJáý í þ áý í þ

K LM N OP QR S TUV R S TWXYZ[\]^_ ` K aM b Oc de f ghij k lm mn opãý ä þ
q rs t u

v wx yz{ |} ~�� �} ���� ��
; <= >

��� ����� ����� �� �� ��

��� �� ��� ���   ¡ ¢£

¤ ¥ ¦§ øý ï þ¨ © ª« ¬ ® ¯ °±²³ ´µ¶· ¸¹ º»¼½¾¿ À Á ÂÃ Â Ä
ÅÆÇÈ É ÊË Ì ÍÎ ÏÐ

Ñ Ò Ó Ô ÕÖÀ × ØÃ Â Ä À × ØÃ Â ÄÙÚÛÜ ÝÞßàá · âã
äåæ½çèé ê ëì íî ïðñòóè

ô õ öÎ ÷ø ùúûü ýþÿ � �� � �

�� ��	
� �  � ���� ���� � � �� ��

� �� � � � �� � �
�  ! "# � $� $ � % &' ( )

*+ ,- ý.

/ 0 1 23 456 78 456 78
9:;<=

ÿ � � �� � �
> ? @ A B CD

EFG HI JKL MNOP G HI Q R ST UVW X Y Z [\ ] ^ _ ` \ ] ^� �� � � a� b�
� �� � � a� b�

cde fgh e ie

jkl mn ol pl

� �� � � a� b�
q rs t u vs ws

xy z { |y } ~y � �� � � � � x � �� �

� �� � � a� b� � ������� ��

� � � b � �� � � b
� � � b � �� � � b

� � � � � � bÿ � � �
� � � � � � bÿ � � �

� � � � � � bÿ � � � � � � � � � bÿ � � �
� � � � � � bÿ � � �� � � � � � bÿ � � �

� � � � � � bÿ � � �� � � � � � bÿ � � �
� � � � � � bÿ � � �

� � � a � b � �� � � �
� �� � � a� b�� � � � � a� b�

q r s t u vs ws
� �   ¡¢

£ ¤ ¥ ¦ §�

©̈ª « ¬  ®̄ ° ± ® ² ³́ µ ¶ ««·̧ ¹̧·̧̧ SITE PLAN

C3

º»¼»½¾¿À»¿¾¾Á»¿À ÂÃÃÄÂÅÆÇ ÈÉÊËËÉ ÌÈÍÎÉËÄÂÏÐ ËÑÒËÊ ÌÓÔÕÖÃÖÃ× ØÙÚÖÛÄÜÕÛÖÖÖÅÝÝÝ ÛÓÞßËÓÎÒÎàÛÓÔá
âã ä å æç

è é ê å ç
ëì å å ê ê í ê î å ç

âã ä å æç
è é ê å ç

ëì å å ê ê í ê î å ç
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

ïðñòóôóõöð÷
ïòöõõñø ùõóúøñûñò üïôñõú

ý þÿÿ�ÿ� ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � 	 
 è� �� � � � 	 
 è� � � � � � � 	 
 è
�  � �  ��  � � � � � � � �  �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

� � � � � � � � � � � � ��́̄ �  µ ! ° ±  "# ¨̈́ �#$̧ %& " $ $ !# '#( )  µ µ ° ² * + ² ° ³ ! ·̈ · + ² ° ³ !³ , �  ©́ © + ² ° ³ ! ¹ + ² ° ³ !³ , �  © - © + ² ° ³ !̈ $ . + ² ° ³ !³ ® ³́ µ -  (̄ ® ® / ! 0̧ · -  (̄ ® ® / !-̈  (̄ ® ® / + ² ° ³ ! .̧ + ² ° ³ !0 -  (̄ ® ® / + ² ° ³ ! ¹ · + ² ° ³ ! ̄ ! ° (  ² ³ °́ µ (  ² ! ° ³ , 0̧ # 0 1 + ² ° ³ ! 2́ �̄  ³ ® ³́ µ ' µ ® ®̄́̄  ́ $̈ 0 & ¸̧̧ ! '' µ ® ®̄́̄  ́́̄ ³ ° ® ¸# · 0 .� ® 3  ́̄ *  - + ° µ ( ° ² * 1 ¹& $ % . !# '# ¬̈ ¹# ¹ 4 ¶(̄ ° 3  !́ ² ( �́̄ 5 ° ² * ¨̈ 1& 0 $ 1 !# '# ¬ $ "# 0 4 ¶� + - µ ° �̄ ® ) !̧# '# ¬̧ # 4̧ ¶µ́ ² ( ! �́ �  2 ® �  ² ! �́ �  ¨̈̈ & "̧ 0 !# '# ¬ $ 1# % 4 ¶! ° (  )́ µ 5 ! 2 )́ µ 5 ! 2 � ® ® µ́̄  ́ 0 1& $̧̧ !# '# ¬ ¹# 4̈ ¶�́̄ 5 ° ² *6 µ ® ³̈ (́́ .*́̄́ *  · ¹! ³́ ² (̄́ ( 0̧ 07 8 7 9 : ; < =�́̄ 5 ° ² *6 µ ® ³ 0 ! ³́ ² (̄́ ( 0 07 8 7 9 : ; ;
> ? @ A B C

D E F G H I J K I G L G K MN² + / -  ̄ ® ' �́̄ 5 ° ² * ! ³́ µ µ !O O
D E F G H I J K K P F G D N¨ # µ́ µ � ® ² ! ³̄ + � ³ ° ® ² ! ́ µ µ � ® ² ' ®̄ / ³ ® ³   µ́ ³  ! ³ � ° ³ , ® '*̄   µ  , ! ³́ ² (̄́ ( !́ ² ( ! �  � ° ' ° �́ ³ ° ® ² !#0# )   ̄  � ® ² ! ³̄ + � ³ ° ® ² (  ³́ ° µ !́ ² ( ! �  � ° ' ° �́ ³ ° ® ² !́̄  ² ® ³  ( ® ² ³   !  � µ́ ² ! & + !  ³   � ° ³ , ® ' *̄   µ  ,! ³́ ² (̄́ ( !́ ² ( ! �  � ° ' ° �́ ³ ° ® ² ! ' ®̄ (  ! ° * ²́ ² (� ® ² ! ³̄ + � ³ ° ® ² #

Q R S T U V W X Y Y Z Y T [ R W \ ] Ŝ X Y [_̀ a b c d e _ c f̀ a g e b c h i f a j _ _̀ d k j a _ i l f c mj n n o f _ j h o i _ f c p̀ q r d i i o i p _̀ a b c d e _ c f̀ ab c j a k j d k bs c m i _ f c p t b j _ _ i n c j a _ i j o ò l bq̀ d n o j a k f b c d f h e c f̀ a j a k n i d g f cj n n o f _ j c f̀ a s c m i _ f c p t b j _ _ i n c j a _ i b m j o oà c d i o f i u i c m i k i b f r a i a r f a i i d t bd i b ǹ a b f h f o f c p q̀ d i d d̀ d bv g̀ f b b f̀ a bv d̀k i b f r a k i q f _ f i a _ f i b q̀ d l m f _ m c m i _ f c p f bm i o k m j d g o i b bsw x x y z { y | } ~�� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �x � { ~ y � � � � y y � | w { yw x x y z { y | } ~�� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � y y � y ~ � � � y � w � � � w � | w { yw x x y z { y | } ~�� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �x � � �� | y � y � � z � y � { | � � y x { � � | w { y121



� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � �

� � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �

� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �  

¡¢ £ ¤ ¥¢ ¦ §¢̈ © ª ª« ¬ £ 
¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥¢ ¦ §¢̈ © ª ª« ¬ £ ®

¡¢ £ ¤ ¥¢ ¦ §¢̈ ©ª̄ « ª ° ¡ ° ¬± ®

²³ ² ´ µ¶·¸¹

� � � � � � � �  
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �º» ¼ ½

¾ ¿ À Á
ÂÃ ÄÅ ÆÇ ÈÉ

Ê Ë Ì Í

Î Ï Ð Ñ
ÒÓÔÕ

Ö × Ø Ù Ú Û Ü Ý
Þßàá

âã ä å æç è é ê ë ì íî ï ð ñ

òóôõ
ö÷øù

úû ü ý þ ÿ
�� � � � �

���	
�
���� � � � � � � �

� � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �� � � �

� � � � � � � �� � � �

� � � � � � �  ! � � � " � # $ � % � � � � � � � �  ! � � � " � # $ � % �
� � � � � � �  ! � � � " � # $ � % �

�
�

�
� � �

& &
&& && &

&
& & && & &

& && &&'
'

'
''

'

'
'

'
'

'
'' ' (( �

� �
�

� �

�
�

�
�

�

)*+ ,
��

�
�

&

�

'
' '

- . / 0 1 . 2 0
3 $ � $ 3 �

3 $ � $ 3 � � 4 5 � $ � � � � � $ � % � � � $ � �� � � ! � � $ � � � � � � � � � � �67 8 9 :;< =>? @ A BC DE FG H I
� 5 % � � % J K � K � J L % M � K% N $ � � K �O� K J ! K � $ L � � N L � � N K K �

PQ R STQ P SP Q R S UV W XYZ [\ ]̂ _ ]̀ a b a b̀ c ] d e a] f g _ _ a eh _ i c j b h̀ k a i l̂̀ h _ i^̀̀ a ]̂ m n g ] b a i o c e e pq rq sq tu vu wux y z { | } x ~ � � z � ~ � x y z� ~ ~ � � � � � � � } � z � { � � � � } � { � � y � | |� � �� � � | { � � � ~ x | � � z� ~ � y { } � � { � � z � { } � � � � | | � ~ � � z� � | � � � � � � z � y � { ~ � � { � � � y � � � ~ { �� �� � � �� ��� � � �� �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © ª ��« ¬  ¬« ¬¬

GRADING PLAN

C4

®̄̄ ® °̄̄ ± ² ³

µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹́ º »́ » ¹ ·¼½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Á̈ Â ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Á ¤ ¦ ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £Å £ ¢ Å ¢ ¿ ½ Æ Á̈ Â ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £Å £ ¢ Å ¢ ¿ ½ Æ Á ¤ ¦ ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £© ¤ Á ¤ § ¿ ¢ Ç Æ ¤ ¿ § Ä £ È̈ ¦ Ã ½
É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ�Ï ©̈ © ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð © ¢ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿̈ £ ½̈ Å Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ ¦ Æ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ñ ½ £ ¤ Ç ¤ ½ Æ È Ð § ¡ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ § £̈ Ã § ¢ £ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ÏÒÏ ©̈ © Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡̈ © © Ã ¢ ¦ Ç ¢ £ Á § ¢ § ¡ ½ ©̈ § ½ ¿ § Ã ¤ § Ð ¢ ÇÀ £ ½ ½ © ½ Ð ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ Å ½ Ã ¤ Ç ¤ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿Ï«Ï ¦ ¢ Ó̈ § ½ £ Ã ¢ Ä £ ¿ ½ ¿Ô Ó̈ § ½ £ È ¢ Æ ¤ ½ ¿Ô ¢ £ ¤ £ £ ¤ À̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ Æ ¤ § Ã ¡ ½ ¿¢ È ¿ ½ £ Ñ ½ Æ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¤ § ½ÏÕÏ Å̈ Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ £ ½̈ ¢ Ç Æ ¤ ¿ § Ä £ È̈ ¦ Ã ½Ö ×Ø Ù × Ú Û ØÜ Ø Ú Ý Ý Þ ß à á Ú Û â â Ý â ã Ú ä å æ ç Þ è æ ä Þ Ú à â á à æ é ä è â á Ý æ ê Ý å ç â æ áä è â ë ß ä ä â à ß ç Ý â Þ Þ æ ä è â à ê Ú å Þ â å ç ì å Û Ú ä â ìØ

µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹́ í î ¹ ï ð µ ñ í ð̧ î ¹ ¹ î ð » ï¼Ò � Ã̈ § Ã ¡ Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò �  ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �� � Ã̈ § Ã ¡ Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �� � ¿ Å ¤ © © Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Õ � Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ Å̈ ¦ Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò Ò ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �ó � Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ Å̈ ¦ Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò Ò ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Õ � § ¡ ¤ Ã ô ¿ ¤ Æ ½ Ó̈ © ô Å ½ £ ¿ò Ò � Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Ã Ä £ È £̈ Á Å Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � Õ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Ã Ä £ È £̈ Á Å Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � « ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �
� Ò «Õõöó

÷øùøúûüýøüûûþøüý ÿ���ÿ��� ������ 	�
����ÿ� ����� 	������� �������������� �����������������
�  ! " #$

% & ' " $
() " " ' ' * ' + " $

�  ! " #$
% & ' " $

() " " ' ' * ' + " $
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

,-./01023-4
,/322.5 620

75.8./ 9,1.
27

: ;<<=<> ?@A
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

B C D C D E F G %E CH C D E F G %D D C D C D E F G %
I J K L J MN J I O K M P N K Q J I

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

R Ì S T U V
W X Y Z [ \ ]̂ _ _̀ _ Z a X ] b c Y d̂ _ ae f g h i j k e i l f g m k h i n o l g p e e f j q p g e o r l i sp t t u l e p n u o e l i v f w x j o o u o v e f g h i j k e i l f gh i p g q p j q hy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o p u u f r hw f j t u p g q l h i j l n k i l f g p g q t o j m l ip t t u l e p i l f gy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o h s p u ug f i j o u l o { o i s o q o h l x g o g x l g o o j z hj o h t f g h l n l u l i v w f j o j j f j h| f m l h h l f g h| f jq o h l x g q o w l e l o g e l o h w f j r s l e s i s o e l i v l hs o u q s p j m u o h hy} ~ ~ � � � � � � ��� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ � � � � � � � � � � � � } � �122



� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � �

� �   ¡ ¢ �   £ �
¡   � � � � � ¤ �

¡   � � � � � ¤ �
¡   � � � � � ¤ �

¡   � � � � � ¤ �¡   � � � � � ¤ ¥
¡   � � � � � ¤ ¥

¡   � � � � � ¤ � ¡   � � � � � ¤ �
¦§¨©ª« ¬®̄ ° ±

²³ ´ µ ¶·¸¹

º » ¼ ½ ¾ ¿ À ÁÂÃ Ä Å ÆÇ È É Ê̄ Ë ±Ì » Í ½

ÎÏÐÑ
ÒÓÔÕ

Ö×Ø Ù Ö×Ø Ù ÚÛÜÝ

£ ¢ � � � � � Þ£ ¢ � � � � � ß

� � � � � � � �� � � �
� � � � � £ � ¥� � £ �   � ¡ � � � �

� � � � � £ � ¥� � £ �   � ¡ � � � �

� � � � � £ � ¥� � £ �   � ¡ � � � �
Þ

à àßß
á

â ããä ääããããã ã
ãã ãã

ã ãã ãã ããä
ä

ä
ä

ä
ää ä åå Þ

Þ
Þ

Þ
ÞÞ

Þ

Þ

Þ Þ

ä
ä

ä

ä
ä

¤ � � � ¤ �
¤ � � � ¤ � ¤ � � � ¤ �

� �� �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © ª ��« ¬  ¬« ¬¬

GRADING PLAN

C5

Í Ì Ì Í æ Ì Ì Ë ç è

µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹́ º »́ » ¹ ·¼½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Á̈ Â ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Á ¤ ¦ ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £Å £ ¢ Å ¢ ¿ ½ Æ Á̈ Â ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £Å £ ¢ Å ¢ ¿ ½ Æ Á ¤ ¦ ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £© ¤ Á ¤ § ¿ ¢ Ç Æ ¤ ¿ § Ä £ È̈ ¦ Ã ½
É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ�Ï ©̈ © ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð © ¢ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿̈ £ ½̈ Å Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ ¦ Æ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ñ ½ £ ¤ Ç ¤ ½ Æ È Ð § ¡ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ § £̈ Ã § ¢ £ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ÏÒÏ ©̈ © Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡̈ © © Ã ¢ ¦ Ç ¢ £ Á § ¢ § ¡ ½ ©̈ § ½ ¿ § Ã ¤ § Ð ¢ ÇÀ £ ½ ½ © ½ Ð ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ Å ½ Ã ¤ Ç ¤ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿Ï«Ï ¦ ¢ Ó̈ § ½ £ Ã ¢ Ä £ ¿ ½ ¿Ô Ó̈ § ½ £ È ¢ Æ ¤ ½ ¿Ô ¢ £ ¤ £ £ ¤ À̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ Æ ¤ § Ã ¡ ½ ¿¢ È ¿ ½ £ Ñ ½ Æ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¤ § ½ÏÕÏ Å̈ Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ £ ½̈ ¢ Ç Æ ¤ ¿ § Ä £ È̈ ¦ Ã ½Ö ×Ø Ù × Ú Û ØÜ Ø Ú Ý Ý Þ ß à á Ú Û â â Ý â ã Ú ä å æ ç Þ è æ ä Þ Ú à â á à æ é ä è â á Ý æ ê Ý å ç â æ áä è â ë ß ä ä â à ß ç Ý â Þ Þ æ ä è â à ê Ú å Þ â å ç ì å Û Ú ä â ìØ

µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹́ í î ¹ ï ð µ ñ í ð̧ î ¹ ¹ î ð » ï¼Ò � Ã̈ § Ã ¡ Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò �  ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �� � Ã̈ § Ã ¡ Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �� � ¿ Å ¤ © © Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Õ � Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ Å̈ ¦ Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò Ò ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �ó � Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ Å̈ ¦ Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò Ò ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Õ � § ¡ ¤ Ã ô ¿ ¤ Æ ½ Ó̈ © ô Å ½ £ ¿ò Ò � Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Ã Ä £ È £̈ Á Å Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � Õ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Ã Ä £ È £̈ Á Å Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � « ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �
� Ò «Õõöó

÷øùøúûüýøüûûþøüý ÿ���ÿ��� ������ 	�
����ÿ� ��é�� 	������� �������������� ����������é������
�  ! " #$

% & ' " $
() " " ' ' * ' + " $

�  ! " #$
% & ' " $

() " " ' ' * ' + " $
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

,-./01023-4
,/322.5 620

75.8./ 9,1.
27

: ;<<=<> ?êA
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

B C D C D E F G %E CH C D E F G %D D C D C D E F G %
I J K L J MN J I O K M P N K Q J I

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

R Ì S T U V
W X Y Z [ \ ]̂ _ _̀ _ Z a X ] b c Y d̂ _ ae f g h i j k e i l f g m k h i n o l g p e e f j q p g e o r l i sp t t u l e p n u o e l i v f w x j o o u o v e f g h i j k e i l f gh i p g q p j q hy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o p u u f r hw f j t u p g q l h i j l n k i l f g p g q t o j m l ip t t u l e p i l f gy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o h s p u ug f i j o u l o { o i s o q o h l x g o g x l g o o j z hj o h t f g h l n l u l i v w f j o j j f j h| f m l h h l f g h| f jq o h l x g q o w l e l o g e l o h w f j r s l e s i s o e l i v l hs o u q s p j m u o h hy} ~ ~ � � � � � � ��� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ � � � � � � � � � � � � } � �123



ëìí î ï ð
ñ ò ó ô õ ö ô ÷ ó ô ø ò ò ô

ù ú û ü ý þ ÿ

ù � � � � � � ú �ü ú � ù

ü ú ú � ý � ùý � � � � � � ý þ � ý
� � � 	 
 ú � � �

	 � � � ù � � û �

	 � � � ù � � û ù
	 � � � ù � � û ý	 � � � ù � � û 	

	 � � � ù � � û � � þ þ � û ý � � ú �� � � � þ
� � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �

� � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �
� � þ �
 � ù þ ý � � � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �

� � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �
 � � ý � � þ

 � � ý � � þ

ü ú � ù ú � � � � �� � þ � � � � þ �

 � � � ù � þ ù þ ý � �� ú � � � � � � ú �
� ú � � � � � � ú� ��  � � ý � � þ� ú � � � � � � ú � �� � � ý � � � ý þ �

� ú � � � � � � ú� �� � � � � ý � � þ � � � � � � � ý � � þ� � �  � �

� � �  � � ý � � � ý þ �� � �  � � � �� � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �� � �  � �� � � � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �� � �  � �
� � � � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �� � �  � �

� � � � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �� � �  � �

�� � � �� � ��  ! " "# $ � %
�� � � �� � ��  ! " "# $ � & �� � � �� � ' " # #� � �( " # " ) � ) $* %

�� � � �� � ��  !( " # " ) � ) $* &

ü þ ú ü � þ � �� � � �

ü þ ú ü � þ � �� � � �
ü þ ú ü � þ � �� � � �

ù þ ý � � ý û �� ý � � � � � �
� � � � � � � û� � ý � �� � �  � � ý � � þ� � �  � �

� ��  � � ý � � þ� � �  � �

� � �  � � ý � � � ý þ �� � �  � �
	 � � � ù � � û �

� � � � � � � ý � � þ� � �  � �� � �  � � ý � � � ý þ �� � �  � �

� � �  � � ý � � þ� � �  � �

+ � � , - � � � �
� , � , - � � � �

+ � � , - � � � �
+ � � , - � � � �� , � , - � � � �

� , � , - � � � �
� , � , - � � � �

./0 12 32
+ � - � � � �

ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � � ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �
� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � �� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � �

� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � � � ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � �
� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � � � ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � �

� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � � ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �
ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �

ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �
ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �ü ú ú � ù þ ý � �� � þ 4 � � �

� � � 5 -� � � � , - � � � , -
 � , -� � � , , -� � � , , -

� , � , - � � � �

÷øùøúûüýøüûûþøüý ÿ���ÿ��� ������ 	�
����ÿ� ��é�� 	������� �������������� ����������é������
�  ! " #$

% & ' " $
() " " ' ' * ' + " $

�  ! " #$
% & ' " $

() " " ' ' * ' + " $
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

,-./01023-4
,/322.5 620

75.8./ 9,1.
27

: ;<<=<> ?êA
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

B C D C D E F G %E CH C D E F G %D D C D C D E F G %
I J K L J MN J I O K M P N K Q J I

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ�Ï ©̈ © ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð © ¢ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿̈ £ ½̈ Å Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ ¦ Æ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ñ ½ £ ¤ Ç ¤ ½ Æ È Ð § ¡ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ § £̈ Ã § ¢ £ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ÏÒÏ ©̈ © Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡̈ © © Ã ¢ ¦ Ç ¢ £ Á § ¢ § ¡ ½ ©̈ § ½ ¿ § Ã ¤ § Ð ¢ ÇÀ £ ½ ½ © ½ Ð ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ Å ½ Ã ¤ Ç ¤ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿Ï«Ï Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ ¿ ½ £ Ñ ¤ Ã ½ ¿̈ ¦ ÆÆ ¤ ¿ § £ ¤ È Ä § ¤ ¢ ¦ 6 Ã ¢ © © ½ Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿ ¿ ¡̈ © © ¡̈ Ñ ½̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á§ ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ ©̈ ¦ Æ ½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ñ ½ £ § ¤ Ã̈ © ¿ ½ Å̈ £̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ Ç £ ¢ Á̈ © © Ä § ¤ © ¤ § ¤ ½ ¿ Á ½̈ ¿ Ä £ ½ Æ Ç £ ¢ Á¢ Ä § ¿ ¤ Æ ½ Æ ¤̈ Á ½ § ½ £ÏÕÏ Ó ¡ ½ £ ½ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ È ½ ¦ ½̈ § ¡ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ó ¤ § ¡ © ½ ¿ ¿ § ¡̈ ¦ ½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½Ô ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿̈ È ¢ Ñ ½ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿Ô ¢ £ § ¡ ½ § ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½È ½ § Ó ½ ½ ¦ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £© ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã̈ ¦ ¦ ¢ § È ½ Á̈ ¤ ¦ §̈ ¤ ¦ ½ ÆÔ Å ¤ Å ½ ½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½Æ ½ ¿ ¤ À ¦ ½ Æ̈ ¦ Æ Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ½ Æ ¿ ¢̈ ¿ § ¢ Å £ ¢ § ½ Ã § § ¡ ½Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ÏõÏ § ¡ ½ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½ È ½ § Ó ½ ½ ¦ ¿ § ¢ £ Á Æ £̈ ¤ ¦̈ ¦ ÆÓ̈ § ½ £Ô ¤ ¦ ¢ Å ½ ¦ Ã Ä § ¿Ô ½ ¤ § ¡ ½ £̈ È ¢ Ñ ½ ¢ £ È ½ © ¢ ÓÔ ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ï ¤ ¦̈ Æ Æ ¤ § ¤ ¢ ¦Ô Ó ¡ ½ ¦̈ Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ © ¤ ½ ¿È ½ © ¢ Ó̈ ¿ § ¢ £ Á © ¤ ¦ ½Ô ¢ £ Ó ¤ § ¡ ¤ ¦ § Ó ½ ¦ § Ðò Ç ¢ Ä £   Ò Õ ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿È̈ ¢ Ñ ½Ô Ó̈ § ½ £ § ¤ À ¡ § À̈ ¿ ô ½ § ¿ ¢ £ ½ ¾ § ½ £ ¦̈ © ¿ ½̈ © ¤ ¦ À È̈ ¦ Æ ¿¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ä ¿ ½ Æ ¢ ¦ § ¡ ½ ¿ § ¢ £ Á © ¤ ¦ ½ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿ Ç ¢ £̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á¢ Ç § ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¢ ¦ ½̈ Ã ¡ ¿ ¤ Æ ½ ¢ Ç § ¡ ½ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ ¤ ¦ ÀÏ ¿ § ¢ £ Á© ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ ¤ ¦ ¿ §̈ © © ½ Æ ¿ ¢ § ¡̈ §̈ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¤ ¿ ¦ ¢ § Æ ¤ £ ½ Ã § © ÐÈ̈ ¢ Ñ ½ ¢ £ È ½ © ¢ Ó § ¡ ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ÏÏ ©̈ © Æ £ Ð Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð Ã ¢ ¦ Æ Ä ¤ § Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ ¤ ¦ À ¿ ¢ Ç Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £Ô¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¦ ¢ ¦ ò Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ ¤ £ £ ¤ À̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ ¿ ¡̈ © ©È ½ ½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Æ ¤ ¦ ¡ ¤ À ¡ Æ ½ ¦ ¿ ¤ § Ð Å ¢ © Ð ½ § ¡ Ð © ½ ¦ ½   ¡ Æ Å ½ ª Å ¤ Å ½ÔÓ ¤ § ¡ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ Æ ¤ Á ½ ¦ ¿ ¤ ¢ ¦ £̈ § ¤ ¢   ¿ Æ £ ª � �̈ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿§ ¡ ½ ½ ¦ § ¤ £ ½ ½̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¢ £ £ ¤ À ¡ §ò ¢ Çò Ó̈ Ð Ó ¤ Æ § ¡Ï § ¡ ½½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ È Ä § § Ç Ä ¿ ½ ÆÏ Ç © ½ ¾ ¤ È © ½ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿£̈ ½ ¦ ¢ §̈ © © ¢ Ó ½ ÆÏöÏ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢ ½ ¾ Ã̈ Ñ̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦̈ ¦ Æ Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¢ Ñ ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¦ ½̈ £§ ¡ ½ ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿Ô Å © ½̈ ¿ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ §̈ Ã §§ ¡ ½ Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ Æ ½ Å̈ £ § Á ½ ¦ § £ ¤ À ¡ §ò ¢ Çò Ó̈ Ð ¿ §̈ Ç Ç§̈   7 ö ¬ ª « õ ¬ò 7 ö ¬ � Ô § ¢ Ã ¢ Á Å © ½ § ½ § ¡ ½̈ Å Å © ¤ Ã̈ È © ½Æ ¢ Ã Ä Á ½ ¦ §̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ó ¢ £ ô Ó ¤ § ¡ ¤ ¦ § ¡ ½ £ ¤ À ¡ § ¢ Ç Ó̈ Ð̈ ¦ Æ½̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¿ÏóÏ Å £ ¢ Ñ ¤ Æ ½̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á ¢ Ç õ �̈ ¦ Æ̈ Á̈ ¾ ¤ Á Ä Á ¢ Ç  � Æ ½ Å § ¡ ¢ ÇÃ ¢ Ñ ½ £ Ç ¢ £ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ £ Ñ ¤ Ã ½ ¿Ï

� �� �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © ª ��Õ ¬ ó ¬Õ ¬¬ OVERALL

UTILITY PLAN

CX

É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ�Ï ©̈ © ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð © ¢ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿̈ £ ½̈ Å Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ ¦ Æ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ñ ½ £ ¤ Ç ¤ ½ Æ È Ð § ¡ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ § £̈ Ã § ¢ £ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ÏÒÏ ©̈ © Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡̈ © © Ã ¢ ¦ Ç ¢ £ Á § ¢ § ¡ ½ ©̈ § ½ ¿ § Ã ¤ § Ð ¢ ÇÀ £ ½ ½ © ½ Ð ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ Å ½ Ã ¤ Ç ¤ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿Ï«Ï Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ ¿ ½ £ Ñ ¤ Ã ½ ¿̈ ¦ ÆÆ ¤ ¿ § £ ¤ È Ä § ¤ ¢ ¦ 6 Ã ¢ © © ½ Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿ ¿ ¡̈ © © ¡̈ Ñ ½̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á§ ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ ©̈ ¦ Æ ½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ñ ½ £ § ¤ Ã̈ © ¿ ½ Å̈ £̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ Ç £ ¢ Á̈ © © Ä § ¤ © ¤ § ¤ ½ ¿ Á ½̈ ¿ Ä £ ½ Æ Ç £ ¢ Á¢ Ä § ¿ ¤ Æ ½ Æ ¤̈ Á ½ § ½ £ÏÕÏ Ó ¡ ½ £ ½ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ È ½ ¦ ½̈ § ¡ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ó ¤ § ¡ © ½ ¿ ¿ § ¡̈ ¦ ½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½Ô ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿̈ È ¢ Ñ ½ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿Ô ¢ £ § ¡ ½ § ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½È ½ § Ó ½ ½ ¦ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £© ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã̈ ¦ ¦ ¢ § È ½ Á̈ ¤ ¦ §̈ ¤ ¦ ½ ÆÔ Å ¤ Å ½ ½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½Æ ½ ¿ ¤ À ¦ ½ Æ̈ ¦ Æ Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ½ Æ ¿ ¢̈ ¿ § ¢ Å £ ¢ § ½ Ã § § ¡ ½Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ÏõÏ § ¡ ½ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½ È ½ § Ó ½ ½ ¦ ¿ § ¢ £ Á Æ £̈ ¤ ¦̈ ¦ ÆÓ̈ § ½ £Ô ¤ ¦ ¢ Å ½ ¦ Ã Ä § ¿Ô ½ ¤ § ¡ ½ £̈ È ¢ Ñ ½ ¢ £ È ½ © ¢ ÓÔ ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ï ¤ ¦̈ Æ Æ ¤ § ¤ ¢ ¦Ô Ó ¡ ½ ¦̈ Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ © ¤ ½ ¿È ½ © ¢ Ó̈ ¿ § ¢ £ Á © ¤ ¦ ½Ô ¢ £ Ó ¤ § ¡ ¤ ¦ § Ó ½ ¦ § Ðò Ç ¢ Ä £   Ò Õ ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿È̈ ¢ Ñ ½Ô Ó̈ § ½ £ § ¤ À ¡ § À̈ ¿ ô ½ § ¿ ¢ £ ½ ¾ § ½ £ ¦̈ © ¿ ½̈ © ¤ ¦ À È̈ ¦ Æ ¿¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ä ¿ ½ Æ ¢ ¦ § ¡ ½ ¿ § ¢ £ Á © ¤ ¦ ½ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿ Ç ¢ £̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á¢ Ç § ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¢ ¦ ½̈ Ã ¡ ¿ ¤ Æ ½ ¢ Ç § ¡ ½ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ ¤ ¦ ÀÏ ¿ § ¢ £ Á© ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ ¤ ¦ ¿ §̈ © © ½ Æ ¿ ¢ § ¡̈ §̈ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¤ ¿ ¦ ¢ § Æ ¤ £ ½ Ã § © ÐÈ̈ ¢ Ñ ½ ¢ £ È ½ © ¢ Ó § ¡ ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ÏÏ ©̈ © Æ £ Ð Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð Ã ¢ ¦ Æ Ä ¤ § Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ ¤ ¦ À ¿ ¢ Ç Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £Ô¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¦ ¢ ¦ ò Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ ¤ £ £ ¤ À̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ ¿ ¡̈ © ©È ½ ½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Æ ¤ ¦ ¡ ¤ À ¡ Æ ½ ¦ ¿ ¤ § Ð Å ¢ © Ð ½ § ¡ Ð © ½ ¦ ½   ¡ Æ Å ½ ª Å ¤ Å ½ÔÓ ¤ § ¡ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ Æ ¤ Á ½ ¦ ¿ ¤ ¢ ¦ £̈ § ¤ ¢   ¿ Æ £ ª � �̈ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿§ ¡ ½ ½ ¦ § ¤ £ ½ ½̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¢ £ £ ¤ À ¡ §ò ¢ Çò Ó̈ Ð Ó ¤ Æ § ¡Ï § ¡ ½½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ È Ä § § Ç Ä ¿ ½ ÆÏ Ç © ½ ¾ ¤ È © ½ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿£̈ ½ ¦ ¢ §̈ © © ¢ Ó ½ ÆÏöÏ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢ ½ ¾ Ã̈ Ñ̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦̈ ¦ Æ Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¢ Ñ ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¦ ½̈ £§ ¡ ½ ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿Ô Å © ½̈ ¿ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ §̈ Ã §§ ¡ ½ Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ Æ ½ Å̈ £ § Á ½ ¦ § £ ¤ À ¡ §ò ¢ Çò Ó̈ Ð ¿ §̈ Ç Ç§̈   7 ö ¬ ª « õ ¬ò 7 ö ¬ � Ô § ¢ Ã ¢ Á Å © ½ § ½ § ¡ ½̈ Å Å © ¤ Ã̈ È © ½Æ ¢ Ã Ä Á ½ ¦ §̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ó ¢ £ ô Ó ¤ § ¡ ¤ ¦ § ¡ ½ £ ¤ À ¡ § ¢ Ç Ó̈ Ð̈ ¦ Æ½̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¿ÏóÏ Å £ ¢ Ñ ¤ Æ ½̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á ¢ Ç õ �̈ ¦ Æ̈ Á̈ ¾ ¤ Á Ä Á ¢ Ç  � Æ ½ Å § ¡ ¢ ÇÃ ¢ Ñ ½ £ Ç ¢ £ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ £ Ñ ¤ Ã ½ ¿Ï
R Ì S T U V

W X Y Z [ \ ]̂ _ _̀ _ Z a X ] b c Y d̂ _ ae f g h i j k e i l f g m k h i n o l g p e e f j q p g e o r l i sp t t u l e p n u o e l i v f w x j o o u o v e f g h i j k e i l f gh i p g q p j q hy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o p u u f r hw f j t u p g q l h i j l n k i l f g p g q t o j m l ip t t u l e p i l f g y i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o h s p u ug f i j o u l o { o i s o q o h l x g o g x l g o o j z hj o h t f g h l n l u l i v w f j o j j f j h| f m l h h l f g h| f jq o h l x g q o w l e l o g e l o h w f j r s l e s i s o e l i v l hs o u q s p j m u o h hy} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ � � � � � � � � � � � � } � �} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � 8 � � 9 � � � : } � ; < } 8 � } � �} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ = : :> � � ? � 8 = � : � � � � � � � ~ � = � � } � �
@̂ Z d Y X̀ X Y Z W [ A B c b Za X ] b c Y d̂ _ a~ = : ~ } ; �} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � 8 8 � 8 } � � � } � �} � : = ;} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ < � � ; � � � � : ~ � � � : = � � � } � �~ � � � C � � 8 � � D} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ } � ; = � = � � � � } � } � �E ~ � 8} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� } � D � � } � � � � } � �

124



F G H IF G H JF G F IF G F JF G J IF G J JF G K I

F G H IF G H JF G F IF G F JF G J IF G J JF G K I

L IM I IL L M I IL NM I IL HM I IL FM I IL JM I IL KM I IL KM O N

PQ R RST U RVWX YZ [\]^_` abc
defghfifjekfejhl dmnonhmkmdffpqhr kr stt u vwxywyxyyz jnl {|}~xww n��def{|}�x|s ��rt |� �� ��� ����

kmdffpqhr jr { ��z �t }u {�xwsyxysz g fon{|{}xws n��n�{|}wxys �irt |� � n��def{|}vx|s ��rt |� �� ��� ����kmdffpqhrt }r � �}z �t {u �|xsvyxyt z j fon{|{wxt v n��n�{|{t xt v �i�rt |� � n��def{|{yx~v ��rt |� �� ��� ����kmdffpqhrt }r v �}z �t �u {t x{}yxyyz fon{|{~xv� n��n�{|{{xsv �i�rt |� � n��def{|{{xyv ��hrt |� �� ��� ����kmdffpqhrt }r w �}z �t vu {yx}~yxy}z j fon{|�t xtt n��def{|{�xs� ��hrt |� �� ��� ����
�� ��� ����� �� � ��� ¡ ¢£¤ ¥¦§¨© §ª «¬®¯ °± ²³´ µ¶· ¸ ¹º» »¼½ ¾¿ ÀÁºÂ½ ¾Ã ÄÅÆ ÇÈÉ Ê

ËÌ Í ÎÏ Ð Ñ ÒÓÌ ÎÏ Ô Ô ÕÎ Ö × Ø Ù Ú

kd�kjhfhÛhÜm�Üggrt t yu �yyxtt z j jnl {|}vx~v n��n�{|}�xy~ �irt |� �kd�kjhfhÛhÜm�Üggr }t }ut {xywyxyyz jnl {|}|x}| n��n�{|}vx�y �irt |� �

Ý × Ó Þ ß à á Þ Ø âÓ ã Ø ä à Ù ã åÏ Ö Ò Î Ô Ôæ â Ø ç Ó ãè Ý Ö Ý ÎÏ Ô Ýã é Ø ä ç Ó ãè Ý Ö Í êÏ ë ëç ì Ù ä ç Ó ãè Ý Ö Í ëÏ ë Ö

Ú Ø í Ú í Ó ã î ï Ø í é ß îð Ú à Ú ã Ù ã ß á ã Ø Ë à ß ãã ñ à Ó á à ß ï ï Ø í é ß î ðÚ à Ú ã Ù ã ß á ã Ø Ë à ß ã

Ú Ø í Ú í Ó ã î ï Ø í é ß îð Ú à Ú ã Ù ã ß á ã Ø Ë à ß ãã ñ à Ó á à ß ï ï Ø í é ß î ðÚ à Ú ã Ù ã ß á ã Ø Ë à ß ãÎ Ô Ô æ â Ø ò ï Ëå æ â Ø ò ï ËÎ Ô Ôæ â Ø ã ï Ëå æ â Ø ã ï Ë

ã ñ à Ó á à ß ï Ó ç Þ Ë ã

ó ôõ ö ÷ ø ù ú û ü ù ý þ ÿ � � öö� � � �� ��

STORM PLAN

AND PROFILE - A

C7

�����	
��
		��
� ������ ������ �������� ������ ��� !�!� "#$%!&�' &!!!� (((&�)*�����+&��,
- . / 0 12

3 4 5 0 2
67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2

- . / 0 12
3 4 5 0 2

67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

:;<=>?>@A;B
:=A@@<C D@>EC<F<= G:?<@E

H IJJKJL MNO
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

P Q R Q R S T U 3S QV Q R S T U 3R R Q R Q R S T U 3
W X Y Z X [\ X W ] Y [̂ \ Y _ X W

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

à b c deóf ÿ � � g h û i þ û ý j k þ û � û þ l � ù m ÿ þ û ù ý i ÿ ú g ÿ n n ú ù h û o ÿ þ g ÿ ý pi ø ÿ � � q g r g ú û s û g p q l þ ø g m ù ý þ ú ÿ m þ ù ú n ú û ù ú þ ùm ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ýftf ÿ � � m ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ý i ø ÿ � � m ù ý s ù ú o þ ù þ ø g � ÿ þ g i þ m û þ l ù sj ú g g � g l i þ ÿ ý p ÿ ú p i ÿ ý p i n g m û s û m ÿ þ û ù ý ifu c v w x y
z { | } ~ � � � � � � � } � { � � � | � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � ��  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©¡ ª ¤ § ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©®   ¤ ¢ ̄ ° ¢ ® ¢  ¡ ± ª ¢ ² ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢125



³́ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹

³ º » º ¼ » ½́ ¼ ¶́ ¼ ³

¾ ¿ ½ À ³ ½ ¼ µ ¾
Á Â Ã ¿ » ½ À ½ » Äº · Å º Æ º ¼ »

Ç È Ã ¿ » ½ À ½ » Äº · Å º Æ º ¼ »
Ç È Ã ¿ » ½ À ½ » Äº · Å º Æ º ¼ »

¶̧́ ¶ º̧ » ÄÀ ½ ¼ º

É ÊË Ê ÊÌ ÌÍ Î ÎÏ ÐÑ Ò ÒÓÔÕ Ö ÖÓ×Õ Ö ÖØ Ù Ú Û ÛÈ ÂÜ Ý ÝÈ ÂÜ È Ý ¾ ¿ ½ À ³ ½ ¼ µ ·Å º º Å Þ º º » ß È Ý à̧́Å »̧́ Æ ½ ¼ à̧́ Æ · » ½́ ¼ Å º º Å Þ º º » ß á à̧́Å »̧́ Æ ½ ¼ à̧́ Æ · » ½́ ¼

Å º º Å Þ º º » ß â à̧́Å »̧́ Æ ½ ¼ à̧́ Æ · » ½́ ¼

ã ä å · » º̧ Æ · ½ ¼À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ æ ç

ã ä å · » º̧ Æ · ½ ¼À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ æ È

è é ê ëè é ê ìè é è ëè é è ìè é ì ëè é ì ìè é í ë

è é ê ëè é ê ìè é è ëè é è ìè é ì ëè é ì ìè é í ë

î ëï ë ëî î ï ë ëî ðï ë ëî êï ë ëî èï ë ëî ìï ë ëî íï ë ëî íï î ë

ñòóñôõöõ÷õøùúøûûü ýþþ ÿ ���������� ô���ý	ý�ýý �ó
�ó�ý	���� �úü �� �
�� ��� ����� �� � ���� � !"

ñùòöö#$õü ôü � �%� �þþ ÿ 	ý�������� û ö&��ý���	� �ó
�ó�ý	ý��ý �úü �� � �ó
�ó�ý	ý��ý �óüþ ý � �ó
ò'ö�ý	���þ �õü �� �( )*+ ,-./
01 234 56789 :; < :=�� �  ! "

ñùòöö#$õüþ 	üþ � �	� �þ �ÿ �%�	������ ö&��ý�%��� �ó
�ó�ý	���� �úü �� � �ó
ò'ö�ý	ý�ý� �õü �� �( )*+ .->/
?@ AB CD E EF8 9 :; < : =GH IJ KL

ñùòöö#$õüþ 	üþþ �	� �þ 	ÿ %ý�	������ ö&��ý�%��þ �ó
�ó�ý����� �úüþ ý � �ó
ò'ö�ý����� �õü �� �( )*+ M->/
NO PQR S STUV WX Y WZ[\ � ! "

ñùòöö#$õüþ 	üþ � �	� �þ �ÿ �þ �	������ ö&��ý�%��% �ó
�ó�ý�þ �þ � �]úüþ ý � �ó
ò'ö�ý����� �õüþ ý �( )*+ M-^/
NO _`R a a T8 9 :; < : =bc IJ Kd

ñùòöùò'eûõö#$õüþ 	üþ 	 ��� �
þ %ÿ �%�þ ������ ö&��ý�%��ý �ó
�ó�ý����� �]üþ ý � �ó
�ó�ý����þ �úü ý � �ó
ò'ö�ý�þ �ý� �óõüþ ý �( )*+ >-^/

fg hij k ilmn op q qrst uv wx
ý 'óùõôùôø�ó]ö'eüþ 	�þ �þ � �

þ %ÿ 		�������� ô���ý����� �ó
ò'ö�ý���ý� �õü ý �( )*+ >-y/
ã ä Å · ¼ ½ » ·̧ Ä Æ · ½ ¼ Âz ã Ã È z Â ÃÂ ä à ½̧ º À ½ ¼ º{ À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ̧ º | ¿ ½̧ º ³ }È~ È � ç ä å · » º̧ Å º̧ � ½ ß º{ À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ̧ º | ¿ ½̧ º ³ } È z � ÃÈ z � Ãã ä å · » º̧ Æ · ½ ¼{ À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ̧ º | ¿ ½̧ º ³ } È z � Ã È Ý Ý~ Ä̧ å Å º� Á ã Á È z Ý Áº ¿̧ � å Å º� Á ã Ç âz á áå | ß � å Å º� Á ã Ç áz á ãã ä å · » º̧ Æ · ½ ¼{ À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ̧ º | ¿ ½̧ º ³ }ã ä Å · ¼ ½ » ·̧ Ä Æ · ½ ¼ È z � Ã

¶̧́ ¶́ Å º ³ µ̧́ ¿ ¼ ³� ¶ ½ ¶ º ß º ¼ » º̧ À ½ ¼ ºº � ½ Å » ½ ¼ µ µ̧́ ¿ ¼ ³ �¶ ½ ¶ º ß º ¼ » º̧ À ½ ¼ º
È Ý Ý~ Ä̧ Þ µ Àç~ Ä̧ Þ µ ÀÈ Ý Ý~ Ä̧ º µ Àç~ Ä̧ º µ À

ó ôõ ö ÷ ø ù ú û ü ù ý þ ÿ � � öö� � � �� ��

STORM PLAN

AND PROFILE - B

C8

�����	
��
		��
� ������ ������ �������� ������ ��� !�!� "#$%!&�' &!!!� (((&�)*�����+&��,
- . / 0 12

� 4 5 0 2
67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2

- . / 0 12
� 4 5 0 2

67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

:;<=>?>@A;B
:=A@@<C D@>EC<F<= G:?<@E

H IJJKJL MNO
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

P Q R Q R S T U �S QV Q R S T U �R R Q R Q R S T U �
� X Y Z X [\ X � ] Y [̂ \ Y _ X �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

à b c deóf ÿ � � g h û i þ û ý j k þ û � û þ l � ù m ÿ þ û ù ý i ÿ ú g ÿ n n ú ù h û o ÿ þ g ÿ ý pi ø ÿ � � q g r g ú û s û g p q l þ ø g m ù ý þ ú ÿ m þ ù ú n ú û ù ú þ ùm ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ýftf ÿ � � m ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ý i ø ÿ � � m ù ý s ù ú o þ ù þ ø g � ÿ þ g i þ m û þ l ù sj ú g g � g l i þ ÿ ý p ÿ ú p i ÿ ý p i n g m û s û m ÿ þ û ù ý ifu c v w x y
z { | } ~ � � � � � � � } � { � � � | � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � ��  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©¡ ª ¤ § ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©®   ¤ ¢  � ° ¢ ® ¢  ¡ ± ª ¢ ² ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢126



� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �

� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �

� �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �

��������� �� � ���   ¡¢£ �¤¥�¢¤¥¡¦� § �¨©ª«ªª¥¬¢ ©®©ª«¬«¥¤« �¯� ¤ª°   ©®©ª«¬«¥¤« �� ¡«°   ©®�±�ª«¬²¥¦¡ ��� ¤ª°  ³ ´µ¶ ·¸¹º
»¼ ½ ¾¿ À Á ÂÃ ¼ Ä ¿ Å Å ÆÇ È É Ê Ë Ì

��������� �� �¥¡ ���   ¡¡£ ¢²¥ª�¢¥¤¬� § �¨©ª«ª¬¥¬² ©®©ª«¬«¥�² �¯� ¡«°   ©®�±�ª«¬«¥¦² �Í� ¡«°  ³ ´µ¶ Î¸¹º
» ¼ Ï Ð¿ Ð À ÂÑÒ ÓÔ Õ Õ ÖÇ È É Ê Ë Ì

��������� �� �¥¤ ���   ¡¡£ ¦¦¥«ª¤¥¡¦� § �¨©ª«ª¬¥¡¦ ©®�±�ª«¬�¥²� �Í�� ¡«°  ³ ´µ¶ ×¸ØºÙ Ú Û Ù Û Ü Ý Þ ß Ú Û à á Þâ Ù ã Ù Ý ä Ý á å Ý Ú æ ã á ÝÝ ç ã Ü å ã á ß ß Ú Û à á Þ âÙ ã Ù Ý ä Ý á å Ý Ú æ ã á Ýè é éê ë Ú Ý ß æ ì ê ë Ú Ý ß æè é éê ë Ú í ß æ ì ê ë Ú í ß æ ó ôõ ö ÷ ø ù ú û ü ù ý þ ÿ � � öö� � � �� ��

STORM PLAN

AND PROFILE - C

C9

�����	
��
		��
� ������ ������ �������� ������ ��� !�!� "#$%!&�' &!!!� (((&�)*�����+&��,
- . / 0 12

� 4 5 0 2
67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2

- . / 0 12
� 4 5 0 2

67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

:;<=>?>@A;B
:=A@@<C D@>EC<F<= G:?<@E

H IJJKJL MNO
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

P Q R Q R S T U �S QV Q R S T U �R R Q R Q R S T U �
� X Y Z X [\ X � ] Y [̂ \ Y _ X �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

à b c deóf ÿ � � g h û i þ û ý j k þ û � û þ l � ù m ÿ þ û ù ý i ÿ ú g ÿ n n ú ù h û o ÿ þ g ÿ ý pi ø ÿ � � q g r g ú û s û g p q l þ ø g m ù ý þ ú ÿ m þ ù ú n ú û ù ú þ ùm ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ýftf ÿ � � m ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ý i ø ÿ � � m ù ý s ù ú o þ ù þ ø g � ÿ þ g i þ m û þ l ù sj ú g g � g l i þ ÿ ý p ÿ ú p i ÿ ý p i n g m û s û m ÿ þ û ù ý ifu c v w x y
z { | } ~ � � � � � � � } � { � � � | � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � ��  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©¡ ª ¤ § ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©®   ¤ ¢  � ° ¢ ® ¢  ¡ ± ª ¢ ² ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢127



î ï ð ñî ï î òî ï î ñî ï ñ òî ï ñ ñî ï ó ò

î ï ð ñî ï î òî ï î ñî ï ñ òî ï ñ ñî ï ó ò

ô òõ ò ò ô ô õ ò ò ô öõ ò ò ô ðõ ò ò ô îõ ò ò ô îõ ÷ ó

øù ú ûü ý þ ÿ�ù � ü � � �� � � � � 	

������ ��� �� ��� � ��� ���������� ����� �!� �"#�"������$ �%� ��& � �"#�'�����!$ �"� ��& �( )*+ ,-./

01 2 2 23 4 5 6�ù � ü � � �7 8 9 : ; <

������ ��� �$ ��� � ��� $ �������� ��������� �"#�"������� �%� ��& � �"#�'������� �"� ��& �( )*+ =-./

øù ú >ü ú > ÿ?@ AB C C D7 8 9 : ; <

������ ��� �� ��� � ��� $��������� ����$���! �"#�"���$��� ��� ��& � �"#�'���$��� �"� ��& �( )*+ =-E/

FG H IJ K L M?@ A B C C D7 8 9 : ; <

������ ��� � ��� � ��� ���������� ����$��  �"#�'�����$$ �N� ��& �( )*+ ,-O/
����'PQ����� ��� �� ��� �

��� $��������� �����$� � �"#�"������� �%� ��& � �"#�"������� �N� �& � �"#�'������� �"�� ��& �( )*+ =-./
R S T U V W X U Y ZT [ Y \ W ] [ R S T U V W X U Y ZT [ Y \ W ] [^_ R̀ a_ b̀c S d W Y [ e W V [bf b ĝ S h U X [ YT [ Y \ W ] [b _ ì b _ ì

j Y k j k T [ l m Y k n V lo j W j [ ] [ V X [ Y e W V [[ p W T X W V m m Y k n V l oj W j [ ] [ V X [ Y e W V [ b q qf Z Y [ m e^f Z Y [ m e b q qf Z Y r m e^f Z Y r m e s tu v w x y z { | y } ~ � � � vv� � � �� ��

STORM PLAN

AND PROFILE - D

C10

���������������� �������� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ¡�¡�¢ £¤¥¡¦�§ ¦¡¡¡�¨¨¨ ¦�©ª�����«¦��¬
 ®̄ ° ±²

³́ µ ° ²
¶· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²

 ®̄ ° ±²
³́ µ ° ²

¶· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

º»¼½¾¿¾ÀÁ»Â
º½ÁÀÀ¼Ã ÄÀ¾ÅÃ¼Æ¼½ Çº¿¼ÀÅ

È ÉÊÊËÊÌ ÍÎÏ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

Ð Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ó ÑÖ Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ò Ò Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³
× Ø Ù Ú Ø ÛÜ Ø × Ý Ù Û Þ Ü Ù ß Ø ×

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

à á â ã äåsæ � � � ç è { é ~ { } ê ë ~ { � { ~ ì � y í � ~ { y } é � z ç � î î z y è { ï � ~ ç � } ðé x � � � ñ ç ò ç z { ó { ç ð ñ ì ~ x ç í y } ~ z � í ~ y z î z { y z ~ yí y } é ~ z ë í ~ { y }æôæ � � � í y } é ~ z ë í ~ { y } é x � � � í y } ó y z ï ~ y ~ x ç � � ~ ç é ~ í { ~ ì y óê z ç ç � ç ì é ~ � } ð � z ð é � } ð é î ç í { ó { í � ~ { y } éæõ ã ö ÷ ø ù
ú û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � ý � û � � � ü � � � �� 	 
 � �  � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	  � � 
 � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � �  � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � 	 
� � � 
 � �  � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � �� 	  � � � 
 � � � �  � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � �  � � �� � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � �
 	 �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � �  � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � 	  �   	  �� 	 � � � � � 	 
 �� 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � �  � � � � �� ! ! " # $ " % & '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )! * $ ' " + , * + " " - %  $ " ! ! " # $ " % & '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ).  $ " - / 0 " . " - ! 1 * " 2 " + , * + " " - %  $ "128



345 6 7 8
9 : ; < = > ? @ ; ? A : : ?

B C D E F G H

B I J I K J L C K E C K B

E C C M F K BF N I K L J O F G I F
P M Q R S C Q T I

R Q L M B L K D I

R Q L M B L K D B
R Q L M B L K D FR Q L M B L K D RR Q L M B L K D P

U V T F K L J F G OW X Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

Z [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

\ ] Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

Z [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

Z [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J
Z [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K JZ [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

Î _ [ \ V̀ F J I G

Î _ U V T F K L J F G O Î _ a L G IS O B G F K JÎ _ a L G IS O B G F K J
Î _ a L G IS O B G F K J

Î _ a L G IS O B G F K J
bc d e fc g hc i jk l m l n b n op qm o d r

b c d e fc g hc i jk l m l n b n o p qm o d q bc d e fc g s l m mc b ek l m l n b n op r

bc d e fc g hc i jk l m l n b n op q

E t C E I t J OM L K I

E t C E I t J OM L K I

E t C E I t J OM L K I

B t F L K F D II F u I N I K J
Î L u J L K Dù F M I

R Q L M B L K D a v w x y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U \ ] [ _ ] \I� Z \ [ \ \ � X_ \ �

[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW U M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U \ [ X _ � WI� Z \ [ \ \ W ]_ U � [ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK� [ Z U U \ Z [ _ Z WI� Z \ [ \ \ U X_ W ]
a L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O[ Z M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U � \ _ � �K � [ Z U U ] \ Z_ Z ZI� Z \ [ \ [ � W _ W ][ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW U M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U ] \ � _ U WI� Z \ [ \ \ ] W _ � ]

[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U ] X [ _ W �I� Z \ [ \ [ X �_ X U
U V� X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U ] [ � _ Z [I� Z \ [ \ [ X \ _ ] Z[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW W M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U � � � � _ Z �I� Z \ [ \ ] � �_ U W

[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW ] M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK� [ Z U U ] U U_ Z XI� Z \ [ [ � [ �_ � �
[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW U M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK� [ Z U U [ Z [ _ ] UI� Z \ [ [ � � W_ ] \

[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I t[ ] X M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U Z � W _ � �I� Z \ [ \ ] � �_ W X

U V� X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U ] U X_ [ \I� Z \ [ [ � � U _ \ �
U V� X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK� [ Z U U \ � \ _ � �I� Z \ [ [ � ] X_ U �

U V � X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U Z � U _ � XI� Z \ [ \ \ Z U _ W Z
U V � X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK� [ Z U U \ [ X_ Z ZI� Z \ [ \ \ � [ _ \ Ua L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O[ � M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U � [ _ ] ]K � [ Z U U ] � \ _ [ [I� Z \ [ [ � � X _ � [

a L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O[ � M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U W U_ W ]K� [ Z U U \ U �_ Z �I� Z \ [ [ � \ �_ � W
a L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O\ W M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U W � _ Z �K � [ Z U U Z � [ _ � XI� Z \ [ \ \ [ �_ X Z

a L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O\ ] M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U � ]_ \ XK � [ Z U U \ [ ] _ \ [I� Z \ [ \ \ � \ _ W �[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW � M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U [ X � _ [ UI� Z \ [ \ \ ] U_ W X[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW W M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U [ \ Z _ U \I� Z \ [ \ [ � Z_ U Z[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK� [ Z U U ] Z �_ � \I� Z \ [ \ [ ] Z_ W W [ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U ] � � _ W WI� Z \ [ \ \ ] �_ X X[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U [ Z � _ � ZI� Z \ [ \ \ W Z _ Z [

[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK� [ Z U U W X ]_ � �I� Z \ [ \ [ ] \ _ U Z

[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U [ [ X _ \ UI� Z \ [ [ � W U_ W �
[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U [ ] ]_ X �I� Z \ [ [ � � Z _ � W

P Q J L K [ \ V � U V J I Ì � J RP C K K I P J J C Î _ F̀ J I tK � [ Z U � � ] � _ � �I� Z \ [ \ [ � U_ � U

P Q J L K U V� U V J I Ì � J RP C K K I P J J C Î _ F̀ J I tK � [ Z U U � \ X _ � \I� Z \ [ [ U � ] _ � �

[ \ ] M a� U V E � P̀ F J I t N F L K
Z U M a� U V E � PF̀ J I t N F L K

Z \ M a � U V E � P̀ F J I t N F L K
[ � U M a� U V E � P̀ F J I t N F L K[ � U M a� U V E � P̀ F J I t N F L KU V � U V J I Ì � J R �v w � � � � y z { | } � � � � { � � | � � �K � [ Z U U W ] �_ ] ZI� Z \ [ [ � \ �_ � ]

v w x y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U W � X_ \ ]I� Z \ [ \ \ [ Z _ Z W

X V a L t I J F EK� [ Z U U ] Z �_ � ZI� Z \ [ \ ] U � _ � XX V a L t I u I t � L P IW ] M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U ] ] ]_ � �I� Z \ [ \ ] U [ _ [ �

X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U [ ] �_ W WI� Z \ [ [ � � [ _ � �
X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U W X [ _ \ [I� Z \ [ \ ] � �_ U Z

X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U \ Z X_ ] �I� Z \ [ \ \ U W _ U �
X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U ] � � _ \ �I� Z \ [ \ \ [ ]_ U �X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U ] X Z_ \ �I� Z \ [ \ [ � �_ \ �

X V a L t I u I t � L P IW ] M a� X V B L EK� [ Z U U ] � Z_ [ [I� Z \ [ [ � [ W _ ] �
X V a L t I u I t � L P IW U M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U [ Z �_ U WI� Z \ [ [ � � \ _ W U

X V a L t I u I t � L P I[ ] X M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U Z � � _ ] ]I� Z \ [ \ ] � \ _ W X X V a L t I u I t � L P IW U M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U \ \ [ _ \ �I� Z \ [ \ \ Z � _ Z ]
X V a L t I u I t � L P IW W M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U [ \ �_ X �I� Z \ [ \ [ � �_ ] �

X V a L t I u I t � L P IW � M a� X V B L EK� [ Z U U ] Z Z_ X �I� Z \ [ \ \ ] �_ � [v w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K � [ Z U U ] X �_ X �I� Z \ [ \ [ U \ _ X Uv w � � � y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K � [ Z U U ] Z �_ � ]I� Z \ [ \ ] � �_ \ ]v w x y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U ] X �_ ] �I� Z \ [ [ � X W_ W X
X V a L t I J F EK� [ Z U U [ \ [ _ ] WI� Z \ [ [ � W X _ � Zv w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U \ X [ _ X UI� Z \ [ [ � ] [ _ \ Z

v w x y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U W X �_ U UI� Z \ [ [ � W W_ \ ]U V D F J I � F M � IK� [ Z U U W X �_ X XI� Z \ [ [ � W �_ \ ]U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U W X �_ Z \I� Z \ [ [ � Z U _ ] Z
U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U � \ \ _ U \I� Z \ [ [ U � W _ Z [ U V J I Ì � J RK� [ Z U U W � ]_ � ]I� Z \ [ [ � W [ _ W Xv w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K � [ Z U U W X U _ \ �I� Z \ [ [ � Z U _ � �

U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U ] � Z_ X ZI� Z \ [ \ [ W �_ X Z
U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U ] � X _ � \I� Z \ [ \ [ � �_ [ WU V J I Ì � J RK � [ Z U U ] � �_ [ UI� Z \ [ \ [ � ] _ Z U

U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U \ \ � _ � WI� Z \ [ \ \ U �_ � �

s t� v w x � z { | � } ~ � � � vv� � � �� �� WATER PLAN

C11

���������������� �������� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ¡�¡�¢ £¤¥¡��§ �¡¡¡�¨¨¨ ���ª�����«���¬
� ®̄ ° ±²

³́ µ ° ²
�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²

� ®̄ ° ±²
³́ µ ° ²

�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

º»¼½¾¿¾�Á»�
º½Á��¼Ã Ä�¾�Ã¼Æ¼½ Çº¿¼��

È ÉÊÊËÊÌ ÍÎÏ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

Ð Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ó ÑÖ Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ò Ò Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³
  Ø ¡ ¢ Ø ÛÜ Ø   £ ¡ Û ¤ Ü ¡ ß Ø  

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¥ á ¦ §̈ åsæ � � � ç è { é ~ { } ê ë ~ { � { ~ ì � � © � ~ { � } é � z ç � î î z � è { ï � ~ ç � } ðé x � � � ñ ç ò ç z { ª { ç ð ñ ì ~ x ç © � } ~ z � © ~ � z î z { � z ~ �© � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � }æôæ � � � © � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � } é x � � � © � } ª � z ï ~ � ~ x ç � � ~ ç é ~ © { ~ ì � ªê z ç ç � ç ì é ~ � } ð � z ð é � } ð é î ç © { ª { © � ~ { � } éæ�æ î z � ò { ð ç � ï { } { ï ë ï � ª « v � } ð � ï � è { ï ë ï � ª � v ð ç î ~ x � ª© � ò ç z ª � z ¬ � ~ ç z ï � { } é � } ð é ç z ò { © ç é ç è © ç î ~ ª � z� � ¬ ç z { } ê éæ®æ ¬ � ~ ç z ï � { } � � ¬ ç z { } ê é¯ z ç ª ç z ç } © ç © { ~ ì � ª ê z ç ç � ç ìé ~ � } ð � z ð ð ç ~ � { � ¬° «æ
õ § ö ÷ ø ù

ú û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � ý � û � � � ü � � � �� ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
 � � ² ³ � � � 
 � � � ±́ � � 
 � � µ � ³ �� � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � ± � �́ � � � � � � ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
² ³ � 
 � �́ � ²¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � � � � ± µ ²� ±́ � � � 
 � � ² ³́ � � � ³ � ± 
 � 
 � � �́ � � ³� � � � � � � ³ � ± 
¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � ² � � � �
 ± ³́ � � � � · � ³ � � � � ² � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � �́ � ²�́ ² � ± 
 ² � � � � � ³ � � ±́ �́́ ±́ ²� ± � � ² ² � ± 
 ²� ±́� � ² � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � ² � ±́ µ � � � � ³ � � � � ³ � � ²� � � � � �́ � � � ² ²¶¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )¹ * $ ' " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ).̧ $ " - » 0 " . " - ¹ 1 * " 2 " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ), - " " ¼ " ' 2 * - " ½̧ - 0 1̧ ¼ %̧ $ "129



¾ ¿ À Á¾ ¿ À Â¾ ¿ ¾ Á¾ ¿ ¾ Â¾ ¿ Â Á¾ ¿ Â Â¾ ¿ Ã Á¾ ¿ Ã Â

¾ ¿ À Á¾ ¿ À Â¾ ¿ ¾ Á¾ ¿ ¾ Â¾ ¿ Â Á¾ ¿ Â Â¾ ¿ Ã Á¾ ¿ Ã Â

Ä ÁÅ Á Á Ä Ä Å Á Á Ä ÆÅ Á Á Ä ÀÅ Á Á Ä ¾Å Á Á Ä ÂÅ Á Á Ä ÃÅ Á Á Ä ÇÅ Á ÁÈÉ Ê ËÌ Í Î ÏÐÑ ÒÓ Ô Ò ÕÖ × Ø Ù Ú
ÛÛÜÝÞ ß àáâ ã ßäå áæçèéäçääâê ëÜáéááçáß ëìíëìáéîßçéä àÛïÞ éð ã ëìíëìáéîñçää àÛòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîßçéä àìòÞ éð ãö ÷øù úûüýþ ÛÛÜÝÞ ñ àáâ ã ßßå îñçñéäçääâê ëÜáéáÿçé� ëìíëìáéîñçæß àÛÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîñçèß àìïÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú�ü�þ

�� � �� � � 	
� � � � �Ö × Ø Ù Ú
ÛÛÜÝÞ î àáâ ã ßßå æèçáîäçääâ �ê ëÜáéáÿçèæ ëìíëìáéîîçßæ àÛÞ éð ã ëìíëìáéîîçßæ àòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîñç�æ àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú�üýþ

�� � � �� � � ��� �� � � � ! " # $
ÛÛÜÝÞ á àáâ ã ßîå ññçäæäçääâê ëÜáéáéçèè ëìíëìáéîèçèæ àÛÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîèçîæ àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú�üûþ

� � � % &� & � ��� �� � � � ! " # $
ÛÛÜÝÞ è àáâ ã ßèå ßæçÿßäçääâê ëÜáéèäçèè ëìíëìáéîéçæä àòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîéçèä àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù úûü'þ

() * +, - . /�� �� � � �0 1 2 3 4
ÛÛÜÝÞ ÿ àáâ ã ßèå èèçÿÿäçääâê ëÜáéèßçéé ëìíóôõáéî�çñæ àïÞ éð ãö ÷øù úûüýþ

ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßîå è�çè� Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîÿçßî Ûòê íëìí7 áéîæçîî ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßîå æèç�� Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîÿçîæ Ûòê íëìí7 áéîæçèæ ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßèå áñçäñ Ü6ëìëìí7 áéî�çäæ Ûòê íëìí7 áéáäçñæ

éð Ü6ëì éð Ü6ëì ÿð 8ëê ò

ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßîå äßçæ� Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîèçäÿ Ûòê íëìí7 áéîÿçñÿ9: ; <= > ? @ A B C D =E = F G ? H I A J C@ J C K L M J9 ? N O P C I Q A R I A 9 : 9 <S : T < T : > < T: ; <> ? H I A J C D I L Q 9 ? U L C J R L Q JJ V L @ A L Q W W C I P J I AX L X J M J Q A J C R L Q J X C B X B @ J P W C I P J I AX L X J M J Q A J C R L Q J

s t� v w x � z { | � } ~ � � �s t� v w ò ç z ~ { © � � � vv® � Y �® �� ® SANITARY PLAN

AND PROFILE - A

C12

���������������� �������� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ¡�¡�¢ £¤¥¡��§ �¡¡¡�¨¨¨ ���ª�����«���¬
� ®̄ ° ±²

³́ µ ° ²
�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²

� ®̄ ° ±²
³́ µ ° ²

�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

º»¼½¾¿¾�Á»�
º½Á��¼Ã Ä�¾�Ã¼Æ¼½ Çº¿¼��

È ÉÊÊËÊÌ ÍÎÏ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

Ð Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ó ÑÖ Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ò Ò Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³
  Ø ¡ ¢ Ø ÛÜ Ø   £ ¡ Û ¤ Ü ¡ ß Ø  

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¥ á ¦ §̈ åsæ � � � ç è { é ~ { } ê ë ~ { � { ~ ì � � © � ~ { � } é � z ç � î î z � è { ï � ~ ç � } ðé x � � � ñ ç ò ç z { ª { ç ð ñ ì ~ x ç © � } ~ z � © ~ � z î z { � z ~ �© � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � }æôæ � � � © � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � } é x � � � © � } ª � z ï ~ � ~ x ç � � ~ ç é ~ © { ~ ì � ªê z ç ç � ç ì é ~ � } ð � z ð é � } ð é î ç © { ª { © � ~ { � } éæõ § ö ÷ ø ù
ú û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � ý � û � � � ü � � � �� ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
 � � ² ³ � � � 
 � � � ±́ � � 
 � � µ � ³ �� � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � ± � �́ � � � � � � ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
² ³ � 
 � �́ � ²¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � � � � ± µ ²� ±́ � � � 
 � � ² ³́ � � � ³ � ± 
 � 
 � � �́ � � ³� � � � � � � ³ � ± 
¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � ² � � � �
 ± ³́ � � � � · � ³ � � � � ² � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � �́ � ²�́ ² � ± 
 ² � � � � � ³ � � ±́ �́́ ±́ ²� ± � � ² ² � ± 
 ²� ±́� � ² � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � ² � ±́ µ � � � � ³ � � � � ³ � � ²� � � � � �́ � � � ² ²¶¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )¹ * $ ' " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ).̧ $ " - » 0 " . " - ¹ 1 * " 2 " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "130



¾ ¿ À Á¾ ¿ À Â¾ ¿ ¾ Á¾ ¿ ¾ Â¾ ¿ Â Á¾ ¿ Â Â¾ ¿ Ã Á¾ ¿ Ã Â

¾ ¿ À Á¾ ¿ À Â¾ ¿ ¾ Á¾ ¿ ¾ Â¾ ¿ Â Á¾ ¿ Â Â¾ ¿ Ã Á¾ ¿ Ã Â

Ä ÁÅ Á Á Ä Ä Å Á Á Ä ÆÅ Á Á Ä ÀÅ Á Á Ä ¾Å Á Á Ä ÂÅ Á Á Ä ÃÅ Á Á Ä ÇÅ Á Á Ä ¿Å Á Á

ÛÛÜÝÞ î àáâ ã ßäå èääçääâ �ê ëÜáéáÿçèæ ëìíëìáéîîçßæ àÛÞ éð ã ëìíëìáéîîçßæ àòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîñç�æ àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú�üýþ

Z[ \ ]^ _ ] `ab cd e f gh i j k l
ÛÛÜÝÞ é àáâ ã ßîå îñçîéäçääâ �ê ëÜáéáèçñæ ëìíëìáéîèç�æ àÛÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîèçææ àïÞ éð ãö ÷øù münþ

op q r st u r va b c d e f gh i j k l
ÛÛÜÝÞ � àáâ ã ßèå î�çÿéäçääâê ëÜáéá�çáè ëìíëìáéîæç�î àÛïÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîæçæî àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù úúüwþ

xy z { |} ~ | �� y �} { � �� � � � �
ÛÛÜÝÞ ßä àáâ ã ßÿå �îçáääçääâê ëÜáéèßçæ� ëìíóôõáéáßçææ àìòÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú'ü'þ

ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßäå �éçÿÿ Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîîçè� Ûòê íëìí7 áéîáçæ� ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßáå äßçîä Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîÿçèæ Ûòê íëìí7 áéîæçææ ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßÿå ßäç�ÿ Ü6ëìëìí7 áéî�çæñ Ûòê íëìí7 áéáäç�ñ
ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßÿå éîçáä Ü6ëìëìí7 áéáßçèñ Ûòê íëìí7 áéáñçæñ= : 9 <9 ? U L C J R L Q J =E = F G ? H I A J C@ J C K L M JT : � < T : � <op q � �t r � va b c d e f g� � � � �

9 ? N O P C I Q AR I A J C I R 9 ? U L C J R L Q J=E = F G ? H I A J C@ J C K L M J =E = F G ? L C C L W I A L B Q@ J C K L M J 9 ? U L C J R L Q J=E = F G ? H I A J C@ J C K L M JÛÛÜÝÞ æ àáâ ã ßîå äèçäßäçääâê ëÜáéáèçÿ� ëìíëìáéîèçèá àòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîèçîá àïÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú'ü�þ
9 ? N O P C I Q AR I A J C I R

� : S < 9 : � <9: = < T: > < T: � < �: � <�: � <

J V L @ A L Q W W C I P J I AX L X J M J Q A J C R L Q JX C B X B @ J P W C I P J I AX L X J M J Q A J C R L Q J

s t� v w x � z { | � } ~ � � �s t� v w ò ç z ~ { © � � � vv® � Y �® �� ® SANITARY PLAN

AND PROFILE - B

C13

���������������� �������� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ¡�¡�¢ £¤¥¡��§ �¡¡¡�¨¨¨ ���ª�����«���¬
� ®̄ ° ±²

³́ µ ° ²
�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²

� ®̄ ° ±²
³́ µ ° ²

�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

º»¼½¾¿¾�Á»�
º½Á��¼Ã Ä�¾�Ã¼Æ¼½ Çº¿¼��

È ÉÊÊËÊÌ ÍÎÏ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

Ð Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ó ÑÖ Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ò Ò Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³
  Ø ¡ ¢ Ø ÛÜ Ø   £ ¡ Û ¤ Ü ¡ ß Ø  

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¥ á ¦ §̈ åsæ � � � ç è { é ~ { } ê ë ~ { � { ~ ì � � © � ~ { � } é � z ç � î î z � è { ï � ~ ç � } ðé x � � � ñ ç ò ç z { ª { ç ð ñ ì ~ x ç © � } ~ z � © ~ � z î z { � z ~ �© � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � }æôæ � � � © � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � } é x � � � © � } ª � z ï ~ � ~ x ç � � ~ ç é ~ © { ~ ì � ªê z ç ç � ç ì é ~ � } ð � z ð é � } ð é î ç © { ª { © � ~ { � } éæõ § ö ÷ ø ù
ú û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � ý � û � � � ü � � � �� ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
 � � ² ³ � � � 
 � � � ±́ � � 
 � � µ � ³ �� � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � ± � �́ � � � � � � ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
² ³ � 
 � �́ � ²¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � � � � ± µ ²� ±́ � � � 
 � � ² ³́ � � � ³ � ± 
 � 
 � � �́ � � ³� � � � � � � ³ � ± 
¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � ² � � � �
 ± ³́ � � � � · � ³ � � � � ² � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � �́ � ²�́ ² � ± 
 ² � � � � � ³ � � ±́ �́́ ±́ ²� ± � � ² ² � ± 
 ²� ±́� � ² � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � ² � ±́ µ � � � � ³ � � � � ³ � � ²� � � � � �́ � � � ² ²¶¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )¹ * $ ' " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ).̧ $ " - » 0 " . " - ¹ 1 * " 2 " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "131



��������� � ^ �

345 6 7 8

� � � ����������� ¡¢£¤¥¦§¨©ª«¬®¯°±²³´ µ ¶ · ¸ ¹ º » ¼½ ¾ ¿ À½ Á Â½ Ã Ä Å ÅÆ Ç ¾ È
¼½ ¾ ¿ À½ Á Â½ Ã Ä Å ÅÆ Ç ¾ É ¼½ ¾ ¿ À½ Á Ê Å Æ Æ½ ¼ ¿Ë Å Æ Å Ì ¼ Ì ÇÍ È

¼ ½ ¾ ¿ À½ Á Â½ Ã ÄË Å Æ Å Ì ¼ Ì ÇÍ É

Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ï Ò ÓÔ Õ Ö Ñ

Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ï Ò ÓÔ Õ Ö Ñ

Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ï Ò ÓÔ Õ Ö Ñ
× Ñ Ø Õ Ù Ñ Ö Ò Ú Û × Õ Ö× Ò Û Ö Ø Û Ï Ø Ü Ø Ý Þ Ø ß Û Þ Ï Ñ Ú Û × Õ Öàá â ã äÞ Ô á å å äæ Ø á ç è é ê ç ë

× Ñ Ø Õ Ù Ñ Ö Ò Ú Û × Õ Ö Ð Ü Ò Ô Ñ Ò Î Õ Î Ñ Ò ÐØ Õ × Þ æ Û Ï ì Ñ Õ Ö Ò Ð Ñ í Õ × Ò Õ Ö ì × à Û Ô ÑîÝ Ð Ô Ô Ð à Õ Ö ì Ñ í Õ × Ò Õ Ö ì Ø Ï Û Õ Ö Û ì ÑÎ Û Ò Ò Ñ Ï Ö ×
ï ðñ ò ó ô õ ö ÷ ø õ ù ú û ü ý òòþ ÿ � ÿþ ÿÿ EROSION CONTROL

PLAN - INITIAL

C14

� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � 
 � � ��ú ô  �   ö õ � ÷ õ ù � õ ù ú ö õ ü �  ú û ÷ ü � ô û �  �   ù � � � � ÷ ú ú  � ú õ ú ô � ÷ ú � õ � � ö   ü  � ÷ ù � � ü � ÷ ü ü �  ù ú õ � ú ô  � ÷ ú � � ö ÷ ú  ö ÷ û�û � � ÷ ú ÷ õ ù û ü  ö õ � ÷ õ ù û ù � �  � ÷ �  ù ú � õ ù ú ö õ ü �  û � � ö  � � û � � ù   �  � ÷ � � ù � õ ö  �   ù � ö õ � ü  � � õ � � � ö õ ö ÷ � ú ô  � � � � ÷ ú ú  �� ü û ù � õ  � ù õ ú � � ù � ú ÷ õ ù û � ÷ ù ú  ù �  �� ú ô  ö  � � ÷ ö  �  ù ú � õ �ú ô ÷ � � ü û ù � ô û ü ü ö � ù � ÷ ú ô ú ô  ü û ù � û ù � �  ú ô  õ � ü ÷ � û ú ÷ õ ù õ �ú ô  ü û ù � õ � ù  ö � ù ú ÷ ü � � � ô ú ÷ �  û � ú ô  � ü û ù ÷ � � ö õ �  ö ü �� õ � � ü  ú  �� � õ � ÷ � ÷  �� õ ö � õ ÷ �  � � ù õ ú � ú ô  �   ö õ � ÷ õ ù û ù ��  � ÷ �  ù ú � õ ù ú ö õ ü �  ú û ÷ ü � ÷ ù û ù � õ � ú ô  � �  ü �  � ú õ ù õ ú� � ü � ÷ ü ü ú ô  ö  � � ÷ ö  �  ù ú � õ � ú ô  � õ ü õ ö û � õ �  � û ö ú �  ù ú õ �� � � ü ÷ � ô  û ü ú ô û ù �  ù � ÷ ö õ ù �  ù ú� � ú õ ö � � û ú  ö � õ ù � ú ö � � ú ÷ õ ù�  ö � ÷ ú � õ ö û � ú õ ö � � û ú  ö � û ù û �  �  ù ú � ü û ù ó � � � � ý �õ � ù  ö
� � � � � �ï � û ü ü  � ÷ � ú ÷ ù � � ú ÷ ü ÷ ú � ü õ � û ú ÷ õ ù � û ö  û � � ö õ � ÷ � û ú  û ù �� ô û ü ü �  �  ö ÷ � ÷  � � � ú ô  � õ ù ú ö û � ú õ ö � ö ÷ õ ö ú õ� õ ù � ú ö � � ú ÷ õ ù �� � û ü ü � õ ù � ú ö � � ú ÷ õ ù � ô û ü ü � õ ù � õ ö � ú õ ú ô  ü û ú  � ú � ÷ ú � õ �� ö   ü  � � ú û ù � û ö � � û ù � � �  � ÷ � ÷ � û ú ÷ õ ù �� � � õ ù � � ü ú ú ô  ü û ù � � � û �  � ü û ù � õ ö û ö  û � ú õ �  �   �  �û ù � � � ü � ô  � � ÷ ú ô ù û ú ÷ �  � ÷ � �   � � û ü ü õ ú ô  ö û ö  û � ú õ�  � û �  � õ ö ü û ù � � � û �  � �  ö ú ô  ü û ù � � � û �  � ü û ù �þ� � õ ù ú ö û � ú õ ö � ÷ ü ü �  ö  � � ÷ ö  � ú õ � �   � õ ö � û � � � � û ù �� ÷ � ÷ � ü  �  � ÷ �  ù ú ú ô û ú ÷ � ú ö û � !  � õ ù ú õ � ÷ ú � � ú ö   ú � �"�  � õ# � û ù � õ ö  � � ÷ � û ü  ù ú � ÷ ü ü �  ö  � � ÷ ö  � ú õ �  � �  �� � ö ÷ ù � � õ ù � ö  ú  � ü û �  �  ù ú û � ú ÷ � ÷ ú ÷  � � õ ö � õ ù � ö  ú � û � ô# õ � ú � �  û ö ú ô � û � ô # õ � ú � ÷ ú � � ÷ ü ü ù õ ú �  û ü ü õ �  � õ ùú ô  � ö õ $  � ú � ÷ ú  � �  ú õ ú ô  � ÷ ø  õ � ú ô  � ö õ $  � ú û ù �� ö õ � ÷ � ÷ ú � ú õ û ù  � ú û � ü ÷ � ô  � � ö û ÷ ù û �  � û ��� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 	 � % � � &�� ÷ ü ú �  ù � � ÷ �  ö � ÷ õ ù � ÷ ! � ú û � û ü ÷ ø  � � ú û � ÷ ù � û ö  û�  ô ÷ � ü  ú ö û � ! ÷ ù � � õ ù ú ö õ ü�  � ÷ �  ù ú � û � ÷ ùú  � � õ ö û ö � � ü õ �  � ö û ÷ ù÷ ù ü  ú � ö õ ú  � ú ÷ õ ùõ � ú ü  ú � ö õ ú  � ú ÷ õ ù� õ ù � ö  ú  � û � ô õ � ú û ö  û� � ö � û �  ö õ � � ô  ù ÷ ù �' � � ü � ô ÷ ù �ú  � � õ ö û ö � �   � ÷ ù ��  ö � û ù  ù ú �   � ÷ ù �

()*)+,-.)-,,/)-. 01120345 678997 :6;<7920=> 9?@98 :ABCD1D1E FGHDI2JCIDDD3KKK IALM9A<@<NIABO
PQ R S TU

V W X S U
YZ S S X X [ X \ S U

PQ R S TU
V W X S U

YZ S S X X [ X \ S U
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

]^_`abacdef
]`dcc_g hcaig_j_` k]b_ci

l mnnonp qrs
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

t u v u v w x y Vw uz u v w x y Vv v u v u v w x y V
{ | } ~ | �� | { � } � � � } � | {

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

� � � � 
 �
� � � � � 
 	 � � 
 � � � � � � ��ï � ÷ ù � ú û ü ü �  � ÷ �  ù ú � û � ÷ ù � ö ÷ õ ö ú õ � ÷ � ú � ö � û ù �  õ � ï � ÿ û � ö � � ÷ ù � ú û ü ü � ÷ ü ú �  ù �  û ö õ � ù � � õ � ù � û ö � õ � � ÷ ú  � ÷ ù � ú û ü ü � ÷ �  ö � ÷ õ ù � ÷ !  � ú õ � õ ù �  � � ú õ ö � � ü õ � � ú õ�  � ÷ �  ù ú � û � ÷ ù �

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � ¡ � � � � ¢ ¡ � �   £ � � ¤¡ ¥ ¥ ¦ � � ¡ � ¦   � � � § �̈ © �     ¦   § � � � � � � � � � � � �� � ¡ � ¢ ¡ � ¢ �ª � ¤   � � � § « � ¡ � �   ¥ � ¡ � �   ¡ ¦ ¦ � £ ��̈ � ¥ ¦ ¡ � ¢ � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � ¢ ¥   � � � �¡ ¥ ¥ ¦ � � ¡ � � � �ª � ¤   � � � § « � ¡ � �   ¥ � ¡ � �   � ¤ ¡ ¦ ¦� � � �   ¦ �   ¬   � ¤   ¢   � � © �   � © � �     � « ��   � ¥ � � � � � � ¦ � � §̈ � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �¢   � � © � ¢  ̈ � � �   � � �   �̈ � � £ ¤ � � ¤ � ¤   � � � § � �¤   ¦ ¢ ¤ ¡ � � ¦   � �ª®̄̄ ° ± ² ° ³́ µ¶· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·¯̧ ² µ ° ¹ º̧ ¹ ° ° » ³ ® ² °132



¼½¾ ¿ À Á ÂÃÄç Å ä
Æ Ç È ÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÊÊÉËÌÍÎÏÐÑÒÓÔÕÖ×ØÙÚÛÜÝÞßà á â ã ä å æ ç

è é ê ë ì í î ï è ð ñ ò ó ë ï ô ï è ê é ë é õöë ò ÷ é ø ò ê ë ì í î ò ñ ñ ò ó ë ï ô ï è ì ê ï ÷ ò ù ú ÷ ì è è ò ë

ô ê é í î û ï ù ò ì ë ò ì
üý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � � � �� � þ �

üý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � � � �� � þ 	 üý þ ÿ �ý � 
 � � �ý ü ÿ� � � � � ü � � �

ü ý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � �� � � � � ü � � 	

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

� �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��� � � �� �� EROSION CONTROL

PLAN - INTERIM

C15

 ! " # $ " % & " % ' ! " ( ) & &  * ' ) % &  +� � , - , , � � - � � � . � � � � � � / , � � � � - � � 0 , 1 , , � - 2 1 3 � � � , / � � � � ,. � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4 � � 5 2 � 5 � � � 3 , � � � 5 � � , . � � 4 . � � � , � � �7� / / � � � � � � � , � � - � � � � � / - , / � 3 , � � . � � � � � � 3 , � - 2 � , - 3 � 4 1 ,� , , / , / � 5 2 � 5 � � , - , , � 8 � � 1 � , 3 - � . . 2 � � � � 5 � � , - 2 1 3 � � � , /8 � � � / � , - � � � 5 2 � . � � � � � - � � � , � / , /7 � � , � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � - � 5� � � - 8 � � � - � � � � � 2 � : � � � � � , � � � / � � / 1 , � � , � 1 � � 6 � � � � � � 5� � , � � � / � : � , � 2 � � � � - 2 . � � � 3 , � - � � , 8 � � � � - 8 � � 8 , � � 4. � 3 8 � , � , /; 3 � / � 5 � , /; � � 0 � � / , / 7 � � � ,< � � , - , , � � - � � � � � /- , / � 3 , � � . � � � � � � / , � � � � - � � � � / � 5 � � , 3 - , � 0 , - � � � � �5 2 � 5 � � � � � , � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � - � 5 � � , . � � � � � / � / , 8 � � � 3 , � � � 58 2 1 � � . � , � � � � � � / , � 0 � � � � 3 , � �< - � � � 3 : � � , � . � � - � � 2 . � � � �8 , � 3 � � 5 � � � - � � � 3 : � � , � 3 � � � 6 , 3 , � � 8 � � � � - : 3 8 � 7� : � , �
% " '  # +� 7 � � � , = � - � � � 6 2 � � � � � 4 � � . � � � � � - � � , � 8 8 � � = � 3 � � , � � /- � � � � 1 , 0 , � � 5 � , / 1 4 � � , . � � � � � . � � � 8 � � � � � �. � � - � � 2 . � � � � 7> 7 � � � . � � - � � 2 . � � � � - � � � � . � � 5 � � 3 � � � � , � � � , - � . � � 4 � 56 � , , � , 4 - � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � -7?7 . � � - 2 � � � � , � � � / - . � 8 , 8 � � � 5 � � � � , � - � � 1 , - , , / , /� � / 3 2 � . � , / : � � � � � � � 0 , 3 � = - , , / 7 � � � � � � , � � � , � - � �1 , 8 � 0 , / � � � � � / - . � 8 , / 8 , � � � , � � � / - . � 8 , 8 � � � 7�7 . � � � � � . � � � : � � � 1 , � , 9 2 � � , / � � - : , , 8 � � 0 � . 2 2 3 � � 40 � - � 1 � , - , / � 3 , � � � � � � � - � � � . @ , / � � � � . � � 4 - � � , , � - 7A7 , . �B 8 � � - � � , 9 2 � 0 � � , � � : � � � 1 , � , 9 2 � � , / � � 1 , 2 - , // 2 � � � 6 . � � . � , � , 8 � � . , 3 , � � � . � � 0 � � � , - 5 � � . � � . � , � ,: � - �B � 2 � - 7 , � � � � : � - � B � 2 � 8 � � - : � � � � � � 1 , � � � � : , / � �� � , 8 � � C , . � - � � , / 2 , � � � � , - � � , � 5 � � , 8 � � C , . � � � /8 � � = � 3 � � 4 � � � � , - � � 1 � � - � , / / � � � � � 6 , : � 47 ! " # $ " % & " % ' ! " ( (  D  % E+- � � � 5 , � . ,/ � 0 , � - � � � / � @ ,- � � 1 � � � � , / - � � 6 � � 6 � � , �0 , � � . � , � � � . @ � � 6 . � � � � � �- , / � 3 , � � 1 � - � �� , 3 8 � � � � 4 - � � 8 , / � � � �� � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � �� 2 � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � �. � � . � , � , : � - � � 2 � � � , �- 2 � 5 � . , � � 2 6 � , � � � 6F 3 2 � . � � � 6� , 3 8 � � � � 4 - , , / � � 68 , � 3 � � , � � - , , / � � 6

GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¢  £ ¤ ) *
$ % '  ! $ ¤ * ¥ ) #  % " '  #+� 7 � � - � � � � � � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � � � � . , � � � , � � � - 1 , , � � � - � � � � , / 7> 7 / � 0 , � - � � � / � @ , - . � � 1 , � , 3 � 0 , / � � . , 8 � 0 , 3 , � � � � -1 , , � 8 � � . , /; � � / - � � � 3 5 � � : - . � � 1 , � � 2 � , / � � � � � , � -1 4 8 , � 3 � � , � � 3 , � � - � . 2 � 1 F 6 2 � � , �; � � / . � � - - 8 � � - �?7 - � � � 5 , � . , � � � , 3 � � � � � 8 � � . , � � � � 2 6 � � 2 � � � � , � � 3 8 � � - , 7�7 - , / � 3 , � � 1 � - � � � � 1 , � , 3 � 0 , / � � / � , 8 � � . , / 1 48 , � 3 � � , � � / , � , � � � � � 1 � - � � � � / � 2 � � , � - � � 2 . � 2 � , 7

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔÕ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î133



ÚÛÜ Ý Þ ß
üý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � � � �� � þ �

üý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � � � �� � þ 	 üý þ ÿ �ý � 
 � � �ý ü ÿ� � � � � ü � � �

ü ý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � �� � � � � ü � � 	

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò
û ò ë ÷ ì è ò è ê ô ò ò ñ ï è ð ï èû é è ñ ù ï ÷ ï ê ô é è ù úà û é è ñ ô ò ò ñ ÷ ï á â

� �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��� � � �� �� EROSION CONTROL

PLAN - FINAL

C16

 ! " # $ " % & " % ' ! " ( ) & &  * ' ) % &  +� � , - , , � � - � � � . � � � � � � / , � � � � - � � 0 , 1 , , � - 2 1 3 � � � , / � � � � ,. � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4 � � 5 2 � 5 � � � 3 , � � � 5 � � , . � � 4 . � � � , � � �7� / / � � � � � � � , � � - � � � � � / - , / � 3 , � � . � � � � � � 3 , � - 2 � , - 3 � 4 1 ,� , , / , / � 5 2 � 5 � � , - , , � 8 � � 1 � , 3 - � . . 2 � � � � 5 � � , - 2 1 3 � � � , /8 � � � / � , - � � � 5 2 � . � � � � � - � � � , � / , /7 � � , � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � - � 5� � � - 8 � � � - � � � � � 2 � : � � � � � , � � � / � � / 1 , � � , � 1 � � 6 � � � � � � 5� � , � � � / � : � , � 2 � � � � - 2 . � � � 3 , � - � � , 8 � � � � - 8 � � 8 , � � 4. � 3 8 � , � , /; 3 � / � 5 � , /; � � 0 � � / , / 7 � � � ,< � � , - , , � � - � � � � � /- , / � 3 , � � . � � � � � � / , � � � � - � � � � / � 5 � � , 3 - , � 0 , - � � � � �5 2 � 5 � � � � � , � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � - � 5 � � , . � � � � � / � / , 8 � � � 3 , � � � 58 2 1 � � . � , � � � � � � / , � 0 � � � � 3 , � �< - � � � 3 : � � , � . � � - � � 2 . � � � �8 , � 3 � � 5 � � � - � � � 3 : � � , � 3 � � � 6 , 3 , � � 8 � � � � - : 3 8 � 7� : � , �
% " '  # +� 7 � � � , = � - � � � 6 2 � � � � � 4 � � . � � � � � - � � , � 8 8 � � = � 3 � � , � � /- � � � � 1 , 0 , � � 5 � , / 1 4 � � , . � � � � � . � � � 8 � � � � � �. � � - � � 2 . � � � � 7> 7 � � � . � � - � � 2 . � � � � - � � � � . � � 5 � � 3 � � � � , � � � , - � . � � 4 � 56 � , , � , 4 - � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � -7?7 . � � - 2 � � � � , � � � / - . � 8 , 8 � � � 5 � � � � , � - � � 1 , - , , / , /� � / 3 2 � . � , / : � � � � � � � 0 , 3 � = - , , / 7 � � � � � � , � � � , � - � �1 , 8 � 0 , / � � � � � / - . � 8 , / 8 , � � � , � � � / - . � 8 , 8 � � � 7�7 . � � � � � . � � � : � � � 1 , � , 9 2 � � , / � � - : , , 8 � � 0 � . 2 2 3 � � 40 � - � 1 � , - , / � 3 , � � � � � � � - � � � . @ , / � � � � . � � 4 - � � , , � - 7A7 , . �B 8 � � - � � , 9 2 � 0 � � , � � : � � � 1 , � , 9 2 � � , / � � 1 , 2 - , // 2 � � � 6 . � � . � , � , 8 � � . , 3 , � � � . � � 0 � � � , - 5 � � . � � . � , � ,: � - �B � 2 � - 7 , � � � � : � - � B � 2 � 8 � � - : � � � � � � 1 , � � � � : , / � �� � , 8 � � C , . � - � � , / 2 , � � � � , - � � , � 5 � � , 8 � � C , . � � � /8 � � = � 3 � � 4 � � � � , - � � 1 � � - � , / / � � � � � 6 , : � 47 ! " # $ " % & " % ' ! " ( (  D  % E+- � � � 5 , � . ,/ � 0 , � - � � � / � @ ,- � � 1 � � � � , / - � � 6 � � 6 � � , �0 , � � . � , � � � . @ � � 6 . � � � � � �- , / � 3 , � � 1 � - � �� , 3 8 � � � � 4 - � � 8 , / � � � �� � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � �� 2 � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � �. � � . � , � , : � - � � 2 � � � , �- 2 � 5 � . , � � 2 6 � , � � � 6F 3 2 � . � � � 6� , 3 8 � � � � 4 - , , / � � 68 , � 3 � � , � � - , , / � � 6

GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¢  £ ¤ ) *
ã $ % ) ( * ¥ ) #  % " '  #+� 7 � � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � � � � 1 , � , 3 � 0 , / � 5 � , � � � � 8 � 0 , 3 , � � � � -1 , , � 8 � � . , / � � / - , , / � � 6 ä 3 2 � . � � � 6 � 8 , � � � � � � - � � ,5 � � � � � � , / 7> 7 � , 3 � 0 , - � � � 5 , � . ,?7 � , 3 � 0 , 0 , � � . � , � � � . @ � � 6 . � � � � � � � � . , , � � � � � . , � -� , � / 4 � � 1 , 8 � 0 , /7�7 � , 3 � 0 , / . � � . � , � , : � - � � 2 � � � , � � � . , � � � . � � . � , � ,8 � � . , 3 , � � � - 5 � � � � � � , / 7

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔÕ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î

#   E $ % D % " '  #+� 7 - , , . � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4 � - , . � � � � � � 7 � 7 ? 7 / B - , , / � � 6 � 5 � �- , , / � � 6 � , . � � � 9 2 , - � � / � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � -7> 7 � � 4 � � , � - � � - � � , � � � � : � � � � � � 1 , � � � / - . � 8 , / : � � � 2 - ,� � � : 6 � � : 3 � = �; 8 , � - , . � � � � � �7 � 7 ?7 / � � �? 7 / , � , � � � � � 8 � � / � � , � : � � � � , 9 2 � � , � 8 � � / 3 � = �; 8 , �- , . � � � � � �7 � 7 ?7 / � ? �7

134



å7 � � æ çè æé ê ëì íîï ðè ñéò ó ôõö÷ø ùú ûüý þÿ ö÷ø ùú
� �� � � � �� � � �� 	 
 �å7 � �

�  � ���� � �� � � � ���� ��

��� � !"� � ! "� � å 7 � �
� �� � �� �� � � å7 � �

> � 7 � �� å 7 � � � å7 � �å7 � �
� > A �7 � �#$% &' ()* +, � å 7 � �

-. ./0 12� å 7 � � 345 67
� å7 � � � å 7 � �å7 � �

å7 � �
89 : ; å7 � �

� � � 7 � � å 7 � �
<=> ?@

A BC B D EF G HI
 	 
 �
1 � ��

�
��

�
� 11

1

1>
>

> >
>

���
�

� � � �
��

�
�

...
.. . ..

. � . .
....

.
JKLM N O PQ

� ��

�
�

�3 � � 2 3 , � �- � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��� � � �� ��
R S T U V T W X Y U R Z [ \ X Z S Y U U Y Z W R]� � � 8 � � @ � � 6 5 � � , � � � , � - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �� . . , - - � 1 � , 8 � � @ � � 6 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �0 � � � . . , - - � 1 � , 8 � � @ � � 6 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �- � � 8 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �� > ?R Z [ Ŝ S U T X Y U R Z [ \ X Z S Y U U Y Z W R]: � � � , 5 � 2 � � � � � � . � : � / , 8 � � @ � � 6 � � � - � � � 8 � � 6� / � - � � � 8 � � 6 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �. � � - - : � � @ - � � � 8 � � 6 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � ��1 .

�
R S T U V T W V U _ R Z [ Ŝ S U T T W U W [ V̀ U Y Z W R]� 7 � � � . � � - � � 2 . � � � � - � � � � . � � 5 � � 3 � � � � , � � � , - � . � � 4 � 56 � , , � , 4 - � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � -7> 7 : � , � , . � � - � � 2 . � � � � / , � � � � - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � - � � ,� � � , / � � � � , - , 8 � � � -; 2 - , � � , . � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4- � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � - 5 � � / , - � 6 � � � /. � � - � � 2 . � � � � 7?7 8 � � @ � � 6 � � � - � � � 8 � � 6 - � � � � 1 , : � � � , � � / 5 � 2 � � � � � � . � , -� - : � / � � ; 2 � � , - - � � � , � : � - , � � � , / 7

SIGNAGE &

STRIPING PLAN

CX

R S T U V T W X Y U R Z [ \ X Z S Y U U Y Z W R]� � � 8 � � @ � � 6 5 � � , � � � , � - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �� . . , - - � 1 � , 8 � � @ � � 6 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �0 � � � . . , - - � 1 � , 8 � � @ � � 6 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �- � � 8 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �� > ?R Z [ Ŝ S U T X Y U R Z [ \ X Z S Y U U Y Z W R]: � � � , 5 � 2 � � � � � � . � : � / , 8 � � @ � � 6 � � � - � � � 8 � � 6� / � - � � � 8 � � 6 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �. � � - - : � � @ - � � � 8 � � 6 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � ��1 .
�

R S T U V T W V U _ R Z [ Ŝ S U T T W U W [ V̀ U Y Z W R]� 7 � � � . � � - � � 2 . � � � � - � � � � . � � 5 � � 3 � � � � , � � � , - � . � � 4 � 56 � , , � , 4 - � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � -7> 7 : � , � , . � � - � � 2 . � � � � / , � � � � - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � - � � ,� � � , / � � � � , - , 8 � � � -; 2 - , � � , . � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4- � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � - 5 � � / , - � 6 � � � /. � � - � � 2 . � � � � 7?7 8 � � @ � � 6 � � � - � � � 8 � � 6 - � � � � 1 , : � � � , � � / 5 � 2 � � � � � � . � , -� - : � / � � ; 2 � � , - - � � � , � : � - , � � � , / 7
GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¢  £ ¤ ) *
¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð ÎÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕØ Ù Î Î a Î Ó b Ö Ù Î c Ì Ù d e Ì a Ñ Ì Ð Î135



fgh
� > �

! ij kl m n m l o m p q r l s t u v w x lq m l n x u n y t z { p t n r | t } t z t m n

SIGNAGE &

STRIPING DETAILS

C18

! ~ j ~� � � n z x q n t v u

GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð ÎÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕØ Ù Î Î a Î Ó b Ö Ù Î c Ì Ù d e Ì a Ñ Ì Ð Î136



GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

�����|����~
� �����~�~�

�|�~��
� ������ ���

K
JS

K
JS

/E
A

P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

WATER & SEWER

DETAILS

C19

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð ÎÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ� Ì Ð Î Ù � d Î � Î Ù Í e Ö Î b Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î137



GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

�����|����~
� �����~�~�

�|�~��
� ������ ���

K
JS

K
JS

/E
A

P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

STORM SEWER

DETAILS

C20

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð ÎÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ� Ì Ð Î Ù � d Î � Î Ù Í e Ö Î b Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î138



GRADING DETAILS

C21

GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î139



 
 
 
 
 

1 of 2 
 
 1101 Bannock Street | Denver, CO 80204 

 
www.norris-design.com 

GATEWAY PARK II PUD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
Proposed Preliminary PUD code application.  
Land Uses. The Gateway Park II PUD would allow multi-family, single-family, townhomes, and duplex uses, and 
accessory uses allowed per Development Code as amended; except deviations as requested.  
Deviations. Reduced setbacks 25 to 15 at street, building height increase from 40 to 60, buffer yard decreased from 
10 to 6 feet. The alternatives compliance would be that additional landscape buffer of 15%, an increase in amenity 
credits from 2 to 8 credits, and 1 bonus credit.  These amenity credits are features that have been included to 
accommodate the setbacks proposed in this PUD. The amenities provided shall exceed both the 1984 PUD and 
current City of Greeley Development Code standards with the intent to offset any impacts created by setback 
distances that deviate from City of Greeley Development Code standards. 

Building heights and locations. All residential height of buildings proposed in the Preliminary PUD shall be not be 
taller than 60 feet. Accessory structures shall comply with the Development Code as amended. The building height of 
60 feet may only be allowed beyond the 15-foot setback along Centerplace Drive, and 10 feet internally (see 
Attachment K - Setback Exhibit). No structures may be allowed within the setbacks illustrated in this exhibit. 
Density. The proposed conceptual density for the PUD shall be 24 density units per acre  
Setback minimums. A 15-foot setback for all building from the northern edge of Centerplace Drive is required for all 
buildings on the south.  
An internal 10-foot setback for all building from all other property lines. 
A 5-foot minimum setback is required for parking to maximize available space necessary to meet City of Greeley 
Development Code and as amended for parking requirements. 
Standards for PUD Establishment 
Development code standards. The Gateway Park II PUD is compliant with Development Code standards, and as 
amended of the City of Greeley. The proposed area for the Gateway Park II PUD is substantial in size with a total of 
7.11 acres which surpasses the minimum threshold of 2 acres required to establish a new PUD. The site design 
presented in the site plan of this application meets the overall intent of the City of Greeley Development Code and is 
consistent with the Housing section under the Goals and Objectives chapter of the City of Greeley’s Imagine Greeley 
Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2/6/2018) - see “Consistency with Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan” explained 
further in the Project Narrative accompanied within this application. 
Site plan compatibility. The site plan for this application pays particular attention to compatibility within the 
Development Code and is designed to continue the functional relationship of the surrounding area including Gateway 
Place and Creekside Apartments.  All designed standards shall be compatible with the Development Code standards 
as amended. 
Parking. Off Street Parking shall meet Chapter 18.42 of the Development Code Standards, and as amended. All 
standards presented here are subject to all applicable Development Code Standards, and Code Standards as 
amended. 
Conformance with the Subdivision Regulation 
Site considerations. The site is relatively flat and does not have any steep slopes, unstable land with expansive 
soils, or inadequate drainage that would cause on-site flooding. There is no railroad right of way on or adjacent to the 
site, nor are there any existing features such as large trees, watercourses, historic sites, etc. that would be  
considered irreplaceable. 
  

Attachment E

140



 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 
 1101 Bannock Street | Denver, CO 80204 

 
www.norris-design.com 

Streets, alleys, and easements. Two points of access shall be provided for the property. A full-motion intersection 
shall provide access to the site from 36th Avenue and Centerplace Drive. A second access point shall be provided on 
the northwest side of the site leveraging the existing parking drive aisle that connects to the adjacent Gateway Place 
Apartments north of the project site.  
As described above, it is clear the project intent is to reach above and beyond development code standard to provide 
a high quality of life for its future residents through an enhanced and expanded program of amenities and services.  

141



11th St

12th St

3rd Street Rd

8th St

6th St

6
3
rd

A
ve

1st St

W

Canberra Street Dr

5th St

6th Street Rd

7
2
n

d
 A

v
e

6
2
n
d

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

6
9
th

 A
v
e

7
1
s
t

A
ve

6
6
th

A
v e

7
0
t h

 A
v
e

2nd St

3rd St

7
4
th

 A
v
e

7
3
rd

 A
v
e

9th St

Grizzly Dr

6
1
s
t

A
ve

6
2
n
d

A
ve

6
9
th

 A
v
e

6
1
s
t

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

Dundee Ave

8th St

7
1
st

A
v
e

10th St 10th St

4th St
4th St

O
Notes:

All planimetric data was digitized from
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992,
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates
are continual and data representations
will change over time.  This product is
not necessarily accurate to engineering
or surveying standards but does meet
National Mapping Accuracy
Standardds (NMAS).  The
information contained within this
document is not intended to be used
for the preperation of  construction
documents.

Information contained on this
document remains the property of  the
City of  Greeley. Copying any portion
of  this map without the written
permission of  the City of  Greeley is
strictly prohibited.

Ecological Significant Areas

Created: November 27, 2018
By: duranm, CD

CityCenterWestRes.mxd

0 500 1,000250

Feet

Former 
Hewlett-Packard

Complex

City Center West

SITE

Legend

High

Moderate

Subject Subdivision Area

Westridge Academy

Boomerang Links 
Golf Course

City Center West 
Preliminary Residential Subdivision

Attachment F

142



C
h

ap
te

r 
2:

 E
xi

st
in

g
 T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 C

on
d

it
io

n
s 

2-
2

20
35

 C
om

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 T
ra

n
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 P
la

n
 

F
ig

u
re

 2
-1

: E
xi

st
in

g
 R

oa
d

w
ay

 N
et

w
or

k
 

Attachment G

143



Fi
gu

re
 4

-5
: N

et
w

or
k 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

B
ic

yc
le

 N
et

w
or

k 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s

G
re

el
ey

, C
O

Le
ge

nd

4-4-
44 

 
 

G
r

G
re

eee
lele

yy 
BiBi

cycy
clcl

ee 
M

a
M

as
tst
erer

P P
lala

nn

Attachment H

144



kk

kk

kk

kk
kkkk

kk kk

kk

kk
kk

kk
kk

kk

kk

kk
kk

kk

kk

kk
kk

kk
kk

kk

kk

kk
kk

Boomerang
Dt

ich

Gr
ee

ley
& L

ov
ela

nd
Ca

na
l

G
re

e le
y C

an
al

#3

Gr
ee

ley
Ca

na
l #

2

Gr
ee

ley
Can

al#3

Sh
ee

pDraw

As
hc

ro
ft D

raw

E at on Draw

Gr aham Seep

Sand Creek

So
ut

hP
lat

te
Rive

r

Ca
ch

el
aP

ou
dr

eR
ive

r

North
BoomerangDitch

G rap
ev

ine
Dit

ch

R
ov

er
 R

un
D

og
 P

ar
k

C
oy

ot
e

R
un

 P
ar

k

R
od

ar
te

Pa
rk

Ph
ea

sa
nt

R
un

 P
ar

k Ep
pl

e
Pa

rk

Fr
an

kl
in

Pa
rk

B
ro

ad
vi

ew
Pa

rk
W

es
tm

oo
r

Pa
rk

K
iw

an
is

Pa
rk

Li
nc

ol
n

Pa
rk

A
lle

n
Pa

rk

Tr
ip

le
C

re
ek

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e

Pu
m

pk
in

R
id

ge
N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a

H
un

te
rs

C
ov

e 
W

es
t

M
on

fo
rt

Pa
rk

Lu
th

er
Pa

rk
G

re
el

ey
C

ou
nt

ry
C

lu
b

Su
nr

is
e

Pa
rk

B
itt

er
sw

ee
t

Pa
rk

C
ou

nt
ry

C
lu

b 
W

es
t

N
at

ur
al

 A
re

a
Sh

er
w

oo
d

Pa
rk

M
ee

ke
r

M
us

eu
m

Pe
ak

V
ie

w
Pa

rk
Li

nn
 G

ro
ve

C
em

et
er

y

Yo
ut

h
Sp

or
ts

C
om

pl
ex

C
ot

to
nw

oo
d

Pa
rk

D
is

co
ve

ry
B

ay
 P

oo
l

W
oo

db
ria

r
Pa

rk

G
le

nm
er

e
Pa

rk

Ea
st

M
em

or
ia

l
Pa

rk
H

ig
hl

an
d

H
ill

s 
G

ol
f

C
ou

rs
e

Sa
nb

or
n

Pa
rk

C
en

te
nn

ia
l

Pa
rk

G
re

el
ey

W
es

t P
ar

k
Le

av
y

Pa
rk

B
al

sa
m

Sp
or

ts
C

om
pl

ex
D

el
ta

Pa
rk

B
re

nt
w

oo
d

Pa
rk

Fa
rr

Pa
rk

Jo
se

ph
in

e
Jo

ne
s 

Pa
rk

A
nn

a 
G

im
m

es
ta

d
M

em
or

ia
l P

ar
k

Ji
m

m
y'

s
Pa

rk

Po
ud

re
R

iv
er

 R
an

ch
N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a

B
oo

m
er

an
g

G
ol

f C
ou

rs
e

Fo
rb

es
Fi

el
d

Is
la

nd
G

ro
ve

Pa
rk

Is
la

nd
 G

ro
ve

M
ul

ti-
U

se
Fi

el
d

Pr
om

on
to

ry
Pa

rk

Tw
in

 R
iv

er
s

Pa
rk

 a
nd

Fa
m

ily
 F

un
pl

ex

R
am

se
ie

r
Pa

rk

H
om

es
te

ad
Pa

rk

B
al

sa
m

D
og

 P
ar

k

G
at

ew
ay

 L
ak

es
N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a

M
c 

C
lo

sk
ey

Tr
ai

l N
at

ur
al

A
re

a

Ea
st

 M
em

or
ia

l
N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a

Po
ud

re
Po

nd
s P

ar
k

1s
t A

ve
Po

nd
 P

ar
k

G
al

le
ry

G
re

en

Pl
um

b
Fa

rm

Po
ud

re
Le

ar
ni

ng
C

en
te

r

H
ou

st
on

 G
ar

de
ns

G
le

nm
er

e
W

ild
lif

e
Sa

nc
tu

ar
y

W
in

ds
or

Ev
an

s

16
th

St

18
th

St

Se
rvi

ce

8thAve

95thAve

8th
St

34
th

St

US Hwy 85

71stAve

N47thAve

23
rd

St

1stSt

37
th

St

7thSt

E
18

th
St

US
Hw

y 3
4

10
th

St
re

et
Rd

4th
St

35thAve

N11thAve

10
th

St

20
th

St

N23rdAve

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
66

23rdAve

W
aln

u t
St

9th
St

5th
St

10thAve 11thAve

O
St

59thAve

47thAve

N35thAve

E
8th

St

Ea
st m

an
Pa

rk
Dr

CountyRoad17

StateHwy257

N 8th Ave

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
64

1/2

83rdAve

AA
St

US
Hw

y3
4

Bu
s

65thAve

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
64

1stAve

St
ate

Hw
y2

63

St
ate

Hw
y3

9 2

CountyRoad27

CountyRoad35

CountyRoad33

E
C

St

CountyRoad41

CherryAve

CountyRoad19

N83rdAve

Tw
o R

ive
rs

Pk
wy

N59thAve

CountyRoad29

CountyRoad31

Co
un

t y
Ro

ad
62

CountyRoad43

CountyRoad45

PA
RK

S,
 T

RA
IL

S,
 A

N
D

 O
PE

N
 L

A
N

D
S 

PL
A

N
M

A
ST

ER
 P

LA
N

No
te

s:
Al

l p
lan

im
etr

ic 
da

ta 
wa

s 
dig

itiz
ed

 fr
om

 a
er

ial
 p

ho
tog

ra
ph

s 
da

ted
 1

98
7,

19
92

,1
99

5,
20

00
, 2

00
5, 

an
d 

20
08

. U
pd

ate
s

ar
e 

co
nti

nu
al

an
d 

da
ta

re
pr

es
en

tat
ion

s 
wi

ll c
ha

ng
e 

ov
er

tim
e.

 T
his

 p
ro

du
ct

is 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

rily
ac

cu
ra

te 
to

en
gin

ee
rin

g 
or

 su
rve

yin
g s

tan
da

rd
s b

ut 
do

es
 m

ee
tN

ati
on

al
Ma

pp
ing

 A
cc

ur
ac

y 
St

an
da

rd
ds

 (
NM

AS
). 

 T
he

 in
for

ma
tio

n 
co

nta
ine

d
wi

thi
n 

thi
s 

do
cu

me
nt

 is
 n

ot 
int

en
de

d 
to 

be
 u

se
d 

for
 th

e 
pr

ep
er

ati
on

 o
f

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 do

cu
me

nt
s.

Inf
or

m
ati

on
 c

on
tai

ne
d 

on
 th

is 
do

cu
me

nt
 re

ma
ins

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty 

of 
the

Ci
ty

of 
Gr

ee
ley

.C
op

yin
g

an
y 

po
rtio

n 
of 

thi
s 

ma
p 

wi
tho

ut 
the

 w
ritt

en
pe

rm
iss

ion
of 

the
 C

ity
 o

f G
re

ele
yi

s s
tric

tly
 pr

oh
ibi

ted
.

´

W
ate

rb
od

y

City Limits

Long Range Growth Area

Ma
jor

 R
oa

d

Cr
ea

ted
: 5

/19
/20

13
 by

: G
os

sa
rd

B
Re

vis
ed

 p
er

 ad
op

tio
n8

/2
0/2

01
3

by
 B

ar
ne

ttJ

0
1

2
3

4
0
.5

M
ile

s

G
RE

EL
EY

Minor Road

Sp
ec

ia
lty

 P
a

rk
s (

G
ol

f C
ou

rs
es

, D
og

 P
a

rk
s, 

M
us

eu
m

s, 
Po

ol
s)

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d
 P

ar
ks

Re
gi

on
al

 &
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ar

ks
, S

p
or

ts
 C

om
p

le
xe

s

N
a

tu
ra

l A
re

a
s

kk
N

ew
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
a

rk

kk
N

ew
 N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Pa
rk

N
o 

Pa
rk

 M
a

st
er

 P
la

n

N
o 

Tr
a

il M
a

st
er

 P
la

n

Bi
ke

 T
ra

il -
 E

xis
tin

g

Sh
a

re
d 

Us
e 

Pa
th

 - 
Ex

ist
in

g

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 T

ra
il 

- E
xi

st
in

g

O
n-

St
re

et
 L

a
ne

s

Bi
ke

 T
ra

il -
 F

ut
ur

e

Sh
ar

ed
 U

se
 P

a
th

 - 
Fu

tu
re

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 T

ra
il 

- F
ut

ur
e

Bi
ke

 L
a

ne
, F

ut
ur

e
Th

e 
20

02
 P

ar
ks

 M
as

te
r P

lan
 a

nd
 2

00
2 

Co
nc

ep
tu

al
Tr

ail
s 

Pl
an

 d
id 

no
t 

co
ve

r 
th

e 
ful

l e
xte

nt
 o

f 
th

e
cu

rre
nt 

Lo
ng

 R
an

ge
 G

ro
wt

h A
re

a.
Fu

tu
re

 tr
ail

 fa
cil

itie
s d

o 
no

t in
clu

de
 a

ss
um

ed
 cr

os
s-

se
cti

on
s f

ro
m 

th
e 

20
35

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Ma

ste
r P

lan
 w

hic
h 

sp
ec

ifie
s

sh
ar

ed
 u

se
 pa

th 
an

d b
ike

 la
ne

 fa
cil

itie
s o

n 
all

 fu
tur

e a
rte

ria
l ro

ad
wa

ys
 a

nd
 b

ike
 la

ne
s o

n a
ll f

utu
re

 co
lle

cto
r r

oa
dw

ay
s.

M
A

P 
4

Attachment I

145



��������� � � 	


��  � �

439.96'

240.41'

300.86'

4850

4850

4851

4852

4853

4849

4848

4847

4846

4845

4853

4844

4843

4842

4
8
4
1

4849

4851

4852

4853

4852

4852

4853

4855

4841

4840

4839

4838

4837

4836

4835

4
8
4
9

4
8
4
8

4
8
4
7

4
8
4
64
8
4
5

4
8
4
4

4
8
4
3

4854

4
8
5
5

4
8
5
4

4
8
5
3

4
8
5
3

4
8
5
1

4
8
5
0

4849

4848

� � � � � � � �� � � �� � � � � � � � � !R

� " � � �#
$ � � � #

� � � � � � % � � � #
� " � � �#

$ � � � #
� � � � � � % � � � #

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

&'()*'+,'-
.//,0'11)2

31/(2)4)0 5,6)1(
7 899:9; <=>

GATEWAY PLACE APARTMENTS II, LLC
C/O CONVERGENCE MREG
50 S. STEEL ST., STE 420

DENVER, CO 80209
ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

G
B

 / 
N

P
 / 

K
S

JN
 / 

R
M

� ? @ � � @ � � A A B $C � �� � @ � � @ � � A A B $C � �
D E F G E HI E D J F H K I F L E D

1101 Bannock Street

Denver, Colorado 80204

P 303.892.1166

www.norris-design.com

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

ZONING/PROPERTY

BOUNDARY AND

SITE ANALYSIS MAP

RZ-01

Parcel 2

0.642 Acres

Zoning/PropertyArea

310,713.48 Square Feet

7.133 Acres

Proposed Zone: PUD (Residential)

Existing Zone: PUD (Gas Well)

Parcel 1

6.491 Acres

Plugged and

Abandoned

Gas Well

Probable
Access Point

Probable
Access Point

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE CIRCULAR SHAPE OF THE PROPERTY

AREA CLOSES IN ON ITSELF AND FALLS

WITHIN THE EXISTING PUD ZONING OVERLAY.

THEREFORE, THE PROPERTY BOUNDARY AND

THE ZONING BOUNDARY ARE THE SAME.

2. TOPOGRAPHY IS PROVIDED AT1-FOOT

INTERVALS.

3. THE SITE IS VACANT LAND WITHOUT ANY

EXISTING UTILITIES, EASEMENTS, IRRIGATION

DITCHES, HEAD GATES, WASTE DITCHES,

NATURAL DRAINAGE PATTERNS, BODIES OF

WATER, WATER COURSES, FLOODPLAINS, OR

FLOODWAYS.

4. THERE IS NO SIGNIFICANT VEGETATION OR

TREES ON SITE, NOR ARE THERE ANY AREAS

OF ECOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE, WETLANDS,

STEEP SLOPES, ETC.

5. THE SITE HAS A PLUGGED AND ABANDONED

GAS WELL ON SITE.

MNOPQRS

Existing
site fence

Existing
parking lot

Existing
tennis court

Existing
tot lot

Existing
basketball

court

Existing
garages

Existing
garages

Apartments

Apartments

Apartments LEGAL AND ZONING PERIMETER DESCRIPTION:

“THE SURFACE ONLY OF A CIRCULAR TRACT OF LAND

LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 14,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 66 WEST OF THE 6TH

P.M., CITY OF GREELEY, WELD, COUNTY, COLORADO,

HAVING A RADIUS OF 300 FEET, THE CENTER OF SAID

TRACT BEING LOCATED AT A POINT WHICH BEARS

SOUTH 46 DEGREES, 15 MINUTES, 32 SECONDS WEST,

1370.65 FEET FROM THE E 1/4 CORNER OF SAID

SECTION 14. COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF

COLORADO.

THE ABOVE DESCRIPTION WAS PREPARED FOR

ZONING PURPOSES ONLY.

PREPARED BY:

________________________________________

LAND SURVEYOR

EXISTING ZONING:

PUD (GAS WELL)

PROPOSED ZONING:

PUD (RESIDENTIAL)

146



TUVWXYWYZ [ \ ]

^_` a b c

439.96'

240.41'

300.86'

4850

4850

4851

4852

4853

4849

4848

4847

4846

4845

4853

4844

4843

4842

4
8
4
1

4849

4851

4852

4853

4852

4852

4853

4855

4841

4840

4839

4838

4837

4836

4835

4
8
4
9

4
8
4
8

4
8
4
7

4
8
4
64
8
4
5

4
8
4
4

4
8
4
3

4854

4
8
5
5

4
8
5
4

4
8
5
3

4
8
5
3

4
8
5
1

4
8
5
0

4849

4848

d e f g h i j ik i l im n o p q r st j i uR

e v d q fw
x o g q w

m h q q g g y g p q w
e v d q fw

x o g q w
m h q q g g y g p q w

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

z{|}~{��{�
�����{��}�

���|�}�}� ���}�|
� ������ ���

GATEWAY PLACE APARTMENTS II, LLC
C/O CONVERGENCE MREG
50 S. STEEL ST., STE 420

DENVER, CO 80209
ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

G
B

 / 
N

P
 / 

K
S

JN
 / 

R
M

i � � i r � r l � � � x� i rr r � i r � r l � � � x� i k
� � � � � �� � � � � � � � �   � �

1101 Bannock Street

Denver, Colorado 80204

P 303.892.1166

www.norris-design.com

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

ZONING

SUITABILITY MAP

RZ-02

Parcel 2

0.642 Acres

Zoning/PropertyArea

310,713.48 Square Feet

7.133 Acres

Proposed Zone: PUD (Residential)

Existing Zone: PUD (Gas Well)

Parcel 1

6.491 Acres

Proposed
Access Point

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THERE ARE NO EXISTING OR PROPOSED

COMMERCIAL USES FOR THIS PUD.

2. THERE ARE NO PROPOSED COLLECTOR OR

ARTERIAL STREETS FOR THIS PUD.

3. DETENTION AREA AND ACCESS POINTS ARE

CONCEPTUAL AND SUBJECT TO FINAL PUD

APPROVAL.

4. THE GAS WELL ON SITE IS PLUGGED AND

ABANDONED.

5. THE PLUGGED AND ABANDONED GAS WELL

DOES NOT HAVE ANY SETBACKS.

6. THE ACCOMPANIED PUD SHALL ALLOW

UNDER RESIDENTIAL USE: SINGLE-FAMILY,

TOWNHOMES, DUPLEXES, AND POTENTIALLY

MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT.

¡¢£¤¥¦§
Existing
Collector

Proposed
Drainage
Easement

Plugged and

Abandoned

Gas Well

Proposed
Access Point

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS:

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS SHALL BE UTILIZED VIA

INTERNAL 5' SIDEWALKS THAT TRANSPORT TO BOTH

THE GATEWAY PLACE APARTMENTS, AND THE 25TH

STREET ROW.

DRAINAGE CONCEPT:

DURING MINOR AND MAJOR EVENTS, THE

DEVELOPED FLOWS FROM THE SITE WILL BE

CONVEYED OVERLAND VIA PRIVATE DRIVES AND

PARKING AREAS TO THE LOW POINTS GRADED INTO

THE SITE.CONCENTRATED FLOWS WITHIN SWALES

WILL TRANSPORT RUNOFF TO THE DETENTION AREA

(POND/ OPEN SPACE) LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST

CORNER OF THE SITE.

SURFACE RUNOFF AREA

LEGEND:

147



ADJACENT
MULTI

FAMILY ADJACENT
MULTI

FAMILY

ADJACENT
MULTI FAMILY

UNDEVELOPED
PROPERTY

OWNER:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

OWNER:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

N 
BY

:

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
P

A
R

K
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 
E

X
H

I
B

I
T

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 
U

N
I
T

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T

G
R

E
E

L
E

Y
,
 
C

O

GATEWAY PLACE APARTMENTS II, LLC
C/O CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEEL ST., STE 420
DENVER, CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

GB
 / N

P 
/ K

S
JN

 / R
M

01/16/19 EXHIBIT

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

1101 Bannock Street
Denver, Colorado 80204

P 303.892.1166
www.norris-design.com

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC
DBA CONVERGENCE MREG
50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209
ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

SETBACK
EXHIBIT

EX-01

PROPERTY LINE

RESIDENTIAL

ZONE

RIGHT OF WAY
LANDSCAPE BUFFER ZONE

NO BUILD ZONE
WEST 25TH STREET

15' SETBACK

NORTH

N.T.S

NO BUILD ZONE

10' SETBACK

Attachment K

148



1

�

City Council

February 19, 2019

Gateway Park II PUD

Rezoning &

Preliminary PUD

NORTH

149



2

NORTH

Zoning Boundary Map

NORTH

150



3

Zoning Suitability Map

NORTH

Site Plan

NORTH

151



4

NORTH

NORTH

152



5

NORTH

Photos of Site

NORTH

153



6

Photos of Site

NORTH

Yes a. Has the area changed to such a degree that it is in the public interest to 
rezone the property to encourage development?

� Infill development on large lots such as this one are more financially feasible 
for development than Greenfields, and this is now Plugged and Abandoned 
well site, now made available for development trends in Greeley.

Rezoning Criteria 18.30.050 – Eight (8) used to evaluate Rezone request

Yes b. Has the zoning been in place for at least 15 years and does the zoning 
appear to be obsolete?

� The existing zoning has been in place for 37 years. Development trends in Greeley have shown a 
strong demand for more high-residential housing opportunities. 

� Since the oil and gas facility has been plugged and abandoned, it rendered the existing zoning 
designation obsolete. 

N/A c. Are there clerical errors?

� There are no clerical or technical errors to correct.

No d. Are there detrimental environmental conditions?

� The subject site has a plugged and abandoned well site, but plugged and abandoned well sites 
have been redeveloped having structures built over them in past years.

� Drainage patterns would be mitigated through a detention pond, and slopes are relatively flat and 
soils appear to be stable. 

154



7

N/A e. Is the rezoning necessary to provide land for a community related use?

� The proposed rezoning is not necessary in order to provide land for a community related use.

Yes f. What is the potential impact of the rezoning upon the immediate 
neighborhood and the City as a whole?

� Impacts typically occur with any development; however future development will be regulated by 
the Municipal Code such as noise.

� Landscaping , buffering, and/or fencing requirements would be subject to the Development Code 
Standards. Plus, all site improvements would be approved and reviewed administratively 
through a site plan review, prior to occupancy of the building, if the rezone is approved.

� Surrounding area developed with municipal services (Streets, water and sewer).
� Fire and Police Services are currently serving the area.  

Yes g. Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be 
consistent with the policies and goals of the City's Comprehensive Plan and 
comply with applicable zoning overlay requirements? 

� There are no applicable zoning overlay requirements or any proposed. The proposed request is 
consistent with many goals and policies in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. Key policies 
are listed in Section F(3) below. 

Yes h. Impact on approved Zoning Suitability Plan?

� The City did not require zoning suitability plans in 1984, as it was developed prior to when 
Development Code required it in 1998. 

Yes g. Is the proposal consistent with the Comprehensive Plan?

Objective GC-1.1 Growth Management Manage growth to maintain or improve quality of life 
for Greeley’s residents, minimize impacts on the natural environment, and protect or enhance natural 
features and other resources.  

Objective GC-1.2 Form of Growth Encourage a compact urban form over sprawl or leap-frog 
development. 

Objective GC-2.2 Jobs/Housing Balance Support zoning and development patterns that expand 
opportunities for people who live in Greeley to also work in Greeley (or vice versa). 

Objective GC-2.3 Pedestrian and Bicycle-Oriented Development Encourage a development 
pattern that encourages walking and bicycling whenever possible—by locating employment, 
shopping, recreation, entertainment, transit, and other services within a quarter mile of residential 
areas. 

Objective GC-4.1 Priority Infill/Redevelopment Areas Following the guidance of adopted 
neighborhood plans and studies, use incentives and infrastructure investments to support infill 
development and redevelopment in priority locations (as identified on the Land Use Guidance Map): 
- Multi-modal corridors - Existing activity centers  

Objective GC-4.3 Infill Compatibility Promote the use of site design and building architecture 
that is sympathetic to the surrounding area and enhances the desirable character and form of the 
neighborhood or area. 

155



8

Variety of requirements, including area requirements, consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan, providing innovative design, includes land uses 
required in PUD, meets the overall intent of Code, and provides design 
trade-offs for any exceptions that are granted.

The proposed PUD would support the core values and guiding principles of 
the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan.

The proposed trade-offs (deviations) would provide a comprehensive design 
by the Development Code which meets the intent of the Code. 

PRELIMINARY PUD Establishment Criteria 18.32.040  

• Properties up to 500 feet.  
• Notified in the Greeley Tribune.
• No comments from the public were received before the 
hearing.

Neighborhood Notification

Planning Commission 
Recommendations

� REZONING

� Approval (unanimous)

� 2 motions required (rezoning & map revision)

� PRELIMINARY PLAN

� Approval (unanimous)

156



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 18 

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

  

Title:  

Public hearing to consider approval of the Gateway Park II Preliminary PUD (Planned 

Unit Development) for approximately 7.11 acres located north of 25th Street (a.k.a., 

Centerplace Drive) and west of 35th Avenue Court  

Summary: 
 

The City of Greeley is considering a request by Gate Way Place Phase II LTD. to 

approved a Preliminary PUD Plan for property located north of Centerplace Drive.  A 

rezoning request has been submitted concurrently, which would allow for multi-family 

residential uses, if approved.  

 

The parcel is the site of a former oil/gas well that has since been abandoned.  The 

surrounding area is well-suited to support residential uses.  A Preliminary PUD Plan 

defines the allowed layout of the site and accompanying uses, and addresses 

aspects of platting such as adequate services. 

 

The Planning Commission considered the request on January 22, 2019 and 

unanimously recommended approval to City Council. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a quasi-judicial process which includes the following 

public hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Applicant presentation 

4) Council questions of applicant 

157



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

5) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

6) Rebuttal, if requested 

7) Council discussion 

8) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None noted. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Development Code standards. 

Decision Options:  

1) Approve the Preliminary Plan as presented; or 

2) Amend the Preliminary Plan and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the proposal; or 

4) Continue consideration of the proposed Preliminary Plan to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion that, based on the application received and subsequent staff analysis, the 

proposed Gateway Park II PUD Preliminary Plan is consistent with Section 18.32.040, 

18.32.050 and 18.32.060 of the Development Code and, therefore, approves the 

request with the following condition: 

 

1. Prior to Final PUD recordation, any remaining engineering construction and design 

issues must be addressed, to the satisfaction of the City, including those related to 

traffic impacts, roadway maintenance, and drainage. 

 

Attachments: 

Planning Commission Minutes-Draft (January 22, 2019) 

Planning Commission Summary (Staff Report) (January 22, 2019) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

158



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            1                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Proceedings 

 

January 22, 2019 

 

City Center South 

Council Chambers Room 

1001 11th Avenue 

1:15 p.m. 
 
 
I. Call to Order 

 
Chair Rarick called the meeting to order at 1:19 p.m. Commissioners, Andersen, Hice-Idler 
and Modlin were present. (Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 
 

II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on December 11, 2018 
 

Commissioner Modlin moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on December 11, 
2018. Commissioner Andersen seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 
(Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 

III. Approval of minutes for meeting held on January 8, 2019 
 

Commissioner Andersen asked about specific code changes that where addressed for this 
matter. Chair Rarick stated that the minutes were only an overview and that the details will 
be addressed and carried to the work session held on January 29, 2019. 
 
Commissioner Andersen moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on 
January 8, 2019. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 
(Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
IV. Election of Chair  

 
Chair Rarick stated this item would be postponed until next hearing. 
 

V. Election of Vice Chair 
 
Chair Rarick stated this item would be postponed until next hearing. 
 

 

 159



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            2                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

 

 

VI.  A public hearing to consider a Preliminary Planned Unit Development for 144 

multifamily units on a 7.11 acre parcel located north of 25th Street and Centerplace 

Drive and west of 35th Avenue Court, an amenitized residential apartment complex 

adjacent to the existing West Park Village, Creekstone Apartments and the Gateway 

Place Apartment complex 

 
Name:    Gateway Park II Preliminary PUD 
Case No:   PUD2018-0006 
Applicant:   Gateway Place Phase II, Ltd. 
Location:  North of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and West of 35th 

Avenue Court 
Presenter:   Marian Duran, Planner II 
 

VII.  A public hearing to consider a Final Planned Unit Development for 144 multi-family 

units on a 7.11 acre parcel located north of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and 

West of 35th Avenue Court, an amenitized residential apartment complex adjacent to 

the existing West Park Village, Creekstone Apartments and the Gateway Place 

Apartment complex 

 
Project Name:  Gateway Park II Final PUD 
Case No.:   PUD2018-0008 
Applicant:   Gateway Place Phase II, Ltd. 
Location:  North of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and West of 35th 

Avenue Court 
Presenter:   Marian Duran, Planner II 

 
Marian Duran addressed the Commission  and requested permission to enter both cases 
into the record and combine the presentations. She added that separate motions would be 
required. Ms. Duran provided an updated aerial map, vicinity map and the existing zoning 
map. She added that the site is within an area of ecological significance. 
 
Ms. Duran stated that the City of Greeley is considering a request by Gate Way Place 
Phase II LTD., to rezone approximately 7.11-acres in size from Planned Unit Development 
- Oil & Gas and Planned Unit Development - Neighborhood Center to Planned Unit 
Development – Residential Zoning District with accessory uses as defined in the 
Development Code and as the Code is amended, along with a Preliminary PUD Plan for the 
proposed Gateway Park II PUD. She described the complex and standards of each unit in 
the proposal.  
 
Ms. Duran described the overall landscape plan and stated that all landscaping would 
require approval, in addition to all required amenities. Ms. Duran included photographs of 
the area and its surroundings. She suggested that the lot has been vacant for quite some 
time and accumulating trash and refuse and that development would be appropriate for the 
area. Ms. Duran summarized that the proposals comply with the criterion and guidelines 
and recommended approval. 

 

160



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            3                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

Commissioner Modlin asked about access for bike trails. Ms. Duran clarified that the 
access would be with all the internal sidewalks and walkways that are provided in the site 
plan.  

 
Applicant, Ryan McGreen, addressed the Commission on behalf of Norris Design. 
Mr. McGreen addressed Commissioner Modlin with his questions about bike trails and 
stated that there is a plan for connectivity and accessibility with the multi-family 
neighborhoods to access walking trails and paths. Mr. McGreen provided a brief 
description of the facility and its amenities and agreed that this project blends in with the 
surrounding areas. He stated that the environmental report was reviewed and no issues 
were found.  
 
Chair Rarick asked about the north side tying into the other complex and asked about a 
private drive through the complex. Mr. McGreen stated that it is a private drive and the 
owner is part of this proposal.  

 
Chair Rarick opened the public hearing for Gateway Park II PUD2018-0006 at 1:43 p.m. 
There being no public input, the hearing was closed at 1:43 p.m. 

  
Commissioner Andersen moved that, based on the application received and the preceding 
analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed rezoning from PUD (Oil and 
Gas) zone district to PUD (Residential) zone district meets criteria outlined in 
Development Code Sections 18.30.050(c)(3) and 18.32.040(b) and therefore, recommends 
approval of the rezone to the City Council. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion.  
The motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
Commissioner Andersen moved that, based on based on the application received and the 
preceding analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed Gateway Park II PUD 
Plan is consistent with Section 18.32.040, 18.32.050 and 18.32.060 of the Development 
Code and, therefore, recommends approval of the PUD plan as submitted to the City 
Council, with the following condition: 
 
1. Prior to Final PUD recordation, any remaining engineering construction and design 
issues must be addressed, to the satisfaction of the City, including those related to 
traffic impacts, roadway maintenance, and drainage.  
 
Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners 
Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
Noting that a public hearing had not been opened, Chair Rarick opened the public hearing 
for the Final PUD2018-0008 at 1:47 p.m. There being no public input, the public hearing 
was closed at 1:47 p.m. 

   
  

161



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            4                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

Commissioner Andersen moved that, based on the project summary and preceding 
analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed Gateway Park II Final PUD 
Plan meets Development Code, Chapter 18.32, and is consistent with the approved 
Preliminary PUD plan, with the following conditions and therefore approves the Final PUD 
plan as submitted: 

 
1) Prior to Final PUD recordation, any remaining engineering construction and design 
issues must be addressed, to the satisfaction of the City, including those related to 
traffic impacts, roadway maintenance, and drainage; 
 
2) Prior to the Planning Commission approval of the Final PUD, the Preliminary PUD shall 
be approved by City Council; 
 
3) Prior to Final Plat recordation the applicant must pay $131,019.53 cash-in-lieu of 
park land dedication.  
 
Commissioner Hice-Idler seconded motion. The motion carried 4-0 (Commissioners 
Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
VIII.  A public hearing to consider a request for a Use by Special Review for 30 horizontal 

oil and gas wells, with associated equipment on two centralized pad sites, and one 

production facility on a 35.25 acre parcel zoned R-L (Residential Low Density), with 

23.6 acres proposed for drilling and extraction operations 

 
Project Name:  Volt 19-S Use by Special Review 
Case No.:   USR2018-0012 
Applicant:   Corey Sheahen on behalf of SRC Energy Inc. 
Location:   North of Highway 34 Business, east of 83rd Avenue and West of 

Boomerang Golf Course 
Presenter:   Rachel Prelog, Planner II 
 
Ms. Prelog addressed the Commission and noted the following corrections to the 
permanent acreage referenced in the request and recommended motion. The applicant has 
clarified that the actual permanent acreage once wells are in production is 7.27-acres. The 
24 acres previously stated in the staff report is the area of land that will be occupied during 
operations. She provided a memo with the corrected information. Ms. Prelog presented a 
map showing the location of the property and provided a brief history of the site. She stated 
the applicant is requesting approval of a Use by Special Review to allow for oil tanks, two 
water tanks, six vapor recovery units and associated equipment on 7.27-acres of the 35.25-
acre site. 
 
Ms. Prelog concluded with a brief summary of the Comprehensive Plan encouraging the 
colocation of oil and gas facilities. She stated that the site is physically suitable for an oil 
and gas operation and that the proposed development meets or exceeds the setback 
requirements required by the City and the COGCC. Ms. Prelog informed the Commission 
of a neighborhood meeting that took place on October 27, 2018, held at Northridge High 
School, where there were three neighbors in attendance. Staff recommended approval with 
several conditions outlined in the recommended motion. 
  

162



Greeleado 

Planning Commission 
Memo 

TO: 	 Planning Commission 

ITEM: 	 Gateway Park II Preliminary PUD 

CASE NUMBER: PUD2018-0006 

LOCATION: 	North of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and West of 35th Avenue 

Court 

APPLICANT: 	Gate Way Place Phase II LTD 

PLANNER: 	Marian Duran, Planner II 

Replacement of the following maps to represent the proper location and property boundaries 
proposed for development: 

1) Attachment A — Aerial/Vicinity Map 

2) Attachment B — Existing Zoning Map 
3) Attachment F — Ecological Significance Map 

Community Development-Planning Division • 1100 10th Street, Ste. 202, Greeley, CO 80631 • (970) 350-9780 FaX (970) 350-9800 

A City Achieving Community Excellence 163



A
tta

ch
m

en
t F

 

E
C

O
L

O
G

IC
A

L
L

Y
 S

E
N

S
IT

IV
E

 A
R

E
A

S
 

 
 

A
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
no

t 
be

en
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 

by
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

r 
M

in
in

g 

A
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

M
in

in
g 

th
at

 r
et

ai
n 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

at
ur

al
 v

al
ue

s 

A
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

M
in

in
g 

 

 

A
re

as
 th

at
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

at
ur

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e 

19
98

 m
ap

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
ve

re
ly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 M

in
in

g 

 

P
ro

po
se

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

re
as

 o
f 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 n

ot
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
19

98
 m

ap
pi

ng
 

 

 
 

 

 

A
re

as
 th

at
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

at
ur

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e1

99
8 

m
ap

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
od

er
al

ly
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t &

 M
iri

ng
 

 
 

o
 0

2
5
0
5
 	

1.
5 	

2 
	

M
as

s 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

0.0
01

.0
01

0 
IN

 J
o

h
n

 1
1•

••
•W

ill
ri

ll 

G
R

E
E

L
E

Y
 

164



24th'Street. Rd 

tor 	- 
Gateway Park, 2nd Filing 

Stin 

Notes: 
All planimetric data was digitized nom 
aerial photogiaphs dated 198. 1 9y. 
1995. 2000. 2005, and 2014. 
ate contintial and data representation, 
will change over time. This product is 
not necessuily 3C(11l2tt to etaneetinF 
or surveying standards but does tr,,, 
Nauonal 	Mapping 
StwIdavids 	NLAS). 	71he 
inforrratient contained %Salm this 
document is not intended to be Itsed 
lot the papetstion of eocattactinc 
docomencs. 

Intbansuon contained 	011 	till • 

dornmeiu tenuins the ptopear of the 
Car of Gceeley Copying any pony, 
of this snap without the ssurreo 
pecoussion of the City of Gteelcy r 
suit* pcolubited 

Gateway Place II PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 

10 Subject Site 

f] Property Lines 

0 125 250 	500 

Feet 

Greeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By: duranm, CD 
Gateway Park U PUD.notd 

Aerial & Vicinity Map 	 Gateway Park ll PUD 

165



Gateway Park II PUD Existing Zoning Map 

2481-St 

PUD 

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing 

Kaiser 

_24,th Sirept.Elq 

C-H 
John Elway 

R-M 

ce 

34 

Notes: 
All planunenic data was cliginged nom 
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992, 
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates 
are continual and data reptesentations 
will change over time. This product is 
not necessarily accurate to engineering 
or surveying standards bnt does meet 
National 	:Mapping 	Accuracy 
Srandardds 	(Nin,LkS). 	The 
information 	contained 	within 	this 
document is not intended to be used 
for the pre-perm:ion of consnuction 
documents. 

Information 	contained 	on 	tins 
document remains the property of the 

Gateway Place ll PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 
City of Greeley. Copying 21.13-  porhon 
of 	this 	map 	without 	the 	written: 
permission of the City of Greeley is 
strictly prohibited. 

n Subject Site 
ED Property Lines 

H-A 
I-H 

R-E 
R-H 

C-D I-L R-L 
C-H I-M R-M 
C-L PUD 

0 125 250 	560 
OMNI 

Feet 

Cir tn„ of 

Greeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By: duranm, CD 
Gateway Park II PUD.rrixd 

John Elway 

28th S 

166



City of 	..-"%%6•4 

Greele Colorado 

Planning Commission 
Memo 

TO: 	 Planning Commission 

ITEM: 	 Gateway Park II Final PUD 

CASE NUMBER: PUD2018-0008 

LOCATION: 	North of 25th Street and Centerplace Drive and West of 35th Avenue 

Court 

APPLICANT: 	Gate Way Place Phase II LTD 

PLANNER: 	Marian Duran, Planner II 

Replacement of the following maps to represent the proper boundaries proposed for 

development: 

1) Attachment A — Aerial/Vicinity Map 

2) Attachment B — Existing Zoning Map 

Community Development-Planning Division • 1100 10th Street, Ste. 202, Greeley, CO 80631 • (970) 350-9780 Fax (970) 350-9800 

A City Achieving Community Excellence 167



Aerial & Vicinity Map 	 Gateway Park II PUD 

Notes: 
All plammetric data was digitized from 
aerial photographs dated 198', 1992. 
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014 UpciArc: 
am continual and data cermet:in:, ..• 
will chanae over time. This prodlui 
not necessarily accurate to engineeung 
or surveying stainluds but does inert 
National 	Mapping 	Accutat - 
Standsudds 	iNNLAS). 
information contained uithin this 
document is not intended to be tool 
fox the pepention of construcnou 
dm-anions. 

Infoottauon onnauttd on di, 
document tentains the popeate of tl:c 
Cite of Greeks. Copying any pont., 
of this map althorn the WEInr 

permission of the City of Greek:: I,  
suictIF psobibited 

Gateway Place ll PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 

CO Subject Site 

ifj Property Lines 

0 125 250 	 500 

Feel 

(it si 

Greeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By duraom, CD 
Gateway Park 11 PUDAnsd 

168



/  	I 	I 

WI 
R-L 

• Itit Siti
o 

 PUD 

Kaiser 

,2491 Sireet.IN 

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing 

.c 

glA 

EIS 

-H 

C-H 

John Elway it 251h s 

Existing Zoning Map 

24th—St 

Gateway Park ll PUD 

R-M 

ce 

34 

Notes: 
All planimeuic data was digitized from 
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992, 
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates 
are continual and data represeunnions 
will change over time. This product is 
not necessarily accurate to erigin,ering 
or surveying standards but does meet 
National 	Mapping 	Accuracy 
5tandardds (XMAS). The 
information contained within this 
document is not intended to be used 
for the preperation of construction 
documents 

Infosmation contained ms this 
document Lumina the property of the 
City of Greeley Copying any portion 
of this map withoin the sviirim: 
permission of the City of Greeley is 
strictly prohibited. 

Gateway Place ll PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 

ILI Subject Site 	H-A 	R-E 

n Property Lines 	I-H 	R-H 

C-D 	 I-L 	R-L 

C-H 	 I-M 	R-M 

C-L 	 PUD 

0 125 250 	Soo 
IIONOMEN 

Feet 

" Greeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By: duranm, CD 
Gateway Park II PUID.mxd 

169



Existing Zoning Map 

24th-St 

Gateway Park ll PUD 

C-L 

Kaiser 

_24.11) S.lreet.8g 

R-L Do 

PUD 

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing 

C-H 

John Elway 
28th S 

R-M 

   

Notes: 
.5.11planim8tric data 8ws digitized from 
aerial photographs dated 198, 1992, 
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates 
are continual and data representations 
will change over time. This prodnct is 
not necessarily accurate to engineering 
or surveying standards but does meet 
National 	Mapping 	Accuracy 
Standatckls 	(N1rLAS). 	The 
information contained within this 
doctunent is not intended to be used 
for the prepelabon of construction 
docnments. 

hiforntation contained on tins 
document remains the property of the 
City of Greeley. Copying any portion 
of this map without the Wlintll 

permission of the City of Greeley o 
strictly prohibited. 

Gateway Place ll PUD 
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 

Legend 

En Subject Site 	H-A 	R-E 
fj Property Lines 	I-H 	R-H 

C-D 	 I-L 	R-L 

C-H 	 I-M 	R-M 

C-L 	 PUD 

0 125 250 	500 

Feet 

(areeley 
Created: January 21, 2019 

By: duranm, CD 
Gateway Park U PUDinxd 

170



 

 
Page 1 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
 
ITEMS: 1) Rezone PUD (Planned Unit Development - Oil & Gas) and a 

PUD (Planned Unit Development - Neighborhood Center) to PUD 
(Planned Unit Development – Residential of varying densities and 
associated accessory structures) Zone District 
 
2) Approval of a Preliminary PUD Plan 

 
CASE NO: PUD2018-0006 
 
PROJECT: Gateway Park II Preliminary PUD 
 
 
LOCATION: North of Centerplace Drive and West of 35th Avenue Court - 

Parcel ID: 095914400005 
   
APPLICANT: Gate Way Place Phase II LTD 
 
CASE PLANNER: Marian Duran | Planner II 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:   January 22, 2019 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments 
made by the applicant and the public, and shall then make a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding applications in the form of a finding based on the review criteria found in Sections 
18.30.050(c)(3)(a-h) and 18.32.040(b)(1-3) of the Development Code. The Planning Commission 
shall then make a motion as to the recommendation. 
 
  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Greeley is considering a request by Gate Way Place Phase II LTD., to rezone 
approximately 7.11-acres in size from PUD (Planned Unit Development - Oil & Gas) and PUD 
(Planned Unit Development - Neighborhood Center) to PUD (Planned Unit Development –
Residential) Zoning District with accessory uses as defined in the Development Code and as the 
Code is amended, along with a Preliminary PUD Plan for the proposed Gateway Park II PUD 
(see Attachment A – Aerial/Vicinity Map, Attachment B – Existing Zoning Map, Attachment J – 
Rezoning Documents, Attachment C – Applicant Narrative).  
 
A. REQUEST 
Approval of rezoning application from PUD (Planned Unit Development Oil & Gas) and PUD 
(Planned Unit Development - Neighborhood Center) to PUD (Planned Unit Development for 
Residential uses of varying densities) (see Attachment B – Existing Zoning Map). Including single-

171



 

 
Page 2 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

family, multi-family, townhomes, duplexes, and associated accessory structures) Zoning District 
on approximately 7.11-acres, with an associated Preliminary PUD Plan (see Attachment J – 
Rezoning Document).  
 
B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Approval, with conditions  
 

C. SITE DATA:  

 Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

 Proposed Land Uses: Residential (single-family, multi-family, townhomes, 
duplexes, development) 

 Abutting Zoning:             North: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  South: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  East: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 West: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 

Site Conditions: The site is largely vacant on the surface, but contains a 
plugged and abandoned oil and gas well site [SRC Gilbert –
Wattenberg].  

 
Parcel Size:                              7.11-acres    

 
Abutting Land Uses:             North: Multi-Family 

South:  ROW/ Multi-Family 
East: Vacant     
West:  Multi-Family 

 
D. BACKGROUND 

The site was annexed into the City of Greeley under the Southwest Greeley Annexation No. 1 
in 1978 [Recordation No. 0001761540; Case No. Z 2:78]. The original concept PUD, which 
covered 285 plus-acres of property was approved in 1981. This concept PUD allowed 
commercial, office, and a tech center [Case No. Z 9:81]. In 1982, a Final PUD Plan was 
approved for only oil and gas development on the subject property [Case No. PUD 8:82].  The 
concept PUD was required and amended in addition to the final PUD to allow not only oil and 
gas (reducing the drilling sites), but office, commercial, high-tech industrial, and residential 
uses as well as originally planned in 1981. This concept and final plan was approved in 1984 
[Ordinance No. 72, 1984; Z 22:84] . The subject site became known as the Gilbert No. 1 oil 
and gas, which contained only one well. The Final PUD for the Gateway Park Filing No. 1, 
which included the Gilbert oil and gas was approved in August 1984. 
 
The subject site proposal encompasses a portion of one lot from Gateway Park PUD and the 
Gilbert Oil & Gas PUD, also subdivided with this proposal. The Gilbert Oil & Gas PUD site 
is comprised of 6.491-acres in size and contains a plugged and abandoned oil and gas well site 

172



 

 
Page 3 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

[Gilbert-Wattenberg], it is located just north of the intersection of 36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive. The northeast portion of the adjacent property proposes to include 
additional parking for the development. Both areas proposed with this development comprise 
of approximately 7.11-acres in size (see Attachment D – Preliminary PUD Plan). 

 
E. LAND USE PLAN 

The Gateway Park II PUD is planned to be constructed in one phase, covering over 7-acres of 
land designed out of two parcels. It is proposed to consist of varying residential uses (see 
Attachment E – Preliminary PUD Document).  

 
Preliminary PUD Plan 
The proposed Gateway Park II Planned Unit Development (PUD) articulates throughout the 
applicant’s narrative and the preliminary PUD plan document, that the proposal would uphold 
higher design standards, including more amenity features than the typical development offers. 
In fact, due to the interesting atypical lot design or circular lot that was drafted for the oil and 
gas setbacks, it now provides an interesting challenge to developers, as it is difficult to place 
rectangular buildings within a circle. The proposal, however, would be difficult to accomplish 
with a straight zoning district. A PUD allows for greater flexibility such that applicant has 
proposed a 10-foot setback on the south end adjacent to Centerplace Drive, and up to 60-foot 
tall building structures (see Attachment C – Applicant Narrative, Attachment D – Preliminary 
PUD Plan, Attachment E – Preliminary PUD Document, and Attachment K – Setback Exhibit).  
 
Oil and Gas 
There are no active oil and gas facilities on site, but there is however, a plugged and abandoned 
oil and gas well (SRC Gilbert-Wattenberg). As a result, it has now opened surface development 
opportunities for the site. Per the City of Greeley, Development Code standards and the 
Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC), there are no setback requirements 
for plugged and abandoned oil and gas well sites. In most cases, the vacant site would need to 
be rezoned to allow other uses to be developed, such as what this subject site applicant is 
requesting to do.  The Gateway Park II PUD applicant propose to rezone the property from 
PUD oil and gas to PUD residential.  
 
The standard cap depth for plugged and abandoned gas wells in Colorado are typically 8-feet 
deep. The Gateway Park II PUD applicant anticipates grading the site by removing 3 feet from 
the above surface of the plugged gas well cap, leaving roughly 5 feet of cover over the existing 
cap. The bottom of the proposed 4-foot deep swimming pool located in the epicenter of the 
development, is proposed to sit 5 feet above the plugged and abandoned well cap. The 
surrounding pool deck and amenity area including the clubhouse, and surrounding residential 
buildings are proposed to be built up in grade to ensure the 5-foot cover remains intact.  
 
Urban Growth and Adequate Public Facility Area (APFA) 
The site is located largely within a suburban developed and can be adequately served by water, 
sewer, streets, fire, parks and trails if approved, yet a parkland dedication fee is required of the 
applicant. The site is vacant on the surface, but water and sewer mains would be required to be 
extended to the proposed site from adjacent services.  

173



 

 
Page 4 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 
The park is within walking distance. Both fire, and police response systems are less then a mile 
away (see Section H.3 for additional details). A review of the Traffic Impact Study indicated 
that access onto Centerplace Drive is required, and that full movement access is requested onto 
the fourth leg of Centerplace Drive and 36th Avenue and a second access proposed through the 
existing apartment complex on the northwest side of the development. These additional access 
points would allow public safety services, such as fire and police, to access the site and the 
northern Gateway Park PUD more quickly from Centerplace Drive through the Gateway Park 
II PUD development. All subsequent site improvements shall comply with the City’s 
Development Code, as amended.  

 
F. APPROVAL CRITERIA 

 
1. Development Code Section 18.30.050 - Rezoning Procedures 

The review criteria found in Section 18.30.050(c)(3) of the Development Code shall be 
used to evaluate the zoning amendment (rezoning) application, as follows: 

 
a. Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that it is in the public interest 

to rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the 
area?           
 
Staff Comment:  This subject property includes a plugged and abandoned well site, 

which allows for redevelopment opportunities and over 6-acres of 
surface land are now made available (6.49-acres). As an alternative 
to Greenfield development, this infill development focuses on 
establishing a character at a scale that is consistent with that of the 
established neighborhood and would make the existing northern 
parking lot legal, as it is being incorporated with the Gateway Park 
II PUD. Infill development on large lots such as this one, has been 
largely recognized as being more financially feasible for 
development than Greenfields, because it is closer to existing and 
adequate public facilities. Developing vacant land reduces the 
negative influences associated with blight, potential criminal 
activity, and reduced real estate values. In staff’s opinion, it is in the 
public best interest to allow infill development to occur on a site that 
is now available for development, it is a key ingredient to 
accommodating growth and redesigning our communities to be 
environmentally and socially sustainable. 

 
 The proposal complies with this criterion. 

 
b. Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 

development resulting and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given 
development trends?  
 

174



 

 
Page 5 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

Staff Comment: As stated above, the property had been zoned for PUD (oil and gas 
uses only) for approximately 37 years. Since the oil and gas 
wellhead was plugged and abandoned, it rendered the existing 
zoning designation obsolete. Although, the property is now 
available for redevelopment opportunities, the existing PUD zoning 
prohibits any other land uses on the property. Hence, the request to 
rezone the property from PUD oil and gas to PUD residential. The 
Gateway Park II PUD is in line with development trends in the 
surrounding area, which is also market-driven, and considers the 
larger potential needs of the surrounding community by supplying 
high-density residential in the City of Greeley. 

 
 The proposal complies with this criterion.  

c.  Are there clerical or technical errors to correct?  
 

Staff Comment: There are no clerical or technical errors to correct.  
 
 This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

d.  Are there detrimental environmental conditions, such as flood plains, presence of 
irrigation ditches, inadequate drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect 
future development of this site and which may not have been considered during the 
original zoning of the property?  
 
Staff Comment: The presence of detrimental conditions on site are currently 

unknown. An existing plugged and abandoned well at the site poses 
no current concerns, as there has not been substantial evidence or 
reports within the City of Greeley that indicate that plugged and 
abandoned sites pose a hazard. When an oil and gas well has reached 
its end of life, it is then plugged and abandoned, capped typically at 
8-feet in depth. In some cases, these singular, older wells are 
plugged and abandoned due to new technological advances in oil 
production, redirecting them through horizontal drilling to help the 
well produce oil within larger facilities elsewhere. 

 
Currently there are no City of Greeley and/or Colorado Oil and Gas 
Conservation Commission (COGCC) setback requirements from 
plugged and abandoned wellheads, but it may be considered in the 
future due to potentially unknown risks. Nonetheless, across the 
City of Greeley, many plugged and abandoned well sites have been 
redeveloped, having structures built over them. There have been no 
known detrimental environmental concerns reported, as stated 
above, that would set precedence or would prohibit future 
development on plugged and abandoned sites, including this subject 
property.  

175



 

 
Page 6 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 
With the proposed Gateway Park II PUD, drainage patterns would 
be mitigated with the proposed detention pond.  Slopes are relatively 
flat and soils appear to be stable. 

 
 The proposal complies with this criterion 

  
e.  Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community-related 

use which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City's Comprehensive 
Plan; or have the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is 
warranted?  
 
Staff Comment: The proposal is not for community-related uses.  
 
 This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

f.  What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate 
neighborhood and the City as a whole (including potential noise and environmental 
impacts, visual impacts, the provision of City services such as police, fire, water, 
sewer, street and pedestrian systems and parks and recreation facilities)?  
 
Staff Comment: There should not be any significant environmental, noise or visual 

impacts resulting from the proposed rezoning of the property, 
although at the time of construction, the typical noise and visual 
impacts would be present until the proposed project is complete. 
Service impacts to the police, fire, water, sewer, pedestrian systems, 
parks and recreation facilities would not substantially increase with 
the proposed rezone request. Any potential noise created by this 
development will be regulated by the Municipal Code. 
 
Adequate safeguards are in place within the Development Code and 
PUD documents that should mitigate any negative impacts of future 
residential development. 
 
The request complies with this criterion 

 
g.  Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be consistent 

with the policies and goals of the City's Comprehensive Plan and comply with 
applicable zoning overlay requirements?  
 
Staff Comment: There are no applicable zoning overlay requirements or any 

proposed. The proposed request is consistent with many goals and 
policies in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. Key policies 
are listed in Section F(3) below. 

 

176



 

 
Page 7 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 The request complies with this criterion. 
 

h.  What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved zoning 
suitability plan for the property? 

  Staff Comment: The City did not require zoning suitability plans in 1984, as it was 
developed prior to when Development Code required it in 1998.  

    This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

2. Development Code Section 18.32.040(b) - Standards for PUD Establishment 
In reaching recommendations and decisions as to rezoning land to the PUD district, the 
Planning Commission and the City Council shall apply the following standards in 
addition to the standards and procedures of Section 18.30.050 (as outlined above): 
  
(1) Area requirements. The area of a proposed PUD shall be of substantial size to 

permit its design and development as a cohesive unit fulfilling the stated purpose 
of these regulations and to establish the PUD as a meaningful part of the larger 
community. Each proposed PUD shall therefore be evaluated as to its adequacy in 
size with respect to both the nature and character of its internal design and to its 
specific location within the City. The minimum size of a PUD to be considered for 
establishment shall be two (2) acres, except as provided for in Subsection (c) 
below. 

 
Staff Comment: At approximately 7.11-acres, this proposal satisfies the 

minimum area requirements, and as presented is a cohesive 
proposal that would provide diversity within the community. 
The proposal is consistent with all applicable goals and 
policies outlined in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive 
Plan goals and policies as listed below under section 2.  

 The request complies with this criterion. 
 

(2) Consistency with the Land Use Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan. A PUD 
proposal shall be found to be consistent with all applicable elements of the Land 
Use Chapter of the City's adopted Comprehensive Plan with respect to its proposed 
internal design and use and its relationship to adjacent areas and the City as a 
whole before it may be zoned as a PUD. 
 
Staff Comment: According to the applicant, and staff’s analysis of the 

Gateway Park II PUD proposal, the rezone request is 
consistent with the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan 
(Adopted 2/6/2018) which states within the overall vision for 
community, “Greeley values and respects the diversity of its 
people, cultures, neighborhoods, and resources in a manner 
that creates and sustains a safe, unique, united, vibrant, and 

177



 

 
Page 8 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

rewarding place in which to live, work, learn, grow, and 
play. The community promotes a healthy and diverse 
economy, and a high quality of life that is responsive to all 
its residents, businesses and neighborhoods.” Key 
objectives that the proposal supports the Imagine Greeley 
Comprehensive Plan are listed below. 

  
The request complies with this criterion. 

 
Objective GC-1.1  Growth Management Manage growth to maintain or 

improve quality of life for Greeley’s residents, minimize 
impacts on the natural environment, and protect or enhance 
natural features and other resources.   

 
Objective GC-1.2  Form of Growth Encourage a compact urban form over 

sprawl or leap-frog development.  
 
Objective GC-2.2  Jobs/Housing Balance Support zoning and development 

patterns that expand opportunities for people who live in 
Greeley to also work in Greeley (or vice versa).  

 
Objective GC-2.3  Pedestrian and Bicycle-Oriented Development Encourage a 

development pattern that encourages walking and bicycling 
whenever possible—by locating employment, shopping, 
recreation, entertainment, transit, and other services within a 
quarter mile of residential areas.  

 
Objective GC-4.1  Priority Infill/Redevelopment Areas Following the guidance 

of adopted neighborhood plans and studies, use incentives 
and infrastructure investments to support infill development 
and redevelopment in priority locations (as identified on the 
Land Use Guidance Map): - Multi-modal corridors - 
Existing activity centers   

  
Objective GC-4.3  Infill Compatibility Promote the use of site design and 

building architecture that is sympathetic to the surrounding 
area and enhances the desirable character and form of the 
neighborhood or area.  

  
Objective GC-6.9  Suburban Subdivisions Promote the careful integration of 

“complete neighborhood” characteristics (see Objective GC-
6.1) into suburban neighborhoods (as identified on the Land 
Use Guidance Map), typically those established between 
1950 and 2000.  

  

178



 

 
Page 9 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

Objective HO-1.6  Universal Design and Visitability Encourage the 
development of new housing units that incorporate design 
elements to accommodate the specific needs of the elderly 
and others who might have limited mobility.  

    
Objective HO-2.2  Rental Housing Foster the development of attractive, safe, 

and well-maintained rental properties for those who do not 
qualify for or desire to own property. 

 
(3) Upon the specific request of the landowner or upon the recommendation of the 

Planning Commission or City Council, the two-acre requirement in Subsection (1) 
above may be waived if, after considering the proposed development requested, 
the City Council finds that such waiver would be beneficial to the City and foster 
the objectives of this Code and the Land Use Chapter of the City's Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 
Staff Comment:  This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

3. Development Code Section 18.32.040(c) – Standards for PUD Establishment  
The City Council may authorize, by its approval of a Preliminary Planned Unit 
Development Plan, a mix of land uses, as well as variations in density, setback, height, 
lot size, lot coverage, open space, street width, parking and landscaping. Any such 
variations granted by the City Council shall be based upon the findings by the Council 
that the PUD plan: 

 
(1) Provides an innovative design which would be equal to or better than 

development which would occur under base standard zoning district 
requirements;  
 

(2) Accomplishes specific goals and objectives of the Land Use Chapter of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan;  

(3) Includes land uses which are required to be in a PUD; 

(4) Meets the overall intent of this Code; or 

(5) Provides equivalent site design trade-offs for the exceptions granted (i.e., 
more open space for higher density, etc.). 

 
Staff Comment: The applicants request to rezone a now vacant parcel, from the 

Gateway Park PUD zoning category “gas well” to residential with 
varying uses in the new Gateway Park II PUD.  The proposed PUD 
would support the core values and guiding principles of the Imagine 
Greeley Comprehensive Plan as well (see Attachment G  - 2035 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan). 

 

179



 

 
Page 10 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 Due the fact that PUDs can be designed and suited for the proposed 
development is comprehensive in design and exceeds the base 
standards of the current R-H (Residential High Density) zoning 
district. Therefore, the PUD has listed equivalent site design trade-
offs of higher density and reduced front setbacks for more amenities 
and open space. These are called out in the PUD document and 
narrative as “deviations” from Development Code Standards. These 
site design trade-offs were also mentioned earlier in Section E, 
where additional amenities and open space for the higher density 
and reduced setbacks have been provided for the proposal (see 
Attachment K – Setback Exhibit).   

 
 Staff has reviewed the proposed deviations and concludes that the 

variations would provide a comprehensive design than the minimum 
standards set by the Development Code. Additionally, the proposed 
variations meet the overall intent of the Code.  

 
 Staff finds that the proposal complies with Section 18.32.040(c) (1-

5). 
 

G. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 
 
1. Hazards 

Staff is unaware of any current hazards on the property. There is an existing plugged and 
abandoned oil and gas facility on site.  
 

2. Wildlife 
Since the property was previously developed with an oil and gas facility, along with all 
associated production equipment, and it is surrounded by residential and commercial 
development, wildlife impacts should be minimal. The presence of prairie dogs was not 
found or present on the site. The area is not located within Areas of Ecological Significance 
Map (see Attachment F – Ecological Significance Map).  
 

3. Floodplain 
The property is not located within the 100-year floodplain, according to the adopted 
Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) flood data.  

 
4. Drainage and Erosion 

The property is subject to City of Greeley development standards, of which the applicant 
must comply with. Preliminary drainage plans have been reviewed by Engineering 
Development Review staff, questions and concerns have been adequately addressed at this 
point in the process. This project requires a Final PUD prior to lot development. Erosion 
controls devices must be designed by the developer and reviewed by the City to ensure that 
best management practices are utilized as the project progresses.  
 

180



 

 
Page 11 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

Because most of this property was previously used for oil and gas production, drainage was 
not addressed at the time, nor was it a major concern.  Furthermore, the northern part of 
the site is developed, as a parking lot, releases storm water into a swale at the northeast 
corner of the site.  The City of Greeley has been determined that the proposed development 
would need to provide water quality and detention to treat the developed flows before 
releasing at or below historic rates. Historically the site is split up into two basins:  
 
1. Basin H1 is located on the west half of the subject property and is composed of 

native grass and turf being tributary to the existing apartment complex northwest 
of the subject property. The flows are conveyed overland by way of sheet flow 
onto 46th Avenue and being transported by gutter and storm sewer to the 
northwest, which eventually discharges into the Greeley West Detention Basin.  

 
2.  Basin H2 is located on the east half of the site composed of native grass and an 

existing parking lot being tributary to the existing apartment complex to the 
northeast. The flows are conveyed overland by way of sheet flow and gutter into 
a drainage swale carrying flows to the northeast, which eventually discharges 
into the Greeley West Detention Basin.  

 
The proposed development is designed to have one water quality and detention pond to 
treat the proposed development. It is proposed to be located at the northeast corner of the 
subject property and would release at or below the rate of Basin H2, nearly eliminating the 
runoff from Basin H1. 
 

5. Transportation 
The traffic impact study reported that the estimated traffic impacts associated with the 
proposed development of the Gateway Park II PUD, were estimated using trip generation 
rates contained in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation manual.  

The City’s standards do not have minimum volume thresholds to identify the need for left 
and right turn lanes.  The need was identified by the City Engineer and the traffic study.  
For the proposed Gateway Park II PUD development, a left turn lane would be required for 
the eastbound left turn movement at 36th Avenue.  The corridor was constructed to provide 
room for left turn lanes and therefore, a left turn lane is recommended.  The need for a 
westbound right turn lane was determined based on the operational benefits that would be 
gained by adding the lane.  Analysis of the Year 2040 total traffic volume scenarios shows 
that the level of service would be unchanged by adding the lane and the side street delay 
would only be improved by a second or two per vehicle with the addition of the lane. 

Current pedestrian and bicycle destinations within 1,320-foot radius of the development 
are Greeley West High School and Greeley West Park.  There are several sidewalk 
connections between the site access on Centerplace Drive and the two destinations.  The 
current Greeley Bicycle Master Plan lists bike paths on 35th Avenue and on 24th Street 
from 35th Avenue to 42nd Avenue, a bike paths to be proposed on Centerplace Drive 
between 35th Avenue and 38th Avenue, and a bike lane proposed on 38th Avenue (see 
Attachment H – Greeley Bicycle Plan). 

181



 

 
Page 12 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

The operational analysis based on the proposed development, concluded that Centerplace 
Drive and 36th Avenue intersection would be expected to operate acceptably based on City 
standards in the Year 2040 total traffic volume scenarios. A traffic signal is not expected 
to be warranted at the intersection based on the Year 2021 total traffic volume scenarios. 
Finally, an eastbound left turn lane should be constructed at the intersection.  However, the 
addition of a westbound right turn lane is not expected to significantly improve the 
operation of the intersection. 

6. SERVICES 

1. Water 
The City of Greeley would provide water services to the site. The applicant would be 
responsible for the cost of extending services to this location.   

 
2. Sanitation 

The City of Greeley would provide sewer services to the site. The applicant would be 
responsible for the cost of extending services to this location.   

 
3. Emergency Services 

The property is served by the City of Greeley’s Police and Fire Departments.  Access to 
the proposed development would be accomplished from Centerplace Drive.  

 
4. Parks and Open Spaces 

Dedication of parks for this proposal would be required, but due to the configuration of 
the site cash-in-lieu is due prior to Final Plat recordation. It is anticipated that no plans 
for future parks are anticipated west of 38th Avenue and/or west of the subject parcel 
(see Attachment I –  PTOL Master Plan). 
 
The Gateway Park II PUD proposes a 7,843 open space area, and a 6,600 square foot 
dog park, which qualifies as the usable open space for the proposed development. 
  

 
5. Schools 

The nearest schools within 1.5 miles of the proposed development include Meeker 
Elementary School, Brentwood Middle School, and Greeley West High School is 
walking distance from the site. 

 
H. VISUAL IMPACTS 

Visual impacts would be mitigated by the use of perimeter landscape treatments on the 
south and around the circular parcel, and buffer yards on the east.  
 

I. PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 
Letters regarding the public hearing for the proposed Preliminary PUD were mailed to all 
property owners within 500 feet of the site, a notice regarding the project was sent to the 
Greeley Tribune on December 13, 2018.   

182



 

 
Page 13 of 13 

Gateway Park II PUD 
Preliminary PUD| PUD2018-0006 
January 22, 2019 

 
 

 
Two signs were posted on-site on December 3, 2018. One along Centerplace Drive and the 
other  on the northern proposed access point to the proposed development. No comments 
have been received to date [see Attachment M – Notice Boundary Map] . 
 

J. MINERIAL ESTATE OWNER NOTIFICATION 
Mineral notice was required with this development. The applicant has submitted their 
notice to all mineral rights owners’ 30-days prior to hearing date. 
 

K. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTIONS (Two) 
 

1. Rezone from PUD (Oil and Gas) to PUD (Residential)  
 
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission 
find that the proposed rezoning from PUD (Oil and Gas) zone district to PUD 
(Residential) zone district meets criteria outlined in Development Code Sections 
18.30.050(c)(3) and 18.32.040(b) and therefore, recommends approval of the rezone to 
the City Council.    

 
2. Gateway Park II PUD - Preliminary PUD Plan  

 
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning Commission 
finds that the proposed Gateway Park II PUD Plan is consistent with Section 18.32.040, 
18.32.050 and 18.32.060 of the Development Code and, therefore, recommends 
approval of the PUD plan as submitted to the City Council, with the following condition: 
 
 

1. Prior to Final PUD recordation, any remaining engineering construction and design 
issues must be addressed, to the satisfaction of the City, including those related to 
traffic impacts, roadway maintenance, and drainage. 

 
 

L. ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A  –  Aerial/Vicinity Map 
Attachment B  –  Existing Zoning Map 
Attachment C  –  Applicant Narrative  
Attachment D  –  Preliminary PUD Plan 
Attachment E  –  Preliminary PUD Document 
Attachment F  –  Ecological Significance Map 
Attachment G  –  2035 Comprehensive Transportation Plan 
Attachment H  –  Greeley Bicycle Plan 
Attachment I  –   PTOL Master Plan 
Attachment J  –  Rezoning Documents 
Attachment K – Setback Exhibit 
Attachment M –  Notice Boundary Map 

183



23rd Street Rd

M
ead

ow
brook

Ln

29th St

3
3
rd

 A
v
e

27th Street Ln

25th St

28th Street Rd

28th St

27th St

24th St

26th St

3
5
th

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

4
2
n

d
 A

v
e

4
0
th

 A
v
e

4
0
th

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

3
9
th

 A
v
e

3
8
th

 A
v
e

Centerplace Dr

4
1
s
t 
A

v
e

M
o
u
n
ta

ir L
n

3
4
th

 A
v
e

3
6
th

 A
v
e

Parke Ln

3
5

th
 A

v
e

£¤34

O
Notes:
All planimetric data was digitized from
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992,
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates
are continual and data representations
will change over time.  This product is
not necessarily accurate to engineering
or surveying standards but does meet
National Mapping Accuracy
Standardds (NMAS). The
information contained within this
document is not intended to be used
for the preperation of  construction
documents.

Information contained on this
document remains the property of  the
City of  Greeley. Copying any portion
of  this map without the written
permission of  the City of  Greeley is
strictly prohibited.

Aerial/Vicinity Map

Created: November 26, 2018
By: duranm, CD

PUD2018-0006/0008_Gateway Park II_PUD.mxd

0 500 1,000250

Feet

Kaiser

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing

S I T ES I T E

Infill project proposal offering
144 unit residential amenitized 

multi-family complex.

Legend

Subject Site

Noticing Area 500ft

Property Lines

Gateway Place II PUD

Centerplace

Gateway Place II PUD
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive

Parcel ID: 095914400005

John Elway

Attachment A

184



23rd Street Rd

M
ead

ow
brook

Ln

29th St

3
3
rd

 A
v
e

27th Street Ln

25th St

28th Street Rd

28th St

27th St

24th Street Rd

24th St

26th St

3
5
th

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

4
2
n
d

A
ve

4
0
th

 A
v
e

4
0
th

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

3
9
th

 A
v
e

3
8
th

 A
v
e

Centerplace Dr

4
1
s
t 
A

v
e

M
o
u
n
ta

ir L
n

3
4
th

 A
v
e

3
6
th

 A
v
e

Parke Ln

3
5
th

A
v
e

3
5

th
 A

v
e

£¤34

I-L

R-E
R-H

C-L

R-L

PUD

C-H

R-M

O
Notes:

All planimetric data was digitized from
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992,
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates
are continual and data representations
will change over time.  This product is
not necessarily accurate to engineering
or surveying standards but does meet
National Mapping Accuracy
Standardds (NMAS).  The
information contained within this
document is not intended to be used
for the preperation of  construction
documents.

Information contained on this
document remains the property of  the
City of  Greeley. Copying any portion
of  this map without the written
permission of  the City of  Greeley is
strictly prohibited.

Existing Zoning Map

Created: November 26, 2018
By: duranm, CD

PUD2018-0006 PUD Gateway Park II_Prelim.mxd

0 500 1,000250

Feet

Kaiser

Gateway Park, 2nd Filing

S I T ES I T E

Legend

Subject Site

Noticing Area 500ft

Property Lines

C-D

C-H

C-L

H-A

I-H

I-L

I-M

PUD

R-E

R-H

R-L

R-M

Gateway Place II PUD

John Elway

Centerplace

Gateway Place II PUD
36th Avenue and 
Centerplace Drive

Parcel ID: 095914400005

John Elway

Attachment B

185



 
 
 
 

1 of 4 
 

1101 Bannock Street  |  Denver, CO 80204 
 

www.norris-design.com 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 
Rezoning criteria/justification. 
 
Introduction 
The Gateway Park II residential development is an envisioned opportunistic infill project offering a new 144 unit 
residential amenitized community that will complement the existing West Park Village, Creekstone Apartment, and 
Gateway Place Apartment communities along the Highway 34 corridor of southwest Greeley, CO.  
 
The selected site for this development includes a 6.491 acre abandoned gas well - Parcel ID: 095914400005 located 
just north of the intersection of 36th Avenue and W 25th Street - and a .0.62 acre portion of Parcel ID: 095914404002 
- the adjacent east parcel. Together, the 7.111-acre site sits within both the Gateway Park Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) and the Gilbert PUD where the gas well is identified as Gilbert Site #1. Both PUD’s were approved 
sequentially in 1984. The predominate parcel is zoned gas well because at the time of the 1984 PUD approval there 
was an active well on site.  Since the time of that zoning the well has been plugged and abandoned, per required 
regulations, rendering the zoning designation obsolete, and the parcel now developable. 
 
This application is for a new Planned Unit Development (PUD) seeking the rezoning of Gilbert Site #1 from the 
Gateway Park PUD zoning category “gas well” to “residential” in the new Gateway Park II PUD to allow for the 
development of a high-quality residential housing  project that strives to offer compact community design, is close in 
proximity to a mix of supporting uses, and leverages the forward-thinking transporation goals of the multimodal 
Highway 34 corridor. In doing so, this new PUD supports core values and guiding principles of the Imagine Greeley 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Benefits of the new Gateway Park II PUD  
Part of this entitlement process and application is to update the current platted and unplatted land within the Gateway 
Park PUD. Gilbert Site #1 (Parcel ID: 095914400005) currently has an existing parking bay of 43 cars located within 
the northern-most portion of the parcel that serves the adjacent Gateway Place Apartments. That parking bay, 
however, is currently not recognized in City records and will be incorporated into the replatting of the Gilbert Site #1 
parcel, which will occur simulatenously with this Gateway Park II PUD application. 
 
Also of importance, the existing Gateway Place Apartments would like to expand their parking beyond the additional 
parking bay within the Gilbert Site #1 to provide more convenient parking opportunies for existing residences.  The 
parcel to the east of Gilbert Site #1, Parcel ID: 095914404002 – mentioned above – is platted land within the 
Gateway Village Filing #1 and is under the same ownership as the parcel for Gateway Place Apartments. To achieve 
additonal parking and to address the needs for on-site drainge for the proposed residential development in the 
Gateway Park II PUD, the ~27,000 square-foot portion (.62 acres) of the Gateway Village Filing #1 parcel adjacent to 
the Gilbert Site #1 would be subdivided and combined with the Gilbert Site #1 parcel to create a new plat for the new 
residential development.  
 
The Gateway Park II PUD intends to replat the Gilbert Site #1 parcel, and subdivide the adjacent portion of the 
Gateway Village Filling #1 parcel to create a 7.111 acre plat that through the Final Plat process for the new PUD will 
correct City records for the unrecorded parking lot, create more parking to support  the Gateway Place Apartments, 
and incorporate vacant land to address site drainage needs for the new residential development to be built on site.     
    
  

Attachment C

186



 
 
 
 

2 of 4 
 

1101 Bannock Street  |  Denver, CO 80204 
 

www.norris-design.com 

Potential Impacts 
There are no detrimental environmental conditions, such as floodplains, existing irrigation ditches, inadequate 
drainage, slopes, or unstable soils on site that would affect future development of the site for a residential use. The 
original zoning of the site “gas well” is obselete with the abandonment and plugging (per required standards) of the 
gas well and therefore in the best interest of the community, rezoning the site to a residential use will offer 
additional housing choice and provide a better more valuable use for the community.  
 
Rezoning the proposed 7.111 acres from “gas well” to “residential” will not create significant noise, environmental, 
or visual impacts for the surrounding residential community. On the contrary, the proposed rezoning to residential 
only complements and expands the surrounding residential uses in the area. Any change in noise due to a larger 
residential population will be marginal, and the visual impacts will actually help to further improve the surrounding 
area.  
 
The City of Greeley employs a 200-plus professional staff within the Greeley Police Department who serve over 
100,000 citizens throughout the Greeley community. The residential development associated with the Gateway 
Park II PUD will potentially add as many as 300 additional residents to the City of Greeley – a possible 0.3% 
increase to the service area by population - that will require service from the Greeley Police Department. In an over-
the-phone conversation with the captain of the operations division, they did not express any concern regarding 
impact to service with a population growth of an estimated 300 people and 144 housing units that the residential 
development proposed could potentially add to the Police Departments service area.  
 
The City of Greeley also employs its own fire department comprised of 7 stations that serve the 64 square-mile area 
of the greater Greeley metropolitan area. The residential development proposed with the Gateway Park II PUD is 
located within the service area for Station 5, located at 4701 24th Street in Monfort Park. Station 5 includes both a 
truck company and an engine company that include a 6- to 8-person crew combined. Station 2, located at 2301 
Reservoir Road also serves the area and provides 24-hour, 7-days-a-week paramedic services through the 
ambulance company Banner Paramedic Services. In an over-the-phone conversation with the Division Chief Roger 
Waters, he did not express any concern regarding impact to service with a population growth of an estimated 300 
people and 144 housing units that the residential development could potentially add to both Station 5 and Station 
2’s service area.   
 
Water and Sewer services surround the project site and the City has confirmed that they can provide water and 
sewer for the project, if approved.  
 
Centerplace Drive (W. 25th Street) is a four-lane devided roadway running along the south edge of the project site 
which sits just north of the full-turn “T”-intersection at 36th Avenue (a local roadway) and W. 25th Street. Rezoning 
the property to residential will require access to W. 25th St, when development occurs on site. A review of this 
impact on Traffic is included within the Traffic Impact Study attached to this submittal.  
 
West Greeley Park, Leavy Park, the Greeley Lake West Reservoir, and the Gateway Lakes Natural Area are all 
within a mile walk from the Gateway Park II PUD development. Adverse impacts to these parks and recreation 
facilities are not anticipated to be substantial with an anticipated population increase of 300 people that could occur 
with the addition of the residential development proposed for the Gateway Park II PUD. Any potential impact will 
also be minimized with the addition of on-site outdoor amenities such as a resort-style pool, clubhouse, sheltered 
bbq areas, and a dog park, all of which, will be operated and maintained by on-site management.   
 

187



 
 
 
 

3 of 4 
 

1101 Bannock Street  |  Denver, CO 80204 
 

www.norris-design.com 

The project site is surrounded by multifamily and townhome development (see the Zoning Suitability Plan included 
in this application submittal). The proposed development that would be built with the approval of a rezoning from a 
gas well to residential is directly compatible and will bring positive impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and 
businesses.   
 
Consistency with the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan.  
This proposed rezoning is consistent with the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2/6/2018) which states 
within the overall vision for community, 
 

“Greeley values and respects the diversity of its people, cultures, neighborhoods, and resources in a 
manner that creates and sustains a safe, unique, united, vibrant, and rewarding place in which to live, 
work, learn, grow, and play. The community promotes a healthy and diverse economy, and a high quality 
of life that is responsive to all its residents, businesses and neighborhoods”.  

 
The Gatway Park II PUD which includes rezoning the Gilbert Site #1 from “gas well” to “residential” use supports the 
following core values, goals, objectives and actions expressed within the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. 
 
CORE VALUES 

- Safe, healthy, and inclusive community 
- Sustainable patterns of growth and development 
- Distinctive character and outstanding recreatoinal and cultural amenities 
- Thriving, connected, and inclusive neighborhoods in all the city 

 
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
Growth and City Form (GC) 
Goal GC-1: Manage growth effectively. 

Objective GC-1.1 Growth Management Manage growth to maintain or improve quality of life for Greeley’s 
residents, minimize impacts on the natural environment, and protect or enhance natural features and other 
resources.  
Objective GC-1.2 Form of Growth Encourage a compact urban form over sprawl or leap-frog development. 
 

Goal GC-2: Promote a balanced mix and distribution of land uses. 
Objective GC-2.2 Jobs/Housing Balance Support zoning and development patterns that expand 
opportunities for people who live in Greeley to also work in Greeley (or vice versa). 
Objective GC-2.3 Pedestrian and Bicycle-Oriented Development Encourage a development pattern that 
encourages walking and bicycling whenever possible—by locating employment, shopping, recreation, 
entertainment, transit, and other services within a quartermile of residential areas. 

 
  

188



 
 
 
 

4 of 4 
 

1101 Bannock Street  |  Denver, CO 80204 
 

www.norris-design.com 

Goal GC-4: Prioritize infill and redevelopment.  
Objective GC-4.1 Priority Infill/Redevelopment Areas Following the guidance of adopted neighborhood 
plans and studies, use incentives and infrastructure investments to support infill development and 
redevelopment in priority locations (as identified on the Land Use Guidance Map): 

- Multi-modal corridors  
- Existing activity centers  

 
Objective GC-4.3 Infill Compatibility Promote the use of site design and building architecture that is 
sympathetic to the surrounding area and enhances the desirable character and form of the neighborhood 
or area. 

 
Goal GC-6: Maintain and enhance the character and interconnectivity of Greeley’s neighborhoods. 

Objective GC-6.9 Suburban Subdivisions Promote the careful integration of “complete neighborhood” 
characteristics (see Objective GC-6.1) into suburban neighborhoods (as identified on the Land Use 
Guidance Map), typically those established between 1950 and 2000. 

 
Housing (HO) 
Goal HO-1: Improve access to housing for all income-levels, ages, and physical abilities. 

Objective HO-1.6 Universal Design and Visitability Encourage the development of new housing units that 
incorporate design elements to accommodate the specific needs of the elderly and others who might have 
limited mobility. 

 
Goal HO-2: Encourage a broad diversity of housing options. 

Objective HO-2.2 Rental Housing Foster the development of attractive, safe, and well-maintained rental 
properties for those who do not qualify for or desire to own property. 

 
  

189



COVER SHEET

C1

���������������� �		
��� ������ ������
�� ������ �����	�	 ��� �!
"�!���� ###!�$%�����&!��'
( ) * + ,-

. / 0 + -
12 + + 0 0 3 0 4 + -

( ) * + ,-
. / 0 + -

12 + + 0 0 3 0 4 + -
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

56789:9;<6=
58<;;7> ?;9@>7A78 B5:7;@

C DEEFEG HIJ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

K L M L M N O P .N LQ L M N O P .M M L M L M N O P .
R S T U S VW S R X T V Y W T Z S R

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

COVER SHEET

C1

[ \ ]̂ _̀ _ a b \ c [ d e f _ g ] [̂ b a f h i \
jk l l m n o p q

r _ s _ a _ g c̀ b [t u v w xy z {| z } } } ~

� � � � ��� v � x � v � � w v u x v � v � � � x � � t � �� w w uu � � u � � � x � � x � u x � � x �� } t� t � x x w x t �� � t � � � x � � }� x � � x �� u � � } � } �u � � � v u �y w v � � x � � � � u � � v �� } �� � � �� z � � �� � �   ¡ ¢ � � ¢�t � � � � � � � vz � � � � � w � � � t � � x x �� x � � x �� u � � } � z �u � � � v u �y £ � ¤ � � v � � x� } �� � � �� � � } �¥ ¦ � ¡ � ¡ § �̈ ¡ ¢ ©�u � � � � ª � � x x w x �z z } } z } � ¤ t � � x x �� � x x w x �� u � � } « � z� ¡ ¬ ¡̈ � �  ¡ � � � ��u v � x u � � � w x � � � � x x � � � �z � � � z � � ¤ t � � x x �� t � � � x � z �� x � � x �� u � � } � } �u � � � v u �y x � � u � x v � t � �� � x� � }� � } «� « « � ��̈ � ®̄ � � § � � � �   ¡ ¢ � � ¢�� � � � � t � x t � � � � � � � �z z } z � v � � � u � t �� x � � x �� u � � } � } �u � � � v u �y � � x � � v � � t� } �� � � �� z z « «
¦ ¢ ¡̈ ¡ ¢ ¡ �̄ �° ± ² ³́ µ ² ¶ · ¶ ²̧u � � � � ª � � x x w x �z z } } z } � ¤ t � � x x �� � x x w x �� u � � } « � z¹ ± º ¶ ² ±̧́ µ ² ¶ · ¶ ²̧u � � � � ª � � x x w x �z z } } z } � ¤ t � � x x �� � x x w x �� u � � } « � z¹ ² »́ ¼ ° ± ² ³́ µ ² ¶ · ¶ ²̧u � � � � ª � � x x w x �z z } } z } � ¤ t � � x x �� � x x w x �� u � � } « � z½ » ¼ ½ ± ¹ ²u � � � v u �y � � w w � w v � �� � }� � � }� � � � z± ² ¼ » ¹u � � � v u �y u ¤ � � t � � � x �¾ � x � � � � �� � }� � } �� � } � }½ ³ º ² µ̧́ · ¶ º ¿u � � � v u �y u v � t � � � � � x � v� � � � � � �� � � � �À ½ ³ ·u � � � v u �y � v � � � v x � x �� � }� � � �� z � � }

z � � � � £ x u � � x � � � u v w � v � � � y u � � � � ª � � x x w x � u � � � � � w � x � � � � �BENCHMARK AND CONTROL POINT DESCRIPTIONS:�� � v t � t � ª � x v � � � � t ª � � � ¤ � t � � � £ x u � � t � v t x � � � � � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ w � � x � ª � ¤ x t � � � ¤ x v t �Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ä Ç È É Ã Ê Ë É Æ Ì Å Ê Ç Í Î Ï Ã É Ã É É Â Ð Æ Ë Å Ç Ñ Æ Ã Ä Í Ç Ä Å Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö Ï × Ö Î Ø Ù Æ É Å Ã É Ð Ç Í Â Ð Æ Í Å Æ Ë¤ x � x � � �� � t � x ª x � x � u x � �� y � � z� ¤ x � � � � ¤ � x t � u � � � x � � ª � ¤ x t � � � ¤ x v t � Ú � v � � x � � ª t x u � � � � z �� � � � � t ¤ � � � � � � � ¤�� v � � x « « � x t � � ª � ¤ x « � ¤ �� � � � u � � � � ª � � x x w x �� u � � � � � � ª � x w �� t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � �� � � �� ª �Û z � { � � v � x � x � v w � � � � � � u v � Û x w x � v � � � �y � � � �� � z Ü � v � � � � Ý

� ¤ x t � � ª v u x � � w � � ª v u � � u � w v � � � v u � � ª w v � � w � u v � x � � � � ¤ x � x z � � � ª � ¤ x t x z � � � ªt x u � � � � z �� � � � � t ¤ � � � � � � � ¤� � v � � x « « � x t � � ª � ¤ x « � ¤ �� � � � u � � � � ª � � x x w x �� � x w ��u � � � � �� u � w � � v � �� ¤ v � � � � v � v � � � t � ª � } } ª x x �� � ¤ x u x � � x � � ª t v � � � � v u � � x � � � w � u v � x �v � v � � � � � � ¤ � u ¤ � x v � t t � � � ¤ � « � x � � x x t� z � � � � � � x t� � � t x u � � � t � x t �� z � � }� « � ª x x � ª � � �� ¤ x x z � � u � � � x � � ª t v � � t x u � � � � z ��u � � � � � � ª � x w �t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � �� � � x � ¤ x � � � � ¤Þv � � � � � � � � ª � w � u � �� � v � x � v � � � w w v � x ª � w � � � � �� z Û ª � � t � � x � w v �� t � � � v � x � � � ¤ xt � � � ¤ x v t � Ú � v � � x � � ª t x u � � � � z �� � � � � t ¤ � � � � � � � ¤� � v � � x « « � x t � � ª � ¤ x « � ¤ �� � � � u � � �� ª � � x x w x �� u � � � � � � ª � x w �� t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � �� � x � � � � � � x � v � � � u � w v � w � � x t u � � � x � v tª � w w � � tÞu � � t � � x � � � � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ w � � x � ª � ¤ x t � � � ¤ x v t � Ú � v � � x � � ª t v � � t x u � � � � z � v t v t t � � x � � �Ñ Æ Ã Ä Í Ç Ä Å Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö Ï × Ö Î Ø Ù Æ É Å Ã Í Ë Ù Ê Å Ò Ã ß ß Ñ Æ Ã Ä Ê Í à É Ì Ç Í Å Ã Ê Í Æ Ë Ò Æ Ä Æ Ê Í Ä Æ ß Ã Å Ê á Æ Å Ò Æ Ä Æ Å Çâ� x � � � � � � � v � � ¤ x x v t � Ú � v � � x � u � � � x � � ª t v � � t x u � � � � z �Þ � ¤ x � u x v w � � � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ w � � xÇ È É Ã Ê Ë É Ç Â Å Ò Æ Ã É Å Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ä Í Ç Ä Å Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö Ï × Ö Î Ø Ù Æ É Å ã ä Ôå Ï Ó È Æ Æ Åâ Å Ò Æ Í Ì Æ Ë Æ æ Ã Ä Å Ê Í à É Ã Ê Ë Í Ç Ä Å Òw � � x v � � v w � � � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ x � w � � � � w � � � v � � � � � ª � ¤ x � x t � w � � x � ª � w � u � z � � v � x � v �á Ê ß ß Ã à Æ È Ê ß Ê Í à Í Ç å Îç È Ê Ä É Å Ä Æ æ ß Ã Å Ã Í Ë Ã ß Ç Í à É Ã Ê Ë Ù Æ É Å ß Ê Í Æ É Ç Â Å Ò è ä Õ ä é × ä ê Ø Ù Æ É Å é è é å Ö ãÈ Æ Æ Åâ Å Ò Æ Í Ì Æ É Ç Â Å Ò Ï Ô Õ ä é × ä ê Ø Ù Æ É Å é ã å Ó Ó È Æ Æ Å Å Ç Å Ò Æ Å Ä Â Æ æ Ç Ê Í Å Ç È Ñ Æ à Ê Í Í Ê Í à â Å Ò Æ Í Ì ÆÌ Ç Í Å Ê Í Â Ê Í à É Ç Â Å Ò Ï Ô Õ ä é × ä ê Ø Ù Æ É Å ä Ö éå è Ï È Æ Æ Å Å Ç Ã æ Ç Ê Í Å Ç Í Ã Ì Â Ä á Æ Ì Ç Í Ì Ã á Æ Å Ç Å Ò Æ Ù Æ É ÅëÒ Ã á Ê Í à Ã Ì Æ Í Å Ä Ã ß Ã Í à ß Æ Ç È ã Ï Õ é Ô × é Ó Ø Ã Í Ë Ã Ä Ã Ë Ê Â É Ç È Ö è è å è è È Æ Æ Åë Å Ò Æ ß Ç Í à Ì Ò Ç Ä Ë Ç È Ù Ò Ê Ì ÒÑ Æ Ã Ä É É Ç Â Å Ò Ö ä Õ ä Ó × ä ã Ø Æ Ã É Å Ö ä ä å ä Ö È Æ Æ Åâ Å Ò Æ Í Ì Æ É Ç Â Å Ò Æ Ã É Å Æ Ä ß ì Ã ß Ç Í à Å Ò Æ Ã Ä Ì Ç È É Ã Ê ËÌ Â Ä á Æ Ö Ï è å Î ã È Æ Æ Åâ Å Ò Æ Í Ì Æ Í Ç Íç Å Ã Í à Æ Í Å È Ä Ç Ð É Ã Ê Ë Ì Â Ä á Æ Í Ç Ä Å Ò è è Õ è è × Ö Ï Ø Æ Ã É Å Ï Ö èå Ó ã È Æ Æ Å Å Ç� ¤ x � � � x � � � � � � ª � x � � � � � � � �u � � � v � � � � � �� z z v u � x t� � � � x � � w x t t� v t t ¤ � � � � � � ¤ x v � � v u ¤ x � � v �� v t x � � � v u x � � � � ¤ � �� ¤ x ¤ x v � � x í � x � � � � w � � x t � ¤ x � x � �� ¤ v � x t � � � � � � � x � � ¤ x t v � x � � � � w � � t v � � � � � w � � � �x � � x w � � x t v t t ¤ � � � � � � ¤ x v � � v u ¤ x � � v � v � � � � ¤ x � x � � t x � v t � � x t v � � � � � � � � � � �� � v u � � ª w v � � v � � � x t � � � v � x � ¤ x t v � x � v � x � v � � v � � � � � ª � w � � � � x � � � � � � ¤ � � � ¤ x u � � � � ª� � x x w x �� u � � � � � � ª � x w �� t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � �� v � � � � � x � � u v � x � � � ¤ x � � � w � u� v w wx v t x � x � � t � � x � v � � v u � � t t t v � � w � � t v � w � u v � � � � t t ¤ � � � � � t v � � � v � v � � � � ª � � � ¤ x �u x � � � ª � � ¤ v � � ¤ x � � � � ¤ v � � � ¤ x � � � x � t � � � t � ª � ¤ x w � � t v � � � � � w � � � � x � � x w � � x t� v � � � ¤ x� v � x t v � � � � � � x � t � ¤ x � x � ª v � x u � � � x u � w � � x t � � � v � x � � � � � t v � � � v ��

� � � � v w w � x � � � � ¤ x t x � � x t x � � ty � ¤ v � � ¤ x � � � x � t � � � x �� � x � � � � ¤ x t � w x � � � x � Ü t Ý � � ª x x� ª v � � � � � � � � ª � ¤ x t � � � ¤ x v t � Ú � v � � x � � ª t x u � � � � z �� � � � � t ¤ � � � � � � � ¤� � v � � x « « � x t �� ª � ¤ x « � ¤ � � � � u � � v w � x � � � � v �� u � � � � ª � � x x w x �� u � � � � � � ª � x w �� t � v � x � ª u � w � � v � � � x � � �� � � x � v � � � u � w v � w � � x t u � � � x � v t ª � w w � � tyLEGAL DESCRIPTIONî ï ð ð ñ ò ó ô ð õt ö÷ ÷ ø �ù ú û÷ ü t ö÷ ÷ ø � ý ø þ÷
C1 COVER SHEET

C2 NOTES

C3 SITE PLAN

C4 GRADING PLAN

C5 GRADING PLAN

C6 OVERALL UTILITY PLAN

C7 STORM PLAN AND PROFILE - A

C8 STORM PLAN AND PROFILE - B

C9 STORM PLAN AND PROFILE - C

C10 STORM PLAN AND PROFILE - D

C11 WATER PLAN

C12 SANITARY PLAN AND PROFILE - A

C13 SANITARY PLAN AND PROFILE - B

C14 EROSION CONTROL PLAN - INITIAL

C15 EROSION CONTROL PLAN - INTERIM

C16 EROSION CONTROL PLAN - FINAL

C17 SIGNAGE & STRIPING PLAN

C18 SIGNAGE & STRIPING DETAILS

C19 WATER & SEWER DETAILS

C20 STORM SEWER DETAILS

C21 GRADING DETAILS

ÿ � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � 
 � � � � � 	 � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � �  � � � � �� � � � �  � � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � �� � � � � � � � �! � � �  � � � " � �   � � � � �  � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � �  � � � � � ! � � �  � � � " � �   � � � � �  � � � � � �� � � � � � � � # � � � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � " �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �$ � � � � � � � � � $ � �� � � �  � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � �!% & & ' ( ) ' * + ,-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .& / ) , ' 0 1 / 0 ' ' 2 * % ) '% & & ' ( ) ' * + ,-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3 % ) ' 2 4 5 ' 3 ' 2 & 6 / ' 7 ' 0 1 / 0 ' ' 2 * % ) '% & & ' ( ) ' * + ,-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1 2 ' ' 8 ' , 7 / 2 ' 9 % 2 5 6 % 8 * % ) '% & & ' ( ) ' * + ,-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .& : 9 9; * ' < ' 8 : ( 9 ' 0 ) * / 2 ' & ) : 2 * % ) '
= � � � � � � � � � ÿ � > ? � 
 �	 � � 
 � � � � � 	& : 9 & % 5 )% & & ' ( ) ' * + , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .+ / 8 8 + 8 % / 2 * % ) '% ) 9 : 5% & & ' ( ) ' * + , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .& 6 2 / 5 ) / 0 ' 9 & * ' 2 9 : ) ) * % ) '& ' 0 ) @ 2 , 8 / 0 A% & & ' ( ) ' * + , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .& % 2 5 : 0 : 2 ) ' 1 % * % ) 'B & ' 8% & & ' ( ) ' * + , -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .( % ) A 2 ' % 1 ' 2 * % ) ' 190



���������������� �		
��� ������ ������
�� ������ �����	�	 ��� �!
"�!���� ###!�$%�����&!��'
( ) * + ,-

. / 0 + -
12 + + 0 0 3 0 4 + -

( ) * + ,-
. / 0 + -

12 + + 0 0 3 0 4 + -
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

56789:9;<6=
58<;;7> ?;9@>7A78 B5:7;@

C DEEFEG HIJ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

K L M L M N O P .N LQ L M N O P .M M L M L M N O P .
R S T U S VW S R X T V Y W T Z S R

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

NOTES

C2

ÿ C DE F G �H I I J I E 	 DH I I D = I K CL M � I M IH N J 
 F D I KO ! � P PQ R S TQ U V W UX V WY Z [ \ P U] S U^ W V_ R `_Q a b$ R S Y a cY dY X V c W a P P ] RX ` R S d V R V WY  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b RX c V S [ ] V U RX � ZY ] Ù U ] a V U RX c aX e �Y c U X̂ � V aX e a S e c!f! � WY  RX V S a] V R S U c SY c Z RX c U \ PY ` R S R \ V a UX UX̂ a P P SY g [ U SY e ZY S d U V c Z S U R S V R ] R d dY X ] Y dY X V R ` aX bQ R S T RX V WY Z S R hY ] V! � ZY S d U V̀ S R d � [ \ P U ] � R S T c �Y Z a S V dY X V i j k l _ m n l _ j o o O p U c SY g [ U SY è R S a P P] RX c V S [ ] V U RX UX Z [ \ P U ] S U^ W V_ R `_Q a b R S Y a cY dY X V c! � Z SY _ ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX ] RX `Y SY X ] Y c W a P P \Y WY P eQ U V W U V b SY Z SY cY X V a V Uq Y c \Y ` R SY a ZY S d U VQ U P P \Y U c c [Y e !  a P P � V U P U V b � R V Ù U] a V U RX Y X VY S R ̀ R P R S a e R a V O _o l l _ j f f _ O j o k̀ R S [ V U P U V b P R] a VY c a V PY a c V r o W R [ S c Z S U R S V R aX b Y s] aq a V U RX Q R S T!m! � WY  RX V S a ] V R S c W a P P X R V Ù b  RX c V S [ ] V U RX �Y Sq U ] Y c i j k l _ m n l _ j m n o p a V PY a c V f r W R [ S Z S U R S V R SY g [ U SY eUX c ZY ] V U RX !r! � V U c V WY  RX V S a] V R S " c SY c Z RX c U \ U P U V b V R X R V Ù b V WY �Q X Y S t �Y q Y P R ZY S$ aX e V WY  U V b$ R ` aX b Z S R \ PY d c UX] RX ` R S d UX̂ V R V WY a] ] Y Z VY e Z P aX c ` R S aX b Y PY dY X V R V̀ WY Z S R Z R cY e U d Z S Rq Y dY X V c Z S U R S V R U V c] RX c V S [ ] V U RX !n! � V U c V WY SY c Z RX c U \ U P U V b R V̀ WY �Y q Y P R ZY S e [ S UX̂ ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX a] V Uq U V UY c V R SY c R Pq Y ] RX c V S [ ] V U RXZ S R \ PY d c e [Y V R ] W aX̂ Y e ] RX e U V U RX c$ R S eY c U X̂ Y S S R S c Y X ] R [X VY SY e \ b V WY  RX V S a] V R S e [ S UX̂ V W YZ S R̂ SY c c R ` aX b Z R S V U RX R V̀ WY Z S R hY ] V! �̀ $ UX V WY R Z UX U RX R V̀ WY  U V b$ V WY d R e Ù U] a V U RX c Z S R Z R cY e \ b V WY�Y q Y P R ZY S$ V R V WY a] ] Y Z VY e Z P aX c$ UX q R Pq Y c U X̂ Ù U] aX V ] W aX̂ Y c V R V WY ] W a S a] VY S R V̀ WY Q R S T$ R S V R V WY` [ V [ SY ] RX V U [̂ R [ c Z [ \ P U ] R S Z S Uq a VY U d Z S Rq Y dY X V c$ V WY �Y q Y P R ZY S c W a P P \Y SY c Z RX c U \ PY ` R S SY _ c [ \ d U V V UX̂V WY SY q U cY e Z P aX c V R V WY  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b ` R S a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y Z S U R S V R aX b ` [ S V WY S ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX SY P a VY e V R V W a VZ R S V U RX R V̀ WY Z S R hY ] V! �X b U d Z S Rq Y dY X V c X R V ] RX c V S [ ] VY e UX a] ] R S e aX ] Y Q U V W V WY a] ] Y Z VY e Z P aX c$ R SV WY a] ] Y Z VY e SY q U cY e Z P aX c$ c W a P P \Y SY d Rq Y e aX e SY ] RX c V S [ ] VY e a] ] R S e UX̂ V R V WY a Z Z S Rq Y e Z P aX !u! � WY  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P \Y c R PY P b aX e ] R d Z PY VY P b SY c Z RX c U \ PY ` R S V WY ] RX e U V U RX c a V aX e a e h a] Y X V V R V WYh R \ c U VY $ UX ] P [ e UX̂ c a `Y V b R ` a P P ZY S c RX c aX e Z S R ZY S V b$ e [ S UX̂ V WY ZY S ` R S d aX ] Y R V̀ WY Q R S T! � W U cSY g [ U SY dY X V c W a P P a Z Z P b ] RX V UX [ R [ c P b aX e c W a P P X R V \Y P U d U VY e V R X R S d a PQ R S T UX̂ W R [ S c! � WY e [ V b R `V WY  U V b V R ] RX e [ ] V ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX SY q UY Q R V̀ WY  RX V S a] V R S " c ZY S ` R S d aX ] Y U c X R V UX VY X eY e V R UX ] P [ eYSY q UY Q R V̀ WY a eY g [ a] b R V̀ W Y  RX V S a ] V R S " c c a `Y V b dY a c [ SY c UX $ RX $ R S X Y a S V WY ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX c U VY !k! � WY  RX V S a ] V R S c W a P P Z S Rq U eY a P P P U^ W V c$ c U X̂ c$ \ a S S U ] a eY c$ P̀ â ZY S c RX c$ R S R V WY S eY q U ] Y c X Y ] Y c c a S bV R Z S Rq U eY ` R S Z [ \ P U ] c a `Y V b UX a] ] R S e aX ] Y Q U V W V WY ] [ S SY X V � aX [ a P RX �X Ù R S d � S a `̀ U ] ] RX V S R P �Y q U ] Y c$aX e V WY  SY Y PY b � [ Z Z PY dY X V V R V WY � aX [ a P RX � X Ù R S d � S a `̀ U]  RX V S R P �Y q U ] Y c!o! � WY  RX V S a] V R S U c SY c Z RX c U \ PY ` R S V WY Z S R VY ] V U RX R ` a P P c [ Sq Y b d RX [ dY X V c! �X b d RX [ dY X V V W a Vd [ c V \Y eY c V S R bY è R S ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX c W a P P \Y SY Z P a] Y e ! � WY  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P Y X̂ â Y V WY cY Sq U ] Y c R ` a� S R `Y c c U RX a P � U ] Y X cY e � [ Sq Y b R S i � � � p Z S U R S V R e U c V [ S \ UX̂ aX b d RX [ dY X V c!j! � S U R S V R ÙX a P Z P a] Y dY X V R ` c [ S ` a] Y Z aq Y dY X V$ a P P [X eY Ŝ S R [X e [ V U P U V b d a UX c c W a P P \Y UX c V a P PY e aX ecY Sq U ] Y ] RX X Y ] V U RX c c V [ \ \Y e R [ V \Y b RX e ] [ S \ P UX Y $ Q WY X a P P RQ Y e \ b V WY [ V U P U V b! �Y Sq U ] Y ` S R d Z [ \ P U ][ V U P U V UY c aX è S R d c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S c c W a P P \Y d a eY aq a U P a \ PY ` R S Y a] W P R V UX c [ ] W a d aX X Y S V W a VQ U P P X R V\Y X Y ] Y c c a S b V R e U c V [ S \ V WY c V SY Y V Z aq Y dY X V$ ] [ S \$ [̂ V VY S$ aX e c U eY Q a P TQ WY X ] RX X Y ] V U RX c a SY d a eY !O l! �  Y R VY ] WX U ] a P �Y Z R S V W a c \Y Y X Z SY Z a SY e \ bv v v v v v i UX ] P [ eY SY Z R S V e a VY aX e Z S R hY ] V w p̀ R SS U^ W V R `_Q a bŜ a e UX̂ aX e Z aq UX̂ ! �Y `Y S V R  Y R VY ] WX U ] a P �Y Z R S V̀ R S aX b SY g [ U SY dY X V c Y s] Y Y e UX̂  U V b� V aX e a S e c! � � UX a P � aq Y dY X V �Y c U X̂ �Y Z R S V U c a P c R SY g [ U SY e ! � WY c R U P UX q Y c V U â V U RX ` R S V W U c SY Z R S Vc W a P P R] ] [ S a V̀Y S [ V U P U V b ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX aX e Ŝ a e UX̂ ` R S c V SY Y V c U c ] R d Z PY VY e V RQ U V W UX u x R ` aX V U ] U Z a VY ec [ \ Ŝ a eY ! � WY ÙX a P � aq Y dY X V �Y c U X̂ �Y Z R S V c W a P P \Y a] ] Y Z VY e \ b V WY  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b Z S U R S V R aX bX RX _ c V S [ ] V [ S a P ] RX ] SY VY $ Z aq Y dY X V R S c [ \ Ŝ a eY UX c V a P P a V U RX

ÿ C DE F G �H I I J I E y N D IH z 	 I { IH � I M IH N J 
 F D I KO ! � P P ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX Q R S T V R \Y a] ] Y Z VY e \ b V WY  U V b c W a P P ] RX ` R S d V R V WY  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b  RX c V S [ ] V U RX� ZY ] Ù U ] a V U RX c aX e �Y c U X̂ � V aX e a S e c!f! � P P Rq Y S P R V Ŝ a e UX̂ UX V WY S U^ W V_ R `_Q a b R S Y a cY dY X V c W a P P \Y ] R d Z PY VY e Z S U R S V R UX c V a P P UX̂ Z R V a \ PYQ a VY S$ c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S$ R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX P UX Y c!m!  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P q Y S Ù b a P P [ V U P U V b P R] a V U RX c Z S U R S V R ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX !  a P P � V U P U V b � R V Ù U ] a V U RX Y X VY S R ` R P R S a e R a V O _ o l l _ j f f _ O j o k R S e U a P o O Ò R S [ V U P U V b P R] a VY c r o W R [ S c Z S U R S V R aX b Y s] aq a V U RX Q R S T!r! � a UX V a UX a d UX U d [ d R V̀Y X i O l p̀ Y Y V W R S U| RX V a P ] PY a S e U c V aX ] Y cY Z a S a V U RX \Y VQ Y Y X Z R V a \ PY Q a VY Sd a UX c t cY Sq U ] Y c aX e c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX d a UX c t cY Sq U ] Y c! � R V a \ PY Q a VY Sd a UX c t cY Sq U ] Y c a SY V R \Y P R] a VY e O o _ UX ] WY c d UX U d [ d a \ Rq Y V WY c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PYU S S U â V U RX d a UX c t cY Sq U ] Y c! �̀̀ UY P e ] RX e U V U RX c q a S b ` S R d V W R cY c W RQ X RX V WY cY Z P aX c aX e V WYc aX U V a S b cY Q Y S R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY d a UX c t cY Sq U] Y c ] aX X R V \Y P R] a VY e \Y P RQ V WY Q a VY S d a UX R S cY Sq U ] Y $a ] PY a S q Y S V U ] a P e U c V aX ] Y R ` Y U^ W VY Y X i O o p UX ] WY c \Y P RQ ] aX X R V \Y d a UX V a UX Y e $ R S a d UX U d [ d VY Xi O l p̀ R R V W R S U| RX V a P cY Z a S a V U RX ] aX X R V \Y a] W UY q Y e $ V WY  U V b c W a P P \Y ] RX V a] VY e U d dY e U a VY P b V RSY q UY Q V WY c U V [ a V U RX !n! � X a P P UX c V aX ] Y cQ WY SY aQ a VY S P UX Y P RQ Y S UX̂ $ Z R V a \ PY R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY $ U c SY g [ U SY e e [Y V R [X ` R S cY Y XÙY P e ] RX e U V U RX c$ a eY V a U PY e e S aQ UX̂ c W a P P \Y Z S Rq U eY e V R V WY  U V b ` R S a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y Z S U R S V RZY S ` R S d UX̂ V WY Q R S T!u! � WY SY Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S$ c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S$ aX e X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX P UX Y c a SY P R] a VY e UX ] R d d RX[ V U P U V b Y a cY dY X V a SY a c$ V WY SY c W a P P \Y X R R V WY S [ V U P U V UY c P R] a VY e W R S U| RX V a P P bQ U V W UX VY X i O l p̀ Y Y V R `Y U V WY S P UX Y Y s] Y Z V a V a Z Z S Rq Y e ] S R c c UX̂ c!k!  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P X R V Ù b V WY  U V b RX Y i O pQ Y Y T Z S U R S V R ] R d dY X ] UX̂ Q R S T a V̀Y S  U V b a] ] Y Z VY e RX c V S [ ] V U RX � S aQ UX̂ c W aq Y \Y Y X e U c V S U \ [ VY e aX e a Z SY ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX dY Y V UX̂ W a c \Y Y X WY P eQ U V WV WY  U V b!o!  RX V S a] V R S c W a P P Z R V W R PY a P P Y s U c V UX̂ [ V U P U V UY c V R \Y ] S R c cY e \ b Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S$ c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S$ R S} ~ }� � ~ �� � �� �� � �� � � � ~ } � � }� � � � �� � � � � � � ~ � � � �� � ~� � ~ �� ~ � � � }� � ~ � } � � � � � � �� � } �� �� � �� � � � } ��� ~� ~ �� } � � � �� ~ � � � }� � � } � � � � � � } �� �� � �� � � � } �� � ~� � ~� � � �� ~ � � � }� �� � ~� �� ~ } � � � � } �� � � � � � � �P R] a V U RX R ` ] S R c cY e Y s U c V UX̂ [ V U P U V UY c c W a P P \Y SY ] R S eY e RX V WY � c _  RX c V S [ ] VY e �Y ] R S e � S aQ UX̂ c!j! � W R [ P e aX b q a S U a V U RX c \Y ` R SY R S e [ S UX̂ ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX V R V WY Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S e U c V S U \ [ V U RX $ c aX U V a S bcY Q Y S ] R P PY ] V U RX $ R S X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX c b c VY d eY c U X̂ c \Y ] RX c U eY SY e $ X R V U] Y d [ c V̀ U S c V \Y^ Uq Y X V R V WY  U V b V R eY VY S d UX Y Ù U V X Y Y e c a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y \ b V WY  U V b! �̀ c R$ a X Y Q Z P aX c W a P P \Y e S aQ XaX e c [ \ d U V VY e V R V WY  U V b ` R S a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y \ b V WY �Y c U X̂ �X̂ UX Y Y S k f W R [ S c Z S U R S V R ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX !O l! � UX a P ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX Z P aX c a SY q a P U è R S ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX RX Y i O p bY a S ` S R d V WY e a VY R ̀ U V b c U X̂ a V [ SY�] ] Y Z V aX ] Y !O O ! � P P Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S d a UX c$ cY Sq U ] Y c$ aX e W b e S aX V P UX Y c c W a P P W aq Y a d UX U d [ d ] Rq Y S R `̀ Uq Y i n p̀ Y Y VaX e a d a s U d [ d ] Rq Y S R ` c U s i u p̀ Y Y V [X PY c c R V WY SQ U cY UX e U ] a VY e RX V WY a] ] Y Z VY e  RX c V S [ ] V U RX� S aQ UX̂ c!O f! � P P X RX _ Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S d a UX c aX e cY Sq U ] Y c c W a P P W aq Y a d UX U d [ d ] Rq Y S R V̀ W SY Y aX e a W a P̀ i m! n p`Y Y V aX e a d a s U d [ d ] Rq Y S R ` c U s i u p̀ Y Y V [X PY c c R V WY SQ U cY UX e U ] a VY e RX V WY a] ] Y Z VY e RX c V S [ ] V U RX � S aQ UX̂ c!O m! � P P X Y Q Q a VY S d a UX c c W a P P \Y \ [ P T WY a eY e aX e VY c VY e aX e a Z Z S Rq Y e Z S U R S V R ] RX X Y ] V U RX V R V WYY s U c V UX̂ Q a VY S # a Pq Y cQ W U ] W Z a c c VY c V UX̂ ` R S Z SY c c [ SY aX e PY a T â Y a V V W Y V U dY R ÙX c V a P P a V U RX aX eV WY VY c V UX̂ Q a c ZY S ` R S dY e UX V WY Z SY cY X ] Y R V̀ WY  U V b d a b \Y ] RX c U eY SY e a c a \ [ P T WY a e !O r! #Y S Ù U ] a V U RX � [ Sq Y b _ � R Z R ` Z U ZY Y PY q a V U RX c a V a P P Z R V a \ PY aX e X RX _ Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S P UX Y q a Pq Y c$ aX ec aX U V a S b cY Q Y S d aX W R PY UX q Y S V c c W a P P \Y c [ Sq Y bY e aX e Z S Rq U eY e V R V WY  U V b \ b V WY �Y c U X̂�X̂ UX Y Y S ` R S a] ] Y Z V aX ] Y Z S U R S V R Z aq UX̂ ] RX c V S [ ] V U RX ! � WY q Y S Ù U ] a V U RX c [ Sq Y b c W a P P a P c R Z S Rq U eYcY Q Y S Z U ZY c P R ZY c aX e PY X̂ V W aX e Z S R Z R cY è UX U c WY e Ŝ R [X e Y PY q a V U RX c a V a P P q a Pq Y \ R sY c aX ed aX W R PY S U d Y PY q a V U RX c!O n! � P P [ V U P U V b ] RX e [ U V ] S R c c UX̂ c R ` Z R V a \ PY Q a VY S$ c aX U V a S b cY Q Y S aX e X RX _ Z R V a \ PY U S S U â V U RX P UX Y c c W a P P\Y Y X ] a cY e UX � U^ W �Y X c U V b � R P bY V W b PY X Y i � � � � p Z U ZY $ Q U V W a d UX U d [ d � V aX e a S e � U dY X c U RX� a V U R i � � � p O O a] S R c c V WY Y X V U SY Y a cY dY X V R S S U^ W V_ R `_Q a bQ U e V W ! � WY Y X ] a cY dY X V h R UX V c W a P P \Y\ [ V V̀ [ cY e ! � PY s U \ PY h R UX V c a SY X R V a P P RQ Y e !O u! �Y V V a Z c c W a P P \Y e S U P PY e \ b V WY  U V b ` R S a `Y Y !  a P P j k l _ m n l _ j o O l a V PY a c V r o W R [ S c UX a eq aX ] Y V RZ a b `Y Y c aX e c] WY e [ PY V a Z!

y FH � C ML � F �H K 
 F D I �� WY ] RX V S a] V R S c W a P P SY c V S U] VQ R S T UX̂W R [ S c V R \Y VQ Y Y X k� l l a d aX e u� l l Z dRX X R S d a P  U V b R  ̀ SY Y PY b \ [ c UX Y c c e a b c[X PY c c Z S U R S a Z Z S Rq a P W a c \Y Y X R \ V a UX Y e` S R d V WY  U V b!
  ¡ ¢ £ ¡     ¤ ¥ ¦ ¡ §̈   ¦©ª« �̈ � � ¢ ¡ � � � ¬ �̈̈ �  ¡̄ ¢ ¡ �  ¦ ¢ ¡̈ ¡ ¢ ¡ �̄ ® § � ¡ ¬ � ¢ � � � § ¦̈̄ ¡ � °̄   �̄̈̈ �¡ ® � � ¢ ¡ ¬ ¡ � ® � � ¬ � � ¡ ¬ ¡ � ®̄ © � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � � § � ¡ � � ¢ � ¥ �̄ ¡̈ ¡ ± � ¢ ¡ � �²� � �̄ ¢ � ¦ � ¢ ¡ � �² � � � � ® � � ¡ �  � ¬ ¥ � ¢ � � ¡ �̄̈ « ¬ � � ¡ � ¬ � � ¥ � ¢ ¡ � �� � � ¢ � � ¢� ® � � ¬ � � ¡ � ¢ � �³ ¦ ¢ ¡̈ ¡ ¢ ©  � � ¦ §² ª ³ µ́ µ ³ ¶ · · ³ ª ¶̧́ � �̈ � � �̈�  � � � ©² § � ¡ ¬ � ¢ � � � ¢ ¡ ¢ ©² � � � ¢   � � �̄̄ � � ¡ � ¢ � ® � � ¢ ¡ ¢ ¡ �̄ � ¡ ¢   ¡ � ¢   �¡̈ ¥ ¡ ¢̄ � ¬ � � �̄ ¢ � ¦ � ¢ ¡ � �« ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̄̈̈ � � � ¢   � ¬ ¦̈̈� �̄ ¢ � ¬ � � ¥ � ¬ �̈ ² � � §̈ � � � ¥ � � ¢² � � ® ® �̈ � © � �̈ � ¢ � ® ¢ � ¦ � ¬ � � ¡ ¬ ¡ � ®�  ¡̄ ¢ ¡ �  � � � ® ¡ ¢ ¡ � �̄ « �   � � � ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � � ¬ ¡ � ®̄ � � � ¬̈ ¡ � ¢̄ � �® ¡̄ � � � § � � � ¡ �̄ ¢   � ©̄   �̄̈̈ � � � § � � ¢ � ® ¡ ¥ ¥ � ® ¡ � ¢ �̈ © ¢ � ¢   �� �  ¡ � � � �«·« ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈ § � � ¬ � � ¥ �̈̈ � � � ¹ � � � �̄̄ � � © ¢ � � � ¥ §̈ � ¢ �¢   � � � � ¹̄   � � � � � ¢   � §̈ � �̄ � � ® �̄ � � ¡̄ � ® ¡ � ¢   �̄ § � � ¡ ¬ ¡ � � ¢ ¡ � �̄¡ � �̄ � ¢ ¡̄ ¬ � � ¢ � � © ¥ � � � � �« ¦ �̈ �̄̄ � ¢   � � � ¡̄ � § � � ¬ ¡ ® � ®² ¢   �� � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈ ¬ ¦ � � ¡̄   �̈̈ ¥ � ¢ � � ¡ �̄̈ ² � º ¦ ¡ § ¥ � � ¢² ¢ � �̄̈ ²�̄̈ � �² � � ® ¡ � � ¡ ® � � ¢ �̄̈ ¢ � � � ¥ §̈ � ¢ � ¢   � � � � ¹«»« ¡ �̄ � ¥ � � �̄ �̄ ¢   � � � � � � � � � �̄ � ¬ ¢   �̄ ¡ ¢ � ® � § ¡ � ¢ � ® � � ¥ � � � ¢   � �� � � § �  � � ¬ ¢   � §̈ � �̄ ²   � � � ¬ � �² �̈̈ ¡ ¥ § � � ¬ � ¥ � � ¢̄ � � � � � ¢® � § ¡ � ¢ � ® ® � § ¡ � ¢ � ® � � � ¬ � � © § �  �« ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈ � � ¬ ¡ � �� � �   § �  � � ¬ ¢   � §̈ � �̄ � � ® ® � ¢ � ¡̈̄ � � ®̄   �̈̈ � � �̄ ¢ � ¦ � ¢ �̈̈¡ ¥ § � � ¬ � ¥ � � ¢̄ � �  � � ®̈ �̄̄ � ¬ �   � ¢   � � ¢   � © � � �̄   � � � � � � ¬ � � ©§ �  �« �   � � � ® ¡̄ � � � § � � � ¡ �̄ � � � ¬ � ¦ � ® � � §̈ � �̄ � � ® � ¢ � ¡̈̄̄   � � �� � ¢   � §̈ � �̄ ² ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈ � � ¢ ¡ ¬ © ¢   � � �  ¡ � � � � § � ¡ � �¢ �̄ �  ¡ � � ¡ �  � � �̄ ¢ � ¦ � ¢ ¡ � �̄ « ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̄̈̈ � � � ¢   �¬ ¦̈̈ � �̄ ¢ � ¬ � � ¥ � ¬ �̈ ² � � §̈ � � � ¥ � � ¢² ® �̈ � ©² � � ® ¥ �̄ ¡̈ ¡ ± � ¢ ¡ � �� �̈ � ¢ � ® ¢ � ¬ � ¡̈ ¦ � � ¢ � � � ¬ ¡ � � �̈̈ §̈ � �̄ «¼« ¢   � ¥ � � ¦ ¬ � � ¢ ¦ � � � ½̄ ¦ § §̈ ¡ � �̄   �̈̈ ® � ¢ � � ¥ ¡ � � § ¡ § � �̈ �̄̄̄ �̄ � ® � �¢   � ¥ �  ¡ ¥ ¦ ¥ � � ¬ � � � � ®̄ � ® ® ¡ � ̄   � � � � � ¢   � §̈ � �̄ � � ®̄ � ¡̈¢ © § �̄   � � � ¡ � ¢   �  � � ¢ � �   � ¡ � �̈ � � § � � ¢« ¢   � � � � ¢ � � � ¢ � �̄   �̈̈§ � � ¬ ¡ ® � § ¡ § � ® ³ �̈ � ® � �̈ � ¦̈ � ¢ ¡ � �̄̄ ¢ � ¥ § � ®̄ © � � �  ¡̄ ¢ � � � ®� �  ¡ � � � �« ¡ � � � � �̄ �̄   �̈̈ � � § § ¡ § � �̈ �̄̄̄ �̈ �̄̄ ¢   � � �̈ �̄̄ ¡ ¡ ¡«

> � 	 � � � � � � � 
 =

191



¾¿À Á Â Ã

Ä Å Æ Ç È É Ç Ê Æ Ç Ë Å Å ÇÌ Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö × Ø Ù

Ú Û Ü Ý Þ ß àáâ ã ä å æ ç Ú è é è ê é ë Û ê Ý Û ê Úì íâ ã î ï æ ç

Ý Û Û ð Þ ê ÚÞ ñ è ê ë é ò Þ ß è Þ
ó ð ô õ ö Û ô æ èäâ ï í ì Ü æ çõ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü ç÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç

õ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü è ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç

õ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü Ú ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç
õ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü Þ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ çõ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Ü õ ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç

õ ô ë ð Ú ë ê Üó ÷î ä ß è æ ë Ú è ê é ë Þ ð ô ê ë é æî íâ ä î ø Ü æ ç æ ö è ð é è ß ìå ï ï Ü æ çæ ö è ð é è ß åå ï ï Ü æ ç
æ ö è ð é è ß îå ï ï Ü æ çÝ Þ ß à ë ê ÜÜ Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç

Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç

Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç
Þ Ú Þ Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â ä ú å Ü æ çÝ Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü è ü ë é öÚ Û Ü Ý Þ ß à æ ö è ð é è ßù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â ú á ø Ü æ ç

Ý Þ ß à ë ê Ü Ü Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç

Ý Þ ß à ë ê ÜÜ Þ ß Þ Ü èù ú æ Ý Þó è æ ûì â å ã î Ü æ ç

ð Û é ð ë ê è
ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê é

ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê é
ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê é

ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê é
ç ë ß èö ò Ú ß Þ ê éäú ú

ú ú
ú í ì ïä í î ì úú ãã

á í ì ï
ì îì ìãîúíì äúä ì ì ø

ì ìì ì

úã ø
î

í ú

Ý ß Û Ý è ß é òð ë ê è

Ý ß Û Ý è ß é òð ë ê è

Ý ß Û Ý è ß é òð ë ê è
ì î ä Ú ß Þ ë ê Þ Ü èè Þ æ è ñ è ê é

ç è êó è ç è êó è
Þó ó è æ æè Þ æ è ñ è ê é ë ê é è ß æ èó é ë Û êé ß ë Þ ê Ü ð è

ë ê é è ß æ èó é ë Û êé ß ë Þ ê Ü ð è

ì íý ì þ
ì îý ï þì úý á þ ì úý ï þ

ÿ ÿ� ��
� �� � �� �	 � 
ì ïý î þ

ì ïý ã þ ���� � � � ��
á åý å þ

�� �� ��

ì ä íý ï þ

� � � � �� �  !"#
$% & ' (% ) *% + , - -. / & 0ð Û éð ë ê è

$% & ' (% ) *% + , - -. / & 1 2 . / 3 , 4 / * 5 $% & ' (% ) 6 - . .% $ '5 - . - 7 $ 789 0: 5 - 7% . + ' * .% &

$% & ' (% ) *% + ,5 - . - 7 $ 7 /9 1

Ý ß Û Ý è ß é òð ë ê è
úý í þ

é ß Þ æ öè êó ð Û æ ô ß è
øý ï þ ;<=>

;<=> ì øý ï þ î äý ï þ ì øý ï þ
?@A BC DEA BC FGH IJáý í þ áý í þ

K LM N OP QR S TUV R S TWXYZ[\]^_ ` K aM b Oc de f ghij k lm mn opãý ä þ
q rs t u

v wx yz{ |} ~�� �} ���� ��
; <= >

��� ����� ����� �� �� ��

��� �� ��� ���   ¡ ¢£

¤ ¥ ¦§ øý ï þ¨ © ª« ¬ ® ¯ °±²³ ´µ¶· ¸¹ º»¼½¾¿ À Á ÂÃ Â Ä
ÅÆÇÈ É ÊË Ì ÍÎ ÏÐ

Ñ Ò Ó Ô ÕÖÀ × ØÃ Â Ä À × ØÃ Â ÄÙÚÛÜ ÝÞßàá · âã
äåæ½çèé ê ëì íî ïðñòóè

ô õ öÎ ÷ø ùúûü ýþÿ � �� � �

�� ��	
� �  � ���� ���� � � �� ��

� �� � � � �� � �
�  ! "# � $� $ � % &' ( )

*+ ,- ý.

/ 0 1 23 456 78 456 78
9:;<=

ÿ � � �� � �
> ? @ A B CD

EFG HI JKL MNOP G HI Q R ST UVW X Y Z [\ ] ^ _ ` \ ] ^� �� � � a� b�
� �� � � a� b�

cde fgh e ie

jkl mn ol pl

� �� � � a� b�
q rs t u vs ws

xy z { |y } ~y � �� � � � � x � �� �

� �� � � a� b� � ������� ��

� � � b � �� � � b
� � � b � �� � � b

� � � � � � bÿ � � �
� � � � � � bÿ � � �

� � � � � � bÿ � � � � � � � � � bÿ � � �
� � � � � � bÿ � � �� � � � � � bÿ � � �

� � � � � � bÿ � � �� � � � � � bÿ � � �
� � � � � � bÿ � � �

� � � a � b � �� � � �
� �� � � a� b�� � � � � a� b�

q r s t u vs ws
� �   ¡¢

£ ¤ ¥ ¦ §�

©̈ª « ¬  ®̄ ° ± ® ² ³́ µ ¶ ««·̧ ¹̧·̧̧ SITE PLAN

C3

º»¼»½¾¿À»¿¾¾Á»¿À ÂÃÃÄÂÅÆÇ ÈÉÊËËÉ ÌÈÍÎÉËÄÂÏÐ ËÑÒËÊ ÌÓÔÕÖÃÖÃ× ØÙÚÖÛÄÜÕÛÖÖÖÅÝÝÝ ÛÓÞßËÓÎÒÎàÛÓÔá
âã ä å æç

è é ê å ç
ëì å å ê ê í ê î å ç

âã ä å æç
è é ê å ç

ëì å å ê ê í ê î å ç
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

ïðñòóôóõöð÷
ïòöõõñø ùõóúøñûñò üïôñõú

ý þÿÿ�ÿ� ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � 	 
 è� �� � � � 	 
 è� � � � � � � 	 
 è
�  � �  ��  � � � � � � � �  �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

� � � � � � � � � � � � ��́̄ �  µ ! ° ±  "# ¨̈́ �#$̧ %& " $ $ !# '#( )  µ µ ° ² * + ² ° ³ ! ·̈ · + ² ° ³ !³ , �  ©́ © + ² ° ³ ! ¹ + ² ° ³ !³ , �  © - © + ² ° ³ !̈ $ . + ² ° ³ !³ ® ³́ µ -  (̄ ® ® / ! 0̧ · -  (̄ ® ® / !-̈  (̄ ® ® / + ² ° ³ ! .̧ + ² ° ³ !0 -  (̄ ® ® / + ² ° ³ ! ¹ · + ² ° ³ ! ̄ ! ° (  ² ³ °́ µ (  ² ! ° ³ , 0̧ # 0 1 + ² ° ³ ! 2́ �̄  ³ ® ³́ µ ' µ ® ®̄́̄  ́ $̈ 0 & ¸̧̧ ! '' µ ® ®̄́̄  ́́̄ ³ ° ® ¸# · 0 .� ® 3  ́̄ *  - + ° µ ( ° ² * 1 ¹& $ % . !# '# ¬̈ ¹# ¹ 4 ¶(̄ ° 3  !́ ² ( �́̄ 5 ° ² * ¨̈ 1& 0 $ 1 !# '# ¬ $ "# 0 4 ¶� + - µ ° �̄ ® ) !̧# '# ¬̧ # 4̧ ¶µ́ ² ( ! �́ �  2 ® �  ² ! �́ �  ¨̈̈ & "̧ 0 !# '# ¬ $ 1# % 4 ¶! ° (  )́ µ 5 ! 2 )́ µ 5 ! 2 � ® ® µ́̄  ́ 0 1& $̧̧ !# '# ¬ ¹# 4̈ ¶�́̄ 5 ° ² *6 µ ® ³̈ (́́ .*́̄́ *  · ¹! ³́ ² (̄́ ( 0̧ 07 8 7 9 : ; < =�́̄ 5 ° ² *6 µ ® ³ 0 ! ³́ ² (̄́ ( 0 07 8 7 9 : ; ;
> ? @ A B C

D E F G H I J K I G L G K MN² + / -  ̄ ® ' �́̄ 5 ° ² * ! ³́ µ µ !O O
D E F G H I J K K P F G D N¨ # µ́ µ � ® ² ! ³̄ + � ³ ° ® ² ! ́ µ µ � ® ² ' ®̄ / ³ ® ³   µ́ ³  ! ³ � ° ³ , ® '*̄   µ  , ! ³́ ² (̄́ ( !́ ² ( ! �  � ° ' ° �́ ³ ° ® ² !#0# )   ̄  � ® ² ! ³̄ + � ³ ° ® ² (  ³́ ° µ !́ ² ( ! �  � ° ' ° �́ ³ ° ® ² !́̄  ² ® ³  ( ® ² ³   !  � µ́ ² ! & + !  ³   � ° ³ , ® ' *̄   µ  ,! ³́ ² (̄́ ( !́ ² ( ! �  � ° ' ° �́ ³ ° ® ² ! ' ®̄ (  ! ° * ²́ ² (� ® ² ! ³̄ + � ³ ° ® ² #

Q R S T U V W X Y Y Z Y T [ R W \ ] Ŝ X Y [_̀ a b c d e _ c f̀ a g e b c h i f a j _ _̀ d k j a _ i l f c mj n n o f _ j h o i _ f c p̀ q r d i i o i p _̀ a b c d e _ c f̀ ab c j a k j d k bs c m i _ f c p t b j _ _ i n c j a _ i j o ò l bq̀ d n o j a k f b c d f h e c f̀ a j a k n i d g f cj n n o f _ j c f̀ a s c m i _ f c p t b j _ _ i n c j a _ i b m j o oà c d i o f i u i c m i k i b f r a i a r f a i i d t bd i b ǹ a b f h f o f c p q̀ d i d d̀ d bv g̀ f b b f̀ a bv d̀k i b f r a k i q f _ f i a _ f i b q̀ d l m f _ m c m i _ f c p f bm i o k m j d g o i b bsw x x y z { y | } ~�� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �x � { ~ y � � � � y y � | w { yw x x y z { y | } ~�� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � y y � y ~ � � � y � w � � � w � | w { yw x x y z { y | } ~�� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �x � � �� | y � y � � z � y � { | � � y x { � � | w { y192



� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � �

� � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �

� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �  

¡¢ £ ¤ ¥¢ ¦ §¢̈ © ª ª« ¬ £ 
¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥¢ ¦ §¢̈ © ª ª« ¬ £ ®

¡¢ £ ¤ ¥¢ ¦ §¢̈ ©ª̄ « ª ° ¡ ° ¬± ®

²³ ² ´ µ¶·¸¹

� � � � � � � �  
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �º» ¼ ½

¾ ¿ À Á
ÂÃ ÄÅ ÆÇ ÈÉ

Ê Ë Ì Í

Î Ï Ð Ñ
ÒÓÔÕ

Ö × Ø Ù Ú Û Ü Ý
Þßàá

âã ä å æç è é ê ë ì íî ï ð ñ

òóôõ
ö÷øù

úû ü ý þ ÿ
�� � � � �

���	
�
���� � � � � � � �

� � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �� � � � � � � �� � � �

� � � � � � � �� � � �

� � � � � � �  ! � � � " � # $ � % � � � � � � � �  ! � � � " � # $ � % �
� � � � � � �  ! � � � " � # $ � % �

�
�

�
� � �

& &
&& && &

&
& & && & &

& && &&'
'

'
''

'

'
'

'
'

'
'' ' (( �

� �
�

� �

�
�

�
�

�

)*+ ,
��

�
�

&

�

'
' '

- . / 0 1 . 2 0
3 $ � $ 3 �

3 $ � $ 3 � � 4 5 � $ � � � � � $ � % � � � $ � �� � � ! � � $ � � � � � � � � � � �67 8 9 :;< =>? @ A BC DE FG H I
� 5 % � � % J K � K � J L % M � K% N $ � � K �O� K J ! K � $ L � � N L � � N K K �

PQ R STQ P SP Q R S UV W XYZ [\ ]̂ _ ]̀ a b a b̀ c ] d e a] f g _ _ a eh _ i c j b h̀ k a i l̂̀ h _ i^̀̀ a ]̂ m n g ] b a i o c e e pq rq sq tu vu wux y z { | } x ~ � � z � ~ � x y z� ~ ~ � � � � � � � } � z � { � � � � } � { � � y � | |� � �� � � | { � � � ~ x | � � z� ~ � y { } � � { � � z � { } � � � � | | � ~ � � z� � | � � � � � � z � y � { ~ � � { � � � y � � � ~ { �� �� � � �� ��� � � �� �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © ª ��« ¬  ¬« ¬¬

GRADING PLAN

C4

®̄̄ ® °̄̄ ± ² ³

µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹́ º »́ » ¹ ·¼½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Á̈ Â ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Á ¤ ¦ ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £Å £ ¢ Å ¢ ¿ ½ Æ Á̈ Â ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £Å £ ¢ Å ¢ ¿ ½ Æ Á ¤ ¦ ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £© ¤ Á ¤ § ¿ ¢ Ç Æ ¤ ¿ § Ä £ È̈ ¦ Ã ½
É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ�Ï ©̈ © ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð © ¢ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿̈ £ ½̈ Å Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ ¦ Æ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ñ ½ £ ¤ Ç ¤ ½ Æ È Ð § ¡ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ § £̈ Ã § ¢ £ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ÏÒÏ ©̈ © Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡̈ © © Ã ¢ ¦ Ç ¢ £ Á § ¢ § ¡ ½ ©̈ § ½ ¿ § Ã ¤ § Ð ¢ ÇÀ £ ½ ½ © ½ Ð ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ Å ½ Ã ¤ Ç ¤ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿Ï«Ï ¦ ¢ Ó̈ § ½ £ Ã ¢ Ä £ ¿ ½ ¿Ô Ó̈ § ½ £ È ¢ Æ ¤ ½ ¿Ô ¢ £ ¤ £ £ ¤ À̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ Æ ¤ § Ã ¡ ½ ¿¢ È ¿ ½ £ Ñ ½ Æ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¤ § ½ÏÕÏ Å̈ Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ £ ½̈ ¢ Ç Æ ¤ ¿ § Ä £ È̈ ¦ Ã ½Ö ×Ø Ù × Ú Û ØÜ Ø Ú Ý Ý Þ ß à á Ú Û â â Ý â ã Ú ä å æ ç Þ è æ ä Þ Ú à â á à æ é ä è â á Ý æ ê Ý å ç â æ áä è â ë ß ä ä â à ß ç Ý â Þ Þ æ ä è â à ê Ú å Þ â å ç ì å Û Ú ä â ìØ

µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹́ í î ¹ ï ð µ ñ í ð̧ î ¹ ¹ î ð » ï¼Ò � Ã̈ § Ã ¡ Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò �  ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �� � Ã̈ § Ã ¡ Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �� � ¿ Å ¤ © © Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Õ � Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ Å̈ ¦ Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò Ò ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �ó � Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ Å̈ ¦ Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò Ò ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Õ � § ¡ ¤ Ã ô ¿ ¤ Æ ½ Ó̈ © ô Å ½ £ ¿ò Ò � Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Ã Ä £ È £̈ Á Å Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � Õ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Ã Ä £ È £̈ Á Å Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � « ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �
� Ò «Õõöó

÷øùøúûüýøüûûþøüý ÿ���ÿ��� ������ 	�
����ÿ� ����� 	������� �������������� �����������������
�  ! " #$

% & ' " $
() " " ' ' * ' + " $

�  ! " #$
% & ' " $

() " " ' ' * ' + " $
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

,-./01023-4
,/322.5 620

75.8./ 9,1.
27

: ;<<=<> ?@A
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

B C D C D E F G %E CH C D E F G %D D C D C D E F G %
I J K L J MN J I O K M P N K Q J I

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

R Ì S T U V
W X Y Z [ \ ]̂ _ _̀ _ Z a X ] b c Y d̂ _ ae f g h i j k e i l f g m k h i n o l g p e e f j q p g e o r l i sp t t u l e p n u o e l i v f w x j o o u o v e f g h i j k e i l f gh i p g q p j q hy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o p u u f r hw f j t u p g q l h i j l n k i l f g p g q t o j m l ip t t u l e p i l f gy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o h s p u ug f i j o u l o { o i s o q o h l x g o g x l g o o j z hj o h t f g h l n l u l i v w f j o j j f j h| f m l h h l f g h| f jq o h l x g q o w l e l o g e l o h w f j r s l e s i s o e l i v l hs o u q s p j m u o h hy} ~ ~ � � � � � � ��� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ � � � � � � � � � � � � } � �193



� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � �

� �   ¡ ¢ �   £ �
¡   � � � � � ¤ �

¡   � � � � � ¤ �
¡   � � � � � ¤ �

¡   � � � � � ¤ �¡   � � � � � ¤ ¥
¡   � � � � � ¤ ¥

¡   � � � � � ¤ � ¡   � � � � � ¤ �
¦§¨©ª« ¬®̄ ° ±

²³ ´ µ ¶·¸¹

º » ¼ ½ ¾ ¿ À ÁÂÃ Ä Å ÆÇ È É Ê̄ Ë ±Ì » Í ½

ÎÏÐÑ
ÒÓÔÕ

Ö×Ø Ù Ö×Ø Ù ÚÛÜÝ

£ ¢ � � � � � Þ£ ¢ � � � � � ß

� � � � � � � �� � � �
� � � � � £ � ¥� � £ �   � ¡ � � � �

� � � � � £ � ¥� � £ �   � ¡ � � � �

� � � � � £ � ¥� � £ �   � ¡ � � � �
Þ

à àßß
á

â ããä ääããããã ã
ãã ãã

ã ãã ãã ããä
ä

ä
ä

ä
ää ä åå Þ

Þ
Þ

Þ
ÞÞ

Þ

Þ

Þ Þ

ä
ä

ä

ä
ä

¤ � � � ¤ �
¤ � � � ¤ � ¤ � � � ¤ �

� �� �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © ª ��« ¬  ¬« ¬¬

GRADING PLAN

C5

Í Ì Ì Í æ Ì Ì Ë ç è

µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹́ º »́ » ¹ ·¼½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Á̈ Â ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Á ¤ ¦ ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £Å £ ¢ Å ¢ ¿ ½ Æ Á̈ Â ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £Å £ ¢ Å ¢ ¿ ½ Æ Á ¤ ¦ ¢ £ Ã ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ä £© ¤ Á ¤ § ¿ ¢ Ç Æ ¤ ¿ § Ä £ È̈ ¦ Ã ½
É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ�Ï ©̈ © ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð © ¢ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿̈ £ ½̈ Å Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ ¦ Æ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ñ ½ £ ¤ Ç ¤ ½ Æ È Ð § ¡ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ § £̈ Ã § ¢ £ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ÏÒÏ ©̈ © Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡̈ © © Ã ¢ ¦ Ç ¢ £ Á § ¢ § ¡ ½ ©̈ § ½ ¿ § Ã ¤ § Ð ¢ ÇÀ £ ½ ½ © ½ Ð ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ Å ½ Ã ¤ Ç ¤ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿Ï«Ï ¦ ¢ Ó̈ § ½ £ Ã ¢ Ä £ ¿ ½ ¿Ô Ó̈ § ½ £ È ¢ Æ ¤ ½ ¿Ô ¢ £ ¤ £ £ ¤ À̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ Æ ¤ § Ã ¡ ½ ¿¢ È ¿ ½ £ Ñ ½ Æ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¤ § ½ÏÕÏ Å̈ Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ £ ½̈ ¢ Ç Æ ¤ ¿ § Ä £ È̈ ¦ Ã ½Ö ×Ø Ù × Ú Û ØÜ Ø Ú Ý Ý Þ ß à á Ú Û â â Ý â ã Ú ä å æ ç Þ è æ ä Þ Ú à â á à æ é ä è â á Ý æ ê Ý å ç â æ áä è â ë ß ä ä â à ß ç Ý â Þ Þ æ ä è â à ê Ú å Þ â å ç ì å Û Ú ä â ìØ

µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹́ í î ¹ ï ð µ ñ í ð̧ î ¹ ¹ î ð » ï¼Ò � Ã̈ § Ã ¡ Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò �  ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �� � Ã̈ § Ã ¡ Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �� � ¿ Å ¤ © © Ã Ä £ È Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Õ � Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ Å̈ ¦ Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò Ò ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �ó � Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ Å̈ ¦ Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò Ò ó ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Õ � § ¡ ¤ Ã ô ¿ ¤ Æ ½ Ó̈ © ô Å ½ £ ¿ò Ò � Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Ã Ä £ È £̈ Á Å Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � Õ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �Ã Ä £ È £̈ Á Å Å ½ £ Æ ½ §̈ ¤ © ¿ò � « ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡ ½ ½ § Ã Ò �
� Ò «Õõöó

÷øùøúûüýøüûûþøüý ÿ���ÿ��� ������ 	�
����ÿ� ��é�� 	������� �������������� ����������é������
�  ! " #$

% & ' " $
() " " ' ' * ' + " $

�  ! " #$
% & ' " $

() " " ' ' * ' + " $
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

,-./01023-4
,/322.5 620

75.8./ 9,1.
27

: ;<<=<> ?êA
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

B C D C D E F G %E CH C D E F G %D D C D C D E F G %
I J K L J MN J I O K M P N K Q J I

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

R Ì S T U V
W X Y Z [ \ ]̂ _ _̀ _ Z a X ] b c Y d̂ _ ae f g h i j k e i l f g m k h i n o l g p e e f j q p g e o r l i sp t t u l e p n u o e l i v f w x j o o u o v e f g h i j k e i l f gh i p g q p j q hy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o p u u f r hw f j t u p g q l h i j l n k i l f g p g q t o j m l ip t t u l e p i l f gy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o h s p u ug f i j o u l o { o i s o q o h l x g o g x l g o o j z hj o h t f g h l n l u l i v w f j o j j f j h| f m l h h l f g h| f jq o h l x g q o w l e l o g e l o h w f j r s l e s i s o e l i v l hs o u q s p j m u o h hy} ~ ~ � � � � � � ��� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ � � � � � � � � � � � � } � �194



ëìí î ï ð
ñ ò ó ô õ ö ô ÷ ó ô ø ò ò ô

ù ú û ü ý þ ÿ

ù � � � � � � ú �ü ú � ù

ü ú ú � ý � ùý � � � � � � ý þ � ý
� � � 	 
 ú � � �

	 � � � ù � � û �

	 � � � ù � � û ù
	 � � � ù � � û ý	 � � � ù � � û 	

	 � � � ù � � û � � þ þ � û ý � � ú �� � � � þ
� � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �

� � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �
� � þ �
 � ù þ ý � � � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �

� � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �
 � � ý � � þ

 � � ý � � þ

ü ú � ù ú � � � � �� � þ � � � � þ �

 � � � ù � þ ù þ ý � �� ú � � � � � � ú �
� ú � � � � � � ú� ��  � � ý � � þ� ú � � � � � � ú � �� � � ý � � � ý þ �

� ú � � � � � � ú� �� � � � � ý � � þ � � � � � � � ý � � þ� � �  � �

� � �  � � ý � � � ý þ �� � �  � � � �� � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �� � �  � �� � � � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �� � �  � �
� � � � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �� � �  � �

� � � � � þ �
 � ù þ ý � �� � �  � �

�� � � �� � ��  ! " "# $ � %
�� � � �� � ��  ! " "# $ � & �� � � �� � ' " # #� � �( " # " ) � ) $* %

�� � � �� � ��  !( " # " ) � ) $* &

ü þ ú ü � þ � �� � � �

ü þ ú ü � þ � �� � � �
ü þ ú ü � þ � �� � � �

ù þ ý � � ý û �� ý � � � � � �
� � � � � � � û� � ý � �� � �  � � ý � � þ� � �  � �

� ��  � � ý � � þ� � �  � �

� � �  � � ý � � � ý þ �� � �  � �
	 � � � ù � � û �

� � � � � � � ý � � þ� � �  � �� � �  � � ý � � � ý þ �� � �  � �

� � �  � � ý � � þ� � �  � �

+ � � , - � � � �
� , � , - � � � �

+ � � , - � � � �
+ � � , - � � � �� , � , - � � � �

� , � , - � � � �
� , � , - � � � �

./0 12 32
+ � - � � � �

ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � � ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �
� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � �� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � �

� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � � � ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � �
� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � � � ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � �

� ý � � � ý þ �� � þ 4 � � � ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �
ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �

ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �
ù ú � � � � � � ý � ù� � þ � � � þ 4 � � � �ü ú ú � ù þ ý � �� � þ 4 � � �

� � � 5 -� � � � , - � � � , -
 � , -� � � , , -� � � , , -

� , � , - � � � �

÷øùøúûüýøüûûþøüý ÿ���ÿ��� ������ 	�
����ÿ� ��é�� 	������� �������������� ����������é������
�  ! " #$

% & ' " $
() " " ' ' * ' + " $

�  ! " #$
% & ' " $

() " " ' ' * ' + " $
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

,-./01023-4
,/322.5 620

75.8./ 9,1.
27

: ;<<=<> ?êA
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

B C D C D E F G %E CH C D E F G %D D C D C D E F G %
I J K L J MN J I O K M P N K Q J I

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ�Ï ©̈ © ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð © ¢ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿̈ £ ½̈ Å Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ ¦ Æ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ñ ½ £ ¤ Ç ¤ ½ Æ È Ð § ¡ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ § £̈ Ã § ¢ £ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ÏÒÏ ©̈ © Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡̈ © © Ã ¢ ¦ Ç ¢ £ Á § ¢ § ¡ ½ ©̈ § ½ ¿ § Ã ¤ § Ð ¢ ÇÀ £ ½ ½ © ½ Ð ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ Å ½ Ã ¤ Ç ¤ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿Ï«Ï Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ ¿ ½ £ Ñ ¤ Ã ½ ¿̈ ¦ ÆÆ ¤ ¿ § £ ¤ È Ä § ¤ ¢ ¦ 6 Ã ¢ © © ½ Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿ ¿ ¡̈ © © ¡̈ Ñ ½̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á§ ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ ©̈ ¦ Æ ½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ñ ½ £ § ¤ Ã̈ © ¿ ½ Å̈ £̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ Ç £ ¢ Á̈ © © Ä § ¤ © ¤ § ¤ ½ ¿ Á ½̈ ¿ Ä £ ½ Æ Ç £ ¢ Á¢ Ä § ¿ ¤ Æ ½ Æ ¤̈ Á ½ § ½ £ÏÕÏ Ó ¡ ½ £ ½ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ È ½ ¦ ½̈ § ¡ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ó ¤ § ¡ © ½ ¿ ¿ § ¡̈ ¦ ½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½Ô ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿̈ È ¢ Ñ ½ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿Ô ¢ £ § ¡ ½ § ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½È ½ § Ó ½ ½ ¦ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £© ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã̈ ¦ ¦ ¢ § È ½ Á̈ ¤ ¦ §̈ ¤ ¦ ½ ÆÔ Å ¤ Å ½ ½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½Æ ½ ¿ ¤ À ¦ ½ Æ̈ ¦ Æ Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ½ Æ ¿ ¢̈ ¿ § ¢ Å £ ¢ § ½ Ã § § ¡ ½Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ÏõÏ § ¡ ½ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½ È ½ § Ó ½ ½ ¦ ¿ § ¢ £ Á Æ £̈ ¤ ¦̈ ¦ ÆÓ̈ § ½ £Ô ¤ ¦ ¢ Å ½ ¦ Ã Ä § ¿Ô ½ ¤ § ¡ ½ £̈ È ¢ Ñ ½ ¢ £ È ½ © ¢ ÓÔ ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ï ¤ ¦̈ Æ Æ ¤ § ¤ ¢ ¦Ô Ó ¡ ½ ¦̈ Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ © ¤ ½ ¿È ½ © ¢ Ó̈ ¿ § ¢ £ Á © ¤ ¦ ½Ô ¢ £ Ó ¤ § ¡ ¤ ¦ § Ó ½ ¦ § Ðò Ç ¢ Ä £   Ò Õ ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿È̈ ¢ Ñ ½Ô Ó̈ § ½ £ § ¤ À ¡ § À̈ ¿ ô ½ § ¿ ¢ £ ½ ¾ § ½ £ ¦̈ © ¿ ½̈ © ¤ ¦ À È̈ ¦ Æ ¿¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ä ¿ ½ Æ ¢ ¦ § ¡ ½ ¿ § ¢ £ Á © ¤ ¦ ½ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿ Ç ¢ £̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á¢ Ç § ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¢ ¦ ½̈ Ã ¡ ¿ ¤ Æ ½ ¢ Ç § ¡ ½ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ ¤ ¦ ÀÏ ¿ § ¢ £ Á© ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ ¤ ¦ ¿ §̈ © © ½ Æ ¿ ¢ § ¡̈ §̈ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¤ ¿ ¦ ¢ § Æ ¤ £ ½ Ã § © ÐÈ̈ ¢ Ñ ½ ¢ £ È ½ © ¢ Ó § ¡ ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ÏÏ ©̈ © Æ £ Ð Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð Ã ¢ ¦ Æ Ä ¤ § Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ ¤ ¦ À ¿ ¢ Ç Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £Ô¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¦ ¢ ¦ ò Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ ¤ £ £ ¤ À̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ ¿ ¡̈ © ©È ½ ½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Æ ¤ ¦ ¡ ¤ À ¡ Æ ½ ¦ ¿ ¤ § Ð Å ¢ © Ð ½ § ¡ Ð © ½ ¦ ½   ¡ Æ Å ½ ª Å ¤ Å ½ÔÓ ¤ § ¡ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ Æ ¤ Á ½ ¦ ¿ ¤ ¢ ¦ £̈ § ¤ ¢   ¿ Æ £ ª � �̈ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿§ ¡ ½ ½ ¦ § ¤ £ ½ ½̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¢ £ £ ¤ À ¡ §ò ¢ Çò Ó̈ Ð Ó ¤ Æ § ¡Ï § ¡ ½½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ È Ä § § Ç Ä ¿ ½ ÆÏ Ç © ½ ¾ ¤ È © ½ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿£̈ ½ ¦ ¢ §̈ © © ¢ Ó ½ ÆÏöÏ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢ ½ ¾ Ã̈ Ñ̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦̈ ¦ Æ Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¢ Ñ ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¦ ½̈ £§ ¡ ½ ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿Ô Å © ½̈ ¿ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ §̈ Ã §§ ¡ ½ Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ Æ ½ Å̈ £ § Á ½ ¦ § £ ¤ À ¡ §ò ¢ Çò Ó̈ Ð ¿ §̈ Ç Ç§̈   7 ö ¬ ª « õ ¬ò 7 ö ¬ � Ô § ¢ Ã ¢ Á Å © ½ § ½ § ¡ ½̈ Å Å © ¤ Ã̈ È © ½Æ ¢ Ã Ä Á ½ ¦ §̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ó ¢ £ ô Ó ¤ § ¡ ¤ ¦ § ¡ ½ £ ¤ À ¡ § ¢ Ç Ó̈ Ð̈ ¦ Æ½̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¿ÏóÏ Å £ ¢ Ñ ¤ Æ ½̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á ¢ Ç õ �̈ ¦ Æ̈ Á̈ ¾ ¤ Á Ä Á ¢ Ç  � Æ ½ Å § ¡ ¢ ÇÃ ¢ Ñ ½ £ Ç ¢ £ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ £ Ñ ¤ Ã ½ ¿Ï

� �� �   ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © ª ��Õ ¬ ó ¬Õ ¬¬ OVERALL

UTILITY PLAN

CX

É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ�Ï ©̈ © ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð © ¢ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿̈ £ ½̈ Å Å £ ¢ ¾ ¤ Á̈ § ½̈ ¦ Æ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ñ ½ £ ¤ Ç ¤ ½ Æ È Ð § ¡ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ § £̈ Ã § ¢ £ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ÏÒÏ ©̈ © Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿ ¡̈ © © Ã ¢ ¦ Ç ¢ £ Á § ¢ § ¡ ½ ©̈ § ½ ¿ § Ã ¤ § Ð ¢ ÇÀ £ ½ ½ © ½ Ð ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ Å ½ Ã ¤ Ç ¤ Ã̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¿Ï«Ï Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ ¿ ½ £ Ñ ¤ Ã ½ ¿̈ ¦ ÆÆ ¤ ¿ § £ ¤ È Ä § ¤ ¢ ¦ 6 Ã ¢ © © ½ Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿ ¿ ¡̈ © © ¡̈ Ñ ½̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á§ ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ ©̈ ¦ Æ ½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ñ ½ £ § ¤ Ã̈ © ¿ ½ Å̈ £̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ Ç £ ¢ Á̈ © © Ä § ¤ © ¤ § ¤ ½ ¿ Á ½̈ ¿ Ä £ ½ Æ Ç £ ¢ Á¢ Ä § ¿ ¤ Æ ½ Æ ¤̈ Á ½ § ½ £ÏÕÏ Ó ¡ ½ £ ½ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ È ½ ¦ ½̈ § ¡ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ó ¤ § ¡ © ½ ¿ ¿ § ¡̈ ¦ ½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½Ô ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿̈ È ¢ Ñ ½ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿Ô ¢ £ § ¡ ½ § ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¢ ¦ §̈ © Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½È ½ § Ó ½ ½ ¦ Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £© ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ Ã̈ ¦ ¦ ¢ § È ½ Á̈ ¤ ¦ §̈ ¤ ¦ ½ ÆÔ Å ¤ Å ½ ½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½Æ ½ ¿ ¤ À ¦ ½ Æ̈ ¦ Æ Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ½ Æ ¿ ¢̈ ¿ § ¢ Å £ ¢ § ½ Ã § § ¡ ½Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ÏõÏ § ¡ ½ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á Ã © ½̈ £̈ ¦ Ã ½ È ½ § Ó ½ ½ ¦ ¿ § ¢ £ Á Æ £̈ ¤ ¦̈ ¦ ÆÓ̈ § ½ £Ô ¤ ¦ ¢ Å ½ ¦ Ã Ä § ¿Ô ½ ¤ § ¡ ½ £̈ È ¢ Ñ ½ ¢ £ È ½ © ¢ ÓÔ ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½½ ¤ À ¡ § ½ ½ ¦   � ó ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿Ï ¤ ¦̈ Æ Æ ¤ § ¤ ¢ ¦Ô Ó ¡ ½ ¦̈ Ó̈ § ½ £ © ¤ ¦ ½ © ¤ ½ ¿È ½ © ¢ Ó̈ ¿ § ¢ £ Á © ¤ ¦ ½Ô ¢ £ Ó ¤ § ¡ ¤ ¦ § Ó ½ ¦ § Ðò Ç ¢ Ä £   Ò Õ ª ¤ ¦ Ã ¡ ½ ¿È̈ ¢ Ñ ½Ô Ó̈ § ½ £ § ¤ À ¡ § À̈ ¿ ô ½ § ¿ ¢ £ ½ ¾ § ½ £ ¦̈ © ¿ ½̈ © ¤ ¦ À È̈ ¦ Æ ¿¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ Ä ¿ ½ Æ ¢ ¦ § ¡ ½ ¿ § ¢ £ Á © ¤ ¦ ½ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿ Ç ¢ £̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á¢ Ç § ½ ¦   � ¬ ª Ç ½ ½ § ¢ ¦ ½̈ Ã ¡ ¿ ¤ Æ ½ ¢ Ç § ¡ ½ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ ¤ ¦ ÀÏ ¿ § ¢ £ Á© ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ ¤ ¦ ¿ §̈ © © ½ Æ ¿ ¢ § ¡̈ §̈ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¤ ¿ ¦ ¢ § Æ ¤ £ ½ Ã § © ÐÈ̈ ¢ Ñ ½ ¢ £ È ½ © ¢ Ó § ¡ ½ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ÏÏ ©̈ © Æ £ Ð Ä § ¤ © ¤ § Ð Ã ¢ ¦ Æ Ä ¤ § Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿ ¤ ¦ À ¿ ¢ Ç Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ Ó̈ § ½ £Ô¿̈ ¦ ¤ §̈ £ Ð ¿ ½ Ó ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¦ ¢ ¦ ò Å ¢ §̈ È © ½ ¤ £ £ ¤ À̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ © ¤ ¦ ½ ¿ ¿ ¡̈ © ©È ½ ½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Æ ¤ ¦ ¡ ¤ À ¡ Æ ½ ¦ ¿ ¤ § Ð Å ¢ © Ð ½ § ¡ Ð © ½ ¦ ½   ¡ Æ Å ½ ª Å ¤ Å ½ÔÓ ¤ § ¡ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á ¿ §̈ ¦ Æ̈ £ Æ Æ ¤ Á ½ ¦ ¿ ¤ ¢ ¦ £̈ § ¤ ¢   ¿ Æ £ ª � �̈ Ã £ ¢ ¿ ¿§ ¡ ½ ½ ¦ § ¤ £ ½ ½̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¢ £ £ ¤ À ¡ §ò ¢ Çò Ó̈ Ð Ó ¤ Æ § ¡Ï § ¡ ½½ ¦ Ã̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿ ¡̈ © © È ½ È Ä § § Ç Ä ¿ ½ ÆÏ Ç © ½ ¾ ¤ È © ½ Â ¢ ¤ ¦ § ¿£̈ ½ ¦ ¢ §̈ © © ¢ Ó ½ ÆÏöÏ Å £ ¤ ¢ £ § ¢ ½ ¾ Ã̈ Ñ̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦̈ ¦ Æ Ã ¢ ¦ ¿ § £ Ä Ã § ¤ ¢ ¦ ¢ Ñ ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¦ ½̈ £§ ¡ ½ ½ ¾ ¤ ¿ § ¤ ¦ À Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿Ô Å © ½̈ ¿ ½ Ã ¢ ¦ §̈ Ã §§ ¡ ½ Ó̈ § ½ £̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ Ó ½ £ Æ ½ Å̈ £ § Á ½ ¦ § £ ¤ À ¡ §ò ¢ Çò Ó̈ Ð ¿ §̈ Ç Ç§̈   7 ö ¬ ª « õ ¬ò 7 ö ¬ � Ô § ¢ Ã ¢ Á Å © ½ § ½ § ¡ ½̈ Å Å © ¤ Ã̈ È © ½Æ ¢ Ã Ä Á ½ ¦ §̈ § ¤ ¢ ¦ § ¢ Ó ¢ £ ô Ó ¤ § ¡ ¤ ¦ § ¡ ½ £ ¤ À ¡ § ¢ Ç Ó̈ Ð̈ ¦ Æ½̈ ¿ ½ Á ½ ¦ § ¿ÏóÏ Å £ ¢ Ñ ¤ Æ ½̈ Á ¤ ¦ ¤ Á Ä Á ¢ Ç õ �̈ ¦ Æ̈ Á̈ ¾ ¤ Á Ä Á ¢ Ç  � Æ ½ Å § ¡ ¢ ÇÃ ¢ Ñ ½ £ Ç ¢ £ Ó̈ § ½ £ Á̈ ¤ ¦ ¿̈ ¦ Æ ¿ ½ £ Ñ ¤ Ã ½ ¿Ï
R Ì S T U V

W X Y Z [ \ ]̂ _ _̀ _ Z a X ] b c Y d̂ _ ae f g h i j k e i l f g m k h i n o l g p e e f j q p g e o r l i sp t t u l e p n u o e l i v f w x j o o u o v e f g h i j k e i l f gh i p g q p j q hy i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o p u u f r hw f j t u p g q l h i j l n k i l f g p g q t o j m l ip t t u l e p i l f g y i s o e l i v z h p e e o t i p g e o h s p u ug f i j o u l o { o i s o q o h l x g o g x l g o o j z hj o h t f g h l n l u l i v w f j o j j f j h| f m l h h l f g h| f jq o h l x g q o w l e l o g e l o h w f j r s l e s i s o e l i v l hs o u q s p j m u o h hy} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ � � � � � � � � � � � � } � �} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � 8 � � 9 � � � : } � ; < } 8 � } � �} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ = : :> � � ? � 8 = � : � � � � � � � ~ � = � � } � �
@̂ Z d Y X̀ X Y Z W [ A B c b Za X ] b c Y d̂ _ a~ = : ~ } ; �} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � 8 8 � 8 } � � � } � �} � : = ;} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ < � � ; � � � � : ~ � � � : = � � � } � �~ � � � C � � 8 � � D} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �~ } � ; = � = � � � � } � } � �E ~ � 8} ~ ~ � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� } � D � � } � � � � } � �

195



F G H IF G H JF G F IF G F JF G J IF G J JF G K I

F G H IF G H JF G F IF G F JF G J IF G J JF G K I

L IM I IL L M I IL NM I IL HM I IL FM I IL JM I IL KM I IL KM O N

PQ R RST U RVWX YZ [\]^_` abc
defghfifjekfejhl dmnonhmkmdffpqhr kr stt u vwxywyxyyz jnl {|}~xww n��def{|}�x|s ��rt |� �� ��� ����

kmdffpqhr jr { ��z �t }u {�xwsyxysz g fon{|{}xws n��n�{|}wxys �irt |� � n��def{|}vx|s ��rt |� �� ��� ����kmdffpqhrt }r � �}z �t {u �|xsvyxyt z j fon{|{wxt v n��n�{|{t xt v �i�rt |� � n��def{|{yx~v ��rt |� �� ��� ����kmdffpqhrt }r v �}z �t �u {t x{}yxyyz fon{|{~xv� n��n�{|{{xsv �i�rt |� � n��def{|{{xyv ��hrt |� �� ��� ����kmdffpqhrt }r w �}z �t vu {yx}~yxy}z j fon{|�t xtt n��def{|{�xs� ��hrt |� �� ��� ����
�� ��� ����� �� � ��� ¡ ¢£¤ ¥¦§¨© §ª «¬®¯ °± ²³´ µ¶· ¸ ¹º» »¼½ ¾¿ ÀÁºÂ½ ¾Ã ÄÅÆ ÇÈÉ Ê

ËÌ Í ÎÏ Ð Ñ ÒÓÌ ÎÏ Ô Ô ÕÎ Ö × Ø Ù Ú

kd�kjhfhÛhÜm�Üggrt t yu �yyxtt z j jnl {|}vx~v n��n�{|}�xy~ �irt |� �kd�kjhfhÛhÜm�Üggr }t }ut {xywyxyyz jnl {|}|x}| n��n�{|}vx�y �irt |� �

Ý × Ó Þ ß à á Þ Ø âÓ ã Ø ä à Ù ã åÏ Ö Ò Î Ô Ôæ â Ø ç Ó ãè Ý Ö Ý ÎÏ Ô Ýã é Ø ä ç Ó ãè Ý Ö Í êÏ ë ëç ì Ù ä ç Ó ãè Ý Ö Í ëÏ ë Ö

Ú Ø í Ú í Ó ã î ï Ø í é ß îð Ú à Ú ã Ù ã ß á ã Ø Ë à ß ãã ñ à Ó á à ß ï ï Ø í é ß î ðÚ à Ú ã Ù ã ß á ã Ø Ë à ß ã

Ú Ø í Ú í Ó ã î ï Ø í é ß îð Ú à Ú ã Ù ã ß á ã Ø Ë à ß ãã ñ à Ó á à ß ï ï Ø í é ß î ðÚ à Ú ã Ù ã ß á ã Ø Ë à ß ãÎ Ô Ô æ â Ø ò ï Ëå æ â Ø ò ï ËÎ Ô Ôæ â Ø ã ï Ëå æ â Ø ã ï Ë

ã ñ à Ó á à ß ï Ó ç Þ Ë ã

ó ôõ ö ÷ ø ù ú û ü ù ý þ ÿ � � öö� � � �� ��

STORM PLAN

AND PROFILE - A

C7

�����	
��
		��
� ������ ������ �������� ������ ��� !�!� "#$%!&�' &!!!� (((&�)*�����+&��,
- . / 0 12

3 4 5 0 2
67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2

- . / 0 12
3 4 5 0 2

67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

:;<=>?>@A;B
:=A@@<C D@>EC<F<= G:?<@E

H IJJKJL MNO
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

P Q R Q R S T U 3S QV Q R S T U 3R R Q R Q R S T U 3
W X Y Z X [\ X W ] Y [̂ \ Y _ X W

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

à b c deóf ÿ � � g h û i þ û ý j k þ û � û þ l � ù m ÿ þ û ù ý i ÿ ú g ÿ n n ú ù h û o ÿ þ g ÿ ý pi ø ÿ � � q g r g ú û s û g p q l þ ø g m ù ý þ ú ÿ m þ ù ú n ú û ù ú þ ùm ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ýftf ÿ � � m ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ý i ø ÿ � � m ù ý s ù ú o þ ù þ ø g � ÿ þ g i þ m û þ l ù sj ú g g � g l i þ ÿ ý p ÿ ú p i ÿ ý p i n g m û s û m ÿ þ û ù ý ifu c v w x y
z { | } ~ � � � � � � � } � { � � � | � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � ��  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©¡ ª ¤ § ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©®   ¤ ¢ ̄ ° ¢ ® ¢  ¡ ± ª ¢ ² ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢196



³́ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹

³ º » º ¼ » ½́ ¼ ¶́ ¼ ³

¾ ¿ ½ À ³ ½ ¼ µ ¾
Á Â Ã ¿ » ½ À ½ » Äº · Å º Æ º ¼ »

Ç È Ã ¿ » ½ À ½ » Äº · Å º Æ º ¼ »
Ç È Ã ¿ » ½ À ½ » Äº · Å º Æ º ¼ »

¶̧́ ¶ º̧ » ÄÀ ½ ¼ º

É ÊË Ê ÊÌ ÌÍ Î ÎÏ ÐÑ Ò ÒÓÔÕ Ö ÖÓ×Õ Ö ÖØ Ù Ú Û ÛÈ ÂÜ Ý ÝÈ ÂÜ È Ý ¾ ¿ ½ À ³ ½ ¼ µ ·Å º º Å Þ º º » ß È Ý à̧́Å »̧́ Æ ½ ¼ à̧́ Æ · » ½́ ¼ Å º º Å Þ º º » ß á à̧́Å »̧́ Æ ½ ¼ à̧́ Æ · » ½́ ¼

Å º º Å Þ º º » ß â à̧́Å »̧́ Æ ½ ¼ à̧́ Æ · » ½́ ¼

ã ä å · » º̧ Æ · ½ ¼À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ æ ç

ã ä å · » º̧ Æ · ½ ¼À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ æ È

è é ê ëè é ê ìè é è ëè é è ìè é ì ëè é ì ìè é í ë

è é ê ëè é ê ìè é è ëè é è ìè é ì ëè é ì ìè é í ë

î ëï ë ëî î ï ë ëî ðï ë ëî êï ë ëî èï ë ëî ìï ë ëî íï ë ëî íï î ë

ñòóñôõöõ÷õøùúøûûü ýþþ ÿ ���������� ô���ý	ý�ýý �ó
�ó�ý	���� �úü �� �
�� ��� ����� �� � ���� � !"

ñùòöö#$õü ôü � �%� �þþ ÿ 	ý�������� û ö&��ý���	� �ó
�ó�ý	ý��ý �úü �� � �ó
�ó�ý	ý��ý �óüþ ý � �ó
ò'ö�ý	���þ �õü �� �( )*+ ,-./
01 234 56789 :; < :=�� �  ! "

ñùòöö#$õüþ 	üþ � �	� �þ �ÿ �%�	������ ö&��ý�%��� �ó
�ó�ý	���� �úü �� � �ó
ò'ö�ý	ý�ý� �õü �� �( )*+ .->/
?@ AB CD E EF8 9 :; < : =GH IJ KL

ñùòöö#$õüþ 	üþþ �	� �þ 	ÿ %ý�	������ ö&��ý�%��þ �ó
�ó�ý����� �úüþ ý � �ó
ò'ö�ý����� �õü �� �( )*+ M->/
NO PQR S STUV WX Y WZ[\ � ! "

ñùòöö#$õüþ 	üþ � �	� �þ �ÿ �þ �	������ ö&��ý�%��% �ó
�ó�ý�þ �þ � �]úüþ ý � �ó
ò'ö�ý����� �õüþ ý �( )*+ M-^/
NO _`R a a T8 9 :; < : =bc IJ Kd

ñùòöùò'eûõö#$õüþ 	üþ 	 ��� �
þ %ÿ �%�þ ������ ö&��ý�%��ý �ó
�ó�ý����� �]üþ ý � �ó
�ó�ý����þ �úü ý � �ó
ò'ö�ý�þ �ý� �óõüþ ý �( )*+ >-^/

fg hij k ilmn op q qrst uv wx
ý 'óùõôùôø�ó]ö'eüþ 	�þ �þ � �

þ %ÿ 		�������� ô���ý����� �ó
ò'ö�ý���ý� �õü ý �( )*+ >-y/
ã ä Å · ¼ ½ » ·̧ Ä Æ · ½ ¼ Âz ã Ã È z Â ÃÂ ä à ½̧ º À ½ ¼ º{ À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ̧ º | ¿ ½̧ º ³ }È~ È � ç ä å · » º̧ Å º̧ � ½ ß º{ À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ̧ º | ¿ ½̧ º ³ } È z � ÃÈ z � Ãã ä å · » º̧ Æ · ½ ¼{ À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ̧ º | ¿ ½̧ º ³ } È z � Ã È Ý Ý~ Ä̧ å Å º� Á ã Á È z Ý Áº ¿̧ � å Å º� Á ã Ç âz á áå | ß � å Å º� Á ã Ç áz á ãã ä å · » º̧ Æ · ½ ¼{ À́ å º̧ ½ ¼ µ̧ º | ¿ ½̧ º ³ }ã ä Å · ¼ ½ » ·̧ Ä Æ · ½ ¼ È z � Ã

¶̧́ ¶́ Å º ³ µ̧́ ¿ ¼ ³� ¶ ½ ¶ º ß º ¼ » º̧ À ½ ¼ ºº � ½ Å » ½ ¼ µ µ̧́ ¿ ¼ ³ �¶ ½ ¶ º ß º ¼ » º̧ À ½ ¼ º
È Ý Ý~ Ä̧ Þ µ Àç~ Ä̧ Þ µ ÀÈ Ý Ý~ Ä̧ º µ Àç~ Ä̧ º µ À

ó ôõ ö ÷ ø ù ú û ü ù ý þ ÿ � � öö� � � �� ��

STORM PLAN

AND PROFILE - B

C8

�����	
��
		��
� ������ ������ �������� ������ ��� !�!� "#$%!&�' &!!!� (((&�)*�����+&��,
- . / 0 12

� 4 5 0 2
67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2

- . / 0 12
� 4 5 0 2

67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

:;<=>?>@A;B
:=A@@<C D@>EC<F<= G:?<@E

H IJJKJL MNO
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

P Q R Q R S T U �S QV Q R S T U �R R Q R Q R S T U �
� X Y Z X [\ X � ] Y [̂ \ Y _ X �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

à b c deóf ÿ � � g h û i þ û ý j k þ û � û þ l � ù m ÿ þ û ù ý i ÿ ú g ÿ n n ú ù h û o ÿ þ g ÿ ý pi ø ÿ � � q g r g ú û s û g p q l þ ø g m ù ý þ ú ÿ m þ ù ú n ú û ù ú þ ùm ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ýftf ÿ � � m ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ý i ø ÿ � � m ù ý s ù ú o þ ù þ ø g � ÿ þ g i þ m û þ l ù sj ú g g � g l i þ ÿ ý p ÿ ú p i ÿ ý p i n g m û s û m ÿ þ û ù ý ifu c v w x y
z { | } ~ � � � � � � � } � { � � � | � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � ��  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©¡ ª ¤ § ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©®   ¤ ¢  � ° ¢ ® ¢  ¡ ± ª ¢ ² ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢197



� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �

� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �

� �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �

��������� �� � ���   ¡¢£ �¤¥�¢¤¥¡¦� § �¨©ª«ªª¥¬¢ ©®©ª«¬«¥¤« �¯� ¤ª°   ©®©ª«¬«¥¤« �� ¡«°   ©®�±�ª«¬²¥¦¡ ��� ¤ª°  ³ ´µ¶ ·¸¹º
»¼ ½ ¾¿ À Á ÂÃ ¼ Ä ¿ Å Å ÆÇ È É Ê Ë Ì

��������� �� �¥¡ ���   ¡¡£ ¢²¥ª�¢¥¤¬� § �¨©ª«ª¬¥¬² ©®©ª«¬«¥�² �¯� ¡«°   ©®�±�ª«¬«¥¦² �Í� ¡«°  ³ ´µ¶ Î¸¹º
» ¼ Ï Ð¿ Ð À ÂÑÒ ÓÔ Õ Õ ÖÇ È É Ê Ë Ì

��������� �� �¥¤ ���   ¡¡£ ¦¦¥«ª¤¥¡¦� § �¨©ª«ª¬¥¡¦ ©®�±�ª«¬�¥²� �Í�� ¡«°  ³ ´µ¶ ×¸ØºÙ Ú Û Ù Û Ü Ý Þ ß Ú Û à á Þâ Ù ã Ù Ý ä Ý á å Ý Ú æ ã á ÝÝ ç ã Ü å ã á ß ß Ú Û à á Þ âÙ ã Ù Ý ä Ý á å Ý Ú æ ã á Ýè é éê ë Ú Ý ß æ ì ê ë Ú Ý ß æè é éê ë Ú í ß æ ì ê ë Ú í ß æ ó ôõ ö ÷ ø ù ú û ü ù ý þ ÿ � � öö� � � �� ��

STORM PLAN

AND PROFILE - C

C9

�����	
��
		��
� ������ ������ �������� ������ ��� !�!� "#$%!&�' &!!!� (((&�)*�����+&��,
- . / 0 12

� 4 5 0 2
67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2

- . / 0 12
� 4 5 0 2

67 0 0 5 5 8 5 9 0 2
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

:;<=>?>@A;B
:=A@@<C D@>EC<F<= G:?<@E

H IJJKJL MNO
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

P Q R Q R S T U �S QV Q R S T U �R R Q R Q R S T U �
� X Y Z X [\ X � ] Y [̂ \ Y _ X �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

à b c deóf ÿ � � g h û i þ û ý j k þ û � û þ l � ù m ÿ þ û ù ý i ÿ ú g ÿ n n ú ù h û o ÿ þ g ÿ ý pi ø ÿ � � q g r g ú û s û g p q l þ ø g m ù ý þ ú ÿ m þ ù ú n ú û ù ú þ ùm ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ýftf ÿ � � m ù ý i þ ú k m þ û ù ý i ø ÿ � � m ù ý s ù ú o þ ù þ ø g � ÿ þ g i þ m û þ l ù sj ú g g � g l i þ ÿ ý p ÿ ú p i ÿ ý p i n g m û s û m ÿ þ û ù ý ifu c v w x y
z { | } ~ � � � � � � � } � { � � � | � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � ��  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©¡ ª ¤ § ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢  ¡ ¡ ¢ £ ¤ ¢ ¥ ¦ §¨© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © ©®   ¤ ¢  � ° ¢ ® ¢  ¡ ± ª ¢ ² ¢ « ¬ ª « ¢ ¢  ¥   ¤ ¢198



î ï ð ñî ï î òî ï î ñî ï ñ òî ï ñ ñî ï ó ò

î ï ð ñî ï î òî ï î ñî ï ñ òî ï ñ ñî ï ó ò

ô òõ ò ò ô ô õ ò ò ô öõ ò ò ô ðõ ò ò ô îõ ò ò ô îõ ÷ ó

øù ú ûü ý þ ÿ�ù � ü � � �� � � � � 	

������ ��� �� ��� � ��� ���������� ����� �!� �"#�"������$ �%� ��& � �"#�'�����!$ �"� ��& �( )*+ ,-./

01 2 2 23 4 5 6�ù � ü � � �7 8 9 : ; <

������ ��� �$ ��� � ��� $ �������� ��������� �"#�"������� �%� ��& � �"#�'������� �"� ��& �( )*+ =-./

øù ú >ü ú > ÿ?@ AB C C D7 8 9 : ; <

������ ��� �� ��� � ��� $��������� ����$���! �"#�"���$��� ��� ��& � �"#�'���$��� �"� ��& �( )*+ =-E/

FG H IJ K L M?@ A B C C D7 8 9 : ; <

������ ��� � ��� � ��� ���������� ����$��  �"#�'�����$$ �N� ��& �( )*+ ,-O/
����'PQ����� ��� �� ��� �

��� $��������� �����$� � �"#�"������� �%� ��& � �"#�"������� �N� �& � �"#�'������� �"�� ��& �( )*+ =-./
R S T U V W X U Y ZT [ Y \ W ] [ R S T U V W X U Y ZT [ Y \ W ] [^_ R̀ a_ b̀c S d W Y [ e W V [bf b ĝ S h U X [ YT [ Y \ W ] [b _ ì b _ ì

j Y k j k T [ l m Y k n V lo j W j [ ] [ V X [ Y e W V [[ p W T X W V m m Y k n V l oj W j [ ] [ V X [ Y e W V [ b q qf Z Y [ m e^f Z Y [ m e b q qf Z Y r m e^f Z Y r m e s tu v w x y z { | y } ~ � � � vv� � � �� ��

STORM PLAN

AND PROFILE - D

C10

���������������� �������� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ¡�¡�¢ £¤¥¡¦�§ ¦¡¡¡�¨¨¨ ¦�©ª�����«¦��¬
 ®̄ ° ±²

³́ µ ° ²
¶· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²

 ®̄ ° ±²
³́ µ ° ²

¶· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

º»¼½¾¿¾ÀÁ»Â
º½ÁÀÀ¼Ã ÄÀ¾ÅÃ¼Æ¼½ Çº¿¼ÀÅ

È ÉÊÊËÊÌ ÍÎÏ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

Ð Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ó ÑÖ Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ò Ò Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³
× Ø Ù Ú Ø ÛÜ Ø × Ý Ù Û Þ Ü Ù ß Ø ×

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

à á â ã äåsæ � � � ç è { é ~ { } ê ë ~ { � { ~ ì � y í � ~ { y } é � z ç � î î z y è { ï � ~ ç � } ðé x � � � ñ ç ò ç z { ó { ç ð ñ ì ~ x ç í y } ~ z � í ~ y z î z { y z ~ yí y } é ~ z ë í ~ { y }æôæ � � � í y } é ~ z ë í ~ { y } é x � � � í y } ó y z ï ~ y ~ x ç � � ~ ç é ~ í { ~ ì y óê z ç ç � ç ì é ~ � } ð � z ð é � } ð é î ç í { ó { í � ~ { y } éæõ ã ö ÷ ø ù
ú û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � ý � û � � � ü � � � �� 	 
 � �  � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � 	  � � 
 � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � �  � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � 	 
� � � 
 � �  � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	 � �� 	  � � � 
 � � � �  � � � � � 	 
 � 
 � � �  � � �� � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � � �
 	 �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � �  � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � 	  �   	  �� 	 � � � � � 	 
 �� 	 � � � � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � � � 	  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � �  � � � � �� ! ! " # $ " % & '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )! * $ ' " + , * + " " - %  $ " ! ! " # $ " % & '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ).  $ " - / 0 " . " - ! 1 * " 2 " + , * + " " - %  $ "199



345 6 7 8
9 : ; < = > ? @ ; ? A : : ?

B C D E F G H

B I J I K J L C K E C K B

E C C M F K BF N I K L J O F G I F
P M Q R S C Q T I

R Q L M B L K D I

R Q L M B L K D B
R Q L M B L K D FR Q L M B L K D RR Q L M B L K D P

U V T F K L J F G OW X Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

Z [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

\ ] Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

Z [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

Z [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J
Z [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K JZ [ Y Q J L M L J OI F T I N I K J

Î _ [ \ V̀ F J I G

Î _ U V T F K L J F G O Î _ a L G IS O B G F K JÎ _ a L G IS O B G F K J
Î _ a L G IS O B G F K J

Î _ a L G IS O B G F K J
bc d e fc g hc i jk l m l n b n op qm o d r

b c d e fc g hc i jk l m l n b n o p qm o d q bc d e fc g s l m mc b ek l m l n b n op r

bc d e fc g hc i jk l m l n b n op q

E t C E I t J OM L K I

E t C E I t J OM L K I

E t C E I t J OM L K I

B t F L K F D II F u I N I K J
Î L u J L K Dù F M I

R Q L M B L K D a v w x y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U \ ] [ _ ] \I� Z \ [ \ \ � X_ \ �

[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW U M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U \ [ X _ � WI� Z \ [ \ \ W ]_ U � [ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK� [ Z U U \ Z [ _ Z WI� Z \ [ \ \ U X_ W ]
a L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O[ Z M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U � \ _ � �K � [ Z U U ] \ Z_ Z ZI� Z \ [ \ [ � W _ W ][ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW U M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U ] \ � _ U WI� Z \ [ \ \ ] W _ � ]

[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U ] X [ _ W �I� Z \ [ \ [ X �_ X U
U V� X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U ] [ � _ Z [I� Z \ [ \ [ X \ _ ] Z[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW W M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U � � � � _ Z �I� Z \ [ \ ] � �_ U W

[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW ] M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK� [ Z U U ] U U_ Z XI� Z \ [ [ � [ �_ � �
[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW U M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK� [ Z U U [ Z [ _ ] UI� Z \ [ [ � � W_ ] \

[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I t[ ] X M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U Z � W _ � �I� Z \ [ \ ] � �_ W X

U V� X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U ] U X_ [ \I� Z \ [ [ � � U _ \ �
U V� X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK� [ Z U U \ � \ _ � �I� Z \ [ [ � ] X_ U �

U V � X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U Z � U _ � XI� Z \ [ \ \ Z U _ W Z
U V � X V J I Ì � J R �X V D F J I � F M � IK� [ Z U U \ [ X_ Z ZI� Z \ [ \ \ � [ _ \ Ua L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O[ � M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U � [ _ ] ]K � [ Z U U ] � \ _ [ [I� Z \ [ [ � � X _ � [

a L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O[ � M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U W U_ W ]K� [ Z U U \ U �_ Z �I� Z \ [ [ � \ �_ � W
a L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O\ W M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U W � _ Z �K � [ Z U U Z � [ _ � XI� Z \ [ \ \ [ �_ X Z

a L t I S O B t F K J F u u I N R M O\ ] M a� X V B L Ea M F K D I I M I �� W U � ]_ \ XK � [ Z U U \ [ ] _ \ [I� Z \ [ \ \ � \ _ W �[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW � M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U [ X � _ [ UI� Z \ [ \ \ ] U_ W X[ _ � V B C N I u J L P̀ F J I t N I J I tW W M a� [ _ � V J O E I H P C E E I tK � [ Z U U [ \ Z _ U \I� Z \ [ \ [ � Z_ U Z[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK� [ Z U U ] Z �_ � \I� Z \ [ \ [ ] Z_ W W [ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U ] � � _ W WI� Z \ [ \ \ ] �_ X X[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U [ Z � _ � ZI� Z \ [ \ \ W Z _ Z [

[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK� [ Z U U W X ]_ � �I� Z \ [ \ [ ] \ _ U Z

[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U [ [ X _ \ UI� Z \ [ [ � W U_ W �
[ _ � V̀ F J I t J F EK � [ Z U U [ ] ]_ X �I� Z \ [ [ � � Z _ � W

P Q J L K [ \ V � U V J I Ì � J RP C K K I P J J C Î _ F̀ J I tK � [ Z U � � ] � _ � �I� Z \ [ \ [ � U_ � U

P Q J L K U V� U V J I Ì � J RP C K K I P J J C Î _ F̀ J I tK � [ Z U U � \ X _ � \I� Z \ [ [ U � ] _ � �

[ \ ] M a� U V E � P̀ F J I t N F L K
Z U M a� U V E � PF̀ J I t N F L K

Z \ M a � U V E � P̀ F J I t N F L K
[ � U M a� U V E � P̀ F J I t N F L K[ � U M a� U V E � P̀ F J I t N F L KU V � U V J I Ì � J R �v w � � � � y z { | } � � � � { � � | � � �K � [ Z U U W ] �_ ] ZI� Z \ [ [ � \ �_ � ]

v w x y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U W � X_ \ ]I� Z \ [ \ \ [ Z _ Z W

X V a L t I J F EK� [ Z U U ] Z �_ � ZI� Z \ [ \ ] U � _ � XX V a L t I u I t � L P IW ] M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U ] ] ]_ � �I� Z \ [ \ ] U [ _ [ �

X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U [ ] �_ W WI� Z \ [ [ � � [ _ � �
X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U W X [ _ \ [I� Z \ [ \ ] � �_ U Z

X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U \ Z X_ ] �I� Z \ [ \ \ U W _ U �
X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U ] � � _ \ �I� Z \ [ \ \ [ ]_ U �X V a L t I J F EK � [ Z U U ] X Z_ \ �I� Z \ [ \ [ � �_ \ �

X V a L t I u I t � L P IW ] M a� X V B L EK� [ Z U U ] � Z_ [ [I� Z \ [ [ � [ W _ ] �
X V a L t I u I t � L P IW U M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U [ Z �_ U WI� Z \ [ [ � � \ _ W U

X V a L t I u I t � L P I[ ] X M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U Z � � _ ] ]I� Z \ [ \ ] � \ _ W X X V a L t I u I t � L P IW U M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U \ \ [ _ \ �I� Z \ [ \ \ Z � _ Z ]
X V a L t I u I t � L P IW W M a� X V B L EK � [ Z U U [ \ �_ X �I� Z \ [ \ [ � �_ ] �

X V a L t I u I t � L P IW � M a� X V B L EK� [ Z U U ] Z Z_ X �I� Z \ [ \ \ ] �_ � [v w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K � [ Z U U ] X �_ X �I� Z \ [ \ [ U \ _ X Uv w � � � y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K � [ Z U U ] Z �_ � ]I� Z \ [ \ ] � �_ \ ]v w x y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U ] X �_ ] �I� Z \ [ [ � X W_ W X
X V a L t I J F EK� [ Z U U [ \ [ _ ] WI� Z \ [ [ � W X _ � Zv w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U \ X [ _ X UI� Z \ [ [ � ] [ _ \ Z

v w x y z { | } ~ � � � {K� [ Z U U W X �_ U UI� Z \ [ [ � W W_ \ ]U V D F J I � F M � IK� [ Z U U W X �_ X XI� Z \ [ [ � W �_ \ ]U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U W X �_ Z \I� Z \ [ [ � Z U _ ] Z
U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U � \ \ _ U \I� Z \ [ [ U � W _ Z [ U V J I Ì � J RK� [ Z U U W � ]_ � ]I� Z \ [ [ � W [ _ W Xv w � �� y z { | } ~ � � � { �v w � � � � y z { | } ~ � � � {K � [ Z U U W X U _ \ �I� Z \ [ [ � Z U _ � �

U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U ] � Z_ X ZI� Z \ [ \ [ W �_ X Z
U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U ] � X _ � \I� Z \ [ \ [ � �_ [ WU V J I Ì � J RK � [ Z U U ] � �_ [ UI� Z \ [ \ [ � ] _ Z U

U V D F J I � F M � IK � [ Z U U \ \ � _ � WI� Z \ [ \ \ U �_ � �

s t� v w x � z { | � } ~ � � � vv� � � �� �� WATER PLAN

C11

���������������� �������� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ¡�¡�¢ £¤¥¡��§ �¡¡¡�¨¨¨ ���ª�����«���¬
� ®̄ ° ±²

³́ µ ° ²
�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²

� ®̄ ° ±²
³́ µ ° ²

�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

º»¼½¾¿¾�Á»�
º½Á��¼Ã Ä�¾�Ã¼Æ¼½ Çº¿¼��

È ÉÊÊËÊÌ ÍÎÏ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

Ð Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ó ÑÖ Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ò Ò Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³
  Ø ¡ ¢ Ø ÛÜ Ø   £ ¡ Û ¤ Ü ¡ ß Ø  

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¥ á ¦ §̈ åsæ � � � ç è { é ~ { } ê ë ~ { � { ~ ì � � © � ~ { � } é � z ç � î î z � è { ï � ~ ç � } ðé x � � � ñ ç ò ç z { ª { ç ð ñ ì ~ x ç © � } ~ z � © ~ � z î z { � z ~ �© � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � }æôæ � � � © � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � } é x � � � © � } ª � z ï ~ � ~ x ç � � ~ ç é ~ © { ~ ì � ªê z ç ç � ç ì é ~ � } ð � z ð é � } ð é î ç © { ª { © � ~ { � } éæ�æ î z � ò { ð ç � ï { } { ï ë ï � ª « v � } ð � ï � è { ï ë ï � ª � v ð ç î ~ x � ª© � ò ç z ª � z ¬ � ~ ç z ï � { } é � } ð é ç z ò { © ç é ç è © ç î ~ ª � z� � ¬ ç z { } ê éæ®æ ¬ � ~ ç z ï � { } � � ¬ ç z { } ê é¯ z ç ª ç z ç } © ç © { ~ ì � ª ê z ç ç � ç ìé ~ � } ð � z ð ð ç ~ � { � ¬° «æ
õ § ö ÷ ø ù

ú û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � ý � û � � � ü � � � �� ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
 � � ² ³ � � � 
 � � � ±́ � � 
 � � µ � ³ �� � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � ± � �́ � � � � � � ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
² ³ � 
 � �́ � ²¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � � � � ± µ ²� ±́ � � � 
 � � ² ³́ � � � ³ � ± 
 � 
 � � �́ � � ³� � � � � � � ³ � ± 
¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � ² � � � �
 ± ³́ � � � � · � ³ � � � � ² � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � �́ � ²�́ ² � ± 
 ² � � � � � ³ � � ±́ �́́ ±́ ²� ± � � ² ² � ± 
 ²� ±́� � ² � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � ² � ±́ µ � � � � ³ � � � � ³ � � ²� � � � � �́ � � � ² ²¶¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )¹ * $ ' " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ).̧ $ " - » 0 " . " - ¹ 1 * " 2 " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ), - " " ¼ " ' 2 * - " ½̧ - 0 1̧ ¼ %̧ $ "200



¾ ¿ À Á¾ ¿ À Â¾ ¿ ¾ Á¾ ¿ ¾ Â¾ ¿ Â Á¾ ¿ Â Â¾ ¿ Ã Á¾ ¿ Ã Â

¾ ¿ À Á¾ ¿ À Â¾ ¿ ¾ Á¾ ¿ ¾ Â¾ ¿ Â Á¾ ¿ Â Â¾ ¿ Ã Á¾ ¿ Ã Â

Ä ÁÅ Á Á Ä Ä Å Á Á Ä ÆÅ Á Á Ä ÀÅ Á Á Ä ¾Å Á Á Ä ÂÅ Á Á Ä ÃÅ Á Á Ä ÇÅ Á ÁÈÉ Ê ËÌ Í Î ÏÐÑ ÒÓ Ô Ò ÕÖ × Ø Ù Ú
ÛÛÜÝÞ ß àáâ ã ßäå áæçèéäçääâê ëÜáéááçáß ëìíëìáéîßçéä àÛïÞ éð ã ëìíëìáéîñçää àÛòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîßçéä àìòÞ éð ãö ÷øù úûüýþ ÛÛÜÝÞ ñ àáâ ã ßßå îñçñéäçääâê ëÜáéáÿçé� ëìíëìáéîñçæß àÛÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîñçèß àìïÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú�ü�þ

�� � �� � � 	
� � � � �Ö × Ø Ù Ú
ÛÛÜÝÞ î àáâ ã ßßå æèçáîäçääâ �ê ëÜáéáÿçèæ ëìíëìáéîîçßæ àÛÞ éð ã ëìíëìáéîîçßæ àòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîñç�æ àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú�üýþ

�� � � �� � � ��� �� � � � ! " # $
ÛÛÜÝÞ á àáâ ã ßîå ññçäæäçääâê ëÜáéáéçèè ëìíëìáéîèçèæ àÛÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîèçîæ àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú�üûþ

� � � % &� & � ��� �� � � � ! " # $
ÛÛÜÝÞ è àáâ ã ßèå ßæçÿßäçääâê ëÜáéèäçèè ëìíëìáéîéçæä àòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîéçèä àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù úûü'þ

() * +, - . /�� �� � � �0 1 2 3 4
ÛÛÜÝÞ ÿ àáâ ã ßèå èèçÿÿäçääâê ëÜáéèßçéé ëìíóôõáéî�çñæ àïÞ éð ãö ÷øù úûüýþ

ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßîå è�çè� Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîÿçßî Ûòê íëìí7 áéîæçîî ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßîå æèç�� Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîÿçîæ Ûòê íëìí7 áéîæçèæ ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßèå áñçäñ Ü6ëìëìí7 áéî�çäæ Ûòê íëìí7 áéáäçñæ

éð Ü6ëì éð Ü6ëì ÿð 8ëê ò

ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßîå äßçæ� Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîèçäÿ Ûòê íëìí7 áéîÿçñÿ9: ; <= > ? @ A B C D =E = F G ? H I A J C@ J C K L M J9 ? N O P C I Q A R I A 9 : 9 <S : T < T : > < T: ; <> ? H I A J C D I L Q 9 ? U L C J R L Q JJ V L @ A L Q W W C I P J I AX L X J M J Q A J C R L Q J X C B X B @ J P W C I P J I AX L X J M J Q A J C R L Q J

s t� v w x � z { | � } ~ � � �s t� v w ò ç z ~ { © � � � vv® � Y �® �� ® SANITARY PLAN

AND PROFILE - A

C12

���������������� �������� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ¡�¡�¢ £¤¥¡��§ �¡¡¡�¨¨¨ ���ª�����«���¬
� ®̄ ° ±²

³́ µ ° ²
�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²

� ®̄ ° ±²
³́ µ ° ²

�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

º»¼½¾¿¾�Á»�
º½Á��¼Ã Ä�¾�Ã¼Æ¼½ Çº¿¼��

È ÉÊÊËÊÌ ÍÎÏ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

Ð Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ó ÑÖ Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ò Ò Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³
  Ø ¡ ¢ Ø ÛÜ Ø   £ ¡ Û ¤ Ü ¡ ß Ø  

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¥ á ¦ §̈ åsæ � � � ç è { é ~ { } ê ë ~ { � { ~ ì � � © � ~ { � } é � z ç � î î z � è { ï � ~ ç � } ðé x � � � ñ ç ò ç z { ª { ç ð ñ ì ~ x ç © � } ~ z � © ~ � z î z { � z ~ �© � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � }æôæ � � � © � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � } é x � � � © � } ª � z ï ~ � ~ x ç � � ~ ç é ~ © { ~ ì � ªê z ç ç � ç ì é ~ � } ð � z ð é � } ð é î ç © { ª { © � ~ { � } éæõ § ö ÷ ø ù
ú û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � ý � û � � � ü � � � �� ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
 � � ² ³ � � � 
 � � � ±́ � � 
 � � µ � ³ �� � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � ± � �́ � � � � � � ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
² ³ � 
 � �́ � ²¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � � � � ± µ ²� ±́ � � � 
 � � ² ³́ � � � ³ � ± 
 � 
 � � �́ � � ³� � � � � � � ³ � ± 
¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � ² � � � �
 ± ³́ � � � � · � ³ � � � � ² � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � �́ � ²�́ ² � ± 
 ² � � � � � ³ � � ±́ �́́ ±́ ²� ± � � ² ² � ± 
 ²� ±́� � ² � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � ² � ±́ µ � � � � ³ � � � � ³ � � ²� � � � � �́ � � � ² ²¶¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )¹ * $ ' " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ).̧ $ " - » 0 " . " - ¹ 1 * " 2 " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "201



¾ ¿ À Á¾ ¿ À Â¾ ¿ ¾ Á¾ ¿ ¾ Â¾ ¿ Â Á¾ ¿ Â Â¾ ¿ Ã Á¾ ¿ Ã Â

¾ ¿ À Á¾ ¿ À Â¾ ¿ ¾ Á¾ ¿ ¾ Â¾ ¿ Â Á¾ ¿ Â Â¾ ¿ Ã Á¾ ¿ Ã Â

Ä ÁÅ Á Á Ä Ä Å Á Á Ä ÆÅ Á Á Ä ÀÅ Á Á Ä ¾Å Á Á Ä ÂÅ Á Á Ä ÃÅ Á Á Ä ÇÅ Á Á Ä ¿Å Á Á

ÛÛÜÝÞ î àáâ ã ßäå èääçääâ �ê ëÜáéáÿçèæ ëìíëìáéîîçßæ àÛÞ éð ã ëìíëìáéîîçßæ àòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîñç�æ àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú�üýþ

Z[ \ ]^ _ ] `ab cd e f gh i j k l
ÛÛÜÝÞ é àáâ ã ßîå îñçîéäçääâ �ê ëÜáéáèçñæ ëìíëìáéîèç�æ àÛÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîèçææ àïÞ éð ãö ÷øù münþ

op q r st u r va b c d e f gh i j k l
ÛÛÜÝÞ � àáâ ã ßèå î�çÿéäçääâê ëÜáéá�çáè ëìíëìáéîæç�î àÛïÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîæçæî àìÞ éð ãö ÷øù úúüwþ

xy z { |} ~ | �� y �} { � �� � � � �
ÛÛÜÝÞ ßä àáâ ã ßÿå �îçáääçääâê ëÜáéèßçæ� ëìíóôõáéáßçææ àìòÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú'ü'þ

ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßäå �éçÿÿ Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîîçè� Ûòê íëìí7 áéîáçæ� ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßáå äßçîä Ü6ëìëìí7 áéîÿçèæ Ûòê íëìí7 áéîæçææ ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßÿå ßäç�ÿ Ü6ëìëìí7 áéî�çæñ Ûòê íëìí7 áéáäç�ñ
ÿð ï5ò Ûõ67 ßÿå éîçáä Ü6ëìëìí7 áéáßçèñ Ûòê íëìí7 áéáñçæñ= : 9 <9 ? U L C J R L Q J =E = F G ? H I A J C@ J C K L M JT : � < T : � <op q � �t r � va b c d e f g� � � � �

9 ? N O P C I Q AR I A J C I R 9 ? U L C J R L Q J=E = F G ? H I A J C@ J C K L M J =E = F G ? L C C L W I A L B Q@ J C K L M J 9 ? U L C J R L Q J=E = F G ? H I A J C@ J C K L M JÛÛÜÝÞ æ àáâ ã ßîå äèçäßäçääâê ëÜáéáèçÿ� ëìíëìáéîèçèá àòÞ éð ã ëìíóôõáéîèçîá àïÞ éð ãö ÷øù ú'ü�þ
9 ? N O P C I Q AR I A J C I R

� : S < 9 : � <9: = < T: > < T: � < �: � <�: � <

J V L @ A L Q W W C I P J I AX L X J M J Q A J C R L Q JX C B X B @ J P W C I P J I AX L X J M J Q A J C R L Q J

s t� v w x � z { | � } ~ � � �s t� v w ò ç z ~ { © � � � vv® � Y �® �� ® SANITARY PLAN

AND PROFILE - B

C13

���������������� �������� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ¡�¡�¢ £¤¥¡��§ �¡¡¡�¨¨¨ ���ª�����«���¬
� ®̄ ° ±²

³́ µ ° ²
�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²

� ®̄ ° ±²
³́ µ ° ²

�· ° ° µ µ̧ µ ¹ ° ²
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

º»¼½¾¿¾�Á»�
º½Á��¼Ã Ä�¾�Ã¼Æ¼½ Çº¿¼��

È ÉÊÊËÊÌ ÍÎÏ
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

Ð Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ó ÑÖ Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³Ò Ò Ñ Ò Ñ Ò Ó Ô Õ ³
  Ø ¡ ¢ Ø ÛÜ Ø   £ ¡ Û ¤ Ü ¡ ß Ø  

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¥ á ¦ §̈ åsæ � � � ç è { é ~ { } ê ë ~ { � { ~ ì � � © � ~ { � } é � z ç � î î z � è { ï � ~ ç � } ðé x � � � ñ ç ò ç z { ª { ç ð ñ ì ~ x ç © � } ~ z � © ~ � z î z { � z ~ �© � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � }æôæ � � � © � } é ~ z ë © ~ { � } é x � � � © � } ª � z ï ~ � ~ x ç � � ~ ç é ~ © { ~ ì � ªê z ç ç � ç ì é ~ � } ð � z ð é � } ð é î ç © { ª { © � ~ { � } éæõ § ö ÷ ø ù
ú û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � ý � û � � � ü � � � �� ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
 � � ² ³ � � � 
 � � � ±́ � � 
 � � µ � ³ �� � � � � � � � � � � � ³ � ± � �́ � � � � � � ± 
 ² ³́ � � ³ � ± 
² ³ � 
 � �́ � ²¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � � � � ± µ ²� ±́ � � � 
 � � ² ³́ � � � ³ � ± 
 � 
 � � �́ � � ³� � � � � � � ³ � ± 
¶ ³ � � � � ³ � � ² � � � � � ³ � 
 � � ² � � � �
 ± ³́ � � � � · � ³ � � � � ² � � 
 � 
 � � 
 � �́ � ²�́ ² � ± 
 ² � � � � � ³ � � ±́ �́́ ±́ ²� ± � � ² ² � ± 
 ²� ±́� � ² � � 
 � � � � � � � 
 � � � ² � ±́ µ � � � � ³ � � � � ³ � � ²� � � � � �́ � � � ² ²¶¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )¹ * $ ' " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "¹̧ ¹ " # $ " % º '() ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ).̧ $ " - » 0 " . " - ¹ 1 * " 2 " + , * + " " - %̧ $ "202



��������� � ^ �

345 6 7 8

� � � ����������� ¡¢£¤¥¦§¨©ª«¬®¯°±²³´ µ ¶ · ¸ ¹ º » ¼½ ¾ ¿ À½ Á Â½ Ã Ä Å ÅÆ Ç ¾ È
¼½ ¾ ¿ À½ Á Â½ Ã Ä Å ÅÆ Ç ¾ É ¼½ ¾ ¿ À½ Á Ê Å Æ Æ½ ¼ ¿Ë Å Æ Å Ì ¼ Ì ÇÍ È

¼ ½ ¾ ¿ À½ Á Â½ Ã ÄË Å Æ Å Ì ¼ Ì ÇÍ É

Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ï Ò ÓÔ Õ Ö Ñ

Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ï Ò ÓÔ Õ Ö Ñ

Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ï Ò ÓÔ Õ Ö Ñ
× Ñ Ø Õ Ù Ñ Ö Ò Ú Û × Õ Ö× Ò Û Ö Ø Û Ï Ø Ü Ø Ý Þ Ø ß Û Þ Ï Ñ Ú Û × Õ Öàá â ã äÞ Ô á å å äæ Ø á ç è é ê ç ë

× Ñ Ø Õ Ù Ñ Ö Ò Ú Û × Õ Ö Ð Ü Ò Ô Ñ Ò Î Õ Î Ñ Ò ÐØ Õ × Þ æ Û Ï ì Ñ Õ Ö Ò Ð Ñ í Õ × Ò Õ Ö ì × à Û Ô ÑîÝ Ð Ô Ô Ð à Õ Ö ì Ñ í Õ × Ò Õ Ö ì Ø Ï Û Õ Ö Û ì ÑÎ Û Ò Ò Ñ Ï Ö ×
ï ðñ ò ó ô õ ö ÷ ø õ ù ú û ü ý òòþ ÿ � ÿþ ÿÿ EROSION CONTROL

PLAN - INITIAL

C14

� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � 
 � � ��ú ô  �   ö õ � ÷ õ ù � õ ù ú ö õ ü �  ú û ÷ ü � ô û �  �   ù � � � � ÷ ú ú  � ú õ ú ô � ÷ ú � õ � � ö   ü  � ÷ ù � � ü � ÷ ü ü �  ù ú õ � ú ô  � ÷ ú � � ö ÷ ú  ö ÷ û�û � � ÷ ú ÷ õ ù û ü  ö õ � ÷ õ ù û ù � �  � ÷ �  ù ú � õ ù ú ö õ ü �  û � � ö  � � û � � ù   �  � ÷ � � ù � õ ö  �   ù � ö õ � ü  � � õ � � � ö õ ö ÷ � ú ô  � � � � ÷ ú ú  �� ü û ù � õ  � ù õ ú � � ù � ú ÷ õ ù û � ÷ ù ú  ù �  �� ú ô  ö  � � ÷ ö  �  ù ú � õ �ú ô ÷ � � ü û ù � ô û ü ü ö � ù � ÷ ú ô ú ô  ü û ù � û ù � �  ú ô  õ � ü ÷ � û ú ÷ õ ù õ �ú ô  ü û ù � õ � ù  ö � ù ú ÷ ü � � � ô ú ÷ �  û � ú ô  � ü û ù ÷ � � ö õ �  ö ü �� õ � � ü  ú  �� � õ � ÷ � ÷  �� õ ö � õ ÷ �  � � ù õ ú � ú ô  �   ö õ � ÷ õ ù û ù ��  � ÷ �  ù ú � õ ù ú ö õ ü �  ú û ÷ ü � ÷ ù û ù � õ � ú ô  � �  ü �  � ú õ ù õ ú� � ü � ÷ ü ü ú ô  ö  � � ÷ ö  �  ù ú � õ � ú ô  � õ ü õ ö û � õ �  � û ö ú �  ù ú õ �� � � ü ÷ � ô  û ü ú ô û ù �  ù � ÷ ö õ ù �  ù ú� � ú õ ö � � û ú  ö � õ ù � ú ö � � ú ÷ õ ù�  ö � ÷ ú � õ ö û � ú õ ö � � û ú  ö � û ù û �  �  ù ú � ü û ù ó � � � � ý �õ � ù  ö
� � � � � �ï � û ü ü  � ÷ � ú ÷ ù � � ú ÷ ü ÷ ú � ü õ � û ú ÷ õ ù � û ö  û � � ö õ � ÷ � û ú  û ù �� ô û ü ü �  �  ö ÷ � ÷  � � � ú ô  � õ ù ú ö û � ú õ ö � ö ÷ õ ö ú õ� õ ù � ú ö � � ú ÷ õ ù �� � û ü ü � õ ù � ú ö � � ú ÷ õ ù � ô û ü ü � õ ù � õ ö � ú õ ú ô  ü û ú  � ú � ÷ ú � õ �� ö   ü  � � ú û ù � û ö � � û ù � � �  � ÷ � ÷ � û ú ÷ õ ù �� � � õ ù � � ü ú ú ô  ü û ù � � � û �  � ü û ù � õ ö û ö  û � ú õ �  �   �  �û ù � � � ü � ô  � � ÷ ú ô ù û ú ÷ �  � ÷ � �   � � û ü ü õ ú ô  ö û ö  û � ú õ�  � û �  � õ ö ü û ù � � � û �  � �  ö ú ô  ü û ù � � � û �  � ü û ù �þ� � õ ù ú ö û � ú õ ö � ÷ ü ü �  ö  � � ÷ ö  � ú õ � �   � õ ö � û � � � � û ù �� ÷ � ÷ � ü  �  � ÷ �  ù ú ú ô û ú ÷ � ú ö û � !  � õ ù ú õ � ÷ ú � � ú ö   ú � �"�  � õ# � û ù � õ ö  � � ÷ � û ü  ù ú � ÷ ü ü �  ö  � � ÷ ö  � ú õ �  � �  �� � ö ÷ ù � � õ ù � ö  ú  � ü û �  �  ù ú û � ú ÷ � ÷ ú ÷  � � õ ö � õ ù � ö  ú � û � ô# õ � ú � �  û ö ú ô � û � ô # õ � ú � ÷ ú � � ÷ ü ü ù õ ú �  û ü ü õ �  � õ ùú ô  � ö õ $  � ú � ÷ ú  � �  ú õ ú ô  � ÷ ø  õ � ú ô  � ö õ $  � ú û ù �� ö õ � ÷ � ÷ ú � ú õ û ù  � ú û � ü ÷ � ô  � � ö û ÷ ù û �  � û ��� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 	 � % � � &�� ÷ ü ú �  ù � � ÷ �  ö � ÷ õ ù � ÷ ! � ú û � û ü ÷ ø  � � ú û � ÷ ù � û ö  û�  ô ÷ � ü  ú ö û � ! ÷ ù � � õ ù ú ö õ ü�  � ÷ �  ù ú � û � ÷ ùú  � � õ ö û ö � � ü õ �  � ö û ÷ ù÷ ù ü  ú � ö õ ú  � ú ÷ õ ùõ � ú ü  ú � ö õ ú  � ú ÷ õ ù� õ ù � ö  ú  � û � ô õ � ú û ö  û� � ö � û �  ö õ � � ô  ù ÷ ù �' � � ü � ô ÷ ù �ú  � � õ ö û ö � �   � ÷ ù ��  ö � û ù  ù ú �   � ÷ ù �

()*)+,-.)-,,/)-. 01120345 678997 :6;<7920=> 9?@98 :ABCD1D1E FGHDI2JCIDDD3KKK IALM9A<@<NIABO
PQ R S TU

V W X S U
YZ S S X X [ X \ S U

PQ R S TU
V W X S U

YZ S S X X [ X \ S U
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

]^_`abacdef
]`dcc_g hcaig_j_` k]b_ci

l mnnonp qrs
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

t u v u v w x y Vw uz u v w x y Vv v u v u v w x y V
{ | } ~ | �� | { � } � � � } � | {

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

� � � � 
 �
� � � � � 
 	 � � 
 � � � � � � ��ï � ÷ ù � ú û ü ü �  � ÷ �  ù ú � û � ÷ ù � ö ÷ õ ö ú õ � ÷ � ú � ö � û ù �  õ � ï � ÿ û � ö � � ÷ ù � ú û ü ü � ÷ ü ú �  ù �  û ö õ � ù � � õ � ù � û ö � õ � � ÷ ú  � ÷ ù � ú û ü ü � ÷ �  ö � ÷ õ ù � ÷ !  � ú õ � õ ù �  � � ú õ ö � � ü õ � � ú õ�  � ÷ �  ù ú � û � ÷ ù �

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � ¡ � � � � ¢ ¡ � �   £ � � ¤¡ ¥ ¥ ¦ � � ¡ � ¦   � � � § �̈ © �     ¦   § � � � � � � � � � � � �� � ¡ � ¢ ¡ � ¢ �ª � ¤   � � � § « � ¡ � �   ¥ � ¡ � �   ¡ ¦ ¦ � £ ��̈ � ¥ ¦ ¡ � ¢ � � � � � � � � � � � ¡ � ¢ ¥   � � � �¡ ¥ ¥ ¦ � � ¡ � � � �ª � ¤   � � � § « � ¡ � �   ¥ � ¡ � �   � ¤ ¡ ¦ ¦� � � �   ¦ �   ¬   � ¤   ¢   � � © �   � © � �     � « ��   � ¥ � � � � � � ¦ � � §̈ � �   � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �¢   � � © � ¢  ̈ � � �   � � �   �̈ � � £ ¤ � � ¤ � ¤   � � � § � �¤   ¦ ¢ ¤ ¡ � � ¦   � �ª®̄̄ ° ± ² ° ³́ µ¶· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·¯̧ ² µ ° ¹ º̧ ¹ ° ° » ³ ® ² °203



¼½¾ ¿ À Á ÂÃÄç Å ä
Æ Ç È ÉÉÉÉÉÉÉÊÊÉËÌÍÎÏÐÑÒÓÔÕÖ×ØÙÚÛÜÝÞßà á â ã ä å æ ç

è é ê ë ì í î ï è ð ñ ò ó ë ï ô ï è ê é ë é õöë ò ÷ é ø ò ê ë ì í î ò ñ ñ ò ó ë ï ô ï è ì ê ï ÷ ò ù ú ÷ ì è è ò ë

ô ê é í î û ï ù ò ì ë ò ì
üý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � � � �� � þ �

üý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � � � �� � þ 	 üý þ ÿ �ý � 
 � � �ý ü ÿ� � � � � ü � � �

ü ý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � �� � � � � ü � � 	

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

� �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��� � � �� �� EROSION CONTROL

PLAN - INTERIM

C15

 ! " # $ " % & " % ' ! " ( ) & &  * ' ) % &  +� � , - , , � � - � � � . � � � � � � / , � � � � - � � 0 , 1 , , � - 2 1 3 � � � , / � � � � ,. � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4 � � 5 2 � 5 � � � 3 , � � � 5 � � , . � � 4 . � � � , � � �7� / / � � � � � � � , � � - � � � � � / - , / � 3 , � � . � � � � � � 3 , � - 2 � , - 3 � 4 1 ,� , , / , / � 5 2 � 5 � � , - , , � 8 � � 1 � , 3 - � . . 2 � � � � 5 � � , - 2 1 3 � � � , /8 � � � / � , - � � � 5 2 � . � � � � � - � � � , � / , /7 � � , � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � - � 5� � � - 8 � � � - � � � � � 2 � : � � � � � , � � � / � � / 1 , � � , � 1 � � 6 � � � � � � 5� � , � � � / � : � , � 2 � � � � - 2 . � � � 3 , � - � � , 8 � � � � - 8 � � 8 , � � 4. � 3 8 � , � , /; 3 � / � 5 � , /; � � 0 � � / , / 7 � � � ,< � � , - , , � � - � � � � � /- , / � 3 , � � . � � � � � � / , � � � � - � � � � / � 5 � � , 3 - , � 0 , - � � � � �5 2 � 5 � � � � � , � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � - � 5 � � , . � � � � � / � / , 8 � � � 3 , � � � 58 2 1 � � . � , � � � � � � / , � 0 � � � � 3 , � �< - � � � 3 : � � , � . � � - � � 2 . � � � �8 , � 3 � � 5 � � � - � � � 3 : � � , � 3 � � � 6 , 3 , � � 8 � � � � - : 3 8 � 7� : � , �
% " '  # +� 7 � � � , = � - � � � 6 2 � � � � � 4 � � . � � � � � - � � , � 8 8 � � = � 3 � � , � � /- � � � � 1 , 0 , � � 5 � , / 1 4 � � , . � � � � � . � � � 8 � � � � � �. � � - � � 2 . � � � � 7> 7 � � � . � � - � � 2 . � � � � - � � � � . � � 5 � � 3 � � � � , � � � , - � . � � 4 � 56 � , , � , 4 - � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � -7?7 . � � - 2 � � � � , � � � / - . � 8 , 8 � � � 5 � � � � , � - � � 1 , - , , / , /� � / 3 2 � . � , / : � � � � � � � 0 , 3 � = - , , / 7 � � � � � � , � � � , � - � �1 , 8 � 0 , / � � � � � / - . � 8 , / 8 , � � � , � � � / - . � 8 , 8 � � � 7�7 . � � � � � . � � � : � � � 1 , � , 9 2 � � , / � � - : , , 8 � � 0 � . 2 2 3 � � 40 � - � 1 � , - , / � 3 , � � � � � � � - � � � . @ , / � � � � . � � 4 - � � , , � - 7A7 , . �B 8 � � - � � , 9 2 � 0 � � , � � : � � � 1 , � , 9 2 � � , / � � 1 , 2 - , // 2 � � � 6 . � � . � , � , 8 � � . , 3 , � � � . � � 0 � � � , - 5 � � . � � . � , � ,: � - �B � 2 � - 7 , � � � � : � - � B � 2 � 8 � � - : � � � � � � 1 , � � � � : , / � �� � , 8 � � C , . � - � � , / 2 , � � � � , - � � , � 5 � � , 8 � � C , . � � � /8 � � = � 3 � � 4 � � � � , - � � 1 � � - � , / / � � � � � 6 , : � 47 ! " # $ " % & " % ' ! " ( (  D  % E+- � � � 5 , � . ,/ � 0 , � - � � � / � @ ,- � � 1 � � � � , / - � � 6 � � 6 � � , �0 , � � . � , � � � . @ � � 6 . � � � � � �- , / � 3 , � � 1 � - � �� , 3 8 � � � � 4 - � � 8 , / � � � �� � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � �� 2 � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � �. � � . � , � , : � - � � 2 � � � , �- 2 � 5 � . , � � 2 6 � , � � � 6F 3 2 � . � � � 6� , 3 8 � � � � 4 - , , / � � 68 , � 3 � � , � � - , , / � � 6

GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¢  £ ¤ ) *
$ % '  ! $ ¤ * ¥ ) #  % " '  #+� 7 � � - � � � � � � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � � � � . , � � � , � � � - 1 , , � � � - � � � � , / 7> 7 / � 0 , � - � � � / � @ , - . � � 1 , � , 3 � 0 , / � � . , 8 � 0 , 3 , � � � � -1 , , � 8 � � . , /; � � / - � � � 3 5 � � : - . � � 1 , � � 2 � , / � � � � � , � -1 4 8 , � 3 � � , � � 3 , � � - � . 2 � 1 F 6 2 � � , �; � � / . � � - - 8 � � - �?7 - � � � 5 , � . , � � � , 3 � � � � � 8 � � . , � � � � 2 6 � � 2 � � � � , � � 3 8 � � - , 7�7 - , / � 3 , � � 1 � - � � � � 1 , � , 3 � 0 , / � � / � , 8 � � . , / 1 48 , � 3 � � , � � / , � , � � � � � 1 � - � � � � / � 2 � � , � - � � 2 . � 2 � , 7

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔÕ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î204



ÚÛÜ Ý Þ ß
üý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � � � �� � þ �

üý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � � � �� � þ 	 üý þ ÿ �ý � 
 � � �ý ü ÿ� � � � � ü � � �

ü ý þ ÿ �ý � �ý � �� � � � � ü � � 	

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò

û ë é û ò ë ê úù ï è ò
û ò ë ÷ ì è ò è ê ô ò ò ñ ï è ð ï èû é è ñ ù ï ÷ ï ê ô é è ù úà û é è ñ ô ò ò ñ ÷ ï á â

� �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��� � � �� �� EROSION CONTROL

PLAN - FINAL

C16

 ! " # $ " % & " % ' ! " ( ) & &  * ' ) % &  +� � , - , , � � - � � � . � � � � � � / , � � � � - � � 0 , 1 , , � - 2 1 3 � � � , / � � � � ,. � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4 � � 5 2 � 5 � � � 3 , � � � 5 � � , . � � 4 . � � � , � � �7� / / � � � � � � � , � � - � � � � � / - , / � 3 , � � . � � � � � � 3 , � - 2 � , - 3 � 4 1 ,� , , / , / � 5 2 � 5 � � , - , , � 8 � � 1 � , 3 - � . . 2 � � � � 5 � � , - 2 1 3 � � � , /8 � � � / � , - � � � 5 2 � . � � � � � - � � � , � / , /7 � � , � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � - � 5� � � - 8 � � � - � � � � � 2 � : � � � � � , � � � / � � / 1 , � � , � 1 � � 6 � � � � � � 5� � , � � � / � : � , � 2 � � � � - 2 . � � � 3 , � - � � , 8 � � � � - 8 � � 8 , � � 4. � 3 8 � , � , /; 3 � / � 5 � , /; � � 0 � � / , / 7 � � � ,< � � , - , , � � - � � � � � /- , / � 3 , � � . � � � � � � / , � � � � - � � � � / � 5 � � , 3 - , � 0 , - � � � � �5 2 � 5 � � � � � , � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � - � 5 � � , . � � � � � / � / , 8 � � � 3 , � � � 58 2 1 � � . � , � � � � � � / , � 0 � � � � 3 , � �< - � � � 3 : � � , � . � � - � � 2 . � � � �8 , � 3 � � 5 � � � - � � � 3 : � � , � 3 � � � 6 , 3 , � � 8 � � � � - : 3 8 � 7� : � , �
% " '  # +� 7 � � � , = � - � � � 6 2 � � � � � 4 � � . � � � � � - � � , � 8 8 � � = � 3 � � , � � /- � � � � 1 , 0 , � � 5 � , / 1 4 � � , . � � � � � . � � � 8 � � � � � �. � � - � � 2 . � � � � 7> 7 � � � . � � - � � 2 . � � � � - � � � � . � � 5 � � 3 � � � � , � � � , - � . � � 4 � 56 � , , � , 4 - � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � -7?7 . � � - 2 � � � � , � � � / - . � 8 , 8 � � � 5 � � � � , � - � � 1 , - , , / , /� � / 3 2 � . � , / : � � � � � � � 0 , 3 � = - , , / 7 � � � � � � , � � � , � - � �1 , 8 � 0 , / � � � � � / - . � 8 , / 8 , � � � , � � � / - . � 8 , 8 � � � 7�7 . � � � � � . � � � : � � � 1 , � , 9 2 � � , / � � - : , , 8 � � 0 � . 2 2 3 � � 40 � - � 1 � , - , / � 3 , � � � � � � � - � � � . @ , / � � � � . � � 4 - � � , , � - 7A7 , . �B 8 � � - � � , 9 2 � 0 � � , � � : � � � 1 , � , 9 2 � � , / � � 1 , 2 - , // 2 � � � 6 . � � . � , � , 8 � � . , 3 , � � � . � � 0 � � � , - 5 � � . � � . � , � ,: � - �B � 2 � - 7 , � � � � : � - � B � 2 � 8 � � - : � � � � � � 1 , � � � � : , / � �� � , 8 � � C , . � - � � , / 2 , � � � � , - � � , � 5 � � , 8 � � C , . � � � /8 � � = � 3 � � 4 � � � � , - � � 1 � � - � , / / � � � � � 6 , : � 47 ! " # $ " % & " % ' ! " ( (  D  % E+- � � � 5 , � . ,/ � 0 , � - � � � / � @ ,- � � 1 � � � � , / - � � 6 � � 6 � � , �0 , � � . � , � � � . @ � � 6 . � � � � � �- , / � 3 , � � 1 � - � �� , 3 8 � � � � 4 - � � 8 , / � � � �� � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � �� 2 � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � �. � � . � , � , : � - � � 2 � � � , �- 2 � 5 � . , � � 2 6 � , � � � 6F 3 2 � . � � � 6� , 3 8 � � � � 4 - , , / � � 68 , � 3 � � , � � - , , / � � 6

GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¢  £ ¤ ) *
ã $ % ) ( * ¥ ) #  % " '  #+� 7 � � � , � 8 � � � , . � � � � � � 1 , � , 3 � 0 , / � 5 � , � � � � 8 � 0 , 3 , � � � � -1 , , � 8 � � . , / � � / - , , / � � 6 ä 3 2 � . � � � 6 � 8 , � � � � � � - � � ,5 � � � � � � , / 7> 7 � , 3 � 0 , - � � � 5 , � . ,?7 � , 3 � 0 , 0 , � � . � , � � � . @ � � 6 . � � � � � � � � . , , � � � � � . , � -� , � / 4 � � 1 , 8 � 0 , /7�7 � , 3 � 0 , / . � � . � , � , : � - � � 2 � � � , � � � . , � � � . � � . � , � ,8 � � . , 3 , � � � - 5 � � � � � � , / 7

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔÕ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î

#   E $ % D % " '  #+� 7 - , , . � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4 � - , . � � � � � � 7 � 7 ? 7 / B - , , / � � 6 � 5 � �- , , / � � 6 � , . � � � 9 2 , - � � / � , 9 2 � � , 3 , � � -7> 7 � � 4 � � , � - � � - � � , � � � � : � � � � � � 1 , � � � / - . � 8 , / : � � � 2 - ,� � � : 6 � � : 3 � = �; 8 , � - , . � � � � � �7 � 7 ?7 / � � �? 7 / , � , � � � � � 8 � � / � � , � : � � � � , 9 2 � � , � 8 � � / 3 � = �; 8 , �- , . � � � � � �7 � 7 ?7 / � ? �7

205



å7 � � æ çè æé ê ëì íîï ðè ñéò ó ôõö÷ø ùú ûüý þÿ ö÷ø ùú
� �� � � � �� � � �� 	 
 �å7 � �

�  � ���� � �� � � � ���� ��

��� � !"� � ! "� � å 7 � �
� �� � �� �� � � å7 � �

> � 7 � �� å 7 � � � å7 � �å7 � �
� > A �7 � �#$% &' ()* +, � å 7 � �

-. ./0 12� å 7 � � 345 67
� å7 � � � å 7 � �å7 � �

å7 � �
89 : ; å7 � �

� � � 7 � � å 7 � �
<=> ?@

A BC B D EF G HI
 	 
 �
1 � ��

�
��

�
� 11

1

1>
>

> >
>

���
�

� � � �
��

�
�

...
.. . ..

. � . .
....

.
JKLM N O PQ

� ��

�
�

�3 � � 2 3 , � �- � 6 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��� � � �� ��
R S T U V T W X Y U R Z [ \ X Z S Y U U Y Z W R]� � � 8 � � @ � � 6 5 � � , � � � , � - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �� . . , - - � 1 � , 8 � � @ � � 6 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �0 � � � . . , - - � 1 � , 8 � � @ � � 6 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �- � � 8 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �� > ?R Z [ Ŝ S U T X Y U R Z [ \ X Z S Y U U Y Z W R]: � � � , 5 � 2 � � � � � � . � : � / , 8 � � @ � � 6 � � � - � � � 8 � � 6� / � - � � � 8 � � 6 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �. � � - - : � � @ - � � � 8 � � 6 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � ��1 .

�
R S T U V T W V U _ R Z [ Ŝ S U T T W U W [ V̀ U Y Z W R]� 7 � � � . � � - � � 2 . � � � � - � � � � . � � 5 � � 3 � � � � , � � � , - � . � � 4 � 56 � , , � , 4 - � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � -7> 7 : � , � , . � � - � � 2 . � � � � / , � � � � - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � - � � ,� � � , / � � � � , - , 8 � � � -; 2 - , � � , . � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4- � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � - 5 � � / , - � 6 � � � /. � � - � � 2 . � � � � 7?7 8 � � @ � � 6 � � � - � � � 8 � � 6 - � � � � 1 , : � � � , � � / 5 � 2 � � � � � � . � , -� - : � / � � ; 2 � � , - - � � � , � : � - , � � � , / 7

SIGNAGE &

STRIPING PLAN

CX

R S T U V T W X Y U R Z [ \ X Z S Y U U Y Z W R]� � � 8 � � @ � � 6 5 � � , � � � , � - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �� . . , - - � 1 � , 8 � � @ � � 6 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �0 � � � . . , - - � 1 � , 8 � � @ � � 6 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �- � � 8 - � 6 � 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �� > ?R Z [ Ŝ S U T X Y U R Z [ \ X Z S Y U U Y Z W R]: � � � , 5 � 2 � � � � � � . � : � / , 8 � � @ � � 6 � � � - � � � 8 � � 6� / � - � � � 8 � � 6 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � �. � � - - : � � @ - � � � 8 � � 6 8 , � / , � � � � � � - � , , � . � ��1 .
�

R S T U V T W V U _ R Z [ Ŝ S U T T W U W [ V̀ U Y Z W R]� 7 � � � . � � - � � 2 . � � � � - � � � � . � � 5 � � 3 � � � � , � � � , - � . � � 4 � 56 � , , � , 4 - � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � -7> 7 : � , � , . � � - � � 2 . � � � � / , � � � � - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � - � � ,� � � , / � � � � , - , 8 � � � -; 2 - , � � , . � � 4 � 5 6 � , , � , 4- � � � / � � / - � � / - 8 , . � 5 � . � � � � � - 5 � � / , - � 6 � � � /. � � - � � 2 . � � � � 7?7 8 � � @ � � 6 � � � - � � � 8 � � 6 - � � � � 1 , : � � � , � � / 5 � 2 � � � � � � . � , -� - : � / � � ; 2 � � , - - � � � , � : � - , � � � , / 7
GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¢  £ ¤ ) *
¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð ÎÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕØ Ù Î Î a Î Ó b Ö Ù Î c Ì Ù d e Ì a Ñ Ì Ð Î206



fgh
� > �

! ij kl m n m l o m p q r l s t u v w x lq m l n x u n y t z { p t n r | t } t z t m n

SIGNAGE &

STRIPING DETAILS

C18

! ~ j ~� � � n z x q n t v u

GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð ÎÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕØ Ù Î Î a Î Ó b Ö Ù Î c Ì Ù d e Ì a Ñ Ì Ð Î207



GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

�����|����~
� �����~�~�

�|�~��
� ������ ���

K
JS

K
JS

/E
A

P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

WATER & SEWER

DETAILS

C19

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð ÎÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ� Ì Ð Î Ù � d Î � Î Ù Í e Ö Î b Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î208



GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

�����|����~
� �����~�~�

�|�~��
� ������ ���

K
JS

K
JS

/E
A

P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

STORM SEWER

DETAILS

C20

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð ÎÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ� Ì Ð Î Ù � d Î � Î Ù Í e Ö Î b Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î209



GRADING DETAILS

C21

GHIHJKLMHLKKNHLM OPPQORST UVWXXV YUZ[VXQO\] X^_XW Y`abcPcPd efgchQibhcccRjjj h`klX`[_[mh`an
op q r st

u v w r t
xy r r w w z w { r t

op q r st
u v w r t

xy r r w w z w { r t
C

H
E

C
K

E
D

 B
Y

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

|}~������}�
|����~� ���

��~�~� �|�~
��

� ������ ���
K

JS
K

JS
/E

A
P

� � � � � � � � u� �� � � � � � u� � � � � � � � � u
� � � � � �� � � � � �   � � ¡ � �

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A

BROCKMAN

¦ §̈ © ª « ¬  ® ®̄ ® © ° § ¬ ± ²̈ ³  ® °µ́ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶ ¼ º ·̧ ½ ¾ » ¶ ¿́́ µ ¹ À ¿ ¶́ ¾ Á »̧ Â¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿ ½ Ä ¾́ »̧ Å µ Æ Ç ¹ ¾ ¾ Ä ¾ Ǻ µ ¶ ·̧ ¹ º̧́ » µ ¶·̧ ¿ ¶ À ¿ ¹ À ·È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ ¿ Ä Ä µ Á ·Æ µ ¹ Ã Ä ¿ ¶ À » ·̧ ¹ » ½ º̧ » µ ¶ ¿ ¶ À Ã ¾ ¹ ¼ »̧¿ Ã Ã Ä »́ ¿̧ » µ ¶ È Â̧ ¾́ »̧ Å É · ¿́́ ¾ Ã̧ ¿ ¶́ ¾ · Â ¿ Ä Ä¶ µ̧ ¹ ¾ Ä » ¾ Ê ¾̧ Â ¾ À ¾ · » Ç ¶ ¾ ¶ Ç » ¶ ¾ ¾ ¹ É ·¹ ¾ · Ã µ ¶ · » ½ » Ä »̧ Å Æ µ ¹ ¾ ¹ ¹ µ ¹ ·Ë µ ¼ » · · » µ ¶ ·Ë µ ¹À ¾ · » Ç ¶ À ¾ Æ »́ » ¾ ¶́ » ¾ · Æ µ ¹ Á Â »́ Â̧ Â ¾́ »̧ Å » ·Â ¾ Ä À Â ¿ ¹ ¼ Ä ¾ · ·ÈÌ Í Í Î Ï Ð Î Ñ Ò ÓÔ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ Õ ÕÍ Ö Ð Ó Î × Ø Ö × Î Î Ù Ñ Ì Ð Î210



 
 
 
 
 

1 of 2 
 
 1101 Bannock Street | Denver, CO 80204 

 
www.norris-design.com 

GATEWAY PARK II PUD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
Proposed Preliminary PUD code application.  
Land Uses. The Gateway Park II PUD would allow multi-family, single-family, townhomes, and duplex uses, and 
accessory uses allowed per Development Code as amended; except deviations as requested.  
Deviations. Reduced setbacks 25 to 15 at street, building height increase from 40 to 60, buffer yard decreased from 
10 to 6 feet. The alternatives compliance would be that additional landscape buffer of 15%, an increase in amenity 
credits from 2 to 8 credits, and 1 bonus credit.  These amenity credits are features that have been included to 
accommodate the setbacks proposed in this PUD. The amenities provided shall exceed both the 1984 PUD and 
current City of Greeley Development Code standards with the intent to offset any impacts created by setback 
distances that deviate from City of Greeley Development Code standards. 

Building heights and locations. All residential height of buildings proposed in the Preliminary PUD shall be not be 
taller than 60 feet. Accessory structures shall comply with the Development Code as amended. The building height of 
60 feet may only be allowed beyond the 15-foot setback along Centerplace Drive, and 10 feet internally (see 
Attachment K - Setback Exhibit). No structures may be allowed within the setbacks illustrated in this exhibit. 
Density. The proposed conceptual density for the PUD shall be 24 density units per acre  
Setback minimums. A 15-foot setback for all building from the northern edge of Centerplace Drive is required for all 
buildings on the south.  
An internal 10-foot setback for all building from all other property lines. 
A 5-foot minimum setback is required for parking to maximize available space necessary to meet City of Greeley 
Development Code and as amended for parking requirements. 
Standards for PUD Establishment 
Development code standards. The Gateway Park II PUD is compliant with Development Code standards, and as 
amended of the City of Greeley. The proposed area for the Gateway Park II PUD is substantial in size with a total of 
7.11 acres which surpasses the minimum threshold of 2 acres required to establish a new PUD. The site design 
presented in the site plan of this application meets the overall intent of the City of Greeley Development Code and is 
consistent with the Housing section under the Goals and Objectives chapter of the City of Greeley’s Imagine Greeley 
Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2/6/2018) - see “Consistency with Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan” explained 
further in the Project Narrative accompanied within this application. 
Site plan compatibility. The site plan for this application pays particular attention to compatibility within the 
Development Code and is designed to continue the functional relationship of the surrounding area including Gateway 
Place and Creekside Apartments.  All designed standards shall be compatible with the Development Code standards 
as amended. 
Parking. Off Street Parking shall meet Chapter 18.42 of the Development Code Standards, and as amended. All 
standards presented here are subject to all applicable Development Code Standards, and Code Standards as 
amended. 
Conformance with the Subdivision Regulation 
Site considerations. The site is relatively flat and does not have any steep slopes, unstable land with expansive 
soils, or inadequate drainage that would cause on-site flooding. There is no railroad right of way on or adjacent to the 
site, nor are there any existing features such as large trees, watercourses, historic sites, etc. that would be  
considered irreplaceable. 
  

Attachment E

211



 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 
 1101 Bannock Street | Denver, CO 80204 

 
www.norris-design.com 

Streets, alleys, and easements. Two points of access shall be provided for the property. A full-motion intersection 
shall provide access to the site from 36th Avenue and Centerplace Drive. A second access point shall be provided on 
the northwest side of the site leveraging the existing parking drive aisle that connects to the adjacent Gateway Place 
Apartments north of the project site.  
As described above, it is clear the project intent is to reach above and beyond development code standard to provide 
a high quality of life for its future residents through an enhanced and expanded program of amenities and services.  

212



11th St

12th St

3rd Street Rd

8th St

6th St

6
3
rd

A
ve

1st St

W

Canberra Street Dr

5th St

6th Street Rd

7
2
n

d
 A

v
e

6
2
n
d

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

6
9
th

 A
v
e

7
1
s
t

A
ve

6
6
th

A
v e

7
0
t h

 A
v
e

2nd St

3rd St

7
4
th

 A
v
e

7
3
rd

 A
v
e

9th St

Grizzly Dr

6
1
s
t

A
ve

6
2
n
d

A
ve

6
9
th

 A
v
e

6
1
s
t

A
ve

n
u
e

C
t

Dundee Ave

8th St

7
1
st

A
v
e

10th St 10th St

4th St
4th St

O
Notes:

All planimetric data was digitized from
aerial photographs dated 1987, 1992,
1995, 2000, 2005, and 2014. Updates
are continual and data representations
will change over time.  This product is
not necessarily accurate to engineering
or surveying standards but does meet
National Mapping Accuracy
Standardds (NMAS).  The
information contained within this
document is not intended to be used
for the preperation of  construction
documents.

Information contained on this
document remains the property of  the
City of  Greeley. Copying any portion
of  this map without the written
permission of  the City of  Greeley is
strictly prohibited.

Ecological Significant Areas

Created: November 27, 2018
By: duranm, CD

CityCenterWestRes.mxd

0 500 1,000250

Feet

Former 
Hewlett-Packard

Complex

City Center West

SITE

Legend

High

Moderate

Subject Subdivision Area

Westridge Academy

Boomerang Links 
Golf Course

City Center West 
Preliminary Residential Subdivision

Attachment F

213



C
h

ap
te

r 
2:

 E
xi

st
in

g
 T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 C

on
d

it
io

n
s 

2-
2

20
35

 C
om

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 T
ra

n
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 P
la

n
 

F
ig

u
re

 2
-1

: E
xi

st
in

g
 R

oa
d

w
ay

 N
et

w
or

k
 

Attachment G

214



Fi
gu

re
 4

-5
: N

et
w

or
k 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

B
ic

yc
le

 N
et

w
or

k 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s

G
re

el
ey

, C
O

Le
ge

nd

4-4-
44 

 
 

G
r

G
re

eee
lele

yy 
BiBi

cycy
clcl

ee 
M

a
M

as
tst
erer

P P
lala

nn

Attachment H

215



kk

kk

kk

kk
kkkk

kk kk

kk

kk
kk

kk
kk

kk

kk

kk
kk

kk

kk

kk
kk

kk
kk

kk

kk

kk
kk

Boomerang
Dt

ich

Gr
ee

ley
& L

ov
ela

nd
Ca

na
l

G
re

e le
y C

an
al

#3

Gr
ee

ley
Ca

na
l #

2

Gr
ee

ley
Can

al#3

Sh
ee

pDraw

As
hc

ro
ft D

raw

E at on Draw

Gr aham Seep

Sand Creek

So
ut

hP
lat

te
Rive

r

Ca
ch

el
aP

ou
dr

eR
ive

r

North
BoomerangDitch

G rap
ev

ine
Dit

ch

R
ov

er
 R

un
D

og
 P

ar
k

C
oy

ot
e

R
un

 P
ar

k

R
od

ar
te

Pa
rk

Ph
ea

sa
nt

R
un

 P
ar

k Ep
pl

e
Pa

rk

Fr
an

kl
in

Pa
rk

B
ro

ad
vi

ew
Pa

rk
W

es
tm

oo
r

Pa
rk

K
iw

an
is

Pa
rk

Li
nc

ol
n

Pa
rk

A
lle

n
Pa

rk

Tr
ip

le
C

re
ek

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e

Pu
m

pk
in

R
id

ge
N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a

H
un

te
rs

C
ov

e 
W

es
t

M
on

fo
rt

Pa
rk

Lu
th

er
Pa

rk
G

re
el

ey
C

ou
nt

ry
C

lu
b

Su
nr

is
e

Pa
rk

B
itt

er
sw

ee
t

Pa
rk

C
ou

nt
ry

C
lu

b 
W

es
t

N
at

ur
al

 A
re

a
Sh

er
w

oo
d

Pa
rk

M
ee

ke
r

M
us

eu
m

Pe
ak

V
ie

w
Pa

rk
Li

nn
 G

ro
ve

C
em

et
er

y

Yo
ut

h
Sp

or
ts

C
om

pl
ex

C
ot

to
nw

oo
d

Pa
rk

D
is

co
ve

ry
B

ay
 P

oo
l

W
oo

db
ria

r
Pa

rk

G
le

nm
er

e
Pa

rk

Ea
st

M
em

or
ia

l
Pa

rk
H

ig
hl

an
d

H
ill

s 
G

ol
f

C
ou

rs
e

Sa
nb

or
n

Pa
rk

C
en

te
nn

ia
l

Pa
rk

G
re

el
ey

W
es

t P
ar

k
Le

av
y

Pa
rk

B
al

sa
m

Sp
or

ts
C

om
pl

ex
D

el
ta

Pa
rk

B
re

nt
w

oo
d

Pa
rk

Fa
rr

Pa
rk

Jo
se

ph
in

e
Jo

ne
s 

Pa
rk

A
nn

a 
G

im
m

es
ta

d
M

em
or

ia
l P

ar
k

Ji
m

m
y'

s
Pa

rk

Po
ud

re
R

iv
er

 R
an

ch
N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a

B
oo

m
er

an
g

G
ol

f C
ou

rs
e

Fo
rb

es
Fi

el
d

Is
la

nd
G

ro
ve

Pa
rk

Is
la

nd
 G

ro
ve

M
ul

ti-
U

se
Fi

el
d

Pr
om

on
to

ry
Pa

rk

Tw
in

 R
iv

er
s

Pa
rk

 a
nd

Fa
m

ily
 F

un
pl

ex

R
am

se
ie

r
Pa

rk

H
om

es
te

ad
Pa

rk

B
al

sa
m

D
og

 P
ar

k

G
at

ew
ay

 L
ak

es
N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a

M
c 

C
lo

sk
ey

Tr
ai

l N
at

ur
al

A
re

a

Ea
st

 M
em

or
ia

l
N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a

Po
ud

re
Po

nd
s P

ar
k

1s
t A

ve
Po

nd
 P

ar
k

G
al

le
ry

G
re

en

Pl
um

b
Fa

rm

Po
ud

re
Le

ar
ni

ng
C

en
te

r

H
ou

st
on

 G
ar

de
ns

G
le

nm
er

e
W

ild
lif

e
Sa

nc
tu

ar
y

W
in

ds
or

Ev
an

s

16
th

St

18
th

St

Se
rvi

ce

8thAve

95thAve

8th
St

34
th

St

US Hwy 85

71stAve

N47thAve

23
rd

St

1stSt

37
th

St

7thSt

E
18

th
St

US
Hw

y 3
4

10
th

St
re

et
Rd

4th
St

35thAve

N11thAve

10
th

St

20
th

St

N23rdAve

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
66

23rdAve

W
aln

u t
St

9th
St

5th
St

10thAve 11thAve

O
St

59thAve

47thAve

N35thAve

E
8th

St

Ea
st m

an
Pa

rk
Dr

CountyRoad17

StateHwy257

N 8th Ave

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
64

1/2

83rdAve

AA
St

US
Hw

y3
4

Bu
s

65thAve

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
64

1stAve

St
ate

Hw
y2

63

St
ate

Hw
y3

9 2

CountyRoad27

CountyRoad35

CountyRoad33

E
C

St

CountyRoad41

CherryAve

CountyRoad19

N83rdAve

Tw
o R

ive
rs

Pk
wy

N59thAve

CountyRoad29

CountyRoad31

Co
un

t y
Ro

ad
62

CountyRoad43

CountyRoad45

PA
RK

S,
 T

RA
IL

S,
 A

N
D

 O
PE

N
 L

A
N

D
S 

PL
A

N
M

A
ST

ER
 P

LA
N

No
te

s:
Al

l p
lan

im
etr

ic 
da

ta 
wa

s 
dig

itiz
ed

 fr
om

 a
er

ial
 p

ho
tog

ra
ph

s 
da

ted
 1

98
7,

19
92

,1
99

5,
20

00
, 2

00
5, 

an
d 

20
08

. U
pd

ate
s

ar
e 

co
nti

nu
al

an
d 

da
ta

re
pr

es
en

tat
ion

s 
wi

ll c
ha

ng
e 

ov
er

tim
e.

 T
his

 p
ro

du
ct

is 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

rily
ac

cu
ra

te 
to

en
gin

ee
rin

g 
or

 su
rve

yin
g s

tan
da

rd
s b

ut 
do

es
 m

ee
tN

ati
on

al
Ma

pp
ing

 A
cc

ur
ac

y 
St

an
da

rd
ds

 (
NM

AS
). 

 T
he

 in
for

ma
tio

n 
co

nta
ine

d
wi

thi
n 

thi
s 

do
cu

me
nt

 is
 n

ot 
int

en
de

d 
to 

be
 u

se
d 

for
 th

e 
pr

ep
er

ati
on

 o
f

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 do

cu
me

nt
s.

Inf
or

m
ati

on
 c

on
tai

ne
d 

on
 th

is 
do

cu
me

nt
 re

ma
ins

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty 

of 
the

Ci
ty

of 
Gr

ee
ley

.C
op

yin
g

an
y 

po
rtio

n 
of 

thi
s 

ma
p 

wi
tho

ut 
the

 w
ritt

en
pe

rm
iss

ion
of 

the
 C

ity
 o

f G
re

ele
yi

s s
tric

tly
 pr

oh
ibi

ted
.

´

W
ate

rb
od

y

City Limits

Long Range Growth Area

Ma
jor

 R
oa

d

Cr
ea

ted
: 5

/19
/20

13
 by

: G
os

sa
rd

B
Re

vis
ed

 p
er

 ad
op

tio
n8

/2
0/2

01
3

by
 B

ar
ne

ttJ

0
1

2
3

4
0
.5

M
ile

s

G
RE

EL
EY

Minor Road

Sp
ec

ia
lty

 P
a

rk
s (

G
ol

f C
ou

rs
es

, D
og

 P
a

rk
s, 

M
us

eu
m

s, 
Po

ol
s)

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d
 P

ar
ks

Re
gi

on
al

 &
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ar

ks
, S

p
or

ts
 C

om
p

le
xe

s

N
a

tu
ra

l A
re

a
s

kk
N

ew
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
a

rk

kk
N

ew
 N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Pa
rk

N
o 

Pa
rk

 M
a

st
er

 P
la

n

N
o 

Tr
a

il M
a

st
er

 P
la

n

Bi
ke

 T
ra

il -
 E

xis
tin

g

Sh
a

re
d 

Us
e 

Pa
th

 - 
Ex

ist
in

g

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 T

ra
il 

- E
xi

st
in

g

O
n-

St
re

et
 L

a
ne

s

Bi
ke

 T
ra

il -
 F

ut
ur

e

Sh
ar

ed
 U

se
 P

a
th

 - 
Fu

tu
re

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 T

ra
il 

- F
ut

ur
e

Bi
ke

 L
a

ne
, F

ut
ur

e
Th

e 
20

02
 P

ar
ks

 M
as

te
r P

lan
 a

nd
 2

00
2 

Co
nc

ep
tu

al
Tr

ail
s 

Pl
an

 d
id 

no
t 

co
ve

r 
th

e 
ful

l e
xte

nt
 o

f 
th

e
cu

rre
nt 

Lo
ng

 R
an

ge
 G

ro
wt

h A
re

a.
Fu

tu
re

 tr
ail

 fa
cil

itie
s d

o 
no

t in
clu

de
 a

ss
um

ed
 cr

os
s-

se
cti

on
s f

ro
m 

th
e 

20
35

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Ma

ste
r P

lan
 w

hic
h 

sp
ec

ifie
s

sh
ar

ed
 u

se
 pa

th 
an

d b
ike

 la
ne

 fa
cil

itie
s o

n 
all

 fu
tur

e a
rte

ria
l ro

ad
wa

ys
 a

nd
 b

ike
 la

ne
s o

n a
ll f

utu
re

 co
lle

cto
r r

oa
dw

ay
s.

M
A

P 
4

Attachment I

216



��������� � � 	


��  � �

439.96'

240.41'

300.86'

4850

4850

4851

4852

4853

4849

4848

4847

4846

4845

4853

4844

4843

4842

4
8
4
1

4849

4851

4852

4853

4852

4852

4853

4855

4841

4840

4839

4838

4837

4836

4835

4
8
4
9

4
8
4
8

4
8
4
7

4
8
4
64
8
4
5

4
8
4
4

4
8
4
3

4854

4
8
5
5

4
8
5
4

4
8
5
3

4
8
5
3

4
8
5
1

4
8
5
0

4849

4848

� � � � � � � �� � � �� � � � � � � � � !R

� " � � �#
$ � � � #

� � � � � � % � � � #
� " � � �#

$ � � � #
� � � � � � % � � � #

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

&'()*'+,'-
.//,0'11)2

31/(2)4)0 5,6)1(
7 899:9; <=>

GATEWAY PLACE APARTMENTS II, LLC
C/O CONVERGENCE MREG
50 S. STEEL ST., STE 420

DENVER, CO 80209
ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

G
B

 / 
N

P
 / 

K
S

JN
 / 

R
M

� ? @ � � @ � � A A B $C � �� � @ � � @ � � A A B $C � �
D E F G E HI E D J F H K I F L E D

1101 Bannock Street

Denver, Colorado 80204

P 303.892.1166

www.norris-design.com

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

ZONING/PROPERTY

BOUNDARY AND

SITE ANALYSIS MAP

RZ-01

Parcel 2

0.642 Acres

Zoning/PropertyArea

310,713.48 Square Feet

7.133 Acres

Proposed Zone: PUD (Residential)

Existing Zone: PUD (Gas Well)

Parcel 1

6.491 Acres

Plugged and

Abandoned

Gas Well

Probable
Access Point

Probable
Access Point

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE CIRCULAR SHAPE OF THE PROPERTY

AREA CLOSES IN ON ITSELF AND FALLS

WITHIN THE EXISTING PUD ZONING OVERLAY.

THEREFORE, THE PROPERTY BOUNDARY AND

THE ZONING BOUNDARY ARE THE SAME.

2. TOPOGRAPHY IS PROVIDED AT1-FOOT

INTERVALS.

3. THE SITE IS VACANT LAND WITHOUT ANY

EXISTING UTILITIES, EASEMENTS, IRRIGATION

DITCHES, HEAD GATES, WASTE DITCHES,

NATURAL DRAINAGE PATTERNS, BODIES OF

WATER, WATER COURSES, FLOODPLAINS, OR

FLOODWAYS.

4. THERE IS NO SIGNIFICANT VEGETATION OR

TREES ON SITE, NOR ARE THERE ANY AREAS

OF ECOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE, WETLANDS,

STEEP SLOPES, ETC.

5. THE SITE HAS A PLUGGED AND ABANDONED

GAS WELL ON SITE.

MNOPQRS

Existing
site fence

Existing
parking lot

Existing
tennis court

Existing
tot lot

Existing
basketball

court

Existing
garages

Existing
garages

Apartments

Apartments

Apartments LEGAL AND ZONING PERIMETER DESCRIPTION:

“THE SURFACE ONLY OF A CIRCULAR TRACT OF LAND

LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 14,

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 66 WEST OF THE 6TH

P.M., CITY OF GREELEY, WELD, COUNTY, COLORADO,

HAVING A RADIUS OF 300 FEET, THE CENTER OF SAID

TRACT BEING LOCATED AT A POINT WHICH BEARS

SOUTH 46 DEGREES, 15 MINUTES, 32 SECONDS WEST,

1370.65 FEET FROM THE E 1/4 CORNER OF SAID

SECTION 14. COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF

COLORADO.

THE ABOVE DESCRIPTION WAS PREPARED FOR

ZONING PURPOSES ONLY.

PREPARED BY:

________________________________________

LAND SURVEYOR

EXISTING ZONING:

PUD (GAS WELL)

PROPOSED ZONING:

PUD (RESIDENTIAL)

217



TUVWXYWYZ [ \ ]

^_` a b c

439.96'

240.41'

300.86'

4850

4850

4851

4852

4853

4849

4848

4847

4846

4845

4853

4844

4843

4842

4
8
4
1

4849

4851

4852

4853

4852

4852

4853

4855

4841

4840

4839

4838

4837

4836

4835

4
8
4
9

4
8
4
8

4
8
4
7

4
8
4
64
8
4
5

4
8
4
4

4
8
4
3

4854

4
8
5
5

4
8
5
4

4
8
5
3

4
8
5
3

4
8
5
1

4
8
5
0

4849

4848

d e f g h i j ik i l im n o p q r st j i uR

e v d q fw
x o g q w

m h q q g g y g p q w
e v d q fw

x o g q w
m h q q g g y g p q w

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

z{|}~{��{�
�����{��}�

���|�}�}� ���}�|
� ������ ���

GATEWAY PLACE APARTMENTS II, LLC
C/O CONVERGENCE MREG
50 S. STEEL ST., STE 420

DENVER, CO 80209
ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

G
B

 / 
N

P
 / 

K
S

JN
 / 

R
M

i � � i r � r l � � � x� i rr r � i r � r l � � � x� i k
� � � � � �� � � � � � � � �   � �

1101 Bannock Street

Denver, Colorado 80204

P 303.892.1166

www.norris-design.com

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC

DBA CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

ZONING

SUITABILITY MAP

RZ-02

Parcel 2

0.642 Acres

Zoning/PropertyArea

310,713.48 Square Feet

7.133 Acres

Proposed Zone: PUD (Residential)

Existing Zone: PUD (Gas Well)

Parcel 1

6.491 Acres

Proposed
Access Point

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THERE ARE NO EXISTING OR PROPOSED

COMMERCIAL USES FOR THIS PUD.

2. THERE ARE NO PROPOSED COLLECTOR OR

ARTERIAL STREETS FOR THIS PUD.

3. DETENTION AREA AND ACCESS POINTS ARE

CONCEPTUAL AND SUBJECT TO FINAL PUD

APPROVAL.

4. THE GAS WELL ON SITE IS PLUGGED AND

ABANDONED.

5. THE PLUGGED AND ABANDONED GAS WELL

DOES NOT HAVE ANY SETBACKS.

6. THE ACCOMPANIED PUD SHALL ALLOW

UNDER RESIDENTIAL USE: SINGLE-FAMILY,

TOWNHOMES, DUPLEXES, AND POTENTIALLY

MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT.

¡¢£¤¥¦§
Existing
Collector

Proposed
Drainage
Easement

Plugged and

Abandoned

Gas Well

Proposed
Access Point

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS:

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS SHALL BE UTILIZED VIA

INTERNAL 5' SIDEWALKS THAT TRANSPORT TO BOTH

THE GATEWAY PLACE APARTMENTS, AND THE 25TH

STREET ROW.

DRAINAGE CONCEPT:

DURING MINOR AND MAJOR EVENTS, THE

DEVELOPED FLOWS FROM THE SITE WILL BE

CONVEYED OVERLAND VIA PRIVATE DRIVES AND

PARKING AREAS TO THE LOW POINTS GRADED INTO

THE SITE.CONCENTRATED FLOWS WITHIN SWALES

WILL TRANSPORT RUNOFF TO THE DETENTION AREA

(POND/ OPEN SPACE) LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST

CORNER OF THE SITE.

SURFACE RUNOFF AREA

LEGEND:

218



ADJACENT
MULTI

FAMILY ADJACENT
MULTI

FAMILY

ADJACENT
MULTI FAMILY

UNDEVELOPED
PROPERTY

OWNER:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

OWNER:

DATE:

SHEET TITLE:

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

N 
BY

:

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
P

A
R

K
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 
E

X
H

I
B

I
T

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 
U

N
I
T

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T

G
R

E
E

L
E

Y
,
 
C

O

GATEWAY PLACE APARTMENTS II, LLC
C/O CONVERGENCE MREG

50 S. STEEL ST., STE 420
DENVER, CO 80209

ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

GB
 / N

P 
/ K

S
JN

 / R
M

01/16/19 EXHIBIT

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

1101 Bannock Street
Denver, Colorado 80204

P 303.892.1166
www.norris-design.com

DEVELOPER:

ANBROCK ADVISORY, LLC
DBA CONVERGENCE MREG
50 S. STEELE ST., STE 420

DENVER CO 80209
ATTN: MR. LAUREN A BROCKMAN

SETBACK
EXHIBIT

EX-01

PROPERTY LINE

RESIDENTIAL

ZONE

RIGHT OF WAY
LANDSCAPE BUFFER ZONE

NO BUILD ZONE
WEST 25TH STREET

15' SETBACK

NORTH

N.T.S

NO BUILD ZONE

10' SETBACK

Attachment K

219



1

�

City Council

February 19, 2019

Gateway Park II PUD

Rezoning &

Preliminary PUD

NORTH

220



2

NORTH

Zoning Boundary Map

NORTH

221



3

Zoning Suitability Map

NORTH

Site Plan

NORTH

222



4

NORTH

NORTH

223



5

NORTH

Photos of Site

NORTH

224



6

Photos of Site

NORTH

Yes a. Has the area changed to such a degree that it is in the public interest to 
rezone the property to encourage development?

� Infill development on large lots such as this one are more financially feasible 
for development than Greenfields, and this is now Plugged and Abandoned 
well site, now made available for development trends in Greeley.

Rezoning Criteria 18.30.050 – Eight (8) used to evaluate Rezone request

Yes b. Has the zoning been in place for at least 15 years and does the zoning 
appear to be obsolete?

� The existing zoning has been in place for 37 years. Development trends in Greeley have shown a 
strong demand for more high-residential housing opportunities. 

� Since the oil and gas facility has been plugged and abandoned, it rendered the existing zoning 
designation obsolete. 

N/A c. Are there clerical errors?

� There are no clerical or technical errors to correct.

No d. Are there detrimental environmental conditions?

� The subject site has a plugged and abandoned well site, but plugged and abandoned well sites 
have been redeveloped having structures built over them in past years.

� Drainage patterns would be mitigated through a detention pond, and slopes are relatively flat and 
soils appear to be stable. 

225



7

N/A e. Is the rezoning necessary to provide land for a community related use?

� The proposed rezoning is not necessary in order to provide land for a community related use.

Yes f. What is the potential impact of the rezoning upon the immediate 
neighborhood and the City as a whole?

� Impacts typically occur with any development; however future development will be regulated by 
the Municipal Code such as noise.

� Landscaping , buffering, and/or fencing requirements would be subject to the Development Code 
Standards. Plus, all site improvements would be approved and reviewed administratively 
through a site plan review, prior to occupancy of the building, if the rezone is approved.

� Surrounding area developed with municipal services (Streets, water and sewer).
� Fire and Police Services are currently serving the area.  

Yes g. Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be 
consistent with the policies and goals of the City's Comprehensive Plan and 
comply with applicable zoning overlay requirements? 

� There are no applicable zoning overlay requirements or any proposed. The proposed request is 
consistent with many goals and policies in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. Key policies 
are listed in Section F(3) below. 

Yes h. Impact on approved Zoning Suitability Plan?

� The City did not require zoning suitability plans in 1984, as it was developed prior to when 
Development Code required it in 1998. 

Yes g. Is the proposal consistent with the Comprehensive Plan?

Objective GC-1.1 Growth Management Manage growth to maintain or improve quality of life 
for Greeley’s residents, minimize impacts on the natural environment, and protect or enhance natural 
features and other resources.  

Objective GC-1.2 Form of Growth Encourage a compact urban form over sprawl or leap-frog 
development. 

Objective GC-2.2 Jobs/Housing Balance Support zoning and development patterns that expand 
opportunities for people who live in Greeley to also work in Greeley (or vice versa). 

Objective GC-2.3 Pedestrian and Bicycle-Oriented Development Encourage a development 
pattern that encourages walking and bicycling whenever possible—by locating employment, 
shopping, recreation, entertainment, transit, and other services within a quarter mile of residential 
areas. 

Objective GC-4.1 Priority Infill/Redevelopment Areas Following the guidance of adopted 
neighborhood plans and studies, use incentives and infrastructure investments to support infill 
development and redevelopment in priority locations (as identified on the Land Use Guidance Map): 
- Multi-modal corridors - Existing activity centers  

Objective GC-4.3 Infill Compatibility Promote the use of site design and building architecture 
that is sympathetic to the surrounding area and enhances the desirable character and form of the 
neighborhood or area. 

226



8

Variety of requirements, including area requirements, consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan, providing innovative design, includes land uses 
required in PUD, meets the overall intent of Code, and provides design 
trade-offs for any exceptions that are granted.

The proposed PUD would support the core values and guiding principles of 
the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan.

The proposed trade-offs (deviations) would provide a comprehensive design 
by the Development Code which meets the intent of the Code. 

PRELIMINARY PUD Establishment Criteria 18.32.040  

• Properties up to 500 feet.  
• Notified in the Greeley Tribune.
• No comments from the public were received before the 
hearing.

Neighborhood Notification

Planning Commission 
Recommendations

� REZONING

� Approval (unanimous)

� 2 motions required (rezoning & map revision)

� PRELIMINARY PLAN

� Approval (unanimous)

227



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 19 

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

  

Title:  

Public hearing and final reading approving an ordinance to adopt the City of 

Greeley Strategic Housing Plan, an Element of the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive 

Plan 

Summary: 
 

On February 6, 2018, the City Council adopted Imagine Greeley, an update of the 

Comprehensive Plan for the City of Greeley.  A high priority recommendation of this 

Plan is the development of a comprehensive housing strategy for Greeley.   Council’s 

consideration of this Strategic Housing Plan for the City of Greeley is intended to 

implement this recommendation.  

 

This Plan was developed throughout 2018 based on an approach that included a 

stakeholder task force, a consultant assembling housing information, staff work in 

support of the task force, and analyzing available information.   

 

The Housing Accessibility Task Force met five times to discuss possible causes and 

potential solutions to Greeley’s housing problems. The Task Force included real estate 

professionals, affordable and market housing providers, nonprofit and for-profit 

developers, and City staff.   

 

Imagine Greeley included two goals for housing: 

 

1) Improve access to housing for all income levels, ages, and physical abilities; 

and 

2) Encourage a broad diversity of housing options.  

 

The proposed Strategic Housing Plan identifies two strategic goals to implement 

Imagine Greeley: 

 

1) Increase housing construction for all incomes; and 

2) Increase housing affordability, especially workforce housing. 

 

To meet these goals, the Task Force identified nine strategies to address Greeley’s 

housing needs: 

 

1) Amend the Development Code to promote housing choices; 

2) Develop financial strategies that minimize infrastructure costs for new 

workforce housing;  

3) Engage alternative housing providers to build affordable housing; 

228



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

4) Improve the housing product mix; 

5) Address the impact of raw water cost on housing affordability; 

6) Complete detailed subarea and neighborhood plans that facilitate complete 

neighborhoods that contain a mix of affordable and market housing; 

7) Create more ownership, move-up, and executive housing options;  

8) Encourage vocational training, and apprentice programs for building trades; 

and 

9) Facilitate development of manufactured home parks as an important 

affordable housing option.  

 

The Strategic Housing Plan would become a sub-element of the City’s Imagine 

Greeley Comprehensive Plan, along with all other adopted master plans and area 

plans. The Planning Commission is the primary steward of the City’s Comprehensive 

Plan and any amendments or additions to the Plan.  The Planning Commission heard 

the proposed housing plan at their February 12, 2019, meeting. The minutes from that 

meeting are attached. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

 Not directly, but does 

provide a vision for the 

efficient stewardship of 

public and private 

resources in the whole 

community, and may result 

in future funded city 

programs 

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?   

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

Section 19-1(c) of the Greeley City Charter states that Council shall adopt a 

Comprehensive Plan as a guide to land use and development.  The proposed 

housing plan is proposed as a major sub-element of the adopted Comprehensive 

Plan.  

 

Consideration of this matter is a quasi-judicial process which includes the following 

public hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Applicant presentation 

4) Council questions of applicant 

5) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

229



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

hearing closed) 

6) Rebuttal, if requested 

7) Council discussion 

8) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan includes a Vision Statement and Core Values for 

developing the Plan that are aligned with, and come from, Council’s adopted Goals. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance, with Exhibit A (Housing Plan) 

Planning Commission Minutes-Draft (February 12, 2019) 

Planning Commission Summary (Staff Report) (February 12, 2019) [Attachment A 

omitted, same as Ordinance Exhibit] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

230



Strategic Housing Plan

Action:  Identify and initiate strategic rezones to correct zoning mismatches

STRATEGY 1. AMEND THE DEVELOPMENT CODE TO PROMOTE HOUSING 
CHOICE

• Research and identify areas of legal non-conforming residential use that could benefit from a rezone or 
strategic overlay

• Consider additional zoning actions/strategies to prevent gentrification and/or displacement
• Hold neighborhood meetings
• Process rezones and/or amend portions of the Development Code (e.g. possible revisions to Overlay Districts 

Section 18.34.010 and Non-Conforming Uses, Buildings, and Structures Section 18.58.040)
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Action:  Identify geographic and contextually appropriate locations for accessory dwelling     
    units (ADUs) and amend the Development Code to include ADU regulations

• Research best practices from other communities whom have adopted ADU regulations
• Conduct a GIS analysis to identify properties that meet decided upon minimum lot size requirements
• Research HOA covenants to identify neighborhoods which restrict ADUs
• Hold neighborhood meetings
• Work with consultants on a Code rewrite
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Staff Research

Code Rewrites/ New Policy 
Creation

Public Outreach & Engagement 

Public Hearing

Mapping/Modeling

IMPLEMENTATION ROAD MAP

p. 1231



Strategic Housing Plan

Action:  Amend the Development Code to create incentives to encourage complete   
    neighborhoods

• Conduct research of peer cities and how their address complete neighborhoods
• Consider a restructuring of zoning districts into new district types or a reclassification of permitted uses 

within the existing zoning districts
• Work with consultants to rewrite mix-use standards and other possible zoning changes
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Action:  Amend minimum lot sizes, open space requirements, building height, setbacks  
    and/or performance options in residential zoning districts

• Study alternative standards in relation to neighborhood “types” and character
• Model design outcomes
• Work with consultant on Code rewrites (e.g.  possible revisions to Zoning District Development Standards 

18.38.020 and Overlay Districts Section 18.34.010)
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

p. 2

Action: Develop short-term rental development rgeulations

• Conduct research of peer cities and how their address short-term rentals
• Condct study of on current short-term rental operations in Greeley
• Draft Code changes
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

232



Strategic Housing Plan

Action: Support metropolitan districts or other special districts as potential financing 
tools

Action: Based on a positive recommendation, implement having the City front-end   
  required trunk lines which would be reimbursed with impact fees

• Write new policy/update impact fee schedule
• Go to Public Hearing

Action: Explore alternative housing finance options

Action: Update the Redevelopment Resource Guide to include current pilot programs  
   and incentive packages

Action: Explore financial incentives to encourage permanent affordable housing

p. 3

STRATEGY 2. DEVELOP FINANCIAL STRATEGIES THAT MINIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Action: Evaluate the risks, costs, and benefits of having the City front-end required trunk  
   lines which would be reimbursed with impact fees

• Research best practices from other communities 
• Map extension scenarios 
• Model funding and payback scenarios
• Meet with industry professionals
• Hold public meetings

233



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY 3. ENGAGE ALTERNATIVE HOUSING PROVIDERS

Action: Explore working with community land trusts to create a shared equity home own-
ership program

Action: Partner with one or more housing providers to construct attainable housing

Action: Work with major employers for shared equity housing (e.g., down payment   
   assistance programs, employer sponsored savings plan)

Action: Explore the feasibility of a land bank for affordable housing

p. 4

Action: Explore changes to development standards to incentivize affordable housing

• Research best practices from other communities 
• Meet with industry professionals
• Model/map appropriate areas for implementation
• Work with consultants on Code rewrite
• If supported go to public hearing for adoption

Action: Explore private activity bonds, forgivable loan/grants, tax credits, Kansas City  
   forgivable loan funds, and other funding sources

234



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY 4. IMPROVE THE HOUSING PRODUCT MIX

Action: Explore alternative housing technologies, products, production methods, and  
   housing types including factory built housing

Action:  Amend the Development Code to incentivize the inclusion of affordable   
     housing in new development

• Conduct research on best practices from other communities 
• Work with consultants on code updates (e.g. possible additions to Performance options Section 18.38.100 or 

the creation of a new sections of Code)
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

STRATEGY 5. ADDRESS THE IMPACT OF RAW WATER ON HOUSING 
AFFORDABILITY

Action: Implement the “Water Smart Neighborhood Policy” and the “Water Smart   
   Common Area Policy”

• Conduct research on best practices 
• Draft new policy
• Meet with industry professionals
• Go to public hearing for adoption

p. 5

Action: Explore the potential to expand Habitat for Humanity’s role to include housing  
    rehabilitation

235



Strategic Housing Plan

Action: Develop a “Water Smart Individual Lot Policy” to reduce the cost of water for   
    existing and future homeowners

• Conduct research on best practices 
• Draft new policy
• Meet with industry professionals
• Go to public hearing for adoption

STRATEGY 6. COMPLETE SUBAREA & NEIGHBORHOOD PLANS

Action: Complete subarea or neighborhood plans for areas that have the potential to  
    provide a significant amount of housing in the near future

• Identify geographic scope of subarea plans
• Study the characteristics of the area and residents
• Create stakeholder committee
• Create a technical advisory committee
• Hold neighborhood meetings
• Draft plan
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Action: Complete subarea or neighborhood plans for areas in distress or those that are  
    prime for redevelopment

• Identify geographic scope of subarea plans
• Study the characteristics of the area and residents
• Create stakeholder committee
• Create a technical advisory committee
• Hold neighborhood meetings
• Draft plan
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

p. 6
236



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY 8.  ENCOURAGE VOCATIONAL, TRAINING, AND APPRENTICE 
PROGRAMS FOR BUILDING TRADES

Action: Continue to support school districts and post-secondary educational institutions  
   involvement in developing courses and apprenticeships in skilled trades

STRATEGY 7. ENCOURAGE OWNERSHIP, MOVE-UP & EXECUTIVE 
HOUSING OPTIONS

Action: Develop more home ownership incentive programs

• Research alternative programs
• Designate eligible areas
• Draft program policy
• Seek approval from City Council

Action: Work with a task force that includes developers, financial, professionals, and  
   real estate professionals to address barriers to creating higher-end developments

Action: Explore the attraction of cooperative housing providers

p. 7237



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY 9. FACILITATE DEVELOPMENT OF MANUFACTURED HOMES

Action: Update zoning regulations for mobile homes to address changing products and  
   assure there is safe and adequate infrastructure and amenities

• Research peer city regulations for manufactured homes
• Meet with mobile home park managers
• Draft Code rewrite
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Action: Explore alternative ownership options including non-profits, cooperative   
    ownership, and community land trust

p. 8
238



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)

City Lead Partners

1. AMEND THE 
DEVELOPMENT 
CODE TO 
PROMOTE 
HOUSING CHOICE

Identify and initiate 
strategic rezones to correct 
zoning mismatches

✓ CD

Identify geographic and 
contextually appropriate 
locations for accessory 
dwelling units (ADUs) and 
amend the Development 
Code to include ADU 
regulations

✓ CD

Amend minimum lot sizes, 
open space requirements, 
building height, setbacks 
and/or performance 
options in residential zoning 
districts

✓ CD

Amend the Development 
Code to create incentives 
to encourage complete 
neighborhoods

✓ CD

Amend the Development 
Code to incentivize the 
inclusion of affordable 
housing in new 
development

✓ CD

2. DEVELOP 
FINANCIAL 
STRATEGIES 
THAT MINIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT 
COSTS

Explore financial incentives 
to encourage permanent 
affordable housing

✓ EHH CD

Explore private activity 
bonds, forgivable loan/
grants, tax credits, Kansas 
City forgivable loan funds, 
and other funding sources

✓ EHH

CD = COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

239



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)

City Lead Partners

2. DEVELOP 
FINANCIAL 
STRATEGIES 
THAT MINIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT 
COSTS

Evaluate the risks, costs, 
and benefits of having the 
City front-end required 
trunk lines which would be 
reimbursed with impact 
fees

✓ EHH CD

Based on a positive 
recommendation, 
implement having the 
City front-end required 
trunk lines which would be 
reimbursed with impact 
fees

✓ CM CD
PW
WS

EHH

Support metropolitan 
districts or other special 
districts as potential 
financing tools

✓ CD EHH

Explore alternative housing 
finance options

✓ EHH

Update the Redevelopment 
Resource Guide to include 
current pilot programs and 
incentive packages

✓ CD WS

3. ENGAGE 
ALTERNATIVE 
HOUSING 
PROVIDERS

Explore working with 
community land trusts 
to create a shared equity 
home ownership program

✓ EHH CD

Partner with one or 
more housing providers 
to construct attainable 
housing

✓ EHH CD

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

240



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)

City Lead Partners

3. ENGAGE 
ALTERNATIVE 
HOUSING 
PROVIDERS

Work with major employers 
for shared equity housing 
(e.g., down payment 
assistance programs, 
employer sponsored 
savings plan)

✓ EHH CD

Explore the feasibility of 
a land bank for affordable 
housing

✓ EHH CM
CD

Explore the potential 
to expand Habitat for 
Humanity’s role to include 
housing rehabilitation

✓ EHH CD

Explore alternative housing 
finance options

✓ EHH CD

4. IMPROVE 
THE HOUSING 
PRODUCT MIX

Explore alternative housing 
technologies, products, 
production methods, and 
housing types including 
factory built housing

✓ EHH CD

Explore working with 
community land trusts 
to create a shared equity 
home ownership program

✓ EHH CD

5. ADDRESS 
THE IMPACT OF 
RAW WATER 
ON HOUSING 
AFFORDABILITY

Implement the “Water 
Smart Neighborhood Policy” 
and the “Water Smart 
Common Area Policy”

✓ WS CD

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

241



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)

City Lead Partners

5. ADDRESS 
THE IMPACT OF 
RAW WATER 
ON HOUSING 
AFFORDABILITY

Develop a “Water Smart 
Individual Lot Policy” to 
reduce the cost of water 
for existing and future 
homeowners

✓ WS CD

6. COMPLETE 
SUBAREA & 
NEIGHBORHOOD 
PLANS

Complete subarea or 
neighborhood plans 
for areas that have the 
potential to provide a 
significant amount of 
housing in the near future

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Complete subarea or 
neighborhood plans 
for areas in distress or 
those that are prime for 
redevelopment

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Collaborate with housing 
providers on large scale 
master plans

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Identify under-utilized sites 
that could be re-purposed 
for housing

✓ CD

7. CREATE MORE 
OWNERSHIP, 
MOVE-UP & 
EXECUTIVE 
HOUSING 
OPTIONS

Develop more home 
ownership incentive 
programs

✓ EHH

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

242



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)

City Lead Partners

7. CREATE MORE 
OWNERSHIP, 
MOVE-UP & 
EXECUTIVE 
HOUSING 
OPTIONS

Work with a task force 
that includes developers, 
financial, professionals, and 
real estate professionals to 
address barriers to creating 
higher-end developments

✓ CD EHH

Explore the attraction 
of cooperative housing 
providers

✓ EHH CD

8.  ENCOURAGE 
VOCATIONAL, 
TRAINING, AND 
APPRENTICE 
PROGRAMS 
FOR BUILDING 
TRADES

Continue to support 
school districts and post-
secondary educational 
institutions involvement 
in developing courses and 
apprenticeships in skilled 
trades

✓ CM
CD
WS
PW

9. FACILITATE 
DEVELOPMENT 
OF 
MANUFACTURED 
HOMES

Update zoning regulations 
for mobile homes to 
address changing products 
and assure there is safe and 
adequate infrastructure and 
amenities

✓ CD

Explore alternative 
ownership options including 
non-profits, cooperative 
ownership, and community 
land trust

✓ CD EHH

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

243



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. ___, 2019 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING  

THE CITY OF GREELEY STRATEGIC HOUSING PLAN  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 19-1(c) of the Greeley City Charter states that the City Council shall 
adopt a Comprehensive Plan as a guide to land use and development; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the latest Comprehensive Plan titled “Imagine 
Greeley” on February 6, 2018; and, 

 WHEREAS, Goal HO-I of the Plan is that the City “improve access to housing for all 
income-levels, ages, and physical abilities”; and 

 WHEREAS, to achieve such goal, the Plan furthermore sets forth an Objective HO-1.1, 
that the City develop and implement a comprehensive housing strategy with clear goals and 
implementation strategies that:  

 Establish priorities for the types of housing, tenure types, and populations to be targeted; 
 Work with area employers to identify employee housing needs and facilitate the provision 

of adequate and attractive housing for the local workforce; 
 Consider incentives and financing tools the City might use to encourage the construction 

of affordable housing; 
 Consider transportation options as a mechanism to expand the affordability of housing;  
 Identify current zoning, fees, policies, and other City regulations that discourage or pose as 

barriers to the construction of affordable housing or other needed housing types; 
 Include strategies for encouraging the construction of affordable housing throughout the 

community and for preventing concentrations of affordable housing in particular areas or 
neighborhoods; 

 Explore the potential of community land trusts as a means of maintaining affordable home 
ownership options for households down to 80% of the area median income; 

 Encourage a range of creative housing options, including small-sized housing units (in the 
range of 1,000 to 1,500 square feet in size), manufactured homes, zero-lot line housing, 
attached housing types, and housing located above ground floor commercial uses in mixed-
use areas; 

 Maintain and/or improve the quality and safety of existing units; and 
 Encourage the preservation of existing affordable units; and 

 WHEREAS, to develop a housing plan for the City, work was conducted throughout 2018 
that included a stakeholder task force, a consultant assembling housing information, staff work in 

244



support of the task force, and analyzing available data and trends regarding housing in Greeley, 
and; 

 WHEREAS, the proposed housing strategy outlines nine strategies that can further the 
goals of housing accessibility in Greeley, and; 

WHEREAS, the proposed housing strategy will become a sub-element of the 
Comprehensive Plan, along with all other adopted master plans and area plans, if adopted; and, 

 WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended on February 12 2019, that the 
Greeley City Council adopt this STRATEGIC HOUSING PLAN for the City of Greeley. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, 
COLORADO: 

Section 1.   CITY OF GREELEY STRATEGIC HOUSING PLAN, as set forth in “Exhibit A,” which 
is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, is hereby adopted. 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after its final publication as provided 
by the Greeley City Charter. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, THIS ____ DAY OF 
____________________, 2019. 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
City Clerk      Mayor 

245



CITY OF GREELEY
STRATEGIC HOUSING 

PLAN
An Element of the Imagine Greeley 

Comprehensive Plan

246



Page left intentionally blank

247



City Council
Robb Casseday
Michael Fitzsimmons
John Gates
Dale Hall
Brett Payton
John Smail
Stacy Suniga

Planning Commission
Louisa Andersen
Erik Briscoe
Gloria Hice-Idler
Larry Modlin
Jon Rarick
Christian Schulte
Justin Yeater

Community Development Staff
John Barnett
Mike Garrott
Brad Mueller
Rachel Prelog

Greeley Housing Task Force
Jamie Baessler 
Mike Bond
Bianca Fisher
Lindsey Galindo
Jodi Hartmann
Chris Helwick
Julie Jensen
John Kadavy
Carol Larsen
Ulli Limpitlaw
Greg Miedema
Kris Pickett
Collin Richardson
Cathy Schulte
Chalice Springfield
Barbara Whinery
Cheri Witt-Brown

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

248



Page left intentionally blank

249



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Introduction.....................................................................................................................
Current Conditions.........................................................................................................

A Brief Overview.................................................................................................................. 
 Multi-family housing...........................................................................................................................................

Single family housing.......................................................................................................................................... 
Housing Mix............................................................................................................................................................

The Problem of Affordability..............................................................................................
Seven Key Constraints to Housing Affordability.............................................................

Escalating cost of raw water.............................................................................................................................
Rising cost of construction and development related costs....................................................................
Lack of financing...................................................................................................................................................
Lack of skilled labor..............................................................................................................................................
Rising costs of existing housing.......................................................................................................................
Flat wages...............................................................................................................................................................
Missing homes not built during the Great Recession and Greeley’s residential downturn...........

Strategies.........................................................................................................................
Amend the Development Code.........................................................................................

Correct zoning mismatches................................................................................................................................
Accessory dwelling units....................................................................................................................................
Reduce minimum lot sizes for single family housing.................................................................................
Provide regulatory incentives for permanent affordable housing.........................................................
Encourage complete neighborhoods..............................................................................................................
Short-term rentals...............................................................................................................................................

Minimize Infrastructure Costs...........................................................................................
Explore new development incentives.............................................................................................................
Evaluate having the City front-end major infrastructure..........................................................................
Support metropolitan districts..........................................................................................................................

Engage Alternative Housing Providers............................................................................
Work with community land trusts....................................................................................................................
Partner with for-profit and non-profit housing providers........................................................................
Work with major employers on shared housing programs......................................................................
Work with Habitat for Humanity to expand their role...............................................................................
Explore land banks...............................................................................................................................................

1
2
2
2
2
2
3
3
3
4
5
5
5
5
5
6
7
7
8
8
9
9
10
11
11
11
12
13
13
14
14
14
14

250



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Improve the Housing Product Mix ...................................................................................

Encourage diversity in housing types.............................................................................................................
Promote housing innovation..............................................................................................................................
Update the Redevelopment Guide...................................................................................................................

Address the Impact of Raw Water Cost on Housing Affordability..............................
Implement water smart neighborhood and common area policies......................................................
Develop a water smart policy for individual lots.........................................................................................

Complete Subarea & Neighborhood Plans......................................................................
Complete plans for neighborhoods with housing opportunities............................................................
Large-scale master planning for complete neighborhoods.....................................................................
Identify under-utilized sites for housing........................................................................................................
Adopt a five-year housing goal........................................................................................................................

Encourage Ownership, Move-up & Executive Housing Options..................................
Encourage a range in housing choices............................................................................................................
Work with developers to create higher-end development.......................................................................
Explore cooperative housing options..............................................................................................................
Develop additional home ownership incentive programs........................................................................

Encourage Vocational Training & Apprentice Programs...............................................
Support educational institutions involves in skilled trades.....................................................................

Facilitate Development of Manufactured Home Parks.................................................
Affordable housing options................................................................................................................................
Explore alternative ownership options...........................................................................................................
Alternative technologies.....................................................................................................................................
Update regulations..............................................................................................................................................

Implementation..............................................................................................................

15
15
15
16
17
17
18
19
19
19
20
20
21
21
21
21
22
23
23
24
24
24
24
25
26

251



Strategic Housing Plan

INTRODUCTION

Strategic Housing Plan p. 1

Greeley aspires to provide a range of housing to accommodate its diverse and growing population. 
Diversity in housing would mean both a variety of housing types and a broad range in price. 
Because communities are largely defined by the type, style, and cost of housing it is important 
for Greeley to have a clear understanding of current housing conditions with strategies to shape 
future growth. 

Through a variety of policies, programs, and regulations, the type, number, and affordability 
of new and existing housing can be influenced. Housing was a key component of the Imagine 
Greeley Comprehensive Plan. However, due to  the complexity of housing issues and its impact on  
community well being, the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan  called for a deeper examination into 
housing policy through the development of a Comprehensive Housing Strategy. 

The creation of the Strategic Housing Plan took place during 2018, with the help and input from a 
Housing Accessibility Task Force, data assistance from outside consultants, and the support and 
analysis of city staff. The Housing Accessibility Task Force met five times during 2018 to discuss 
challenges facing Greeley’s housing market and brainstorm possible solutions. The Task Force 
included real estate professionals, affordable and market-rate housing providers, nonprofit and 
for-profit developers, and city staff. Working closely with city staff, the Housing Accessibility Task 
Force identified seven key constraints or challenges to housing affordability:

1. Escalating cost of raw water;
2. Rising cost of construction and development related costs;
3. Lack of financing;
4. Lack of skilled labor;
5. Rising costs of existing housing;
6. Flat wages; and
7. Missing homes not built during the Great Recession and Greeley’s residential downturn.

The action items listed in this Strategic Housing Plan will require separate and specific 
implementation. Adoption of the plan does not begin the implementation of any item nor legally 
bind the City to implement any particular action. Rather, this plan explores the challenges above 
and provides nine recommended strategies to address  housing affordability and supply. 

252



Strategic Housing Plan

Since 1990, Greeley’s housing market has grown at 
an average rate of 1.8% per year. During this time, 
housing growth generally kept pace with population 
growth except for between 2003 - 2005 when housing 
outpaced population growth and 2008 - 2013 when it 
lagged behind population growth. The surplus of housing 
provided during the construction boom in the early 
2000s was not enough to offset the growing population 
through the later half of the decade. As a result, staff 
estimates there were approximately 1,100 residential 
units not built, needed to keep pace with recent 
population growth. 

Multi-family housing 
A healthy multi-family housing market is considered to 
be one where the vacancy rate is approximately 5%. Since 
2011, Greeley’s multi-family housing vacancy rate has 
averaged 3.41%. Looking at more recent trends, for the 
last five years, the vacancy rate has dropped o.44% to 
2.96%. This means that Greeley currently has a very tight 
multi-family market with few rentals available. This can 
not only result in higher rents but it can also force people 
to look elsewhere for housing if the type and price point 
of units isn’t available. 

Single family housing
A healthy single family market is considered to be one 
where there is a six month supply of existing homes 
for sale. The months of supply is the time it would take 
for all the current inventory to sell without any new 
inventory coming on the market. Based on yearly average 
sales of existing units since 2014, a six months supply 
of existing units would  be 685 units. Recent searches 
of current listings show that Greeley is currently below 
a six months supply with home availability somewhere 
between 350 - 400 units.   When inventory levels are 

less than six months, sellers have more control over price 
and terms, often leading to rising home prices. In order 
to balance the market, Greeley would need to provide 
a surplus of new construction over what is required to 
meet growing population demand.   

Housing mix
Greeley’s historic mix of single and multi-family housing 
has remained relatively constant at between 63% and 
66% single family units. However, during the most recent 
housing recovery, 2013 to 2018, more than half of 
new construction consisted of multi-family housing to 
the extent that the overall percentage of single family 
housing declined by 1.75% from a high of 65.39% in 2012, 
to 63.56% in 2019. As housing costs continue to rise, 
staff anticipates a continued trend in a higher proportion 
of new construction being multi-family units. 
 

CURRENT CONDITIONS
A Brief Overview...

HOUSING BY THE NUMBERS

1.8% increase in housing 
between 1991-2019

6.5% increase in 
population between 
1991-2019

35% increase in average 
home sale price between 
2016 - 2018

p. 2
253



Strategic Housing Plan

Despite historically having one of the most affordable 
housing stocks in Northern Colorado, Greeley has not 
been immune to rising home costs and affordability 
problems. 

According to IRES data, average home sales rose 
$92,464 from 3rd quarter of 2016 to 3rd quarter of 
2018, a 35% increase.

One of the most significant problems in housing 
affordability is that incomes have not kept pace with 
the cost of housing. As a working class city, the high 

cost of housing results in many citizens paying a 
disproportionate amount of their income for housing.  In 
Greeley, a median income household cannot afford to 
purchase a median priced home. 

The current problem with housing affordability is unlikely 
to be solved simply by increased supply. The two main 
needs are to increase the supply of housing for all 
income levels, from subsidized to executive housing, and 
to increase the affordability of housing for wage-earning 
households.

The Problem of Affordability...

7 key constraints to housing affordability:
1. Escalating cost of raw water;
2. Rising cost of construction and 

development related costs;
3. Lack of financing;
4. Lack of skilled labor;
5. Rising costs of existing housing;
6. Flat wages; and
7. Missing homes not built during 

the Great Recession and Greeley’s 
residential downturn.

7 Key Constraints to Housing Affordability...
Escalating cost of raw water
One of the factors affecting the cost of housing has been 
the cost of raw water. Cities need reliable water rights to 
provide potable water to meet the needs of growth. The 
most valuable water and easiest to convert to municipal 
use is water supplied by the Colorado Big Thompson 
(CBT) Project. The price of this water, which increased by 
a factor of three between 2012 and 2016, became more 
expensive than the price for raw land for single family 
housing. 

On a year-round average, approximately half the treated 
water in Greeley is used for outdoor purposes, mainly 
landscape irrigation. During the summer months, as 
much as 70% of potable water is used for outdoor uses.                                                                                                                                            
                                                                     
Before 2018, Greeley required developers who anticipate 
building housing to dedicate three acre-feet of raw 
water for each acre of land they planed to develop. In 
2010, an acre-foot of (CBT) water could be purchased 
for approximately $8,500. In 2018, this amount of water 
costs rose to $33,000 per acre-foot.

At a density of four units per acre, the change in price 
per acre-foot increased the cost per residential unit by 
$24,500.

p. 3
254



Strategic Housing Plan

Water use per capita has been declining for the past 
several years because of water conservation, cost, and 
other reasons. Certain kinds of landscaping are capable 
of lowering water demand significantly. It should be 
possible to lower the cost of raw water by significant 
permanent limitations on landscape and irrigation 
designs, and other water conservation measures. 

Smaller lots, multi-family housing, and xeriscaping can all 
contribute to lower water use and can potentially, lower 
the cost of housing.

Rising cost of construction and 
development related costs
Costs for construction of all kinds are escalating for a 
variety of reasons including the increased scarcity of 
qualified labor, depletion of raw materials, impacts of 
international trade, and other factors. 

Other land planning techniques and housing products 
such as zero lot line homes, tiny homes, or construction 
technology such as factory built housing, manufactured 
components, or other proven technology should be 
encouraged. 

Price per unit of Colorado-Big Thompson Water per Unit Converted to Acre Feet 

1960-2017

p. 4
255



Strategic Housing Plan

Lack of financing
As a result of the mortgage crisis leading up to the Great 
Recession, banking regulations have been tightened to 
the extent that financing for land development has been 
almost nonexistent and construction lending for single 
family construction is difficult to obtain. 

Lack of skilled labor
As a result of the loss of construction jobs in the Great 
Recession, many people left the trades for other 
opportunities and have not returned. In addition, their 
knowledge is not being passed on to younger workers. 
This has left a large gap in skills and limited opportunities 
for younger trades-people to obtain the necessary job 
skills.

Rising cost of existing housing
A significant driver in the increase in prices of existing 
homes is the price escalation of new housing. As more 
people find they cannot afford a new house, they 
compete to purchase an existing home. This drives up 
the price of existing homes commensurate with the 
price escalation of new homes. In addition, as owners 
of existing homes look at their options, many choose to 
remodel rather than move up. 

Flat wages
Over the last 40 years, real wages have generally risen, 
but at a fraction of the rate of housing cost escalation. 
The result is that a significantly higher population is 
burdened by the cost of housing than was previously the 
case. 

Missing homes not built during 
the Great Recession and Greeley 
residential downturn
During the Great Recession, Greeley’s population grew 
each year, with the exception of 2009. With the difficulty 
in obtaining financing for any real estate or construction 
activity, especially single family housing, very few units 

were constructed. In fact, taking an average of the 
number of units constructed in the years leading up to 
the recession and 2014 and 2015, and comparing that to 
the recession years of 2008 through 2013, it is estimated 
that approximately 700 units were not constructed that 
would have been built in a non-recession. Then during 
Greeley’s 2016 and 2017 residential downturn, an 
additional 309 residential units were not built, meaning  
Greeley’s housing market is short approximately 1,100 
residential units, of the required units needed to keep 
pace with population growth. 

Based on data from Greeley Evans School District 6, it 
is estimated that there are at least 232 families living 
in “doubled-up” housing where more than one family 
shares a housing unit. 

Greeley’s residential market short  

~1,100 units

401 multi-family units  not 

constructed

685 single family units  not 

constructed

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 D
OW

N
TU

R
N

 B
Y 

TH
E 

N
UM

BE
R

S

p. 5
256



STRATEGIES
Nine Housing Strategies:

1.     Amend the Development Code to promote housing choice;

2. Minimize development costs for affordable housing; 

3. Engage alternative housing providers to build affordable housing;

4. Improve the housing product mix;

5. Address the impact of raw water cost on housing affordability;

6 Complete subarea and neighborhood plans;

7. Create more ownership, move-up, and executive housing options; 

8. Encourage vocational training, and apprentice programs for building trades; and

9. Facilitate development of manufactured home parks as an important affordable 
housing option. 

p. 6Strategic Housing Plan
257



Strategic Housing Plan

Correct zoning mismatches
Portions of the City have zoning that does not reflect 
existing land uses, recent development trends in the 
area, or land uses recommended in the Imagine Greeley 
Land Use Guidance Map. This can adversely affect the 
availability and cost of housing; requiring additional land 
use action. Money and time is lost on the preparation 
of zoning documents, staff review, and responding to 
comments, before actual permits can be applied for. 

Additional burdens are placed on homeowners whose 
residences are considered legally nonconforming 
due to the underlying zoning. Homeowners of legally 
nonconforming properties have trouble securing 
financing due to restrictions placed on nonconforming 
buildings.  For example, when a legally nonconforming 
residential structure is damaged by a calamity or 
other event, the replacement of the residence must 
commence and be completed within certain time frames. 
Furthermore, the replacement value of the structure 

cannot exceed 50% of its replacement value. Owners 
of legally nonconforming residences are also limited 
in repair and expansion  of their residence; restricted 
to valuation provisions and only allowed a one time 
expansion.

By adopting zoning that better reflects goals and 
strategies of the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan and 
matches the existing residential uses, the City can reduce 
unnecessary burdens and costs on housing providers and 
citizens.

Legally nonconforming sites, buildings, 
and structures: 
A building or structure that was allowed by 
the Code in effect when established, but is no 
longer permitted in the district in which it is 
located. 

1 
STRATEGY I

Amend the Development 
Code to Promote Housing 
Choice

p. 7
258



Strategic Housing Plan

Accessory dwelling units
Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) can provide affordable 
rental options in predominantly single family 
neighborhoods, and act as a wealth-building tool for 
homeowners. ADUs can increase the overall housing 
supply incrementally without requiring additional land for 
expansion. 

While a potentially significant addition to the housing 
stock, ADUs may not be appropriate everywhere; too 
many units may overburden neighborhoods and services, 
and appropriate site and architectural design is essential.

Allowing for ADUs would require future action through 
code changes. These would include the creation of 
appropriate design criteria and review processes. The 
City would look to peer cities that have allowed ADUs 
for lessons learned. Future study would be undertook to 
identify appropriate lot sizes and neighborhoods in which 
they could be allowed. ADUs would then be reviewed 
based on characteristics of the lot, including size, 
configuration, parking availability,  and neighborhood 
context. 

Reduce minimum lot sizes for single 
family housing
The Residential Low Density (R-L) Zoning District has a 
minimum required lot size of 6,000 square feet with a 
minimum open space requirement of 30%. While many 
people prefer the type of housing defined by these 
zoning standards, the city’s changing demographics 
emphasize a need for a broader mix of housing 
types. Many households cannot afford the housing 
that is typically built in single-family neighborhoods. 

Others enjoy the character and lifestyle of suburban 
neighborhoods but do not need the space and/or have 
trouble maintaining larger lots. 

Accessory dwelling unit (ADU): 
A smaller, attached or detached residential 
dwelling unit located on the same lot as a 
stand alone single family home. 

p. 8
259



Strategic Housing Plan

A development pattern based on smaller footprint 
configurations could yield higher density, lower costs, 
and lower water demand. Future action would require 
code changes to the zoning development standards, 
and considerations of changes to setbacks, open space 
requirements, and cluster development standards. 

Provide regulatory incentives for 
permanent affordable housing
While requiring developers to provide affordable housing 
is illegal in Colorado, providing regulatory incentives 
is permitted. For example, cities and towns may grant 
additional intensity or up-zoning, if a proportion of a 
development is set aside for affordable housing. 

Encourage complete neighborhoods
Complete neighborhoods contain a mix of land uses 
and services where most residents can meet most 
of their daily needs within a 20-minute safe and 
comfortable walking distance. Key elements of complete 
neighborhoods are a fine-scaled mix of land uses, 
minimal large parking lots, neighborhood schools 
and parks, shaded sidewalks, frequent rest stops and 
sitting areas, windows facing the street, interesting 
architecture, and other people out walking. Such 
neighborhoods may yield less stress and cost than 
autocentiric neighborhoods where the automobile is 
require to access most needs. 

Zoning appropriately for complete neighborhoods 
would require finer scaled commercial districts that are 
incorporated  more frequently at the block level. Smaller 
scale commercial districts that were limited to land uses 
necessary to support daily activities would also reduce 
the need for large commercial centers which often 
contain buildings with large footprints and large parking 
lots which become hard to redevelop as they age.

The City of Greeley currently has a euclidean system of 
zoning by which residential, commercial, and industrial 
uses are, for the most part, restricted to separate 
zoning districts. Many communities have shifted from 

this traditional practice of zoning to incentive zoning, 
form-base code, performance-based zoning, etc. The 
City can support complete neighborhoods by exploring 
a reclassification of zoning districts using on of these 
practices or a hybrid zoning which allows more flexibility 
in uses while defining specific design criteria based on 
location. 

Euclidean Zoning: 
System of zoning by which the town or 
community is divided into areas in which 
specific uses of land are permitted. 
 

Hybrid Zoning: 
System of zoning that identifies best elements 
of euclidean zoning, formed-based zoning, 
and incentive zoning and integrates them into 
a new whole. Location specific, hybrid zoning 
allows for diversity in uses while establishing 
specific design criteria for districts, such as 
downtowns, or street frontages based on 
classification. 

p. 9
260



Strategic Housing Plan

Short-term rentals
A growing problem in much of the U. S. is the conversion 
of housing units into short-term rental properties that 
operate somewhat like hotels and are known by brand 
names such as Air B&B, VBRO, etc. Short-term rentals 
can include the use of a spare bedroom or it can entail 
the rental of an entire housing unit or even a multi-family 
structure. 

The City currently does not have specific Code to 
regulate short-term rentals. Rather they are restricted 
by occupancy standards, which dictate how many non-
related persons can occupy a residence. The City does 
not have data on this trend but is aware that many 
short-term rentals are operating within Greeley without 
authorization of a business license. 

The lack of regulations, enforcement, and city oversight  
results in lost tax revenue. Improper siting of these 
facilities can affect neighborhood livability with negative 
impacts on traffic, maintenance, and noise. There is also 
possibility that short-term rentals can reduce the city’s 
housing stock and contribute to a low vacancy rate and 
higher housing prices.

When implemented and regulated properly, short-
term rentals can be a positive addition to communities, 
contributing to sales tax, tourism, and housing diversity. 
The City should look to peer communities who have 
implemented short-term rental regulations when 
considering future Code changes and seek to legalize as 
many of the existing short-term rentals as appropriate. 

Affordable Housing: 
Housing that costs no more than 30% of a 
household’s income.
 

Due to the phenomenon of drive to 
qualify, some definitions also include 
transportation costs;  spending no more 
than 45% of household’s income for housing 
and transport. 

p. 10
261



Strategic Housing Plan

2 
STRATEGY II
Minimize Development 
Costs for Affordable 
Housing

Explore new development incentives 
The City’s role in providing affordable housing begins 
with finding ways to eliminating barriers for its 
development. Greeley’s development regulations were 
implemented to ensure safety, compatibility, and to 
maximize the quality of development. These regulations 
add time and cost to housing development. Some 
developers see these processes as hindrances that drive 
up costs. 

The City currently offers economic development 
incentives for new job creation and has recently 
launched  incentives for large construction projects in the 
Redevelopment District. The City should similarly explore 
incentive packages to encourage the development of 
affordable housing. These may include density bonuses, 
parking reductions, or priority processing.

Evaluate having the City front-end 
major infrastructure
One of the factors affecting developers’ ability to provide 
housing is the availability of adequate public facilities as 
defined under Title 18 of the City Code. The City currently 
limits development in areas where adequate public 
facilities, such as fire protection, police service, water and 
sewer service is not available. In order to develop within 
these area, a developer must extend the necessary 
services or provide an alternative acceptable to the City.

Density Bonus: 
An incentive-based tool that permits 
developers to increase the maximum 
allowable development on a property 
in exchange for helping the community 
achieve public policy goals. 

p. 11
262



Strategic Housing Plan

Major infrastructure costs such as water and sewer 
trunk lines or major streets can contribute significant 
costs to housing, limiting the number of people who 
can afford to purchase or rent. The City has undertaken 
major capital projects, extending services, when the 
creation of primary jobs has been the goal. More 
recently, the availability of housing for all income levels 
has emerged as a significant issue. It is recommended 
that the City evaluate the costs and benefits of 
extending major infrastructure into areas where most 
of the required adequate public facilities are in place 
to encourage development. This evaluation should 
include recommendations for how to fund these facility 
extensions as well as pay back scenarios. 

Support metropolitan districts
Metropolitan districts allow development improvements 
to be financed with municipal bonds which offer more 
favorable terms than conventional bank financing. 
These bonds are then paid back through a mill levee on 
the properties in the district. While the mill levee can 
be quite expensive, it may provide a better opportunity 
for affordability or, alternatively, more amenities than 
conventional financing. The City should examine how 
metropolitan districts may be used to incentivise 
affordable housing. This approach could also lead to a 
more heterogeneous mix of housing, helping to reduce 
geographic concentrations of low income households. 

p. 12
263



Strategic Housing Plan

3 
STRATEGY III
Engage Alternative 
Housing Providers to 
build Affordable Housing

Work with community land trusts
Community land trusts can provide affordable housing 
opportunities including ownership opportunities for 
households with between 80% and 120% of Area Median 
Income (AMI), households that usually cannot qualify for 
mortgages for market housing. When a household works 
with a community land trust to purchase a permanently 
affordable home, the household buys the improvements 
financed by a mortgage and the community land trust 
purchases the lot and leases it to the home buyer. The 
homeowner pays a small lease fee to the community 
land trust to cover their expenses. In this scenario, the 
mortgage payments and ground lease are significantly 
lower than a mortgage payment would be on the same 
house if purchased at full market price. 

In return for the lower price for the home when 
purchased, the increased resale value for the home 
is shared between the community land trust and the 
homeowner so that the home remains affordable for the 

next buyer with an income between 80% and 120% of 
AMI. Land trusts can partner with, or act as, builders or 
developers of housing projects, or work with scattered 
housing sites. 

p. 13
264



Strategic Housing Plan

Partner with for-profit and non-profit 
housing providers
The housing problem is highly complex and there is not 
a simple solution. It will require the participation and 
cooperation of several housing providers. Any workable 
solution must involve a variety of players from the public, 
private, and nonprofit sectors to provide meaningful and 
realistic solutions. The City is already working with High 
Plains Community Development Corporation, Habitat for 
Humanity, and other non-profits where appropriate.

Work with major employers on shared 
housing programs
A major trend throughout the U. S., particularly in areas 
with high job growth like Northern Colorado, is that the 
cost of housing continues to rise and wages remain flat, 
resulting in a  lack of affordable housing for semi-skilled 
labor. 

To the extent possible, a communities housing supply 
should reflect its workforce housing needs. The City 
should explore policies and programs to increase housing 
for Greeley’s workforce in partnership with major 
employers. Investments in affordable housing projects by 
employers may be a less expensive way of making home 
ownership attainable than increasing wages.

Work with Habitat for Humanity to 
expand their role
Habitat for Humanity is already a major player in 
building new affordable housing in Greeley. They are 
also currently providing housing rehabilitation services 

in other communities. Bringing rehabilitation services 
to Greeley could significantly help with neighborhood 
revitalization.

Explore land banks
Several Northern Colorado communities use land 
banking as a tool to acquire sites for affordable housing 
projects. They purchase large sites well in advance 
of development, hold them, and either develop them 
themselves or sell them at a discount to developers in 
return for permanently affordable housing. In Greeley 
this has been done on a small scale, Greeley’s Urban 
Renewal Authority has purchased vacant land and land 
occupied by dilapidated structures and resold it for 
affordable housing. 

The power of land banking is that as the cost of land 
rises over time, the banked land can he held and made 
available for affordable housing at a lower cost, reducing 
the price of development. The biggest challenge to 
establishing a land bank is establishing the funding 
mechanism and capital to fund purchases. The City 
should therefore explore funding sources such impact 
fees, dedicated tax funding, and state and federal funds. 

p. 14
265



Strategic Housing Plan

4 
STRATEGY IV
Improve the Product 
Housing Mix

Encourage diversity in housing types
The high interest rates that limited housing affordability 
during the 1980s stimulated significant innovation in 
creative product designs for housing. Concepts such as 
patio homes, zero-lot line housing, and other layouts 
were just a few of the creative land planning and building 
types. These creative housing designs seem to have been 
forgotten in the housing boom of the 1990s and early 
2000s. During the recent housing recovery, there have 
been relatively few options from which to choose. 

Promote housing innovation
Most new housing units in Greeley are produced using 
nearly the same process as 50 years ago. The bulk of 
the construction still occurs outdoors, on the site with 
subcontractor crews moving from house to house, 
frequently between subdivisions and communities. 
As a result, weather, traffic, and many other factors 
contribute to construction delays. 
       

While land grading, wet and dry utilities, foundation, 
and flatwork must be constructed in place, none 
of the construction above the foundation needs to 
be constructed on-site. In fact, it is more efficient 
to construct housing units or components in the 
controlled environment of a factory. Large jigs and 
patterns that would be too cumbersome to use on-site 
as well as adhesives that cannot withstand moisture 
or low temperatures can be used in factories. By 
improving efficiency and quality, indoor construction 
can significantly reduce the cost of housing thereby 
improving housing affordability.

p. 15
266



Strategic Housing Plan

 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT 
SOURCE GUIDE  re 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                                                         Spring 2011 

Update the Redevelopment Guide 
The Redevelopment Guide was created in 2011 as 
a resource to simplify redevelopment endeavors by 
compiling all the various city programs and incentives 
in one guide.  In recent years, various city departments 
have been exploring new programs to lower the barriers 
to development/re-development. The Redevelopment 
Guide should be updated to incorporate the latest pilot 
projects and incentives. 

Along with other Code update recommendations, staff 
also recommends that the Redevelopment District itself 
be re-examined contextually to identify subareas and to 
delineate commercial versus residential redevelopment 
incentives.  City staff should continue to explore 
additional tools and programs  to encourage infill in older 
at risk neighborhoods. 

Several cities have adopted programs which provide 
pre-approved or “permit-ready” construction plans to the 
public at no or low cost. These programs reduce barriers 
to individual citizens through reduced design costs, 
project review fees, and review time. 

In many older parts of the city, east of 23rd Avenue, 
neighborhoods are platted with relatively similar lot 
configurations that have little variation in dimensions 
throughout the subdivision. Most modern stock housing 
plans are designed for post-World War II lots that tend to 
be wider and shallower. However, many of the lots east 

of 23rd Avenue are relatively narrow and deep. The City 
should explore the availability of model housing plans 
for new and accessory units that would fit spatially and 
contextually into the Redevelopment District. Special 
attention should be given to neighborhood character 
to ensure that pre-approved plans are architecturally 
compatible with the area.

Greeley Redevelopment Resource Guide 

BIRD’S EYE VIEW 

 4 

 

REDEVELOPMENT DEFINED 

What is Redevelopment? 
 
Redevelopment can range from the complete removal of structures and new construc-
tion to rehabilitation or façade improvements to an existing building, as reflected in the 
following examples: 

 
Scrape & Build 
The complete removal of 
existing structures on a 
property and replace-
ment with new 
construction. 

 

 

Infill/New Development 
The development of va-
cant or substantially 
underutilized property 
that is generally sur-
rounded by existing 
development. 

 

 

Substantial Reconstruction 
Modifying an existing 
structure by constructing 
a significant building al-
teration or addition (such 
as by “popping the top”). 

 

 

 

p. 16
267



Strategic Housing Plan

Address the Impact 
of Raw Water Cost on 
Housing Affordability5 
STRATEGY V

Implement water smart neighborhood 
and common area policies
Greeley has traditionally required the dedication of three 
acre-feet of raw water rights per acre for land used for 
housing. The rapid escalation of the price of raw water 
rights has contributed significantly to the increase in the 
cost of housing, especially in the Residential Estate (R-E) 
and Residential Low (R-L) Density zones that have larger 
minimum lot areas.

The City is undertaking a pilot program called “Water 
Smart Neighborhoods” to permit a reduction in the 
dedication requirement in return for a firm commitment 
to reduce water demand. Under this pilot program, 
developers would have the option to propose a 
Water Smart Neighborhood in exchange for lower 
raw water dedication.  A complete subdivision filing 
must be proposed for consideration as a Water Smart 
Neighborhood; individual lots or partial filings would not 

be allowed.  Filings can be proposed at 80% of normal 
consumption, 60%, or 40%. Correspondingly, raw water 
would be dedicated, per surface acre, at 2.5 ac-ft., 2 
ac-ft., or 1.5 ac-ft. (under the current 3 ac-ft. per 1 land 
acre standard).  These can be referred to as Water Tier 
80, Water Tier 60, or Water Tier 40. The implementation 
of Water Smart Neighborhoods will likely be realized  
through water conserving landscape design and 
maintenance (Xeriscaping) and water efficient fixtures. 

Once designated, households will be required to be 
maintained at or below their designated Water Tier.  Lots 
will have a water budget, as determined by the city-wide 
Water Budget Program.  The standard water budget for 
the household will then be reduced by 20%, 40%, etc., 
based on the assigned Water Tier.  This would be noted 
as a Water Smart Neighborhood Water Tier 80 Reduction 
calculation on citizens’ individual water bills. 

p. 17
268



Strategic Housing Plan

To successfully achieve this on a neighborhood scale 
will require extensive training and awareness. To ensure 
on-going compliance, the City will (after build-out) target 
Water Smart Neighborhood residents for awareness 
and on-going education.  Such efforts can include line-
item notice on water bills, brochures, and meetings with 
neighborhood representatives.

Develop a water smart policy for 
individual lots
The City can develop an approach and policies targeted 
to individual homeowners with incentives equivalent to 
those provided for the developers of new homes. 
The Water Smart Neighborhood methodology could 
be applied to  “Water Smart Homeowners” whom 
voluntarily commit to a lower water consumption budget. 

The City currently bases its water billing on a water 
budget.  This is calculated by multiplying the number 
of people living in a residential unit times the average 
indoor use per person plus the imperious area on each 
lot times the irrigation water demand for that month. 
Water customers that exceed their allocated budget pay 
a higher rate. 

Applying a water smart policy to at the micro level 
could help lower the price of city-wide housing over 
time. Lowering existing water demand lengthens the 
time before additional investment is needed to enlarge 
storage, transmission, and distribution infrastructure 
thus enhancing the affordability of living in Greeley.

p. 18
269



Strategic Housing Plan

Complete Subarea 
& Neighborhood Plans6 
STRATEGY VI

Complete plans for neighborhoods 
with housing opportunities
Subarea and neighborhood plans bridge the gap between 
broad policies of comprehensive plans and geographic 
specific areas.  These plans identify the desired 
characteristics of an area that should be preserved 
or enhanced, identify opportunities to implement 
comprehensive plan goals and policies, and define a 
shared vision for the area which addresses housing, 
trails, parks, schools, and commercial services. 

Neighborhood planning helps identify appropriate 
densities, character, and mix of uses, and the regulatory 
changes needed to ensure that development occurs  in 
accordance with a shared vision. With large swaths of 
undeveloped land within both city limits and the Long 
Range Expected Growth Area, it is important for the 
City to get ahead of development to ensure that future 
development is compatible with the area and goals of 
the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. Additionally, 

many older neighborhoods have opportunities for infill 
redevelopment of housing. With appropriate planning 
and design, newer housing units can be integrated 
into the existing urban fabric. This can have the mutual 
benefits of preserving neighborhood character as well as 
providing opportunities for redevelopment.

Large-scale master planning for 
complete neighborhoods
Complete neighborhoods host a mix of uses in order to 
provide for our daily need to live, work, play, worship, 
dine, shop, and interact. They are more likely to be 
achieved through master planning. However, larger-
scale sites are challenging for multiple reasons. Larger-
scaled projects can encompass sites that are in multiple 
ownerships, which can lead to disputes over phasing 
and timing, where the higher value land uses go, how 
to pay for and locate infrastructure, and how revenues 
and equity are shared among the owners. Large-scale 
projects also take longer to implement leading to higher 

p. 19
270



Strategic Housing Plan

financing costs, and are more susceptible to changing 
market conditions. 

Through subarea and neighborhood plans, the City can 
help identify appropriate sites for public services and 
infrastructure such as roads, school sites, fire stations 
etc. setting the foundation onto which master planned 
communities can they be built. 

The City can also explore creating incentives for 
landowners to work together. For example, the City could 
directly provide or retain consultants to provide planning 
services for land owners wishing to cooperate on larger 
scale, multiple ownership planning projects. This could 
result in rezoning or appropriately-structured Planned 
Unit Development approvals. Such plans could avoid land 
use conflicts that can arise from piecemeal, small-scale 
planning. 

Identify under-utilized sites for housing
Many areas in Greeley are underused. Such areas include 
un-needed parking areas and the air-rights above those 
parking areas. Such sites may offer opportunities for 
the development of housing. The City should create and 
maintain an inventory of underutilized sites that meet or 
nearly meet adequate public facilities requirements and 
promote their redevelopment.

Adopt a five-year housing goal
With this Plan, adopt a goal of a 5-year housing target 
of 2,042 multi-family and 3,515 single family units built 
in Greeley by 2024. The shortage of both affordable and 
market housing is too great to realistically expect it to be 
fulfilled in one year. By setting and meeting an aggressive 
five-year goal, it is possible to ease the housing shortage 
each year and reach a balanced housing market. 

2,042 multi-family units built 

3,515 single family units built by 2024  

5-YEAR GOAL (2019 - 2024)

p. 20
271



Strategic Housing Plan

Encourage Ownership, 
Move-up & Executive 
Housing Options7 
STRATEGY VII

Encourage a range in housing choices
As people age throughout their lives, their ability to pay 
for and need for housing changes. As young adults leave 
home to set up housing, their needs may be minimal. 
However, as they start families and raise children, they 
may need larger housing with more outdoor space. 
Move-down housing options are important to empty 
nesters who may have needed a larger home in which to 
raise children but no longer need the additional space or 
wish to clean or maintain it. 

Greater options in single family housing types are needed 
to accommodate changing demographics. Options should 
include smaller footprint detached structures, town 
homes, attached homes, and accessory dwelling units. 
The inclusion of these units types should be addressed in 
neighborhood plans and encouraged at the neighborhood 
level. 

Work with developers to create higher-
end developments
Greeley has limited move-up and executive housing. The 
City should create a task force that includes developers, 
financial, professionals, and real estate professionals to 
address barriers to creating higher-end developments. 
This task force would identify barriers, develop policies, 
and encourage other entities to undertake activities and 
policies to attract higher income buyers to Greeley and 
supply them with appropriate housing products.

Explore cooperative housing options
One of the emerging forms of home ownership is 
cooperative housing. In cooperative housing, the land 
and buildings containing the housing units are owned 
by a corporation or other entity that is, in turn, owned 
jointly by the residents. While on the surface, this sounds 
a lot like condominium ownership, it is less regulated and 
there is less likely to be a property manager involved.

p. 21272



Strategic Housing Plan

Develop additional home ownership 
incentive programs
G-HOPE is an employer sponsored program to provide 
down payment assistance to prospective home buyers 
purchasing homes in select neighborhoods within the 
Redevelopment District. Down payment assistance is 
available to regular full-time employees of the City of 
Greeley, the University of Northern Colorado, Greeley-
Evans School District No. 6, Banner Health/North 
Colorado Medical Center, Sunrise Community Health, 
Frontier Academy, High Plains Library District, and 
Salida del Sol Academy. The City should look to expand 
this partnership with other major employers within the 
community in order to build its workforce housing. 

The City can also explore other, reimbursed, home buyer 
assistance programs to be implemented city wide. The 
loan in such a program would be due back in full when 
the house is sold, transfered out of the buyer’s name, 
second lien obtained, or rented. 

p. 22
273



Strategic Housing Plan

Encourage Vocational 
Training & Apprentice 
Programs8 
STRATEGY VIII

Support educational institutions 
involved in skilled trades
Throughout Northern Colorado, builders report a lack 
of workers in the skilled trades necessary for home 
building. The City, Greeley-Evans School District 6, 
Aims Community College, and non-profit and for-profit 
builders, have been cooperating on education, training, 
and apprenticeship programs for the building trades. 
It is essential for the health of the home-building and 
remodeling industries that these entities continue their 
programs. 

p. 23
274



Strategic Housing Plan

Facilitate Development 
of Manufactured Home 
Parks 9 
STRATEGY VIIII

Affordable housing options
While manufactured homes provide an affordable 
options to traditional housing, they provide their own set 
of unique challenges. Owners of manufactured homes 
face many similar challenges as renters; space rents can 
rise, they can be evicted, and then there is the possibility 
of income loss or a health crisis. Relocating can be a 
more difficult endeavor for a manufactured home owner 
because transport fees are costly, yearly taxes must be 
paid in full to obtain a moving permit, and finding a new 
spot in another mobile home park can be difficult. 

Some of the management practices for mobile home 
parks can serve to trap low-income people in unsuitable 
housing situations. Space rents are often secured by the 
movable property. Therefore, manufactured homes can 
be seized for back rent if the resident cannot afford to 
move it or find another place to set it up. The unit may be 
resold and the process can be repeated. 

Explore alternative ownership options
Developing manufactured home parks with a community 
land trust or as cooperative housing projects can 
alleviate predatory practices.  Giving the residents an 
ownership interest in the manufactured home park is 
likely to lead to more equitable treatment of residents 
and create an incentive to maintain the park to a high 
level of quality. 

Alternative technologies
Manufactured homes are built in factories rather than 
on-site. They are therefore not as susceptible to labor 
shortages and can capitalize on mass production 
efficiencies. 

Recognized as the grandfather to the tiny home 
movement, manufactured homes are regaining 
popularity. Architects and new urbanists such as Andre 
Duany tote the social successes of mobile home parks 
and are re-imagining the manufactured home product. 

p. 24 275



Strategic Housing Plan

With “bento box“ like compartamilism and sleek materials, 
these new designs are trying to break the stigma of 
mobile home parks and capture the attention of those 
with minimal needs and desire for affordability. 

Update regulations
Much has been done in recent years to enhance the 
quality of mobile home parks, including the adoption of 
mobile home building codes and other regulations. The 
City’s current mobile home setback and dimensional 
standards do not appropriately address newer sized 
manufactured home products. Upgrading mobile home 
park regulations to address new product types as well as 
updated requirements for amenities, usable open space, 
streets and walkways, off-street parking, and other 
features is key to encouraging high-quality, cohesive 
manufactured home developments. 

p. 25
276



Strategic Housing Plan

IMPLEMENTATION
Achieving the goals outline in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan will require new 
polices, new programs, new and deeper partnerships with non-profit  organizations, land 
use development code changes, and possible zoning district changes. 

Similarly, the strategies discussed in this Strategic Housing Plan will require separate and 
specific implementation. Adoption of the plan does not begin the implementation of any 
item nor legally bind the City to implement any particular strategy. Given that the actions 
are intended to take place in the future and that we cannot bind future Councils, there 
must be enough flexibility to permit future Councils to set priorities based on the City’s 
needs.

The table below provides specific actions or “next steps” the City can pursue to 
implement the nine strategies.  For each action a lead department or organization is 
identified who would likely spearhead the effort. Each actions was also assigned a time 
frame based on need and feasibility. Time frames are described as short-term meaning 
one to three years, mid-term meaning three to five years, long-term meaning five years 
or more, or ongoing for actions that needs to continue over time. 

p. 26Strategic Housing Plan
277



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

1. AMEND THE 
DEVELOPMENT 
CODE TO 
PROMOTE 
HOUSING CHOICE

Identify and initiate 
strategic rezones to correct 
zoning mismatches

✓ CD

Identify geographic and 
contextually appropriate 
locations for accessory 
dwelling units (ADUs) and 
amend the Development 
Code to include ADU 
regulations

✓ CD

Amend minimum lot sizes, 
open space requirements, 
building height, setbacks 
and/or performance 
options in residential zoning 
districts

✓ CD

Amend the Development 
Code to create incentives 
to encourage complete 
neighborhoods

✓ CD

Amend the Development 
Code to incentivize the 
inclusion of affordable 
housing in new 
development

✓ CD

Amend housing occupancy 
standards

✓ CD

2. DEVELOP 
FINANCIAL 
STRATEGIES 
THAT MINIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT 
COSTS

Explore financial incentives 
to encourage permanent 
affordable housing

✓ EHH CD

Explore private activity 
bonds, forgivable loan/
grants, tax credits, Kansas 
City forgivable loan funds, 
and other funding sources

✓ EHH

CD = COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 27
278



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

2. DEVELOP 
FINANCIAL 
STRATEGIES 
THAT MINIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT 
COSTS

Evaluate the risks, costs, 
and benefits of having the 
City front-end required 
trunk lines which would be 
reimbursed with impact 
fees

✓ EHH CD

Based on a positive 
recommendation, 
implement having the 
City front-end required 
trunk lines which would be 
reimbursed with impact 
fees

✓ CM CD
PW
WS

EHH

Support metropolitan 
districts or other special 
districts as potential 
financing tools

✓ CD EHH

Explore alternative housing 
finance options

✓ EHH

Update the Redevelopment 
Resource Guide to include 
current pilot programs and 
incentive packages

✓ CD WS

3. ENGAGE 
ALTERNATIVE 
HOUSING 
PROVIDERS

Explore working with 
community land trusts 
to create a shared equity 
home ownership program

✓ EHH CD

Partner with one or 
more housing providers 
to construct attainable 
housing

✓ EHH CD

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 28 279



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

3. ENGAGE 
ALTERNATIVE 
HOUSING 
PROVIDERS

Work with major employers 
for shared equity housing 
(e.g., down payment 
assistance programs, 
employer sponsored 
savings plan)

✓ EHH CD

Explore the feasibility of 
a land bank for affordable 
housing

✓ EHH CM
CD

Explore the potential 
to expand Habitat for 
Humanity’s role to include 
housing rehabilitation

✓ EHH CD

Explore alternative housing 
finance options

✓ EHH CD

4. IMPROVE 
THE HOUSING 
PRODUCT MIX

Explore alternative housing 
technologies, products, 
production methods, and 
housing types including 
factory built housing

✓ EHH CD

Explore working with 
community land trusts 
to create a shared equity 
home ownership program

✓ EHH CD

5. ADDRESS 
THE IMPACT OF 
RAW WATER 
ON HOUSING 
AFFORDABILITY

Implement the “Water 
Smart Neighborhood Policy” 
and the “Water Smart 
Common Area Policy”

✓ WS CD

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 29 280



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

5. ADDRESS 
THE IMPACT OF 
RAW WATER 
ON HOUSING 
AFFORDABILITY

Develop a “Water Smart 
Individual Lot Policy” to 
reduce the cost of water 
for existing and future 
homeowners

✓ WS CD

6. COMPLETE 
SUBAREA & 
NEIGHBORHOOD 
PLANS

Complete subarea or 
neighborhood plans 
for areas that have the 
potential to provide a 
significant amount of 
housing in the near future

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Complete subarea or 
neighborhood plans 
for areas in distress or 
those that are prime for 
redevelopment

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Collaborate with housing 
providers on large scale 
master plans

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Identify under-utilized sites 
that could be re-purposed 
for housing

✓ CD

7. CREATE MORE 
OWNERSHIP, 
MOVE-UP & 
EXECUTIVE 
HOUSING 
OPTIONS

Develop more home 
ownership incentive 
programs

✓ EHH

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 30 281



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

7. CREATE MORE 
OWNERSHIP, 
MOVE-UP & 
EXECUTIVE 
HOUSING 
OPTIONS

Work with a task force 
that includes developers, 
financial, professionals, and 
real estate professionals to 
address barriers to creating 
higher-end developments

✓ CD EHH

Explore the attraction 
of cooperative housing 
providers

✓ EHH CD

8.  ENCOURAGE 
VOCATIONAL, 
TRAINING, AND 
APPRENTICE 
PROGRAMS 
FOR BUILDING 
TRADES

Continue to support 
school districts and post-
secondary educational 
institutions involvement 
in developing courses and 
apprenticeships in skilled 
trades

✓ CM
CD
WS
PW

9. FACILITATE 
DEVELOPMENT 
OF 
MANUFACTURED 
HOMES

Update zoning regulations 
for mobile homes to 
address changing products 
and assure there is safe and 
adequate infrastructure and 
amenities

✓ CD

Explore alternative 
ownership options including 
non-profits, cooperative 
ownership, and community 
land trust

✓ CD EHH

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 31 282



City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan  February 12, 2019 

 

 
 

ITEM: Adoption of the City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan 

 

PLANNER: Rachel Prelog, Planner II 
 

HEARING DATE: February 12, 2019 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
To review the proposed update of the City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan and make a 
recommendation to the City Council in the form of a motion. 
 

 

 

PROJECT OVERVIEW AND BACKGROUND: 
On February 6, 2018 the City Council adopted Imagine Greeley, an update of the City of 
Greeley’s Comprehensive. A high priority recommendation of the Plan was the development of a 
comprehensive housing strategy for Greeley. 

 
The draft of the City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan currently under review for today’s 
hearing is intended to implement this recommendation. The Strategic Housing Plan would 
become a sub-element of the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan along with all other 
adopted master plans and area plans. 
 
The creation of the Strategic Housing Plan took place during 2018, with the help and input 
from a Housing Accessibility Task Force, data assistance from outside consultants, and the 
support and analysis of city staff. The Housing Accessibility Task Force met five times during 
2018 to discuss challenges facing Greeley’s housing market and brainstorm possible solutions. 
The Task Force included real estate professionals, affordable and market-rate housing 
providers, nonprofit and for-profit developers, and city staff. Working closely with city staff, 
the Housing Accessibility Task Force identified seven key constraints or challenges to housing 
affordability: 
 

1. Escalating cost of raw water; 
2. Rising cost of construction and development related costs; 
3. Lack of financing; 
4. Lack of skilled labor; 
5. Rising costs of existing housing; 
6. Flat wages; and 
7. Missing homes not built during the Great Recession and Greeley’s residential downturn. 

 
In addition, city staff held work sessions with the City Council and Planning Commission to 
keep them informed and to provide opportunities for feedback. 
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 

283



City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan  February 12, 2019 

 

The Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan, included two goals for housing: 
 

1) Improve access to housing for all income levels, ages, and physical abilities; and 

2) Encourage a broad diversity of housing options. 
 

The action items listed in this Strategic Housing Plan will require separate and specific 
implementation. Adoption of the plan does not begin the implementation of any item nor legally 
bind the City to implement any particular action. Rather, this plan explores the challenges to 
housing in Greeley and provides nine recommended strategies to address housing affordability 
and supply.  
 

City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan – Nine strategies: 
 

1) Amend the Development Code to promote housing choice; 
2) Develop financial strategies that minimize infrastructure costs for affordable 

housing; 
3) Engage alternative housing providers to build affordable housing; 
4) Improve the housing product mix; 
5) Address the impact of raw water cost on housing affordability; 
6) Complete subarea and neighborhood plans; 
7) Create more ownership, move-up, and executive housing options; 
8) Encourage vocational training, and apprentice programs for building trades; and 
9) Facilitate development of manufactured home parks as an important affordable housing 

option. 
 
 

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission is the primary steward of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and any 
amendments or additions to the Plan. As such, adoption of a sub-element, require a public hearing 
on the proposed amendment and formal recommendation to the City Council. City staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval to the City 
Council to adopt the City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan in the form of a motion. 
 

 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the City of Greeley 
Strategic Housing Plan. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan 
Attachment B – Strategic Housing Plan Implementation Road Map

284



3 

 

 

285



CITY OF GREELEY
STRATEGIC HOUSING 

PLAN
An Element of the Imagine Greeley 

Comprehensive Plan

286



Page left intentionally blank

287



City Council
Robb Casseday
Michael Fitzsimmons
John Gates
Dale Hall
Brett Payton
John Smail
Stacy Suniga

Planning Commission
Louisa Andersen
Erik Briscoe
Gloria Hice-Idler
Larry Modlin
Jon Rarick
Christian Schulte
Justin Yeater

Community Development Staff
John Barnett
Mike Garrott
Brad Mueller
Rachel Prelog

Greeley Housing Task Force
Jamie Baessler 
Mike Bond
Bianca Fisher
Lindsey Galindo
Jodi Hartmann
Chris Helwick
Julie Jensen
John Kadavy
Carol Larsen
Ulli Limpitlaw
Greg Miedema
Kris Pickett
Collin Richardson
Cathy Schulte
Chalice Springfield
Barbara Whinery
Cheri Witt-Brown

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

288



Page left intentionally blank

289



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Introduction.....................................................................................................................
Current Conditions.........................................................................................................

A Brief Overview.................................................................................................................. 
 Multi-family housing...........................................................................................................................................

Single family housing.......................................................................................................................................... 
Housing Mix............................................................................................................................................................

The Problem of Affordability..............................................................................................
Seven Key Constraints to Housing Affordability.............................................................

Escalating cost of raw water.............................................................................................................................
Rising cost of construction and development related costs....................................................................
Lack of financing...................................................................................................................................................
Lack of skilled labor..............................................................................................................................................
Rising costs of existing housing.......................................................................................................................
Flat wages...............................................................................................................................................................
Missing homes not built during the Great Recession and Greeley’s residential downturn...........

Strategies.........................................................................................................................
Amend the Development Code.........................................................................................

Correct zoning mismatches................................................................................................................................
Accessory dwelling units....................................................................................................................................
Reduce minimum lot sizes for single family housing.................................................................................
Provide regulatory incentives for permanent affordable housing.........................................................
Encourage complete neighborhoods..............................................................................................................
Short-term rentals...............................................................................................................................................

Minimize Infrastructure Costs...........................................................................................
Explore new development incentives.............................................................................................................
Evaluate having the City front-end major infrastructure..........................................................................
Support metropolitan districts..........................................................................................................................

Engage Alternative Housing Providers............................................................................
Work with community land trusts....................................................................................................................
Partner with for-profit and non-profit housing providers........................................................................
Work with major employers on shared housing programs......................................................................
Work with Habitat for Humanity to expand their role...............................................................................
Explore land banks...............................................................................................................................................

1
2
2
2
2
2
3
3
3
4
5
5
5
5
5
6
7
7
8
8
9
9
10
11
11
11
12
13
13
14
14
14
14

290



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Improve the Housing Product Mix ...................................................................................

Encourage diversity in housing types.............................................................................................................
Promote housing innovation..............................................................................................................................
Update the Redevelopment Guide...................................................................................................................

Address the Impact of Raw Water Cost on Housing Affordability..............................
Implement water smart neighborhood and common area policies......................................................
Develop a water smart policy for individual lots.........................................................................................

Complete Subarea & Neighborhood Plans......................................................................
Complete plans for neighborhoods with housing opportunities............................................................
Large-scale master planning for complete neighborhoods.....................................................................
Identify under-utilized sites for housing........................................................................................................
Adopt a five-year housing goal........................................................................................................................

Encourage Ownership, Move-up & Executive Housing Options..................................
Encourage a range in housing choices............................................................................................................
Work with developers to create higher-end development.......................................................................
Explore cooperative housing options..............................................................................................................
Develop additional home ownership incentive programs........................................................................

Encourage Vocational Training & Apprentice Programs...............................................
Support educational institutions involves in skilled trades.....................................................................

Facilitate Development of Manufactured Home Parks.................................................
Affordable housing options................................................................................................................................
Explore alternative ownership options...........................................................................................................
Alternative technologies.....................................................................................................................................
Update regulations..............................................................................................................................................

Implementation..............................................................................................................

15
15
15
16
17
17
18
19
19
19
20
20
21
21
21
21
22
23
23
24
24
24
24
25
26

291



Strategic Housing Plan

INTRODUCTION

Strategic Housing Plan p. 1

Greeley aspires to provide a range of housing to accommodate its diverse and growing population. 
Diversity in housing would mean both a variety of housing types and a broad range in price. 
Because communities are largely defined by the type, style, and cost of housing it is important 
for Greeley to have a clear understanding of current housing conditions with strategies to shape 
future growth. 

Through a variety of policies, programs, and regulations, the type, number, and affordability 
of new and existing housing can be influenced. Housing was a key component of the Imagine 
Greeley Comprehensive Plan. However, due to  the complexity of housing issues and its impact on  
community well being, the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan  called for a deeper examination into 
housing policy through the development of a Comprehensive Housing Strategy. 

The creation of the Strategic Housing Plan took place during 2018, with the help and input from a 
Housing Accessibility Task Force, data assistance from outside consultants, and the support and 
analysis of city staff. The Housing Accessibility Task Force met five times during 2018 to discuss 
challenges facing Greeley’s housing market and brainstorm possible solutions. The Task Force 
included real estate professionals, affordable and market-rate housing providers, nonprofit and 
for-profit developers, and city staff. Working closely with city staff, the Housing Accessibility Task 
Force identified seven key constraints or challenges to housing affordability:

1. Escalating cost of raw water;
2. Rising cost of construction and development related costs;
3. Lack of financing;
4. Lack of skilled labor;
5. Rising costs of existing housing;
6. Flat wages; and
7. Missing homes not built during the Great Recession and Greeley’s residential downturn.

The action items listed in this Strategic Housing Plan will require separate and specific 
implementation. Adoption of the plan does not begin the implementation of any item nor legally 
bind the City to implement any particular action. Rather, this plan explores the challenges above 
and provides nine recommended strategies to address  housing affordability and supply. 

292



Strategic Housing Plan

Since 1990, Greeley’s housing market has grown at 
an average rate of 1.8% per year. During this time, 
housing growth generally kept pace with population 
growth except for between 2003 - 2005 when housing 
outpaced population growth and 2008 - 2013 when it 
lagged behind population growth. The surplus of housing 
provided during the construction boom in the early 
2000s was not enough to offset the growing population 
through the later half of the decade. As a result, staff 
estimates there were approximately 1,100 residential 
units not built, needed to keep pace with recent 
population growth. 

Multi-family housing 
A healthy multi-family housing market is considered to 
be one where the vacancy rate is approximately 5%. Since 
2011, Greeley’s multi-family housing vacancy rate has 
averaged 3.41%. Looking at more recent trends, for the 
last five years, the vacancy rate has dropped o.44% to 
2.96%. This means that Greeley currently has a very tight 
multi-family market with few rentals available. This can 
not only result in higher rents but it can also force people 
to look elsewhere for housing if the type and price point 
of units isn’t available. 

Single family housing
A healthy single family market is considered to be one 
where there is a six month supply of existing homes 
for sale. The months of supply is the time it would take 
for all the current inventory to sell without any new 
inventory coming on the market. Based on yearly average 
sales of existing units since 2014, a six months supply 
of existing units would  be 685 units. Recent searches 
of current listings show that Greeley is currently below 
a six months supply with home availability somewhere 
between 350 - 400 units.   When inventory levels are 

less than six months, sellers have more control over price 
and terms, often leading to rising home prices. In order 
to balance the market, Greeley would need to provide 
a surplus of new construction over what is required to 
meet growing population demand.   

Housing mix
Greeley’s historic mix of single and multi-family housing 
has remained relatively constant at between 63% and 
66% single family units. However, during the most recent 
housing recovery, 2013 to 2018, more than half of 
new construction consisted of multi-family housing to 
the extent that the overall percentage of single family 
housing declined by 1.75% from a high of 65.39% in 2012, 
to 63.56% in 2019. As housing costs continue to rise, 
staff anticipates a continued trend in a higher proportion 
of new construction being multi-family units. 
 

CURRENT CONDITIONS
A Brief Overview...

HOUSING BY THE NUMBERS

1.8% increase in housing 
between 1991-2019

6.5% increase in 
population between 
1991-2019

35% increase in average 
home sale price between 
2016 - 2018

p. 2
293



Strategic Housing Plan

Despite historically having one of the most affordable 
housing stocks in Northern Colorado, Greeley has not 
been immune to rising home costs and affordability 
problems. 

According to IRES data, average home sales rose 
$92,464 from 3rd quarter of 2016 to 3rd quarter of 
2018, a 35% increase.

One of the most significant problems in housing 
affordability is that incomes have not kept pace with 
the cost of housing. As a working class city, the high 

cost of housing results in many citizens paying a 
disproportionate amount of their income for housing.  In 
Greeley, a median income household cannot afford to 
purchase a median priced home. 

The current problem with housing affordability is unlikely 
to be solved simply by increased supply. The two main 
needs are to increase the supply of housing for all 
income levels, from subsidized to executive housing, and 
to increase the affordability of housing for wage-earning 
households.

The Problem of Affordability...

7 key constraints to housing affordability:
1. Escalating cost of raw water;
2. Rising cost of construction and 

development related costs;
3. Lack of financing;
4. Lack of skilled labor;
5. Rising costs of existing housing;
6. Flat wages; and
7. Missing homes not built during 

the Great Recession and Greeley’s 
residential downturn.

7 Key Constraints to Housing Affordability...
Escalating cost of raw water
One of the factors affecting the cost of housing has been 
the cost of raw water. Cities need reliable water rights to 
provide potable water to meet the needs of growth. The 
most valuable water and easiest to convert to municipal 
use is water supplied by the Colorado Big Thompson 
(CBT) Project. The price of this water, which increased by 
a factor of three between 2012 and 2016, became more 
expensive than the price for raw land for single family 
housing. 

On a year-round average, approximately half the treated 
water in Greeley is used for outdoor purposes, mainly 
landscape irrigation. During the summer months, as 
much as 70% of potable water is used for outdoor uses.                                                                                                                                            
                                                                     
Before 2018, Greeley required developers who anticipate 
building housing to dedicate three acre-feet of raw 
water for each acre of land they planed to develop. In 
2010, an acre-foot of (CBT) water could be purchased 
for approximately $8,500. In 2018, this amount of water 
costs rose to $33,000 per acre-foot.

At a density of four units per acre, the change in price 
per acre-foot increased the cost per residential unit by 
$24,500.

p. 3
294



Strategic Housing Plan

Water use per capita has been declining for the past 
several years because of water conservation, cost, and 
other reasons. Certain kinds of landscaping are capable 
of lowering water demand significantly. It should be 
possible to lower the cost of raw water by significant 
permanent limitations on landscape and irrigation 
designs, and other water conservation measures. 

Smaller lots, multi-family housing, and xeriscaping can all 
contribute to lower water use and can potentially, lower 
the cost of housing.

Rising cost of construction and 
development related costs
Costs for construction of all kinds are escalating for a 
variety of reasons including the increased scarcity of 
qualified labor, depletion of raw materials, impacts of 
international trade, and other factors. 

Other land planning techniques and housing products 
such as zero lot line homes, tiny homes, or construction 
technology such as factory built housing, manufactured 
components, or other proven technology should be 
encouraged. 

Price per unit of Colorado-Big Thompson Water per Unit Converted to Acre Feet 

1960-2017

p. 4
295



Strategic Housing Plan

Lack of financing
As a result of the mortgage crisis leading up to the Great 
Recession, banking regulations have been tightened to 
the extent that financing for land development has been 
almost nonexistent and construction lending for single 
family construction is difficult to obtain. 

Lack of skilled labor
As a result of the loss of construction jobs in the Great 
Recession, many people left the trades for other 
opportunities and have not returned. In addition, their 
knowledge is not being passed on to younger workers. 
This has left a large gap in skills and limited opportunities 
for younger trades-people to obtain the necessary job 
skills.

Rising cost of existing housing
A significant driver in the increase in prices of existing 
homes is the price escalation of new housing. As more 
people find they cannot afford a new house, they 
compete to purchase an existing home. This drives up 
the price of existing homes commensurate with the 
price escalation of new homes. In addition, as owners 
of existing homes look at their options, many choose to 
remodel rather than move up. 

Flat wages
Over the last 40 years, real wages have generally risen, 
but at a fraction of the rate of housing cost escalation. 
The result is that a significantly higher population is 
burdened by the cost of housing than was previously the 
case. 

Missing homes not built during 
the Great Recession and Greeley 
residential downturn
During the Great Recession, Greeley’s population grew 
each year, with the exception of 2009. With the difficulty 
in obtaining financing for any real estate or construction 
activity, especially single family housing, very few units 

were constructed. In fact, taking an average of the 
number of units constructed in the years leading up to 
the recession and 2014 and 2015, and comparing that to 
the recession years of 2008 through 2013, it is estimated 
that approximately 700 units were not constructed that 
would have been built in a non-recession. Then during 
Greeley’s 2016 and 2017 residential downturn, an 
additional 309 residential units were not built, meaning  
Greeley’s housing market is short approximately 1,100 
residential units, of the required units needed to keep 
pace with population growth. 

Based on data from Greeley Evans School District 6, it 
is estimated that there are at least 232 families living 
in “doubled-up” housing where more than one family 
shares a housing unit. 

Greeley’s residential market short  

~1,100 units

401 multi-family units  not 

constructed

685 single family units  not 

constructed

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 D
OW

N
TU

R
N

 B
Y 

TH
E 

N
UM

BE
R

S

p. 5
296



STRATEGIES
Nine Housing Strategies:

1.     Amend the Development Code to promote housing choice;

2. Minimize development costs for affordable housing; 

3. Engage alternative housing providers to build affordable housing;

4. Improve the housing product mix;

5. Address the impact of raw water cost on housing affordability;

6 Complete subarea and neighborhood plans;

7. Create more ownership, move-up, and executive housing options; 

8. Encourage vocational training, and apprentice programs for building trades; and

9. Facilitate development of manufactured home parks as an important affordable 
housing option. 

p. 6Strategic Housing Plan
297



Strategic Housing Plan

Correct zoning mismatches
Portions of the City have zoning that does not reflect 
existing land uses, recent development trends in the 
area, or land uses recommended in the Imagine Greeley 
Land Use Guidance Map. This can adversely affect the 
availability and cost of housing; requiring additional land 
use action. Money and time is lost on the preparation 
of zoning documents, staff review, and responding to 
comments, before actual permits can be applied for. 

Additional burdens are placed on homeowners whose 
residences are considered legally nonconforming 
due to the underlying zoning. Homeowners of legally 
nonconforming properties have trouble securing 
financing due to restrictions placed on nonconforming 
buildings.  For example, when a legally nonconforming 
residential structure is damaged by a calamity or 
other event, the replacement of the residence must 
commence and be completed within certain time frames. 
Furthermore, the replacement value of the structure 

cannot exceed 50% of its replacement value. Owners 
of legally nonconforming residences are also limited 
in repair and expansion  of their residence; restricted 
to valuation provisions and only allowed a one time 
expansion.

By adopting zoning that better reflects goals and 
strategies of the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan and 
matches the existing residential uses, the City can reduce 
unnecessary burdens and costs on housing providers and 
citizens.

Legally nonconforming sites, buildings, 
and structures: 
A building or structure that was allowed by 
the Code in effect when established, but is no 
longer permitted in the district in which it is 
located. 

1 
STRATEGY I

Amend the Development 
Code to Promote Housing 
Choice

p. 7
298



Strategic Housing Plan

Accessory dwelling units
Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) can provide affordable 
rental options in predominantly single family 
neighborhoods, and act as a wealth-building tool for 
homeowners. ADUs can increase the overall housing 
supply incrementally without requiring additional land for 
expansion. 

While a potentially significant addition to the housing 
stock, ADUs may not be appropriate everywhere; too 
many units may overburden neighborhoods and services, 
and appropriate site and architectural design is essential.

Allowing for ADUs would require future action through 
code changes. These would include the creation of 
appropriate design criteria and review processes. The 
City would look to peer cities that have allowed ADUs 
for lessons learned. Future study would be undertook to 
identify appropriate lot sizes and neighborhoods in which 
they could be allowed. ADUs would then be reviewed 
based on characteristics of the lot, including size, 
configuration, parking availability,  and neighborhood 
context. 

Reduce minimum lot sizes for single 
family housing
The Residential Low Density (R-L) Zoning District has a 
minimum required lot size of 6,000 square feet with a 
minimum open space requirement of 30%. While many 
people prefer the type of housing defined by these 
zoning standards, the city’s changing demographics 
emphasize a need for a broader mix of housing 
types. Many households cannot afford the housing 
that is typically built in single-family neighborhoods. 

Others enjoy the character and lifestyle of suburban 
neighborhoods but do not need the space and/or have 
trouble maintaining larger lots. 

Accessory dwelling unit (ADU): 
A smaller, attached or detached residential 
dwelling unit located on the same lot as a 
stand alone single family home. 

p. 8
299



Strategic Housing Plan

A development pattern based on smaller footprint 
configurations could yield higher density, lower costs, 
and lower water demand. Future action would require 
code changes to the zoning development standards, 
and considerations of changes to setbacks, open space 
requirements, and cluster development standards. 

Provide regulatory incentives for 
permanent affordable housing
While requiring developers to provide affordable housing 
is illegal in Colorado, providing regulatory incentives 
is permitted. For example, cities and towns may grant 
additional intensity or up-zoning, if a proportion of a 
development is set aside for affordable housing. 

Encourage complete neighborhoods
Complete neighborhoods contain a mix of land uses 
and services where most residents can meet most 
of their daily needs within a 20-minute safe and 
comfortable walking distance. Key elements of complete 
neighborhoods are a fine-scaled mix of land uses, 
minimal large parking lots, neighborhood schools 
and parks, shaded sidewalks, frequent rest stops and 
sitting areas, windows facing the street, interesting 
architecture, and other people out walking. Such 
neighborhoods may yield less stress and cost than 
autocentiric neighborhoods where the automobile is 
require to access most needs. 

Zoning appropriately for complete neighborhoods 
would require finer scaled commercial districts that are 
incorporated  more frequently at the block level. Smaller 
scale commercial districts that were limited to land uses 
necessary to support daily activities would also reduce 
the need for large commercial centers which often 
contain buildings with large footprints and large parking 
lots which become hard to redevelop as they age.

The City of Greeley currently has a euclidean system of 
zoning by which residential, commercial, and industrial 
uses are, for the most part, restricted to separate 
zoning districts. Many communities have shifted from 

this traditional practice of zoning to incentive zoning, 
form-base code, performance-based zoning, etc. The 
City can support complete neighborhoods by exploring 
a reclassification of zoning districts using on of these 
practices or a hybrid zoning which allows more flexibility 
in uses while defining specific design criteria based on 
location. 

Euclidean Zoning: 
System of zoning by which the town or 
community is divided into areas in which 
specific uses of land are permitted. 
 

Hybrid Zoning: 
System of zoning that identifies best elements 
of euclidean zoning, formed-based zoning, 
and incentive zoning and integrates them into 
a new whole. Location specific, hybrid zoning 
allows for diversity in uses while establishing 
specific design criteria for districts, such as 
downtowns, or street frontages based on 
classification. 

p. 9
300



Strategic Housing Plan

Short-term rentals
A growing problem in much of the U. S. is the conversion 
of housing units into short-term rental properties that 
operate somewhat like hotels and are known by brand 
names such as Air B&B, VBRO, etc. Short-term rentals 
can include the use of a spare bedroom or it can entail 
the rental of an entire housing unit or even a multi-family 
structure. 

The City currently does not have specific Code to 
regulate short-term rentals. Rather they are restricted 
by occupancy standards, which dictate how many non-
related persons can occupy a residence. The City does 
not have data on this trend but is aware that many 
short-term rentals are operating within Greeley without 
authorization of a business license. 

The lack of regulations, enforcement, and city oversight  
results in lost tax revenue. Improper siting of these 
facilities can affect neighborhood livability with negative 
impacts on traffic, maintenance, and noise. There is also 
possibility that short-term rentals can reduce the city’s 
housing stock and contribute to a low vacancy rate and 
higher housing prices.

When implemented and regulated properly, short-
term rentals can be a positive addition to communities, 
contributing to sales tax, tourism, and housing diversity. 
The City should look to peer communities who have 
implemented short-term rental regulations when 
considering future Code changes and seek to legalize as 
many of the existing short-term rentals as appropriate. 

Affordable Housing: 
Housing that costs no more than 30% of a 
household’s income.
 

Due to the phenomenon of drive to 
qualify, some definitions also include 
transportation costs;  spending no more 
than 45% of household’s income for housing 
and transport. 

p. 10
301



Strategic Housing Plan

2 
STRATEGY II
Minimize Development 
Costs for Affordable 
Housing

Explore new development incentives 
The City’s role in providing affordable housing begins 
with finding ways to eliminating barriers for its 
development. Greeley’s development regulations were 
implemented to ensure safety, compatibility, and to 
maximize the quality of development. These regulations 
add time and cost to housing development. Some 
developers see these processes as hindrances that drive 
up costs. 

The City currently offers economic development 
incentives for new job creation and has recently 
launched  incentives for large construction projects in the 
Redevelopment District. The City should similarly explore 
incentive packages to encourage the development of 
affordable housing. These may include density bonuses, 
parking reductions, or priority processing.

Evaluate having the City front-end 
major infrastructure
One of the factors affecting developers’ ability to provide 
housing is the availability of adequate public facilities as 
defined under Title 18 of the City Code. The City currently 
limits development in areas where adequate public 
facilities, such as fire protection, police service, water and 
sewer service is not available. In order to develop within 
these area, a developer must extend the necessary 
services or provide an alternative acceptable to the City.

Density Bonus: 
An incentive-based tool that permits 
developers to increase the maximum 
allowable development on a property 
in exchange for helping the community 
achieve public policy goals. 

p. 11
302



Strategic Housing Plan

Major infrastructure costs such as water and sewer 
trunk lines or major streets can contribute significant 
costs to housing, limiting the number of people who 
can afford to purchase or rent. The City has undertaken 
major capital projects, extending services, when the 
creation of primary jobs has been the goal. More 
recently, the availability of housing for all income levels 
has emerged as a significant issue. It is recommended 
that the City evaluate the costs and benefits of 
extending major infrastructure into areas where most 
of the required adequate public facilities are in place 
to encourage development. This evaluation should 
include recommendations for how to fund these facility 
extensions as well as pay back scenarios. 

Support metropolitan districts
Metropolitan districts allow development improvements 
to be financed with municipal bonds which offer more 
favorable terms than conventional bank financing. 
These bonds are then paid back through a mill levee on 
the properties in the district. While the mill levee can 
be quite expensive, it may provide a better opportunity 
for affordability or, alternatively, more amenities than 
conventional financing. The City should examine how 
metropolitan districts may be used to incentivise 
affordable housing. This approach could also lead to a 
more heterogeneous mix of housing, helping to reduce 
geographic concentrations of low income households. 

p. 12
303



Strategic Housing Plan

3 
STRATEGY III
Engage Alternative 
Housing Providers to 
build Affordable Housing

Work with community land trusts
Community land trusts can provide affordable housing 
opportunities including ownership opportunities for 
households with between 80% and 120% of Area Median 
Income (AMI), households that usually cannot qualify for 
mortgages for market housing. When a household works 
with a community land trust to purchase a permanently 
affordable home, the household buys the improvements 
financed by a mortgage and the community land trust 
purchases the lot and leases it to the home buyer. The 
homeowner pays a small lease fee to the community 
land trust to cover their expenses. In this scenario, the 
mortgage payments and ground lease are significantly 
lower than a mortgage payment would be on the same 
house if purchased at full market price. 

In return for the lower price for the home when 
purchased, the increased resale value for the home 
is shared between the community land trust and the 
homeowner so that the home remains affordable for the 

next buyer with an income between 80% and 120% of 
AMI. Land trusts can partner with, or act as, builders or 
developers of housing projects, or work with scattered 
housing sites. 

p. 13
304



Strategic Housing Plan

Partner with for-profit and non-profit 
housing providers
The housing problem is highly complex and there is not 
a simple solution. It will require the participation and 
cooperation of several housing providers. Any workable 
solution must involve a variety of players from the public, 
private, and nonprofit sectors to provide meaningful and 
realistic solutions. The City is already working with High 
Plains Community Development Corporation, Habitat for 
Humanity, and other non-profits where appropriate.

Work with major employers on shared 
housing programs
A major trend throughout the U. S., particularly in areas 
with high job growth like Northern Colorado, is that the 
cost of housing continues to rise and wages remain flat, 
resulting in a  lack of affordable housing for semi-skilled 
labor. 

To the extent possible, a communities housing supply 
should reflect its workforce housing needs. The City 
should explore policies and programs to increase housing 
for Greeley’s workforce in partnership with major 
employers. Investments in affordable housing projects by 
employers may be a less expensive way of making home 
ownership attainable than increasing wages.

Work with Habitat for Humanity to 
expand their role
Habitat for Humanity is already a major player in 
building new affordable housing in Greeley. They are 
also currently providing housing rehabilitation services 

in other communities. Bringing rehabilitation services 
to Greeley could significantly help with neighborhood 
revitalization.

Explore land banks
Several Northern Colorado communities use land 
banking as a tool to acquire sites for affordable housing 
projects. They purchase large sites well in advance 
of development, hold them, and either develop them 
themselves or sell them at a discount to developers in 
return for permanently affordable housing. In Greeley 
this has been done on a small scale, Greeley’s Urban 
Renewal Authority has purchased vacant land and land 
occupied by dilapidated structures and resold it for 
affordable housing. 

The power of land banking is that as the cost of land 
rises over time, the banked land can he held and made 
available for affordable housing at a lower cost, reducing 
the price of development. The biggest challenge to 
establishing a land bank is establishing the funding 
mechanism and capital to fund purchases. The City 
should therefore explore funding sources such impact 
fees, dedicated tax funding, and state and federal funds. 

p. 14
305



Strategic Housing Plan

4 
STRATEGY IV
Improve the Product 
Housing Mix

Encourage diversity in housing types
The high interest rates that limited housing affordability 
during the 1980s stimulated significant innovation in 
creative product designs for housing. Concepts such as 
patio homes, zero-lot line housing, and other layouts 
were just a few of the creative land planning and building 
types. These creative housing designs seem to have been 
forgotten in the housing boom of the 1990s and early 
2000s. During the recent housing recovery, there have 
been relatively few options from which to choose. 

Promote housing innovation
Most new housing units in Greeley are produced using 
nearly the same process as 50 years ago. The bulk of 
the construction still occurs outdoors, on the site with 
subcontractor crews moving from house to house, 
frequently between subdivisions and communities. 
As a result, weather, traffic, and many other factors 
contribute to construction delays. 
       

While land grading, wet and dry utilities, foundation, 
and flatwork must be constructed in place, none 
of the construction above the foundation needs to 
be constructed on-site. In fact, it is more efficient 
to construct housing units or components in the 
controlled environment of a factory. Large jigs and 
patterns that would be too cumbersome to use on-site 
as well as adhesives that cannot withstand moisture 
or low temperatures can be used in factories. By 
improving efficiency and quality, indoor construction 
can significantly reduce the cost of housing thereby 
improving housing affordability.

p. 15
306



Strategic Housing Plan

 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT 
SOURCE GUIDE  re 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                                                         Spring 2011 

Update the Redevelopment Guide 
The Redevelopment Guide was created in 2011 as 
a resource to simplify redevelopment endeavors by 
compiling all the various city programs and incentives 
in one guide.  In recent years, various city departments 
have been exploring new programs to lower the barriers 
to development/re-development. The Redevelopment 
Guide should be updated to incorporate the latest pilot 
projects and incentives. 

Along with other Code update recommendations, staff 
also recommends that the Redevelopment District itself 
be re-examined contextually to identify subareas and to 
delineate commercial versus residential redevelopment 
incentives.  City staff should continue to explore 
additional tools and programs  to encourage infill in older 
at risk neighborhoods. 

Several cities have adopted programs which provide 
pre-approved or “permit-ready” construction plans to the 
public at no or low cost. These programs reduce barriers 
to individual citizens through reduced design costs, 
project review fees, and review time. 

In many older parts of the city, east of 23rd Avenue, 
neighborhoods are platted with relatively similar lot 
configurations that have little variation in dimensions 
throughout the subdivision. Most modern stock housing 
plans are designed for post-World War II lots that tend to 
be wider and shallower. However, many of the lots east 

of 23rd Avenue are relatively narrow and deep. The City 
should explore the availability of model housing plans 
for new and accessory units that would fit spatially and 
contextually into the Redevelopment District. Special 
attention should be given to neighborhood character 
to ensure that pre-approved plans are architecturally 
compatible with the area.

Greeley Redevelopment Resource Guide 

BIRD’S EYE VIEW 

 4 

 

REDEVELOPMENT DEFINED 

What is Redevelopment? 
 
Redevelopment can range from the complete removal of structures and new construc-
tion to rehabilitation or façade improvements to an existing building, as reflected in the 
following examples: 

 
Scrape & Build 
The complete removal of 
existing structures on a 
property and replace-
ment with new 
construction. 

 

 

Infill/New Development 
The development of va-
cant or substantially 
underutilized property 
that is generally sur-
rounded by existing 
development. 

 

 

Substantial Reconstruction 
Modifying an existing 
structure by constructing 
a significant building al-
teration or addition (such 
as by “popping the top”). 

 

 

 

p. 16
307



Strategic Housing Plan

Address the Impact 
of Raw Water Cost on 
Housing Affordability5 
STRATEGY V

Implement water smart neighborhood 
and common area policies
Greeley has traditionally required the dedication of three 
acre-feet of raw water rights per acre for land used for 
housing. The rapid escalation of the price of raw water 
rights has contributed significantly to the increase in the 
cost of housing, especially in the Residential Estate (R-E) 
and Residential Low (R-L) Density zones that have larger 
minimum lot areas.

The City is undertaking a pilot program called “Water 
Smart Neighborhoods” to permit a reduction in the 
dedication requirement in return for a firm commitment 
to reduce water demand. Under this pilot program, 
developers would have the option to propose a 
Water Smart Neighborhood in exchange for lower 
raw water dedication.  A complete subdivision filing 
must be proposed for consideration as a Water Smart 
Neighborhood; individual lots or partial filings would not 

be allowed.  Filings can be proposed at 80% of normal 
consumption, 60%, or 40%. Correspondingly, raw water 
would be dedicated, per surface acre, at 2.5 ac-ft., 2 
ac-ft., or 1.5 ac-ft. (under the current 3 ac-ft. per 1 land 
acre standard).  These can be referred to as Water Tier 
80, Water Tier 60, or Water Tier 40. The implementation 
of Water Smart Neighborhoods will likely be realized  
through water conserving landscape design and 
maintenance (Xeriscaping) and water efficient fixtures. 

Once designated, households will be required to be 
maintained at or below their designated Water Tier.  Lots 
will have a water budget, as determined by the city-wide 
Water Budget Program.  The standard water budget for 
the household will then be reduced by 20%, 40%, etc., 
based on the assigned Water Tier.  This would be noted 
as a Water Smart Neighborhood Water Tier 80 Reduction 
calculation on citizens’ individual water bills. 

p. 17
308



Strategic Housing Plan

To successfully achieve this on a neighborhood scale 
will require extensive training and awareness. To ensure 
on-going compliance, the City will (after build-out) target 
Water Smart Neighborhood residents for awareness 
and on-going education.  Such efforts can include line-
item notice on water bills, brochures, and meetings with 
neighborhood representatives.

Develop a water smart policy for 
individual lots
The City can develop an approach and policies targeted 
to individual homeowners with incentives equivalent to 
those provided for the developers of new homes. 
The Water Smart Neighborhood methodology could 
be applied to  “Water Smart Homeowners” whom 
voluntarily commit to a lower water consumption budget. 

The City currently bases its water billing on a water 
budget.  This is calculated by multiplying the number 
of people living in a residential unit times the average 
indoor use per person plus the imperious area on each 
lot times the irrigation water demand for that month. 
Water customers that exceed their allocated budget pay 
a higher rate. 

Applying a water smart policy to at the micro level 
could help lower the price of city-wide housing over 
time. Lowering existing water demand lengthens the 
time before additional investment is needed to enlarge 
storage, transmission, and distribution infrastructure 
thus enhancing the affordability of living in Greeley.

p. 18
309



Strategic Housing Plan

Complete Subarea 
& Neighborhood Plans6 
STRATEGY VI

Complete plans for neighborhoods 
with housing opportunities
Subarea and neighborhood plans bridge the gap between 
broad policies of comprehensive plans and geographic 
specific areas.  These plans identify the desired 
characteristics of an area that should be preserved 
or enhanced, identify opportunities to implement 
comprehensive plan goals and policies, and define a 
shared vision for the area which addresses housing, 
trails, parks, schools, and commercial services. 

Neighborhood planning helps identify appropriate 
densities, character, and mix of uses, and the regulatory 
changes needed to ensure that development occurs  in 
accordance with a shared vision. With large swaths of 
undeveloped land within both city limits and the Long 
Range Expected Growth Area, it is important for the 
City to get ahead of development to ensure that future 
development is compatible with the area and goals of 
the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. Additionally, 

many older neighborhoods have opportunities for infill 
redevelopment of housing. With appropriate planning 
and design, newer housing units can be integrated 
into the existing urban fabric. This can have the mutual 
benefits of preserving neighborhood character as well as 
providing opportunities for redevelopment.

Large-scale master planning for 
complete neighborhoods
Complete neighborhoods host a mix of uses in order to 
provide for our daily need to live, work, play, worship, 
dine, shop, and interact. They are more likely to be 
achieved through master planning. However, larger-
scale sites are challenging for multiple reasons. Larger-
scaled projects can encompass sites that are in multiple 
ownerships, which can lead to disputes over phasing 
and timing, where the higher value land uses go, how 
to pay for and locate infrastructure, and how revenues 
and equity are shared among the owners. Large-scale 
projects also take longer to implement leading to higher 

p. 19
310



Strategic Housing Plan

financing costs, and are more susceptible to changing 
market conditions. 

Through subarea and neighborhood plans, the City can 
help identify appropriate sites for public services and 
infrastructure such as roads, school sites, fire stations 
etc. setting the foundation onto which master planned 
communities can they be built. 

The City can also explore creating incentives for 
landowners to work together. For example, the City could 
directly provide or retain consultants to provide planning 
services for land owners wishing to cooperate on larger 
scale, multiple ownership planning projects. This could 
result in rezoning or appropriately-structured Planned 
Unit Development approvals. Such plans could avoid land 
use conflicts that can arise from piecemeal, small-scale 
planning. 

Identify under-utilized sites for housing
Many areas in Greeley are underused. Such areas include 
un-needed parking areas and the air-rights above those 
parking areas. Such sites may offer opportunities for 
the development of housing. The City should create and 
maintain an inventory of underutilized sites that meet or 
nearly meet adequate public facilities requirements and 
promote their redevelopment.

Adopt a five-year housing goal
With this Plan, adopt a goal of a 5-year housing target 
of 2,042 multi-family and 3,515 single family units built 
in Greeley by 2024. The shortage of both affordable and 
market housing is too great to realistically expect it to be 
fulfilled in one year. By setting and meeting an aggressive 
five-year goal, it is possible to ease the housing shortage 
each year and reach a balanced housing market. 

2,042 multi-family units built 

3,515 single family units built by 2024  

5-YEAR GOAL (2019 - 2024)

p. 20
311



Strategic Housing Plan

Encourage Ownership, 
Move-up & Executive 
Housing Options7 
STRATEGY VII

Encourage a range in housing choices
As people age throughout their lives, their ability to pay 
for and need for housing changes. As young adults leave 
home to set up housing, their needs may be minimal. 
However, as they start families and raise children, they 
may need larger housing with more outdoor space. 
Move-down housing options are important to empty 
nesters who may have needed a larger home in which to 
raise children but no longer need the additional space or 
wish to clean or maintain it. 

Greater options in single family housing types are needed 
to accommodate changing demographics. Options should 
include smaller footprint detached structures, town 
homes, attached homes, and accessory dwelling units. 
The inclusion of these units types should be addressed in 
neighborhood plans and encouraged at the neighborhood 
level. 

Work with developers to create higher-
end developments
Greeley has limited move-up and executive housing. The 
City should create a task force that includes developers, 
financial, professionals, and real estate professionals to 
address barriers to creating higher-end developments. 
This task force would identify barriers, develop policies, 
and encourage other entities to undertake activities and 
policies to attract higher income buyers to Greeley and 
supply them with appropriate housing products.

Explore cooperative housing options
One of the emerging forms of home ownership is 
cooperative housing. In cooperative housing, the land 
and buildings containing the housing units are owned 
by a corporation or other entity that is, in turn, owned 
jointly by the residents. While on the surface, this sounds 
a lot like condominium ownership, it is less regulated and 
there is less likely to be a property manager involved.

p. 21312



Strategic Housing Plan

Develop additional home ownership 
incentive programs
G-HOPE is an employer sponsored program to provide 
down payment assistance to prospective home buyers 
purchasing homes in select neighborhoods within the 
Redevelopment District. Down payment assistance is 
available to regular full-time employees of the City of 
Greeley, the University of Northern Colorado, Greeley-
Evans School District No. 6, Banner Health/North 
Colorado Medical Center, Sunrise Community Health, 
Frontier Academy, High Plains Library District, and 
Salida del Sol Academy. The City should look to expand 
this partnership with other major employers within the 
community in order to build its workforce housing. 

The City can also explore other, reimbursed, home buyer 
assistance programs to be implemented city wide. The 
loan in such a program would be due back in full when 
the house is sold, transfered out of the buyer’s name, 
second lien obtained, or rented. 

p. 22
313



Strategic Housing Plan

Encourage Vocational 
Training & Apprentice 
Programs8 
STRATEGY VIII

Support educational institutions 
involved in skilled trades
Throughout Northern Colorado, builders report a lack 
of workers in the skilled trades necessary for home 
building. The City, Greeley-Evans School District 6, 
Aims Community College, and non-profit and for-profit 
builders, have been cooperating on education, training, 
and apprenticeship programs for the building trades. 
It is essential for the health of the home-building and 
remodeling industries that these entities continue their 
programs. 

p. 23
314



Strategic Housing Plan

Facilitate Development 
of Manufactured Home 
Parks 9 
STRATEGY VIIII

Affordable housing options
While manufactured homes provide an affordable 
options to traditional housing, they provide their own set 
of unique challenges. Owners of manufactured homes 
face many similar challenges as renters; space rents can 
rise, they can be evicted, and then there is the possibility 
of income loss or a health crisis. Relocating can be a 
more difficult endeavor for a manufactured home owner 
because transport fees are costly, yearly taxes must be 
paid in full to obtain a moving permit, and finding a new 
spot in another mobile home park can be difficult. 

Some of the management practices for mobile home 
parks can serve to trap low-income people in unsuitable 
housing situations. Space rents are often secured by the 
movable property. Therefore, manufactured homes can 
be seized for back rent if the resident cannot afford to 
move it or find another place to set it up. The unit may be 
resold and the process can be repeated. 

Explore alternative ownership options
Developing manufactured home parks with a community 
land trust or as cooperative housing projects can 
alleviate predatory practices.  Giving the residents an 
ownership interest in the manufactured home park is 
likely to lead to more equitable treatment of residents 
and create an incentive to maintain the park to a high 
level of quality. 

Alternative technologies
Manufactured homes are built in factories rather than 
on-site. They are therefore not as susceptible to labor 
shortages and can capitalize on mass production 
efficiencies. 

Recognized as the grandfather to the tiny home 
movement, manufactured homes are regaining 
popularity. Architects and new urbanists such as Andre 
Duany tote the social successes of mobile home parks 
and are re-imagining the manufactured home product. 

p. 24 315



Strategic Housing Plan

With “bento box“ like compartamilism and sleek materials, 
these new designs are trying to break the stigma of 
mobile home parks and capture the attention of those 
with minimal needs and desire for affordability. 

Update regulations
Much has been done in recent years to enhance the 
quality of mobile home parks, including the adoption of 
mobile home building codes and other regulations. The 
City’s current mobile home setback and dimensional 
standards do not appropriately address newer sized 
manufactured home products. Upgrading mobile home 
park regulations to address new product types as well as 
updated requirements for amenities, usable open space, 
streets and walkways, off-street parking, and other 
features is key to encouraging high-quality, cohesive 
manufactured home developments. 

p. 25
316



Strategic Housing Plan

IMPLEMENTATION
Achieving the goals outline in the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan will require new 
polices, new programs, new and deeper partnerships with non-profit  organizations, land 
use development code changes, and possible zoning district changes. 

Similarly, the strategies discussed in this Strategic Housing Plan will require separate and 
specific implementation. Adoption of the plan does not begin the implementation of any 
item nor legally bind the City to implement any particular strategy. Given that the actions 
are intended to take place in the future and that we cannot bind future Councils, there 
must be enough flexibility to permit future Councils to set priorities based on the City’s 
needs.

The table below provides specific actions or “next steps” the City can pursue to 
implement the nine strategies.  For each action a lead department or organization is 
identified who would likely spearhead the effort. Each actions was also assigned a time 
frame based on need and feasibility. Time frames are described as short-term meaning 
one to three years, mid-term meaning three to five years, long-term meaning five years 
or more, or ongoing for actions that needs to continue over time. 

p. 26Strategic Housing Plan
317



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

1. AMEND THE 
DEVELOPMENT 
CODE TO 
PROMOTE 
HOUSING CHOICE

Identify and initiate 
strategic rezones to correct 
zoning mismatches

✓ CD

Identify geographic and 
contextually appropriate 
locations for accessory 
dwelling units (ADUs) and 
amend the Development 
Code to include ADU 
regulations

✓ CD

Amend minimum lot sizes, 
open space requirements, 
building height, setbacks 
and/or performance 
options in residential zoning 
districts

✓ CD

Amend the Development 
Code to create incentives 
to encourage complete 
neighborhoods

✓ CD

Amend the Development 
Code to incentivize the 
inclusion of affordable 
housing in new 
development

✓ CD

Amend housing occupancy 
standards

✓ CD

2. DEVELOP 
FINANCIAL 
STRATEGIES 
THAT MINIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT 
COSTS

Explore financial incentives 
to encourage permanent 
affordable housing

✓ EHH CD

Explore private activity 
bonds, forgivable loan/
grants, tax credits, Kansas 
City forgivable loan funds, 
and other funding sources

✓ EHH

CD = COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 27
318



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

2. DEVELOP 
FINANCIAL 
STRATEGIES 
THAT MINIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT 
COSTS

Evaluate the risks, costs, 
and benefits of having the 
City front-end required 
trunk lines which would be 
reimbursed with impact 
fees

✓ EHH CD

Based on a positive 
recommendation, 
implement having the 
City front-end required 
trunk lines which would be 
reimbursed with impact 
fees

✓ CM CD
PW
WS

EHH

Support metropolitan 
districts or other special 
districts as potential 
financing tools

✓ CD EHH

Explore alternative housing 
finance options

✓ EHH

Update the Redevelopment 
Resource Guide to include 
current pilot programs and 
incentive packages

✓ CD WS

3. ENGAGE 
ALTERNATIVE 
HOUSING 
PROVIDERS

Explore working with 
community land trusts 
to create a shared equity 
home ownership program

✓ EHH CD

Partner with one or 
more housing providers 
to construct attainable 
housing

✓ EHH CD

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 28 319



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

3. ENGAGE 
ALTERNATIVE 
HOUSING 
PROVIDERS

Work with major employers 
for shared equity housing 
(e.g., down payment 
assistance programs, 
employer sponsored 
savings plan)

✓ EHH CD

Explore the feasibility of 
a land bank for affordable 
housing

✓ EHH CM
CD

Explore the potential 
to expand Habitat for 
Humanity’s role to include 
housing rehabilitation

✓ EHH CD

Explore alternative housing 
finance options

✓ EHH CD

4. IMPROVE 
THE HOUSING 
PRODUCT MIX

Explore alternative housing 
technologies, products, 
production methods, and 
housing types including 
factory built housing

✓ EHH CD

Explore working with 
community land trusts 
to create a shared equity 
home ownership program

✓ EHH CD

5. ADDRESS 
THE IMPACT OF 
RAW WATER 
ON HOUSING 
AFFORDABILITY

Implement the “Water 
Smart Neighborhood Policy” 
and the “Water Smart 
Common Area Policy”

✓ WS CD

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 29 320



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

5. ADDRESS 
THE IMPACT OF 
RAW WATER 
ON HOUSING 
AFFORDABILITY

Develop a “Water Smart 
Individual Lot Policy” to 
reduce the cost of water 
for existing and future 
homeowners

✓ WS CD

6. COMPLETE 
SUBAREA & 
NEIGHBORHOOD 
PLANS

Complete subarea or 
neighborhood plans 
for areas that have the 
potential to provide a 
significant amount of 
housing in the near future

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Complete subarea or 
neighborhood plans 
for areas in distress or 
those that are prime for 
redevelopment

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Collaborate with housing 
providers on large scale 
master plans

✓ CD EHH
WS
PW

Identify under-utilized sites 
that could be re-purposed 
for housing

✓ CD

7. CREATE MORE 
OWNERSHIP, 
MOVE-UP & 
EXECUTIVE 
HOUSING 
OPTIONS

Develop more home 
ownership incentive 
programs

✓ EHH

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 30 321



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY ACTION

PRIORITY IMPLEMENTED 
BY

Ongoing + 
Short Term 
(1-3 years)

Mid-Term
(3-5 years)

Long Term
(5 or more 

years)
City Lead Partners

7. CREATE MORE 
OWNERSHIP, 
MOVE-UP & 
EXECUTIVE 
HOUSING 
OPTIONS

Work with a task force 
that includes developers, 
financial, professionals, and 
real estate professionals to 
address barriers to creating 
higher-end developments

✓ CD EHH

Explore the attraction 
of cooperative housing 
providers

✓ EHH CD

8.  ENCOURAGE 
VOCATIONAL, 
TRAINING, AND 
APPRENTICE 
PROGRAMS 
FOR BUILDING 
TRADES

Continue to support 
school districts and post-
secondary educational 
institutions involvement 
in developing courses and 
apprenticeships in skilled 
trades

✓ CM
CD
WS
PW

9. FACILITATE 
DEVELOPMENT 
OF 
MANUFACTURED 
HOMES

Update zoning regulations 
for mobile homes to 
address changing products 
and assure there is safe and 
adequate infrastructure and 
amenities

✓ CD

Explore alternative 
ownership options including 
non-profits, cooperative 
ownership, and community 
land trust

✓ CD EHH

EHH = ECONOMIC HEALTH AND HOUSING
WS = WATER AND SEWER
PW= PUBLIC WORKS
CM = CITY MANAGERS OFFICE

p. 31 322



Strategic Housing Plan

Action:  Identify and initiate strategic rezones to correct zoning mismatches

STRATEGY 1. AMEND THE DEVELOPMENT CODE TO PROMOTE HOUSING 
CHOICE

• Research and identify areas of legal non-conforming residential use that could benefit from a rezone or 
strategic overlay

• Consider additional zoning actions/strategies to prevent gentrification and/or displacement
• Hold neighborhood meetings
• Process rezones and/or amend portions of the Development Code (e.g. possible revisions to Overlay Districts 

Section 18.34.010 and Non-Conforming Uses, Buildings, and Structures Section 18.58.040)
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Action:  Identify geographic and contextually appropriate locations for accessory dwelling     
    units (ADUs) and amend the Development Code to include ADU regulations

• Research best practices from other communities whom have adopted ADU regulations
• Conduct a GIS analysis to identify properties that meet decided upon minimum lot size requirements
• Research HOA covenants to identify neighborhoods which restrict ADUs
• Hold neighborhood meetings
• Work with consultants on a Code rewrite
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Staff Research

Code Rewrites/ New Policy 
Creation

Public Outreach & Engagement 

Public Hearing

Mapping/Modeling

IMPLEMENTATION ROAD MAP

p. 1323



Strategic Housing Plan

Action:  Amend the Development Code to create incentives to encourage complete   
    neighborhoods

• Conduct research of peer cities and how their address complete neighborhoods
• Consider a restructuring of zoning districts into new district types or a reclassification of permitted uses 

within the existing zoning districts
• Work with consultants to rewrite mix-use standards and other possible zoning changes
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Action:  Amend minimum lot sizes, open space requirements, building height, setbacks  
    and/or performance options in residential zoning districts

• Study alternative standards in relation to neighborhood “types” and character
• Model design outcomes
• Work with consultant on Code rewrites (e.g.  possible revisions to Zoning District Development Standards 

18.38.020 and Overlay Districts Section 18.34.010)
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

p. 2

Action: Develop short-term rental development rgeulations

• Conduct research of peer cities and how their address short-term rentals
• Condct study of on current short-term rental operations in Greeley
• Draft Code changes
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

324



Strategic Housing Plan

Action: Support metropolitan districts or other special districts as potential financing 
tools

Action: Based on a positive recommendation, implement having the City front-end   
  required trunk lines which would be reimbursed with impact fees

• Write new policy/update impact fee schedule
• Go to Public Hearing

Action: Explore alternative housing finance options

Action: Update the Redevelopment Resource Guide to include current pilot programs  
   and incentive packages

Action: Explore financial incentives to encourage permanent affordable housing

p. 3

STRATEGY 2. DEVELOP FINANCIAL STRATEGIES THAT MINIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Action: Evaluate the risks, costs, and benefits of having the City front-end required trunk  
   lines which would be reimbursed with impact fees

• Research best practices from other communities 
• Map extension scenarios 
• Model funding and payback scenarios
• Meet with industry professionals
• Hold public meetings

325



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY 3. ENGAGE ALTERNATIVE HOUSING PROVIDERS

Action: Explore working with community land trusts to create a shared equity home own-
ership program

Action: Partner with one or more housing providers to construct attainable housing

Action: Work with major employers for shared equity housing (e.g., down payment   
   assistance programs, employer sponsored savings plan)

Action: Explore the feasibility of a land bank for affordable housing

p. 4

Action: Explore changes to development standards to incentivize affordable housing

• Research best practices from other communities 
• Meet with industry professionals
• Model/map appropriate areas for implementation
• Work with consultants on Code rewrite
• If supported go to public hearing for adoption

Action: Explore private activity bonds, forgivable loan/grants, tax credits, Kansas City  
   forgivable loan funds, and other funding sources

326



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY 4. IMPROVE THE HOUSING PRODUCT MIX

Action: Explore alternative housing technologies, products, production methods, and  
   housing types including factory built housing

Action:  Amend the Development Code to incentivize the inclusion of affordable   
     housing in new development

• Conduct research on best practices from other communities 
• Work with consultants on code updates (e.g. possible additions to Performance options Section 18.38.100 or 

the creation of a new sections of Code)
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

STRATEGY 5. ADDRESS THE IMPACT OF RAW WATER ON HOUSING 
AFFORDABILITY

Action: Implement the “Water Smart Neighborhood Policy” and the “Water Smart   
   Common Area Policy”

• Conduct research on best practices 
• Draft new policy
• Meet with industry professionals
• Go to public hearing for adoption

p. 5

Action: Explore the potential to expand Habitat for Humanity’s role to include housing  
    rehabilitation

327



Strategic Housing Plan

Action: Develop a “Water Smart Individual Lot Policy” to reduce the cost of water for   
    existing and future homeowners

• Conduct research on best practices 
• Draft new policy
• Meet with industry professionals
• Go to public hearing for adoption

STRATEGY 6. COMPLETE SUBAREA & NEIGHBORHOOD PLANS

Action: Complete subarea or neighborhood plans for areas that have the potential to  
    provide a significant amount of housing in the near future

• Identify geographic scope of subarea plans
• Study the characteristics of the area and residents
• Create stakeholder committee
• Create a technical advisory committee
• Hold neighborhood meetings
• Draft plan
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Action: Complete subarea or neighborhood plans for areas in distress or those that are  
    prime for redevelopment

• Identify geographic scope of subarea plans
• Study the characteristics of the area and residents
• Create stakeholder committee
• Create a technical advisory committee
• Hold neighborhood meetings
• Draft plan
• Hold public meetings
• Go to public hearing for adoption

p. 6
328



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY 8.  ENCOURAGE VOCATIONAL TRAINING, AND APPRENTICE 
PROGRAMS FOR BUILDING TRADES

Action: Continue to support school districts and post-secondary educational institutions  
   involvement in developing courses and apprenticeships in skilled trades

STRATEGY 7. ENCOURAGE OWNERSHIP, MOVE-UP & EXECUTIVE 
HOUSING OPTIONS

Action: Develop more home ownership incentive programs

• Research alternative programs
• Designate eligible areas
• Draft program policy
• Seek approval from City Council

Action: Work with a task force that includes developers, financial, professionals, and  
   real estate professionals to address barriers to creating higher-end developments

Action: Explore the attraction of cooperative housing providers

p. 7329



Strategic Housing Plan

STRATEGY 9. FACILITATE DEVELOPMENT OF MANUFACTURED HOMES

Action: Update zoning regulations for mobile homes to address changing products and  
   assure there is safe and adequate infrastructure and amenities

• Research peer city regulations for manufactured homes
• Meet with mobile home park managers
• Draft Code rewrite
• Go to public hearing for adoption

Action: Explore alternative ownership options including non-profits, cooperative   
    ownership, and community land trust

p. 8
330



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            1                                                                 February 12, 2019 
 

  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Proceedings 

 

February 12, 2019 

 

City Center South 

Council Chambers Room 

1001 11th Avenue 

1:15 p.m. 
 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

Chair Rarick called the meeting to order at 1:15 p.m. Commissioners Schulte, Andersen, 

Yeater, Briscoe and Modlin were present. (Commissioner Hice-Idler was absent.) 

 

II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on January 22, 2019 
 

Commissioner Andersen moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on January 22, 

2019. Commissioner Briscoe seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0. (Commissioner 

Hice-Idler was absent.) 

 

Mr. Mueller addressed the Commission and noted that USR 2018-0015 SRC Ridge 33-17 

Use by Special Review would be continued.   

 

III. A public hearing to consider a request for a Use by Special Review for 32 horizontal 

oil and gas wells, with associated equipment on one centralized pad site, and one 

production facility on a 41.55 acre parcel zoned H-A (Holding Agriculture), with 

10.93 acres proposed for drilling and extraction operations  

 

Project Name:  SRC Ridge 33-17 Use by Special Review 

Case No:   USR20180015 

Applicant:   Corey Sheahen on behalf of SRC Energy Inc. 

Location:   South of US Highway 34, east of 83rd Avenue, North of 28th Street 

Presenter:   Marian Duran, Planner II 

 

Ms. Duran addressed the Commission and requested permission to continue this item to 

February 26, 2019. 

 

  

331



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            3                                                                 February 12, 2019 
 

Chair Yeater opened the public hearing at 1:26 p.m. There being no comment, the public 

hearing was closed at 1:26 p.m. 

 

Commissioner Andersen moved that, based on the application received and the preceding 

analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the request for an approval of a minor 

subdivision for Lot 14, Block 1 and Lot 1, Block 2, Gateway Estates 2nd Filing replat 

Gateway Estates 2nd Filing is in compliance with the provisions of the Subdivision 

Regulations and Development Code criteria outlined in Section 18.04.500, Easement 

Dedication, Vacation, and Recordation outlined in Section 18.04.700, and Right-of-Way 

Dedication and Vacation criteria outlined in Section 18.04.800; and, therefore, approve the 

requested minor subdivision as presented. Commissioner Rarick seconded the motion. The 

motion carried 6-0. (Commissioner Hice-Idler was absent.) 

 

VII. A public hearing to consider adoption City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan  

 

Presenter: Rachel Prelog, Planner II 

 

Ms. Prelog addressed the Commission and entered the staff report into the record. She 

explained the origin of the plan beginning from the Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan. 

Ms. Prelog described how the different plans are broken down to help better understand the 

strategies implemented. She pointed out the example of the Transportation Master Plan and 

how it was broken down into the Transit Master Plan.  

 

Ms. Prelog stated that the Comprehensive Plan called for the creation of a strategic housing 

plan with the idea that this would be a plan under the overarching document of the Imagine 

Greeley Comprehensive Plan. She added that it would produce other plans such as the sub 

area plans and neighborhood plans. Ms. Prelog noted that the Imagine Greeley 

Comprehensive Plan had two main goals for housing. The first was to improve access to 

housing for all income levels, ages and physical abilities, and the second was to encourage 

broad diversity of housing options. Ms. Prelog presented several graphs showing projected 

growth and development. She also presented a map showing the job growth and the 

demand for better housing in Greeley. She talked about the increases and decreases of 

housing and its comparisons. Ms. Prelog briefly explained the imbalance between housing 

demands and jobs created.  

 

Chair Yeater expressed his concerns about this topic and asked Ms. Prelog what the ideal 

balance would be. Ms. Prelog responded that it would be a 1 to 1 and she had no ideal 

number. She added that her research only goes back 2011. Commissioner Rarick asked 

about the decrease in the number of yearly job increases. Ms. Prelog referenced the chart 

and stated that the big decreases in yearly new jobs were involved with oil and gas. 

Commissioner Schulte noted that most homes are two income households. Chair Yeater 

asked how many builders build more than 25 houses in one year. Ms. Prelog stated that 

there were two builders. Chair Yeater asked how many multi-family homes were 

developed in 2018. Ms. Prelog clarified that there were 208 homes built. Commissioner 

Briscoe asked for a breakdown of the average home price. Ms. Prelog shared a personal 

comparison about her household income and the affect it had when purchasing a home.  

 

  

332



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            4                                                                 February 12, 2019 
 

Ms. Prelog responded to several questions about slow growth and the lack of diversity. She 

presented seven key constraints and described the nine strategies discussed in a previous 

hearing and worksession. Staff requested support from all departments and the Commission 

to help engage in this plan and assist the public needs.  

 

Ms. Prelog stated that there are many areas that need to be explored in the future. She 

stated that this is a growth plan and noted that many things change within the city. 

Commissioner Rarick thanked staff for the hard work put into the staff report and the 

presentation. Commissioner Modlin asked about moving forward with implementation. 

Ms. Prelog suggested that more work is needed for implementation. Mr. Mueller noted that 

the plan refers more to the quality of life and not the exact number homes built. 

Commissioner Briscoe noted how much Greeley job creation is restricted to one industry.  

 

Chair Yeater asked about the changes being cost effective and noted that the builder of a 

home will not recognize the added profit. Economic Development Director, Ben Snow, 

addressed the Commission about the Strategic Housing Plan. He stated that the city is 

being responsive to this matter and the housing issue and that financing and regulations do 

have an impact. Chair Yeater questioned the assumption that the market would correct the 

price change or benefit for the contractor. He asked whether lowering the prices of housing 

in Greeley would change the whole market of Northern Colorado. Commissioner Modlin 

asked where building would take place. Commissioner Schulte asked if harmful impacts 

would incur by this plan. Commissioner Modlin asked about perception and the image that 

this plan would have on the City of Greeley.  

  

Chair Yeater opened the public hearing at 2:15 p.m.  

 

Kris Pickett addressed the Commission and provided his opinion of the Strategic Housing 

Plan. He shared his point of view on profitability. Mr. Picket compared the cost to build or 

remodel from today back to 16 years ago.  

 

Jim Neufeld addressed the Commission and provided input about the cost for a small 

builder in Greeley and provided his personal experience as a builder in the area. 

 

The public hearing was closed at 2:23 p.m. 

 

Commissioner Rarick moved that the Planning Commission recommend that the City 

Council adopt the City of Greeley Strategic Housing Plan. Commissioner Schulte seconded 

the motion. The motion carried 6-0. (Commissioner Hice-Idler was absent.) 

 

VIII. Staff Report 

 

Mr. Mueller reported that the newspapers sent out the report of a plan that had not yet been 

discussed by the Planning Commission. He talked about staffing in several departments 

being filled and introduced Kendra Ortiz, the new administrative specialist.  

 

  

333



2019/02/12

1

Strategic Housing 
Plan

City Council              February 19, 2019

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

background

 Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan:

o Goal HO.1: Improve access to housing for all 
incomes levels, ages, and physical abilities

o Goal HO.2: Encourage a broad diversity of housing  
options

o A tool for identifying strategies to address housing 
issues

 Key input from a Housing Task Force

ORIGIN OF THE PLAN

Future
Subarea 

Plans

Future
Neighborhood 

Plans

334



2019/02/12

2

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

Need

 Job/Housing Balance

Housing trends

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
New jobs New Residential Units

5.58:1

0.12:1

1.94:1

2.98:1

2.47:1

JOBS/HOUSING BALANCE:

Ratio of new job to new 

residential units constructed

2.35
average 2014-2018

Job/Housing Balance

Greeley, CO 2014-2018

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

Need

 Rising Home Costs

Housing trends

0

GREELEY

$302,758

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

Greeley/Evans Fort Collins Timmath Loveland/Berthoud

2016 2017 2018

$420,879

FORT COLLINS

Average Home Sale Price

Northern Colorado, 2016-2018

335



2019/02/12

3

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

Need

 Rising Home Costs

Housing trends

2016-2018

8%

10%
2016-2017

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

2016-2018 2016-2017 2017-2018

Greeley/Evans Fort Collins Timmath Loveland/Berthoud

19%

2017-2018

Home Sale Price Growth Rate

Northern Colorado, 2016-2018

GREELEY

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

Need

 Slow Growth

Housing trends

New Permits as a Percent of Total Housing Stock

Northern Colorado, 2015-2018

53.46%

42.58%

28.59%

8.67%

11.48%

7.43%
5.95%

4.07%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

SEVERANCE TIMNATH WINDSOR FORT
COLLINS

JOHNSTOWN LOVELAND GREELEY EVANS

336



2019/02/12

4

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

Need

 Lack of Housing Diversity

o Middle income, single-family housing

o Market-rate apartments

o Higher-end executive homes being built in 
other communities

Housing trends

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

intent

 Identify key constraints or factors 
contributing to current housing conditions

 Develop strategies to address housing 
affordability (access) and supply

 Identify implementation strategies and 
future possible future action items 

Plan OBJECTIVES

337



2019/02/12

5

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

1) Escalating costs of raw water

2) Rising cost of construction and 
development related costs

3) Lack of financing

4) Lack of skilled labor

5) Rising costs of existing housing

6) Flat wages

7) Missing homes not built during the Great 
Recession and Greeley’s residential 
downturn

7 key constraints

content

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

1. Amend the Development Code to 
promote housing choice

2. Minimize development costs for 
affordable housing

3. Engage alternative housing providers to 
build affordable housing

4. Improve the housing product mix

5. Address the impact of raw water costs on 
housing affordability

9 strategies

content

338



2019/02/12

6

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

6. Complete subarea and neighbourhood 
plans

7. Create more ownership, move-up, and 
executive housing options

8. Encourage vocational training and 
apprentice programs for building trades

9. Facilitate development of manufactured 
home parks as an important affordable 
housing option

9 strategies

content

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

 Implementation Strategy

o Identifies specific actions

o Assigned timeframe based on need and 
feasibility (order in plan does not imply 
priority)

o Identifies the department or organization 
that would likely lead the action

 Implementation Road Map

o Breaks down the implementation 
strategies further into anticipated steps

implementation

content

Code Rewrites/ New 

Policy Creation

Staff Research

Public Engagement

Mapping/Modeling

Public Hearings

339



2019/02/12

7

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

Next steps

implications

 Staff 

o Proactive planning for the future

o Commitment of resources and staff

 Planning Commission & City Council

o Support

o Collaboration

o Help engaging the public

o Be the City’s sturdy guiderails

Contoso
Pharmaceuticals

Recommendation

 Approval

o Planning Commission, February 12

340



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 20 

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

  

Title:  

Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance for the 2nd Amendment to the 

Centerplace North Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) 

Summary: 
 

The applicant is requesting a 2nd amendment to the existing Development Concept 

Master Plan to clarify that single-family, two-family, townhouse, and multi-family 

dwellings will no longer be subject to the commercial standards outlined in the 

Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP). 

 

A DCMP is a voluntary tool that landowners can use to more narrowly define the 

“ground rules” of zoning on a particular property.  In this case, the original developer 

created rules requiring certain architectural features and materials that are consistent 

with the retail look that has evolved in Centerplace.  Some, such as the prohibition for 

asphalt shingles, probably were not envisioned for residential, but nonetheless apply 

because of the current form of the DCMP language.  This amendment would simply 

exclude residential from these limits; existing city-wide design standards for multi-

family would still apply. 

 

The Planning Commission considered this request on January 22, 2019, and 

unanimously recommended approval. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

 

 

341



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a quasi-judicial process that will, on second reading, 

include: 

1) City staff presentation 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Applicant presentation 

4) Council questions of applicant 

5) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

6) Rebuttal, if requested 

7) Council discussion 

8) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None noted. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Development Code standards. 

Decision Options:  

1. Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2. Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3. Deny the ordinance; or 

4. Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion that, based on the application received and the project summary and 

accompanying analysis, the proposed 2nd Amendment to the Centerplace North 

Development Concept Master Plan meets the applicable Development Code 

criteria, Section 18.30.050(c)(3) f and g; and, therefore, is approved. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Draft Planning Commission Minutes (January 22, 2019) 

Planning Commission Summary (Staff Report) (January 22, 2019) 

PowerPoint 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

342



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. ___, 2019 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE 2ND AMENDMENT TO THE CENTERPLACE NORTH 

DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT MASTER PLAN (DCMP)  

 WHEREAS, the Centerplace North rezoning was approved on June 5, 2007; and, 

 WHEREAS, this rezoning included a Development Concept Master Plan (“DCMP”), a 

voluntary tool available to developers and landowners that allows certain restrictions or 

standards to be required of the zoned area; and, 

 WHEREAS, the DCMP defined certain architectural features and materials of future 

development; and 

 WHEREAS, such architectural requirements are consistent with retail development, 

but not as much so with potential residential development; and, 

 WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of a 2nd Amendment to 

the DCMP that would eliminate such limitations for residential uses. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, 

COLORADO: 

Section 1.  The Centerplace North Subdivision Development Concept Master Plan (DCPM, is 

hereby amended (2nd Amendment) relative to property described as following, located in the 

City of Greeley, County of Weld, State of Colorado: 

See attached legal description 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after its final publication as 

provided by the Greeley City Charter. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, THIS ____ DAY OF 

____________________, 2019. 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      Mayor 

 

Legal Description 

A parcel of land being part of South Half (S1/2) of Section Fourteen (14), Township Five North 

(T.5N.), Range Sixty-six West (R.66W.) of the Sixth Principal Meridian (6th P.M.), City of 

Greeley, County of Weld, State of Colorado and being more particularly described as follows: 

343



BEGINNING at the West Quarter Corner of said Section 14 and assuming the North line of 

the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of said Section 14 as bearing South 89°59’10” East, being a 

Grid Bearing of the Colorado State Plane Coordinate System, North Zone, North American 

Datum 1983/92, a distance of 2986.65 feet, with all other bearings contained herein relative 

thereto: 

THENCE South 89°59’10” East along said North line a distance of 1320.00 feet; 

THENCE South 00°50’19” West a distance of 485.36 feet to the beginning point of a curve. 

The aforesaid line being non-tangent to said curve; 

THENCE along the Arc of a curve that is concave to the North a distance of 21.52 feet, whose 

Radius is 675.00 feet, whose Delta is 01°49’36”, and whose Long Chord bears South 81°41’30” 

East a distance of 21.52 feet; 

THENCE South 00°12’11” East a distance of 455.44 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 

BEGINNING: 

 

THENCE South 89°34’11” East a distance of 1967.21 feet; 

THENCE South 00°49’46” West a distance of 507.32 feet to the centerline of Centerplace 

Drive: 

THENCE along said centerline by the following Three (3) courses and distances: 

THENCE South 71°28’10” West a distance of 393.26 feet to a Point of Curvature (PC); 

THENCE along the Arc of a curve which is concave to the North a distance of 304.46 feet, 

whose Radius is 920.00 feet, whose Delta is 18°57’39”, and whose Long Chord bears South 

80°56’59” West a distance of 303.07 feet to the PT; 

THENCE North 89°34’11” West a distance of 1303.89 feet; 

THENCE North 00°00’50” East a distance of 308.87 feet; 

THENCE South 89°59’09” East a distance of 17.46 feet; 

THENCE North 00°12’11” West a distance of 376.03 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

Said described parcel of land contains 29.884 Acres, more or less (±) and is subject to any 

rights-of-way or other easements as granted or reserved by instruments of record or as now 

existing on said described parcel of land.  

 

344



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            1                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Proceedings 

 

January 22, 2019 

 

City Center South 

Council Chambers Room 

1001 11th Avenue 

1:15 p.m. 
 
 
I. Call to Order 

 
Chair Rarick called the meeting to order at 1:19 p.m. Commissioners, Andersen, Hice-Idler 
and Modlin were present. (Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 
 

II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on December 11, 2018 
 

Commissioner Modlin moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on December 11, 
2018. Commissioner Andersen seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 
(Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 

III. Approval of minutes for meeting held on January 8, 2019 
 

Commissioner Andersen asked about specific code changes that where addressed for this 
matter. Chair Rarick stated that the minutes were only an overview and that the details will 
be addressed and carried to the work session held on January 29, 2019. 
 
Commissioner Andersen moved to approve minutes of the meeting held on 
January 8, 2019. Commissioner Modlin seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 
(Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were absent.) 

 
IV. Election of Chair  

 
Chair Rarick stated this item would be postponed until next hearing. 
 

V. Election of Vice Chair 
 
Chair Rarick stated this item would be postponed until next hearing. 
 

 

 345



 

Planning Commission Proceedings                                                            7                                                                 January 22, 2019 
 

X.  A public hearing to consider amendment of the Centerplace North Development 

Concept Master Plan (DCMP) to clarify that single-family, two-family, townhouse 

and multi-family dwellings will no longer be subject to the commercial standards 

outlined in the DCMP 

 
Project Name:  Centerplace North 2nd DCMP Amendment 
Case No:   ZON2018-0016 
Applicant:   2010-1 RADC/CADC Property XI, LLC 
Location:   North Centerplace Drive, South of 24th Street Road 
Presenter:  Kira Stoller, Planner I 

 
Ms. Stoller addressed the Commission and entered the staff report into the record. She 
provided a history of the past amendment and described the current proposed amendment. 
Ms. Stoller presented a map showing the location of the property. She stated that the 
applicant is requesting to amend the Centerplace North Development Concept Master Plan 
(DCMP) to clarify that the commercial standards, outlined in the DCMP would not apply 
to single family, two-family, townhouse and multi-family dwellings. She added that 
although the DCMP made no indication that residential uses would need to abide by the 
commercial design standards, the fact that there was no discussion pertaining to residential 
design guidelines left the matter open to interpretation. Ms. Stoller noted that a second 
amendment is being proposed to clarify that all residential uses will be required to comply 
with the Development Code design standards. Ms. Stoller described redevelopment in and 
around the surrounding areas. She provided photographs of vacant lots north and southwest 
of the site. Staff recommended approval. 
 
Commissioner Andersen requested clarification about approval criteria A, regarding 
zoning. Ms. Stoller stated that the DCMP was established as part of a rezone, and the 
process to follow for an amendment is classified as a rezone request. Commissioner 
Andersen noted that staff comments stated the DCMP amendment is not needed to 
encourage development. Ms. Stoller clarified that residential development is already 
permitted through a USR, and that the requested amendment will only clarify the design 
standards. 

 
Mark Bradley, Realtec Commercial Real Estate, addressed the Commission and offered to 
answer any questions regarding this matter. Commissioner Modlin asked whether a 
financial hardship would be created by removing the commercial aspect. Mr. Bradley 
mentioned that there would be no impact. He stated that the change would open up other 
uses and development work. 

 
Chair Rarick opened the public hearing at 2:31 p.m. There being no public input, the 
hearing was closed at 2:31p.m. 

 
Commissioner Hice-Idler moved that, based on the application received and the Project 
Summary and accompanying analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed 
amendment to the Centerplace North Development Concept Master Plan meets the 
applicable Development Code criteria, Sections 18.30.050(c)(3) F and G and therefore, 
recommends approval of the rezone to the City Council. Commissioner Andersen seconded 
the motion. The motion carried 4-0. (Commissioners Schulte, Yeater and Briscoe were 
absent.) 
 346



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0016 
January 22, 2019 Page 1 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
 
ITEM: Amendment to the Centerplace North Development Concept Master 

Plan (DCMP) 
  
FILE NUMBER: ZON2018-0016 
 
PROJECT: Centerplace North 2nd DCMP Amendment 
 
LOCATION: North of Centerplace Drive, south of 24th Street Road, 

approximately 0.25 miles east of 44th Avenue and 0.13 miles west 
of 44th Avenue. 

   
APPLICANT: Corey Walker, on behalf of 2010-1 RADC/CADC Property XI, 

LLC 
 
CASE PLANNER: Kira Stoller, Planner I 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:   January 22, 2019 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments 
made by the applicant and the public and shall then make a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding the application in the form of a finding based on the review criteria in Section 
18.30.050(c)(3).       

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Greeley is considering a request by Corey Walker, on behalf of 2010-1 RADC/CADC 
Property XI, LLC, to amend the Centerplace North Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) 
to clarify that single-family, two-family, town house and multi-family dwellings are not subject to 
the commercial standards outlined in the DCMP (See Attachment A – Vicinity Map and Attachment 
B – Narrative). 
 
 
A. REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) Amendment 
(see Attachment C – Centerplace North 2nd Development Concept Master Plan Amendment). 

 
 

B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval 
 
 
 

347



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0016 
January 22, 2019 Page 2 
 

C. LOCATION  
Abutting Zoning: 

 North:  R-M (Residential Medium Density) & C-L (Commercial Low    
Intensity) 

 South:  PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 East:  PUD (Planned Unit Development)  
 West:  PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

 
 Surrounding Land Uses:   

 North:  Vacant 
 South:  Commercial (Centerplace Shopping Center) 

 East:    Vacant 
 West:   Commercial (Panera Bread, Homewood Suites)  
 

 Site Characteristics: 
 The DCMP area is approximately 29.884 acres in size and includes 

seventeen (17) parcels, within the Centerplace North Subdivision.  The area 
is located north of Centerplace Drive, south of 24th Street Road and extends 
to the east and west of 44th Avenue.  Five (5) parcels within the DCMP have 
been developed, mainly as restaurants, one (1) lot serves as a detention 
pond, three (3) lots are currently under construction and the remaining eight 
(8) parcels are vacant. 

 
 
D. BACKGROUND 
The subject site was originally zoned for a Planned Unit Development (Gateway Park Conceptual 
PUD).  The area was rezoned to Commercial High Intensity (C-H) as part of the Centerplace North 
Rezone (Z 21:05), which was approved on June 5, 2007 (Ordinance No. 22, 2007, Rec No. 
3481533).  This rezone included the establishment of the Centerplace North DCMP, which 
outlined specific commercial design guidelines that were more stringent than those required by the 
Development Code.  The original DCMP also identified permitted land uses and it restricted 
certain uses that would normally be permitted in the C-H zone district, either by right or through 
approval from Planning Commission.  The Centerplace North 1st DCMP Amendment (Z 18:17), 
was approved on February 6, 2018 (Ordinance No. 3, 2018, Rec No. 4376683), added intermediate 
& long-term care, assisted living units (more than 8 residents) as an allowable use. 
 
The applicant is requesting to amend the Centerplace North Development Concept Master Plan 
(DCMP) to clarify that the commercial standards, outlined in the DCMP would not apply to single-
family, two-family, town house and multi-family dwellings.  While the aforementioned residential 
uses are permitted within the DCMP area (through a Use by Special Review approval), the original 
DCMP only outlined specific commercial design standards.  Although the DCMP made no 
indication that residential uses would need to abide by the commercial design standards, the fact 
that there was no discussion pertaining to residential design guidelines left the matter open to 
interpretation.  To ensure that any future residential projects within the DCMP are not encumbered 
by this ambiguity, a second amendment is being proposed to clarify that all residential uses will 
just be required to comply with the Development Code design standards. 
 

348



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0016 
January 22, 2019 Page 3 
 

E. APPROVAL CRITERIA 
 

Development Code Section 18.30.050 Rezoning Procedures 
For the purpose of establishing and maintaining sound, stable and desirable development within 
the City, the rezoning of land is to be discouraged and allowed only under circumstances provided 
for in this Section [of the Code].  This policy is based on the opinion of the City Council that the 
City’s zoning map is a result of a detailed and comprehensive appraisal of the City’s present and 
future needs regarding land use allocation and other zoning considerations, and, as such, should 
not be amended unless to correct manifest errors or because of changed or changing conditions 
in a particular area of the City in general.  
 
The review criteria found in Section 18.30.050(c)(3) of the Development Code shall be used to 
evaluate the zoning amendment application.  
 

a)   Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that it is in the public interest 
to rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the 
area? 
 
Staff Comment:  This DCMP amendment is not needed to encourage development 

within the Centerplace North area.  The subject site is already 
steadily developing with numerous commercial uses.  However, 
there has not been any residential development thus far and 
approving this DCMP amendment might encourage the proposal of 
such projects. 

   
This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

b) Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 
development resulting and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given 
development trends? 

 
Staff Comment: The subject site has been zoned Commercial High Intensity (C-H) 

with a Development Concept Master Plan for nearly 12 years.  This 
zoning designation does not appear to be obsolete because 
substantial development has occurred and is continuing to take place 
within the area. 

 
This criterion is not applicable to this request. 

 
c)  Are there clerical or technical errors to correct? 

 
Staff Comment: There are no clerical or technical errors to correct.  However, this 

DCMP amendment is meant to clarify that the commercial design 
standards outlined in the Development Concept Master Plan do not 
apply to residential projects. 

  
 This criterion is not applicable to this request.  

349



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0016 
January 22, 2019 Page 4 
 

d) Are there detrimental environmental impacts, such as flood plains, inadequate 
drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect future development of this site 
and which may not have been considered during the original zoning of the property? 

 
Staff Comment: The site does not contain any known detrimental environmental 

conditions. 
 

This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

e)   Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community related 
use, which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan; or have the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is 
warranted? 

 
Staff Comment: This Development Concept Master Plan amendment would not 

change any of the permitted land uses within the DCMP, but rather, 
would clarify the design standards that apply to residential 
development.  No City policies have changed to warrant the need 
for the DCMP amendment. 

 
This criterion is not applicable to this request.  

 
f) What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate 

neighborhood and the city as a whole (including potential noise and environmental 
impacts, visual impacts, the provision of City services such as police, fire, water, 
sewer, and pedestrian systems and parks and recreational facilities)? 

    
Staff Comment: Approving the Centerplace North 2nd DCMP Amendment would not 

directly affect the density of the area because residential 
development is already allowed (through a Use by Special Review 
approval).  However, clarifying the design standards for residential 
development may bring about proposals for such projects.  Any 
future residential projects would be required to evaluate the 
potential impacts on the surrounding area and would need to 
demonstrate that adequate public facilities are in place to service the 
development. There are currently no corresponding residential 
projects that have been submitted to the City within the DCMP area. 

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  

 
g)  Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be consistent 

with the policies and goals of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and comply with the 
applicable zoning overlay requirements? 

 
The following City of Greeley Comprehensive Plan objectives apply to this request: 
 
 

350



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0016 
January 22, 2019 Page 5 
 

Growth & City Form: 

 GC-6.1 – Complete Neighborhoods 
 Foster the development of “Complete Neighborhoods” that 

incorporate architectural features that are visually interesting and 
add a cohesive identity, both internally and as a transition to other 
adjacent neighborhoods. 

Housing: 

 HO-2.1 – Diversity in New Development 
 Encourage a variety of housing types, sizes, styles and price-points 

of housing units within new residential projects or subdivisions. 
 

Staff Comment: The existing DCMP allows for residential uses, but there are currently 
no such developments in the area.  Amending the DCMP to clarify that 
any future residential projects would be required to comply with the 
Development Code design requirements. The amendment would enable 
developers to create projects with a variety of styles that provide a 
unified transition from the existing commercial uses. This would 
directly align with the preceding Comprehensive Plan objectives, 
whereas establishing strict residential design standards for the DCMP 
could severely limit this desired outcome. 

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  

 
h) What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved Zoning 

Suitability Plan for the property?  
 

Staff Summary:  The proposed DCMP amendment should have no impact on the 
Zoning Suitability Plan that was previously approved as part of the 
Centerplace North Rezone, since the permitted uses for the area are not 
changing.  Although the DCMP is zoned C-H, single-family, two-
family, town house and multi-family dwellings are already allowed 
uses (through a Use by Special Review approval). 

 
This criterion is not applicable to this request.  

  
 
F. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 

 
1. SUBDIVISION HISTORY 

The subject site is part of the Centerplace North Subdivision, which was platted in 2008 
(Rec # 3528542).  The area has since gone through numerous additional filings and replats. 
 

2. HAZARDS 
Staff is unaware of any potential hazards that presently exist on the site. 
 

351



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0016 
January 22, 2019 Page 6 
 

3. WILDLIFE 
The site is not located in an area of ecological significance. 
 

4. FLOODPLAIN 
The property is not located within any flood zones. 
 

5. DRAINAGE AND EROSION 
There are no concerns with drainage and/or erosion on the subject site.   
 

6. TRANSPORTATION 
The subject site can be accessed from either Centerplace Drive or 24th Street Road along 
44th Avenue.  There are also two (2) private drives access points from Centerplace Drive. 
GET (Greeley-Evans Transit) provides service to the area along 46th Avenue.  There should 
be no direct impact on transportation in the area due to the proposed DCMP amendment. 
 
 

G. SERVICES 
1. WATER 

Water services are available in the area and can adequately serve the subject site. 
 

2. SANITARY SEWER 
Sanitation services are available in close proximity to all of the parcels within the subject 
site and can adequately serve the area. 
 

3. EMERGENCY SERVICES 
The subject site is within the adequate response area of Greeley Fire Station #5 and is 
within police department’s service area. 
 

4. PARK/OPEN SPACES 
No parks or regional open space areas are proposed with this rezone.  Any future 
development projects will be required to evaluate the need to provide a park or regional 
open space. 
 

5. SCHOOLS 
No schools are proposed or located within the subject area.  The schools that currently 
serve the area are Meeker Elementary, Brentwood Middle School and Greeley West High 
School. 
 
 

H. NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACTS 
1. VISUAL 

There are no proposed site changes corresponding to the DCMP amendment at this time. 
 

2. NOISE 
There are no proposed site changes corresponding to the DCMP amendment at this time. 
 

 

352



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2018-0016 
January 22, 2019 Page 7 
 

I. PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 
Notice letters were mailed to surrounding property owners on January 11, 2019, per 
Development Code requirements.  All the property owners within the Centerplace North 
DCMP were notified of the proposal as well.  Additionally, five (5) public notice signs were 
posted on the subject site on January 11, 2019.  No comments have been received to date, 
January 16, 2019. 

 
 

J. MINERIAL ESTATE OWNER NOTIFICATION 
Mineral notice is not required for a rezone request. 

 
 

K. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Based on the application received and the Project Summary and accompanying analysis, the 
Planning Commission find that the proposed amendment to the Centerplace North 
Development Concept Master Plan meets the applicable Development Code criteria, Sections 
18.30.050(c)(3) f and g; and therefore, recommends approval of the rezone to the City Council. 
 
 

L. ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – Vicinity Map 
Attachment B – Narrative 
Attachment C – Centerplace North 2nd Development Concept Master Plan Amendment 

353



2361

2391 2396 2393 2394

2384

2364 2367

2397

2365

2395 2390

2363
2373

2360
2370

4542 4524 4514

4548

4400
4224

4330

4318

4527

4617
4555 4533

2510

4417

4206

4214 4126

23rd Street Dr44t
h

Ave

43r
d

Ave
nue

 Ct

43r
d

Ave

42n
d

Ave
nue

 Pl

42n
d

Ave
nue

 Ct

46t
h A

ve

24th St Rd

42n
d A

ve

Centerplace DrCenterplace Dr

Vicinity Map

0 2,500 5,0001,250
Feet [

ZON2018-0016
Centerplace North

2nd DCMP AmendmentLegend
Parcels

DCMP Area

Attachment A

354



Attachment B

355



Centerplace North
Development Concept Master Plan 

Second Amendment 

Original Applicant: 

Edgewood Companies, LLLP 
711 10th Street, Suite 200 

Greeley, CO 80631 
Phone: 970-356-5500 
Fax: 970-356-5500 

Original Owner: 

Arbors II, LLC 
711 10th Street, Suite 200 

Greeley, CO 80631 
Phone: 970-356-5500 
Fax: 970-356-5500 

Municipality: 

City of Greeley 
1100 10th Street 

Greeley, CO  80631 
Phone: 970-356 

Amendment Applicant: 

2010-1 RADC/CADC PROPERTY XI, LLC 

4220 Shawnee Mission Pkwy, Ste 200-B 

Fairway, KS 66205 

Phone:  816-285-3872 

Attachment C

356



PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this Development Concept Master Plan [DCMP] is to establish architectural and 
site themes and guidelines for the design and development of that portion of the Centerplace 
North project zoned Commercial High-Intensity (CH), more fully described on the legal 
description attached hereto as Exhibit A.  This DCMP together with the requirements of the City 
of Greeley are intended to result in the development of a high-quality, aesthetically pleasing, 
cohesive project.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, any single 
family dwellings, two-family dwellings, town house dwellings or multi-family dwellings shall 
not be subject to the Commercial Standards outlined below.  Residential uses shall be 
requested to comply with the City as amended. 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMERCIAL STANDARDS 
 
 
General Overview 
Within Exhibit A, all future building applications to the City will be subject to these standards.  
The City may deny building applications that are not consistent with these standards.  These 
standards are intended to be complementary to the surrounding improvements by incorporating 
certain landscape, building forms, colors, and materials of those surrounding improvements.  
Exhibit B is attached as a pictorial representation.  Improvements are not intended to be without 
variety, individuality, or visual interest, however Architect Plans must include specific references 
and details, showing by example how their plans incorporate, pay homage to, and compliment 
surrounding improvements.   
 
Commercial Associations 
There will be a Commercial Owner Association(s) [Association] governing all properties within 
Exhibit A and all property owners will be obligated pay monthly dues and to be part of the 
Association.  The Association(s) will govern maintenance, repair, and replacement of exterior 
improvements and general appearance.   
 
Building Design and Orientation 
All buildings, whether single- or multi-tenant, shall be required to incorporate a minimum level 
of specific architectural features as identified below in order to create and maintain a cohesive 
design as a unified and distinct set of contextual buildings.  No single tenant may occupy more 
than 80,000 square feet GFA.  Businesses may utilize certain architectural features that are 
consistent with maintaining a national or regional identity, which do not distract or negatively 
impact surrounding improvements. 
  
All sides of the buildings shall have equal or greater architectural treatment as the primary facade 
regardless of the orientation of the customer entrance. Buildings shall incorporate a variety of 
architectural design features, such as (though not limited to): canopies, overhangs, 
recesses/projections, raised parapets, arches, changes on color, changes in material and changes 
in texture.  Exhibit B is attached as a pictorial representation. 

357



 
Customer Entries 
Primary customer entries shall be clearly defined and easily identifiable to both vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic, and shall be protected from the elements of the weather.  Customer entries 
shall be identified through a change in horizontal plane, vertical plane, material, color, or roof 
plane.  Facades shall incorporate a minimum of the following architectural features: 1) Glazing 
appropriate to the scale of the building and consistent with the business operation; 2) Masonry 
pilasters; 3) Awnings or canopies; 4) Signage. 
 
Non-Service Areas 
In order to prevent a patchwork of materials or the use of too many different materials each 
exterior building elevations shall incorporate the use of a dominant material selected from the list 
of preferred materials and colors (as detailed below).  In addition: 
o All prominent parapet features shall have a depth of at least four feet, and no parapets 

grater than four feet in height shall be allowed.   
o Aluminum storefronts shall be pre-finished in Clear, White, Black or Champaign 

anodized finish. 
o Roofing materials shall be in keeping with the overall architectural theme of the 

development; asphalt, fiberglass, wood, or metal shingles shall not be allowed. 
 
Service Areas & Screening 
Loading docks, outdoor storage, service areas, and accessory uses shall be screened from view, 
shielded from public streets where possible, and be separated from pedestrian traffic.  The use of 
screen walls for loading and delivery areas may be used provided the visible side utilizes 
architectural treatment consistent with the other sides of the building.  All accessory structures 
such as trash enclosures and screen walls shall be constructed of a material compatible with the 
primary structure.  All roof-mounted equipment shall be screened by use of an extended parapet 
wall of at least the same height as the equipment it is screening.  Trash dumpsters shall be 
completely contained within an enclosed structure. 
 
Prohibited Features 
Prohibited exterior building materials include: painted concrete masonry, asphalt shingles, 
exposed concrete panels, chain link, plain or painted plywood/oriented strand board.  No more 
than four different roof materials and colors shall be allowed within the development. 

 
Preferred Materials 
Materials must be chosen to create a cohesive overall design within the development as well as 
with the existing surrounding projects.  Preferred building materials include: 
 

o Brick 
o Stone (or synthetic stone products) 
o Synthetic Stucco 
o Textured architectural precast panels 
o Textured concrete block with integral color 
o Glazing 

 
 

358



 
Preferred Colors 
Colors shall be chosen to create a cohesive overall theme within the development as well as with 
the existing surrounding projects.  Preferred colors include earth tones, muted greens/blues, and 
reds/browns.  Bright high contrast colors shall be prohibited as dominant colors.  
 
Accent Colors 
Accent colors are intended to compliment the dominant building colors and, if used, shall be 
limited to 5% of the building facade unless otherwise approved by the City of Greeley (however, 
in no event shall accent colors exceed 15-20% of the façade).  Bright high contrast colors shall 
be used sparingly.     
 
Pedestrian Areas and Circulation 
Site designs shall include an appropriate amount of outdoor pedestrian spaces and shall seek to 
minimize the number of pedestrian crossings by providing sidewalks adjacent to large parking 
areas.  Pedestrian crossings shall be clearly identified with pavement markings, signage, paving 
materials or similar alternatives, and pedestrian connections shall be provided where safe and 
practical along logical circulation routes and along buildings. 
 
Open Spaces and Landscape Treatment 
A minimum of 85% of the area defined as open space shall be vegetated landscaped areas.  The 
development shall be landscaped with regionally appropriate materials; streetscapes shall have a 
mix of tree groupings along with seasonal shrubs flowers.  Landscaping shall be used to both 
screen and break up parking areas.  Hardscape elements such as colored or stamped concrete, 
concrete pavers or tooled joints are encouraged in order to enhance outdoor pedestrian areas 
where living plant materials are not appropriate.  Planters shall be utilized within sidewalk areas 
where practical.  
 
 
Allowed Uses 
The City of Greeley Development Code identifies a number of uses allowed in the Commercial 
High Intensity (C-H) zone.  This Development Concept Master Plan will limit the allowed uses 
on the subject 29.88 acres zoned C-H to the following list.  Those uses identified as design 
review and uses by special review in the Development Code must follow the applicable review 
procedures.  

   
o single-family dwellings 
o two-family dwellings 
o town house dwellings 
o multi-family dwellings 
o libraries, museums, public or quasi-public 
o recreation buildings, facilities, parks, open space, indoor, outdoor, extensive 
o schools 
o schools – adult (business, trade) 
o universities, colleges 
o animal shelter without outdoor kennels or runs 
o veterinary clinic without outdoor kennels or runs 
o art, dance, photo 

359



o studios, galleries 
o auction houses (excludes livestock) 
o auto parts/service/tires up to 4 bays, (excludes paint, body, drive-train large truck repair) 

car wash (over 3 bays) 
o banks, savings and loans, financial institutions, ATMs, drive-up windows 
o bars, taverns, lounges, brewpubs 
o bed and breakfasts, hotels, motels 
o bowling alleys 
o builders, contractors supply, offices & yards 
o convenience stores with gas sales 
o dry cleaning, laundromats 
o emission testing centers 
o medical & dental offices & clinics, massage therapists, medical supply, sales & rental 
o indoor movie theaters 
o intermediate & long-term care, assisted living units (more than eight [8] residential) 
o nurseries, greenhouses, garden shops 
o offices 
o parking lots & structures 
o personal service shops (beauty, barber, tanning & nail salons, shoe repair) 
o pet stores  
o printing, copying shops, mail centers 
o radio & TV stations 
o repair shops 
o restaurants - cafes, & other eating establishments  
o drive-in or drive-thru facilities (including outdoor seating areas) - drive-up window 
o retail sales, under 3,000 square feet GFA 
o retail sales, 3,000 to 20,000 square feet GFA 
o retail sales, large retail (over 20,000 sq. ft. up to 80,000 sq. ft.GFA per tenant) 
o shuttle, bus depots/hub (less than 1,000 sq. ft.) 
o upholstery shops 

 
Residential Use  
All residential uses shall be required to comply with all development code standards, 
within the City of Greely’s Development Code and as amended. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[ this space left blank intentionally ]

360



 
 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

A parcel of land being part of South Half (S1/2) of Section Fourteen (14), Township Five North 
(T.5N.), Range Sixty-six West (R.66W.) of the Sixth Principal Meridian (6th P.M.), City of 
Greeley, County of Weld, State of Colorado and being more particularly described as follows: 
BEGINNING at the West Quarter Corner of said Section 14 and assuming the North line of the 
Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of said Section 14 as bearing South 89°59’10” East, being a Grid 
Bearing of the Colorado State Plane Coordinate System, North Zone, North American Datum 
1983/92, a distance of 2986.65 feet, with all other bearings contained herein relative thereto: 
THENCE South 89°59’10” East along said North line a distance of 1320.00 feet; 
THENCE South 00°50’19” West a distance of 485.36 feet to the beginning point of a curve. The 
aforesaid line being non-tangent to said curve; 
THENCE along the Arc of a curve that is concave to the North a distance of 21.52 feet, whose 
Radius is 675.00 feet, whose Delta is 01°49’36”, and whose Long Chord bears South 81°41’30” 
East a distance of 21.52 feet; 
THENCE South 00°12’11” East a distance of 455.44 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING: 
 
THENCE South 89°34’11” East a distance of 1967.21 feet; 
THENCE South 00°49’46” West a distance of 507.32 feet to the centerline of Centerplace Drive: 
THENCE along said centerline by the following Three (3) courses and distances: 
THENCE South 71°28’10” West a distance of 393.26 feet to a Point of Curvature (PC); 
THENCE along the Arc of a curve which is concave to the North a distance of 304.46 feet, 
whose Radius is 920.00 feet, whose Delta is 18°57’39”, and whose Long Chord bears South 
80°56’59” West a distance of 303.07 feet to the PT; 
THENCE North 89°34’11” West a distance of 1303.89 feet; 
THENCE North 00°00’50” East a distance of 308.87 feet; 
THENCE South 89°59’09” East a distance of 17.46 feet; 
THENCE North 00°12’11” West a distance of 376.03 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
Said described parcel of land contains 29.884 Acres, more or less (±) and is subject to any rights-
of-way or other easements as granted or reserved by instruments of record or as now existing on 
said described parcel of land.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

361



 
 EXHIBIT B 

362



2/11/2019

1

ZON2018-0016
CENTERPLACE NORTH 2ND DCMP AMENDMENT

REQUEST

� Amend the Centerplace North Development Concept 
Master Plan (DCMP) to clarify that single-family, two-
family, townhouse and multi-family dwellings are not 
subject to the commercial design standards.

� Instead such projects would just be required to comply 
with the Development Code design standards.

363



2/11/2019

2

BACKGROUND

� Centerplace North Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP)

� Established in 2007 as part of the Centerplace North Rezone

� Identified permitted land uses (either by right or through Planning Commission approval)

� Outlined specific commercial design guidelines that were more stringent than Development Code

LOCATION

� North of Centerplace Drive, south of 24th Street 
Road & extends east and west of 44th Avenue

� 29.884 acres

� Zoned C-H (Commercial High Intensity) with a 
Development Concept Master Plan

� Surrounding Land Uses

� North:  Vacant (zoned R-M)

� East:  Vacant (zoned PUD)

� South: Commercial (Centerplace Shopping Center)

� West: Commercial (Panera & Homewood Suites) 

XX

X
X

X

364



2/11/2019

3

SITE PHOTOS

Facing Northwest

Facing SouthwestFacing Southwest

APPROVAL CRITERIA & RECOMMENDATION

� Two (2) of the eight (8) approval criteria are applicable to the request (18.30.050(c)(3) f and g).

� Clarifying the DCMP design standards may bring about proposals for residential projects in the area.
� The potential impacts of such projects would be evaluated through the required Use by Special Review process.

� No corresponding residential projects within the DCMP have been submitted at this point in time.

� Aligns with comprehensive plan objectives:
� GC-6.1 – Complete Neighborhoods

� HO-2.1 – Diversity in New Development

� NOTICING
� Notice letters were mailed to property owners within 500 feet of property & all the DCMP property owners

� Five (5) signs were posted within the DCMP area, with no inquiries received

� PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW
� Recommend approval unanimously 

365



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 21 

Key Staff Contact: Betsy Holder, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance amending Section 6.16 of Greeley’s 

Municipal Code regarding Alcohol Beverages 

Summary: 
 

During the course of the last few years, a couple of key Senate Bills were passed into 

law, specifically 16-197 and 18-243, that changed a number of licensing provisions to 

which Greeley’s Code needs some alignment.     

 

A majority of these changes did not take effect until January 1 of this year with 

additional provisions taking effect moving forward in future years.  This new legislation 

gave City staff an opportunity to conduct a comprehensive review of Chapter 6.16 

for any needed additions and modifications, which took place in the last quarter of 

2018. 

 

Greeley’s Liquor Code essentially adopts the Colorado State Liquor Codes, (§44-3 

(Liquor); 44-4 (Beer); 44-5 (Special Event), by reference and then anything where 

State Code allows municipalities to deviate, or opt in or out of, is what is found in 

Greeley’s Code, Chapter 6.16.  A couple of examples of this would be Retail Liquor 

Code Tastings and Common Consumption Areas and Entertainment Districts.  They 

are authorized in the State Code, but local municipalities must adopt an ordinance or 

resolution to allow them and to set forth local parameters for them.  As such, a 

majority of the changes proposed within this Ordinance are housekeeping in nature 

and serve to clean up our local Code and to simplify and clarify particular words or 

phrases and to better mirror how particular sections are being applied.   

 

A summary of changes include: 

 

1. Retitles Liquor, Beer & Special Event Codes to reflect the recodification of the 

State Code to different articles and titles within the Colorado Revised Statutes; 

2. defines “Alcohol” to include Fermented Malt Beverages and eliminates 3.2% 

Beer references; 

3. incorporates additional distance restrictions for Retail Liquor Stores, Liquor 

Licensed Drugstores, and Fermented Malt Beverage classes of licenses; 

4. clarifies the restrictions of alcohol beverages when on, in or using Glenmere 

Park; 

5. updates the hours that beer and liquor tastings can occur; as well as the 

manner with which unused samples are to be removed following a tasting 

event. 

 

366



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

This Ordinance was introduced at the February 5, 2019, Council meeting. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? N/A 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

Chapter 13 of Greeley Municipal Code is also being amended as a companion to 

amendments to this Chapter later on this agenda. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Image: Reinforce Greeley’s vision as an attractive and vibrant community in which to 

live, learn, work and play. 

 

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of 

security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors. 

 

Economic Health & Development: Foster and maintain public and private investment 

in business development. 

 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1.  Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2.    Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3.    Deny the ordinance; or 

4.    Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance Amending Chapter 6.16 

Chapter 6.16 – Redline Version 

367



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____, 2019 
 

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6.16  

OF GREELEY’S MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING ALCOHOL BEVERAGES 

 

WHEREAS, the Greeley Liquor Licensing Authority is charged with granting or refusing 

licenses for the sale, at retail, of malt, vinous, & spirituous liquor; to conduct investigations; and to 

suspend or revoke such licenses for cause in the manner provided by law; and shall have all of the 

powers of the local licensing authority, a set forth in Articles 3, 4, and 5 of Title 44 of the Colorado 

Revised Statutes; and  

 

WHEREAS, Colorado State Law, through Senate Bills 16-197 and 18-243 amended 

Colorado Liquor, Beer, and Special Event Codes in a number of ways including the way beer and 

alcohol is defined; distance restrictions for certain classes of licenses; the manner in which beer, 

wine, and spirituous liquor tastings are conducted; and the location of the Liquor, Beer, and Special 

Event Codes within the Colorado Revised Statutes; and, 

 

WHEREAS, these statewide amendments provided an opportunity for a comprehensive 

review of Greeley’s Liquor Code, Chapter 6.16, and to also address some general housekeeping or 

ministerial-type changes to Chapter 6.16 for clarity, alignment, and modernization; and   

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 6.16 of the Greeley Municipal Code addresses alcohol beverage 

licensing regulatory functions, and it is appropriate to update this Chapter to address current State 

Law and the desire to continue to allow the sale and service of alcohol beverages in a manner that is 

current and in alignment with State provisions and local practices. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, 

COLORADO: 

 

Section 1.  Chapter 6.16 of the Greeley Municipal Code shall be amended as shown on 

“Exhibit A,” which is attached to this Ordinance and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this _____ day of  

 

__________________________, 2019. 

 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

_________________________________  By:_________________________________ 

City Clerk           Mayor 

368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 22 

Key Staff Contact: Andy McRoberts, Culture, Parks and Recreation Director, 970-350-

9425 

  

Title:  

Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance amending Chapter 13.40 of the 

Greeley Municipal Code to update certain park regulations 

Summary: 
 

The State of Colorado adopted Senate Bill 243 in 2018 which changed how the 

definition of beer in Colorado was addressed.   Essentially, the new law, which took 

effect January 1, 2019, eliminated past references and the previous definition of 

“fermented malt beverage” which we commonly knew as “3.2%” beer. 

 

The new Colorado law also enables local government to decide what kind(s) of 

alcohol consumption can be allowed in public spaces, and most notably in this case, 

Greeley’s public parks. 

 

As “full strength beer” is now equally applicable in State law, and there has been no 

known presence or desire to eliminate the consumption of beer in Greeley’s parks, 

staff recommends amending Chapter 13.40 of the Municipal Code to reflect the 

same.  As there are other fermented beverages such as wine, malt liquors, meads, 

and hard ciders, and potentially other products of similar nature and alcohol content, 

staff is also recommending the allowance of consumption of those types of product 

as well.   

 

It is recommended, however, that the Code continue to not allow “hard liquor” 

(spirituous alcohol) in parks nor the presence of glass beverage containers. 

 

It should be noted that the Code continues to address that alcohol consumption of 

any type is prohibited in Glenmere Park.  The original Warranty Deed for Glenmere 

Park, dated September 23, 1911, specifically includes conditions that “intoxicating 

liquors shall never be manufactured, sold, or given away as a beverage on these 

premises”.  If Council does wish to address this issue (potentially reverse the 

restriction), it is not a simple process and staff recommends further legal review upon 

request and with specific policy direction.  

 

The historical prohibition of alcohol consumption of any kind will also continue in 

Lincoln Park with the exception of the issuance of Special Event Permits. 

 

Concurrently, recommended changes reflect amendments to Chapter 6.16 to assure 

consistency and equivalent language. 

 

Other minor edits, without changing intent, are also being recommended to correct 

388



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

language and to simplify the Code. 

 

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board did discuss this item at their regular meeting 

of February 1, 2019.  A vote to recommend adoption of the Ordinance was approved 

on a vote of 6-1. 

 

This Ordinance was introduced at the February 5, 2019, Council meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? Click & Select. 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

 

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process which includes the following public 

hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation (if requested) 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

4) Council discussion 

5) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Safety: Manage the health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense of 

security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors. 

Decision Options:  

1.  Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2.    Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3.    Deny the ordinance; or 

4.    Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. 

 

389



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Exhibit A – Redline Exhibit of edits to Chapter 13.40 of the Greeley Municipal Code 

Exhibit B – “Clean” version of revised Chapter 13.40 of the Greeley Municipal Code 

Original Warranty Deed 

390



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____, 2019 
 

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 

13.40 OF THE GREELEY MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE CERTAIN PARK 

REGULATIONS. 

 

WHEREAS, Colorado Senate Bill 243, effective January 1, 2019, enacted changes to the 

state’s liquor laws affecting manufacturers, wholesaler, retailers and consumers; and, 

 

WHEREAS, one of the changes made by SB-243 is to enable local governments to decide 

what kind of alcohol consumption will be allowed in public parks, which prior state law had limited 

to  consumption of fermented malt beverage (3.2% beer) only; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 13.40 of the Greeley Municipal Code addresses City parks and their 

regulations and it is appropriate to update this Chapter to address current state law; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to continue to allow the consumption of certain alcoholic 

beverages within most City parks as appropriate, except for Glenmere Park, which was deeded to 

the City on September 23, 1911, with the condition that “intoxicating liquors shall never be 

manufactured, sold, or given away as a beverage on these premises;” and, 

 

WHEREAS, in addition, it is appropriate to take this opportunity to correct some syntactical 

errors in Chapter 13.40. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, 

COLORADO: 

 

Section 1.  Chapter 13.40 of the Greeley Municipal Code shall be amended as shown on 

“Exhibit A,” which is attached to this Ordinance and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective five (5) days following its final 

publication, as provided by the Greeley Municipal Charter. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this _____ day of  

 

__________________________, 2019. 

 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

_________________________________  By:_________________________________ 

City Clerk           Mayor 

391



EXHIBIT A 

Chapter 13.40 

Parks 

13.40.010 - Administration of public parks in the City.  

The construction, development, planning, operation and maintenance of public parks in the 
City (“City parks”) shall be under the administration of the Director of Culture, Parks and 
Recreation.  

(Ord. 31, 2012 §2; Ord. 05, 2010 §1; Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

13.40.020 - Closed hours.  

All City public parks within the City shall be closed to the public between the hours of 11:00 
p.m. and 5:00 a.m.  

(Ord. 8, 2012 §1; Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

13.40.030 - Posting notices of closed hours.  

The Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation shall post notices at the entrances of all City 
parks in conspicuous places in City parkstherein in conformity with the provisions as to the 
closing hours, sufficient to inform the public of the closing hours ofin thesuch parks.  

(Ord. 31, 2012 §2; Ord. 05, 2010 §1; Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

13.40.040 - Violation of closed hours unlawful; exceptions.  

It is unlawful for any person to be within athe City parks at aany time when the park is 
closed to the public unless travel on park streets therein is necessary for through traffic and for 
those residing in areas adjoining thesuch parks or unless on occasions or during events of a 
public nature for which a permit has been previously granted. This prohibition shall not extend to 
persons employed within thesuch parks or to persons who have obtained written permission from 
the Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation for entry into thesuch parks during closedsuch 
hours.  

(Ord. 31, 2012 §2; Ord. 8, 2012 §1; Ord. 05, 2010 §1; Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

13.40.050 - Vandalism and interference with facilities or vegetation unlawful.  

It is unlawful for any person to injure, damage, remove, deface or destroy any City park 
facility, tree, shrub, vine, flower or other property within any City park, or to commit any act of 
vandalism therein. Violation of this section shall be treated as a misdemeanor infraction. 

(Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

392



EXHIBIT A 

 

13.40.060 - Orderly conduct required; certain behavior prohibited.  

Anyll person making use of any public City park in the City shall at all times conduct 
themselves in an orderly manner and shall not make or create any noise emitted at levels 
prohibited by Section 9.24.010 of this Code. Violation of this section shall be treated as a 
misdemeanor infraction.... disport themselves in a loud, boisterous or unseemly manner or in 
such fashion as to disturb, be offensive to or annoy other users of such park or residents adjacent 
thereto. Smoking is prohibited by Chapter 9.44 of this Code. 

(Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

13.40.065 – Alcohol consumption in parks. 

       Hard alcohol or spirituous liquor is prohibited, but beer, wine and other fermented malt 
beverages may be consumed by adults in City parks except the following: 
 
 (a) Glenmere Park and any of its adjacent public streets, parking lots, alleys or sidewalks; 
 
 (b) Lincoln Park, located between 7th to 9th Streets and 9th to 10th Avenues, except 
within premises holding a license or permit issued by the Liquor Licensing Authority; and 
 
 (c) Island Grove Regional Park on any calendar day during which the premises is subject 
to a Special Event Permit.  
 
13.40.055 -– Glass beverage containersBottles prohibited in parks.  

It is unlawful for any person to bring, or have in his or her possession, any glass beverage 
bottle or other glass container in any City park of the City.  
(Ord. 19, 1993 §1) 

13.40.070 - Authority. Posting. 

(a)  The Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation shall have nonexecutive authority to enforce 
the rules and regulations promulgated by the Director for the proper management, operation 
and control of Citythe parks, parkways and other recreational facilities within the City, as 
well as  and all rules and regulations adopted by the City Council which affect or are 
applicable within City parks.  

(b)  Notices of applicableAny such rules and regulations shall be effective upon the required 
postedposting of notices at in conspicuous places in City parksthe affected parks, parkways 
and other recreational facilities which give giving notice to the public of the proscribed 
behavior and the effective date thereof. 

(c)     It is unlawful to engage in posted, proscribed behavior and violation of this section shall be 
treated as a misdemeanor infraction....  

393



EXHIBIT A 

(Ord. 31, 2012 §2; Ord. 05, 2010 §1; Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

13.40.080 - Golf course enterprise fund; use of moneys.  

All moneys accumulated in the golf fund heretofore established shall be used for the 
purchase, construction and maintenance of clubhouse grounds, clubhouse buildings and the 
interior furnishing of the clubhouse building, and for improvements to and the maintenance of 
the golf course and related recreational facilities at the municipal golf courses. All gifts received 
by the City from a donor who expresses the desire that the gift be used for golf course and golf 
clubhouse purposes, and all assessments, fees or charges made for golf course or golf clubhouse 
purposes, shall be credited to the above-mentioned fund.  

(Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

13.40.090 - Boating.  

(a)  Except where notice is posted prohibiting boating, as allowed in the applicable rules and 
regulations now in effect or as may hereafter be adopted, it shall be unlawful for it is 
permitted any person to bring into or operate any boat, raft or other water craft, whether 
motor-powered or not, upon any water owned or controlled by the City.  

(b)  It shall be unlawful for any person to navigate, direct or handle any boat in such a manner 
as to unjustifiably or unnecessarily annoy, frighten or endanger the occupants of any other 
boat, wildlife, or other users of the water, or to operate such boat in a reckless or careless 
manner.  

(Ord. 8, 2012 §2)  

394



EXHIBIT B 

 

Chapter 13.40 

Parks 

13.40.010 - Administration of public parks in the City.  

The construction, development, planning, operation and maintenance of public parks in the 
City (“City parks”) shall be under the administration of the Director of Culture, Parks and 
Recreation.  
13.40.020 - Closed hours.  

All City parks shall be closed to the public between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m.  
13.40.030 - Posting notices of closed hours.  

The Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation shall post notices in conspicuous places in 
City parks, sufficient to inform the public of the closing hours of the parks.  
13.40.040 - Violation of closed hours unlawful; exceptions.  

It is unlawful for any person to be within a City park at a time when the park is closed to the 
public unless travel on streets therein is necessary for through traffic and for those residing in 
areas adjoining the parks or during events of a public nature for which a permit has been 
previously granted. This prohibition shall not extend to persons employed within the parks or to 
persons who have obtained written permission from the Director of Culture, Parks and 
Recreation for entry into the parks during closed hours.  
13.40.050 - Vandalism and interference with facilities or vegetation unlawful.  

It is unlawful for a person to injure, damage, remove, deface or destroy a City park facility, 
tree, shrub, vine, flower or other property in a City park, or to commit any act of vandalism 
therein. Violation of this section shall be treated as a misdemeanor infraction. 
13.40.060 - Orderly conduct required; certain behavior prohibited.  

Any person making use of a City park shall at all times conduct themselves in an orderly 
manner and shall not make or create any noise emitted at levels prohibited by Section 9.24.010 
of this Code. Violation of this section shall be treated as a misdemeanor infraction. Smoking is 
prohibited by Chapter 9.44 of this Code. 
13.40.065 – Alcohol consumption in parks. 

       Hard alcohol or spirituous liquor is prohibited, but beer, wine and other fermented malt 
beverages may be consumed by adults in City parks except the following: 
 
 (a) Glenmere Park and any of its adjacent public streets, parking lots, alleys or sidewalks; 
 
 (b) Lincoln Park, located between 7th to 9th Streets and 9th to 10th Avenues, except 
within premises holding a license or permit issued by the Liquor Licensing Authority; and 
 

395



EXHIBIT B 

 

 (c) Island Grove Regional Park on any calendar day during which the premises is subject 
to a Special Event Permit.  
 
13.40.055 – Glass beverage containers prohibited in parks.  

It is unlawful for a person to bring, or have in his or her possession, any glass beverage 
container in a City park.  
13.40.070 - Authority. Posting. 

(a)  The Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation shall have authority to enforce rules and 
regulations promulgated for the proper management, operation and control of City parks, 
parkways and other recreational facilities within the City, as well as rules and regulations 
adopted by the City Council which affect City parks.  

(b)  Notices of applicable rules and regulations shall be posted in conspicuous places in City 
parks, parkways and other recreational facilities giving notice of the proscribed behavior. 

(c)     It is unlawful to engage in posted, proscribed behavior and violation of this section shall be 
treated as a misdemeanor infraction.  

13.40.080 - Golf course enterprise fund; use of moneys.  

All moneys accumulated in the golf fund heretofore established shall be used for the 
purchase, construction and maintenance of clubhouse grounds, clubhouse buildings and the 
interior furnishing of the clubhouse building, and for improvements to and the maintenance of 
the golf course and related recreational facilities at the municipal golf courses. All gifts received 
by the City from a donor who expresses the desire that the gift be used for golf course and golf 
clubhouse purposes, and all assessments, fees or charges made for golf course or golf clubhouse 
purposes, shall be credited to the above-mentioned fund.  

(Ord. 66, 1992 §2(part)) 

13.40.090 - Boating.  

(a)  Except where notice is posted prohibiting boating, it is permitted to bring into or operate a 
boat, raft or water craft, whether motor-powered or not, upon any water owned or controlled 
by the City.  

(b)  It shall be unlawful for any person to navigate, direct or handle any boat in such a manner 
as to annoy, frighten or endanger the occupants of any other boat, wildlife, or other users of 
the water, or to operate such boat in a reckless or careless manner.  

 

396



397



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 23 

Key Staff Contact: Betsy Holder, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Appointment of applicants to the Golf Board, Island Grove Advisory Board, Parks and 

Recreation Advisory Board, and the Stormwater Board. 

 

Summary:  

Council appointment is needed to the above-mentioned boards and commissions 

due to vacancies and term expirations.  Staff continues to actively recruit to fill all 

vacant positions.   

 

Fiscal Impact:  

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

The City Attorney’s Office reviewed the applications and advised of potential 

conflicts of interest.   

 

It should be noted that there is a possibility that the applicants currently serve as a 

volunteer on a board or commission besides the one they are applying to.  It is also 

important to point out to the applicants that there are always potential conflicts that 

exist with business and investments, current jobs or relatives and family members 

coming before the Board or Commission.   

 

Should such conflicts arise, the Board or Commission member simply excuses 

themselves from that particular item but such a potential conflict does not preclude 

anyone from serving on a Board or Commission in general, just that particular agenda 

item. 

 

398



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

Not applicable. 

 

Applicable Council Goal or Objective: 

Infrastructure & Growth – Establish the capital & human infrastructure to support & 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing, and dynamic community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Appoint or reappoint the individuals to serve on applicable board or 

commission; or 

2) Direct staff to re-advertise applicable vacancy. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

No motion is necessary.  The City Council’s Policies and Protocol authorize 

appointment of Board and Commission members by written ballot, which can be 

used in lieu of a motion or voice vote for individual or multiple appointments.  This 

policy was adopted by Council as a time-savings measure.  Accordingly, a ballot is 

attached for Council’s use in making appointments.  Candidates receiving a majority 

vote (at least 4 votes) are appointed with no further action needed by Council. 

Attachments: 

 Ballot 

 February 2019 Boards and Commissions Transmittal Summary 

 

 

399



Page 1 of 1

City of Greeley
Boards & Commissions
Appointment Ballot
February 19, 2019

Larry Chenault CAITLIN ALEXANDER
KEAGAN DOLLARD Nicole Armendaviz
Doy Hampton (I) Trevor Burley
(Recruit For Additional Applicants) Samantha DuVall

Todd Hampton (I)
MARSHALL PARKS
Jessica Schwan
MIKYLA SILVA (I)
Kathleen Stewart (I)

MARY BOHLENDER (I) (Recruit For Additional Applicants)
(Recruit For Additional Applicants)

JIM LORD (I)
(I) = Incumbent PATRICK MCDONALD (I)

(Recruit For Additional Applicants)

2 Vacancies

Island Grove Advisory Board
1 Vacancy

Stormwater Board

Applicants for the boards and/or commission listed below are in alphabetical order 
and recommendations from the interviewing team of Councilmembers are shown in bold. 

**********  BALLOT  **********

Golf Board
1 Vacancy

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
3 Vacancies

400



Boards & Commissions Transmittal 
February 8, 2019 
Key Staff Contact: Jerry Harvey, Assistant City Clerk , 350-9746 

Interview Date 
February 13, 2019 

Council Interview Team 
Councilmembers Smail and Suniga 

Boards and Commissions Being Interviewed 

• Golf Board 
• Island Grove Advisory Board 

Council 's Recruitment and Qualifications Policy 

Council Appointment Dote 
February 19, 2019 

• Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 
• Stormwater Board 

General recruitment efforts shall be made with special measures being taken to balance ward 
representation and attract minority and special population applicants . Generally, volunteers will be 
limited to serving on one board or commission at a time. ( 14.2. ( c )(2) City Council, Policies and 
Protocol) 

Demographic information of existing board members and any specialty requirements are contained 
within the attached Membership Rosters. 

Lego/ Issues 
The City Attorney's Office reviewed the applications and the attached memorandum addresses any 
potential conflicts of interest. 

It should be noted that there is a possibility that the applicants currently serve as a volunteer on a 
board or commission besides the one they are applying to. It is also important to point out to the 
applicants that there are always potential conflicts that exist with business and investments, current 
jobs or relatives and family members coming before the Board or Commission. 

Should such conflicts arise, the Board or Commission member simply excuses themselves from that 
particular item but such a potential conflict does not preclude anyone from serving on a Board or 
Commission in general, just that particular agenda item. 

Applicable Council Goal or Obiective 
Infrastructure & Growth - Establish the capital & human infrastructure to support & maintain a safe, 
competitive, appealing, and dynamic community. 

Decision Options 
1. Recommend candidates for appointment; or 
2. Direct staff to re-advertise applicable vacancy. 

Attachments 
1. Interview Schedule 
2. Conflict Memorandum from City Attorney's Office 
3. Sample Ballot 
4. Membership Rosters & Input from above mentioned Boards and Commissions 
5. Applications of thlbei g considered for interview and/or considered for appointment 

Transmittal reviewed by: Roy Otto, City Manager C ~ cheryl Aragon, Deputy City Clerk 

City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 
401



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 24 

 

Title 

Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting the City Manager or City Council may review the 

attached Council Calendar or Worksession Schedule regarding any upcoming 

meetings or events. 

 

Attachments 

Council Meetings/Other Events Calendar 

Council Meeting/Worksession Schedule 
                                 

402



February 2019 -
March 2019 
SUNDAY 

Feb 17 

24 

3 

10 

17 

Council Master Calendar 

MONDAY 

18 

25 

~ .. /{{. ,;~ ,: .... ~--
~:·"';':•.\~ 

6 OOpm Youth 
Comm1ss1on Smail 

4 

11 

18 

TUESDAY 

19 

6:30pm City Council 
Meeting (1001 11th 
Avenue) 

26 
5:00pm City Council 

Worksession (1001 
11th Avenue) 

5 

6:30pm City Council 
Meeting (1001 11 th 
Avenue) 

12 

5:00pm City Council 
Worksession (1001 
11th Avenue) 

19 

6:30pm City Council 
Meeting (1001 11th 
Avenue) 

February 2019 

Su Mo Tu We Th 

3 4 5 6 7 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 
24 25 26 27 28 

WEDNESDAY THURSDAY 

20 21 

28 

5:00pm Greeley Fire 
Department Annual 
Awards Ceremony 
(Greeley Recreation 
Ce e 651 10th 

13 14 

20 21 

1 

Fr Sa Su Mo 

1 2 
8 9 3 4 

15 16 10 11 
22 23 17 18 

24 25 
31 

FRIDAY 

22 

Mar 1 

8 

15 

22 

March 2019 

Tu We Th Fr Sa 

1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 

12 13 14 15 16 
19 20 21 22 23 
26 27 28 29 30 

SATURDAY 

23 

2 

9 

16 
1 O:OOam City Chat with 

Council member 
Suni a BD 

23 
6:00pm Longs Peak 

Council - Boy Scouts 
of America Reception 
and Dinner (919 7th 
St eet ub e r e 

2/ 14/ 2019 4:43 PM 403



Date Description Staff Contact
PROpel Update (leave first on list) Roy Otto 0.50
2019 Carryover Recommendations Renee Wheeler 0.50
Executive Session - Annual Review of the Municiapl Court Judge Sharon McCabe
Ordinance - Intro - Parking Code Changes Joel Hemesath Consent
Ordinance - Final - Fiber Conduit Colocation Mark Hoekstra Regular
Ordinance - Final - 65th Ave and HWY 34 Eminent Domain Joel Hemesath Regular
Ordinance - Final - Gateway Estates 2nd Filing 1st Replat Brad Mueller Regular
End of Year Financial Report Renee Wheeler 0.50
CDBG Annual and 5-year Reports and Setting of Funding Priorities Becky Safarik 0.75
Multi-Family and Commercial Raw Water Requirements Sean Chambers 0.50
Atmos Pipe Improvement Program Overview Joel Hemesath 0.50
Volunteer Week Proclamation Betsy Holder Recognitions
Acceptance of the CDBG Annual and 5-year Reports and Funding Priorities Becky Safarik Consent
Ordinance - Intro - Second Additional Appropriation Renee Wheeler Consent
Ordinance - Intro - Historic Preservation Code Repeal/Replace Brad Mueller Consent
Ordinance - Final - Parking Code Changes Joel Hemesath Regular
Board & Commission Appointments Betsy Holder Regular
ACE/Workforce Development Presentation Ben Snow 0.50
Monthly Financial Report Renee Wheeler 0.50
National Youth Service Day Proclamation Betsy Holder Recognitions
Mayor's Water Challenge Proclamation Betsy Holder Recognitions
Ordinance - Final - Second Additional Appropriation Renee Wheeler Regular
Ordinance - Final - Historic Preservation Code Repeal/Replace Brad Mueller Regular

Board & Commission Appointments Betsy Holder Regular

Monthly Financial Report Renee Wheeler 0.50
National Tourism Week Proclamation Betsy Holder Recognitions

Board & Commission Appointments Betsy Holder Regular

Monthly Financial Report Renee Wheeler 0.50

City Council Meeting Schedule
February 26, 2019 

Worksession Meeting

March 5, 2019 
Council Meeting

March 12, 2019 
Worksession Meeting

March 19, 2019 
Council Meeting

March 26, 2019 
Worksession

April 9, 2019 
Worksession Meeting

April 2, 2019 
Council Meeting

April 16, 2019 
Council Meeting

April 23, 2019 
Worksession Meeting

May 7, 2019 
Council Meeting

May 14, 2019 
Worksession Meeting

May 21, 2019 
Council Meeting

May 28, 2019 
Worksession Meeting

June 4, 2019 
Council Meeting

June 11, 2019 
Worksession Meeting

404



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 25 

 

Title 

Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council 

at this meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City 

Clerk to sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

 

Council’s Recommended Action 

A motion to approve the above authorizations. 

                                 

405



Council Agenda Summary 
 

February 19, 2019 

Agenda Item Number 26 

 

Title 

Adjournment 

                                 

406


	Agenda Index
	Item No. 1
	Item No. 2
	Item No. 3
	Item No. 4
	Item No. 5
	Item No. 6
	Item No. 7
	Item No. 8
	Item No. 9
	Item No. 10
	Item No. 11
	Item No. 12
	Item No. 13
	Item No. 14
	Item No. 15
	Item No. 16
	Item No. 17
	Item No. 18
	Item No. 19
	Item No. 20
	Item No. 21
	Item No. 22
	Item No. 23
	Item No. 24
	Item No. 25
	Item No. 26

